
DECEMBER 10, 2018 - City Council IZegular Meeting  - 7: 00 p. m.

General Order of Business

1. Preliminary
Call to Order

ah o    —   Closed Session

Roll Call

Invocation

City Council Chamber Pledge of Allegiance

390 Towne Centre Drive Announcements by Mayor/ City Mgr.
Lathrop, California Informational Items

209) 941- 7200 Declaration of Conflict of Interest
www. ci. lathrop. ca. us 2. Presentations

3. Citizen' s Forum

Clty COU11Cil 4. Consent Calendar

5. Scheduled Items

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor Public Hearings

Mark Elliott, Vice Mayor
s Appeals

Referrals and Reports from
Paul Akinjo

Commissions and Committees
Steve Dresser All Other Staff Reports and/ or Action

Martha Salcedo
Items

Study Sessions
6. Council Communications

City Staff
7. Adjournment

Stephen Salvatore, City Manager Orcier of Discussion

Generally, the order of discussion after introduction
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney of an item by the Mayor will include comments and

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk information by staff followed by City Council
questions and inquiries. The applicant, or their

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer authorized representative, or interested residents,

may then speak on the item; each speaker may
Cari James, Finance & Administrative only speak once to each item. At the close of public

Services Director discussion, the item will be considered by the City
Council and action taken.

Mark Meissner, Community
Development Director

Consent Calendar

Zachary Jones, Parks & Recreation Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be

Director routine by the City Council and will be enacted by
one motion and one vote. There will be no separate

James Hood, Police Chief discussion of these items unless a Councilmember

or interested resident so requests, in which case the
Michael King, Assistant Public Works item will be removed from the Consent Calendar

Director and considered separately.

DECEMBEit 10, 201 - Regular Meeting Agencla - 7: 00 p. m.

Prin ed on Recycled Paper See Reverse

1



Addressing the Council

Any person may speak once on any item under discussion by the City Council after receiving
recognition by the Mayor.  Purple speaker cards will be available prior to and during the
meeting. To address City Council, a card must be submitted to the City Clerk indicating name,
address and number of the item upon which a person wishes to speak. When addressing the
City Council, please walk to the lectern located in front of the City Council. State your name and
address. In order to ensure all persons have the opportunity to speak, a time limit will be set by
the Mayor for each speaker ( see instructions on speaker form). In the interest of time, each

speaker may only speak once on each individual agenda item; please limit your comments to

new material; do not repeat what a prior speaker has said. If you challenge the nature of a

proposed action in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else
raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to
the City Council at, or prior to, the public hearing.

Citizen' s Forum

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do so
under the Citizen' s Forum section.  Please submit your purple speaker card to the City Clerk
prior to the commencement of Citizen' s Forum. Only those who have submitted speaker
cards, or have expressed an interest to speak,  prior to the conclusion of Citizen' s

Forum will be called upon to speak.  Please be aware the California Government Code

prohibits the City Council from taking any immediate action on an item which does not appear
on the agenda, unless the item meets stringent statutory requirements. The Mayor will limit the
length of your presentation  ( see instructions on speaker form) and each speaker may only
speak once on this agenda item.

To leave a voice message for the Mayor and all Councilmembers simultaneously, dial
209)   941- 7220.   To send an e- mail for the Mayor and all Councilmembers

simultaneously, citvcouncil@ci. lathroa.ca. us

This City Council Agenda may be accessed by computer at the following Worldwide
Web Address: www. ci. lathrop. ca. us LIVE STREAMING - Now available, please visit the

City Council Page or use the URL www.ci. lathroa. ca. us/ council/

Information

Copies of the Agenda are available in the lobby at the Lathrop City Hall, 390 Towne Centre

Drive,   Lathrop,   on Thursday preceding a regularly scheduled City Council meeting.

Supplemental documents relating to specific agenda items are available for review in the City
Clerk' s Office. This agenda was posted at the following locations:  City Hall, Community Center,
Generations Center,  Senior Center,  and  " J"  Street Fire Department.  The meetings of the

Lathrop City Council are broadcast on Lathrop Comcast Cable Television Channel 97.

Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in compliance
with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will
enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility and/ or

accommodations to this meeting. [ 28 CFR 35. 102- 35. 104 ADA Title II] Interested persons must

request the accommodation at least 2 working days in advance of the meeting by contacting
the City Clerk at ( 209) 941- 7230.

Information about the City or items scheduled on the Agenda may be referred to:

Address:    City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330
Telephone:    ( 209) 941- 7230

Your interest in the conduct of your City' s business is appreciated.

2



CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUJIVCIL FYEGUL/ 4R MEETINCa

MONDAY, DECEM ER 10, 201

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY Hr4LL

390 Towne Cenitre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE: Yhere will be no C/ osed Session. The Reau/ ar Meetina wiA/ reconarene at 7:00

p m"

1.       PRELIf+ INARI(

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER

1. 2 ROLL CALL

1. 3 INVOCATION

1. 4 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. 5 ANfVOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

1. 6 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 7 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

2.       PRESEIVTATIONS

2. 1 CITY COUNCIL ELECTION AIVD REORGANIZATION

2. 1. 1 DECLARATION AND CERTIFICATION OF THE NOVEMBER 6, 2018

ELECTION RESULTS

Adopt a Resolution Reciting the Fact of the General Municipal
Election held on November 6, 2018, Declaring the Results and Such
Other Matters as Provided by Law

2. 1. 2 PRESEIVTATION TO / COMMEfVTS BY OUTGOING COUNCILMEMBERS
1.  Presentation from Assembly Member Heath Flora' s Office

12th

Assembly District)
2.  Presentation from San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency
3.  Presentation from City of Lathrop

2. 1. 3 PRESENTATION OF CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION AND OATH OF

OFFICE TO NEWLY ELECTED OFFICIALS

2. 1. 4 COMMENTS BY IVEWLY ELECTED OFFICIALS

December 10, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1

3



2. 1. 5 APPOINTMENT OF VICE MAYOR

Mayor to Appoint Vice Mayor for 2019

PLEASE NOTE; There wi// be a recess and recevtion fo/% wing Item 2.1. 5.

2. 2 PRESENTATION   -  OVERVIEW OF THE LAW ENFORCEMENT AGAINST

DRUGS L. E. A. D" PROGRAM PROVIDED TO DETER YOUTH AND ADULTS

FROM DRUG USE, DRUG RELATED CRIMES, BULLYING, AND VIOLENCE

2. 3 MAYOR' S COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Parks & Recreation Update on Committee Events and Programs

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Any person desiring to speak on a matter which is not scheduled on this agenda may do
so under Citizen' s Forum. Please submit a purple speaker card to the City Clerk prior to
the commencement of Citizen' s Forum. Only those who have submitted speaker cards,
or have expressed an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of Citizen' s Forum will be

called upon to speak. Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the City
Council from taking any immediate action on an item which does not appear on the
agenda, unless the item meets stringent statutory requirements. The City Council can,
however, allow its members or staff to briefly ( no more than five ( 5) minutes) respond

to statements made, to ask questions for clarification, make a brief announcement or

report on his or her own activities.

See California Government Code Section 54954. 2( a)). Unless directed otherwise by a
majority of the City Council, all questions asked and not answered at the meeting will be
responded to in writing within 10 business days. ALL PUBLIC COMMENTS MUST BE MADE
IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LATHROP CITY COUNCIL HANDBOOK OF RULES AND
PROCEDURES!!

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the City Council and will
be enacted by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these
items unless the Mayor, Councilmember, or citizen so requests, in which event the item

will be removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately.

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waive the Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions on Agenda Unless ,
Otherwise Requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approve Minutes for the Special Council Meeting of November 19, 2018

4. 3 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 18- 398 OF THE CITY

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP LEVYING SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN
CITY OF LATHROP COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.   2018- 1

CENTR 4L LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES)

4. 4 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 18- 399 OF THE CITY

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP LEVYING SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN
CITY OF LATHROP COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.   2018- 2

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES)

December 10, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2

4



4. 5 PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2019/ 20 AND FISCAL YEAR 2020/ 21 BIENNIAL

BUDGET CALENDAR

City Council to Consider and Approve the Proposed Fiscal Year 2019/ 20
and Fiscal Year 2020/ 21 Biennial Budget Calendar

4. 6 ACCEPTANCE OF IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR

MULHOLLAND DRIVE

Adopt Resolution Accepting an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication  ( IOD) for

Mulholland Drive located at River Islands at Lathrop

4. 7 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

SIA) FOR 44 LOTS IN TRACT 3991 VILLAGE V" WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3991 Village ' V" within the
Lakeside East District,  Totaling 44 Single- Family Lots,  Common Use

Agreement with Island Reclamation District 2062 for Portions of Enslen

Avenue and Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands

Development, LLC

4. 8 REQUEST TO TERMINATE THE INTERIM LEVEE IMPACT FEE AND REPLACE

IT WITH A REGIOIVAL LEVEE IMPACT FEE IN THE MOSSDALE TRACT

BASIIV AREA

Adopt Resolution Approving a Regional Levee Impact Fee Collection

Agreement with SJAFCA and Cities of Lathrop, Manteca, Stockton and San
Joaquin County in the Mossdale Tract Basin Area and Terminate the
Lathrop Interim Levee Impact Fee

4. 9 CREATE CIP PS 19- 05 WARREN AVENUE SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT

PROJECT,  APPROVE•  RELATED BUDGET AMEIVDMENT,  AND AUTHORIZE

MEASURE K COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR THE PROJECT

Adopt a Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP PS 19- 05 Warren
Avenue Sidewalk Improvement Project,   Related Budget Amendment,

Measure K Cooperative Agreement

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

5. 1 COUNCIL TO DISCUSS AND CONSIDER A NEW CLEAN ENERGY

FINANCING PROGRAM FOR PRIVATE COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL

IMPROVEMENTS FROM CMFA OPEN PACE PROGRAM

City Council to Receive Information Related to a New Clean Energy
Financing Program, and Consider Adoption of:

A.  Proposed Resolution to Approve the California Municipal Finance

Authority ( CMFA) Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement and to ] oin

the CMFA PACE Program

B.  CMFA Exercise of Powers Agreement Relating to the California
Municipal Finance Authority

C.  Participation Agreement between the CMFA,   Energy Efficiency
Equity LLC, and the City of Lathrop

D.  Participation Agreement between . the CMFA,   BlueFlame PACE

Services LLC, and City of Lathrop

December 10, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3

5



E.  Participation Agreement between the CMFA,   OnPACE Energy
Solutions LLC, and City of Lathrop

F.  Participation Agreement between the CMFA, PACE Equity LLC, and

the City of Lathrop
G.  Participation Agreement between the CMFA,  Samas Capital LLC,

and City of Lathrop
H.  Participation Agreement between the CMFA,  Structured Finance

Associates LLC, and City of Lathrop
I.   Participation Agreement between the CMFA,  Twain Community

Partners II LLC, and the City of Lathrop

5. 2 PUBLIC HEARING  ( PUBLIC NOTICE)  TO CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO

VACATE A PORTION OF GLACIER STREET ( FORMALLY MADRUGA ROAD)

TO SOUTH LATHROP LAND,  L. L. C. AND AUTHORIZE THE CITY CLERK TO

RECORD THE APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS WITH THE COUNTY OF SAN

JOAQUIN

City Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.  Adopt a Resolution to Vacate 9, 789 Square Feet of Glacier Street

Formally Madruga Road) to South Lathrop Land, L. L. C.

6.       COUIVCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:  Set Application Deadline for Appointment

of One  ( 1)  Member to the Measure C Oversight Committee with Term

Expiring June 30, 2021, due to Unexpired Term Vacancy

6. 2 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:  Set Application Deadline for Appointment

of Two ( 2) Members to the Planning Commission with Term Expiring June
30, 2022, due to Unexpired Term Vacancies

6. 3 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S)

Central Valley Executive Committee/ LOCC
Council of Governments

Integrated Waste Management Solid Waste Division

Reclamation District 17 Joint Powers Authority
San Joaquin Partnership Board of Directors
San Joaquin County Commission on Aging
San Joaquin Regional Rail Commission

San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District
Water Advisory Board
Tri Valley- San loaguin Valley Regional Rail Authority
San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency

6. 4 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

7.       ADJOURNMENT

T resa Vargas, G City Clerk

December 10, 2018 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4

6



CI`TY R I IOIAGEl' S ItEPO tT IT M 2. 1. 1
DECEM ER 1Q, 201 CITY CAUNCIL FtEGUL I NIEETING    ,

ITEM:       D CLARATION AND CERTI IC TIOIoJ OF THE

NOVEMBER 6, 201 ELECTIOi+I RESULTS

RECOMMENDe4TION:     dopt a Resolution Reciting the Faet of the General
Nlunicipal Election held on No einber 6,   201,

Declaring the Result and Sueh Other Matters as
Provided by Law

ACKGROUND:

On June 11,  2018,  the City Council adopted Resolution No.  18- 4398 calling a
General Municipal Election for the purpose of electing a Mayor for the full term of
two  ( 2)  years beginning December 2018 and ending December 2020;  two  ( 2)

Members of the City Council for the full term of four ( 4) years beginning December
2018 and ending December 2022; and one ( 1) Member of the City Council for the
partial unexpired term of two  ( 2)  years beginning December 2018 and ending
December 2020, on November 6, 2018.

The City Council also adopted Resolution No.  18- 4399 requesting the San Joaquin
County Registrar of Voters to conduct a Consolidated General Municipal Election on
behalf of the City, along with the Statewide General Election to be held on the date
pursuant to § 10403 of the Elections Code, November 6, 2018.

Section 4 of the attached Resolution declares Sonny Dhaliwal,  Paul Akinjo,  Diane

Lazard, and Jennifer Torres- O' Callaghan as the candidates elected to office.

FISCAL IMP CT:

Funds were included in the FY 2018/ 19 Budget for the cost of the Election.

ATTE C H M E NTS:

A.  Resolution Reciting the Fact of the General Municipal Election held on
November 6, 2018, Declaring the Result and Such Other Matters as Provided
by Law

B.  Exhibit A: Certificate of Results of the City of Lathrop Municipal Election held
on Tuesday, November 6, 2018, Provided by the San Joaquin County
Registrar of Voters

C.  Exhibit B: City Clerk' s Certification of Election Results

7



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

DECLARATION AND CERTIFICATION OF THE NOVEMBER 6, 2018
ELECTION RESULTS

APPROVALS:

eresa Vargas Date

City Clerk

r z-(`

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

2 •

S en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

8



RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

CALIFORNIA, RECITING THE FACT OF THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION

HELD ON NOVEMBER 6, 2018,  DECLARING THE RESULT AND SUCH OTHER

MATTERS AS PROVIDED BY LAW

WHEREAS, a General Municipal Election was held and conducted in the City
of Lathrop, California, on Tuesday, November 6, 2018, as required by law; and

WHEREAS,  notice of election was given in time,  form,  and manner as

provided by law;  that voting precincts were properly established;  that election

officers were appointed and that in all respects the election was held and conducted

and the votes were cast,  received and canvassed and the returns made and

declared in time, form and manner as required by the provisions of the Elections
Code of the State of California for the holding of elections in general law cities; and

WHEREAS, the San Joaquin County Registrar of Voters OfFice canvassed the
returns of the election and has certified the results to this City Council, the results
were received on December 6, 2018, attached, and made a part hereof as " Exhibit

A"; and

WHEREAS,  the City Clerk as the City' s Election OfFicial,  has certified the

results of the election to the City Council,  pursuant to Elections Code Section

10262, attached, and made a part hereof as " Exhibit B";

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop, California, does hereby resolve, declare, determine, and order as follows:

Section 1.     The number of register voters in the City of Lathrop was 9, 810,
and the whole number of votes  (ballots)  cast in the City was
5, 042.

Section 2.     That the names of persons voted for at the election for Mayor

are as follows:

Sonny Dhaliwal

That the names of the persons voted for at the election for

Member of the City Council ( Full Term) are as follows:

Paul Akinjo

Diane Lazard

Minnie Cotton" Diallo

Debbie Rock

Resolution No. 18 -      Page 1 of 3

9



That the name of the person voted for at the election for

Member of the City Council  ( Unexpired Partial Term)  is as

follows:     

Jennifer Torres- O' Callaghan

Steve Dresser

Section 3.     That the number of votes given at each precinct and the number

of votes given in the City to each of the persons above named
for the respective ofFices for which the persons were candidates
and for and against the measure were as listed in " Exhibit A"

attached.

Section 4.     The City Council does declare and determine that Sonny
Dhaliwal was elected as Mayor for the full term of two years;

Paul Akinjo was elected as Member of the City Council for the
full term of four years; Diane Lazard was elected as Member of

the City Council for the full term of four years;  and Jennifer

Torres- O' Callaghan Dresser was elected as Member of the City
Council for the unexpired partial term of two years.

Section 5.     The City Clerk shall enter on the records of the City Council of
the City a statement of the result of the election, showing:  ( 1)

the whole number of votes  ( ballots)  cast in the City;  ( 2)  the

names of the persons voted for; ( 3) for what ofFice each person

was voted for; ( 4) the number of votes given at each precinct to

each person;  and  ( 5) the total number of votes given to each

person.   Said information is set forth in this Resolution and the

documentation attached hereto by reference.

Section 6.     That the City Clerk shall immediately make and deliver to each
of the persons so elected a Certificate of Election signed by the
City Clerk and authenticated;  that the City Clerk shall also
administer to each person elected the Oath of Office prescribed

in the Constitution of the State of California and shall have them

subscribe to it and file it in the office of the City Clerk.  Each and

all of the persons so elected shall then be inducted into the

respective office to which they have been elected.

Section 7.     That the City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of
this resolution and enter it into the book of original resolutions.

Resolution No. 18 -      Page 2 of 3

10



P 45SED ARJD ADOPTIED this
10th

day of December 2018, by the following
vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIIV:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 18 -      Page 3 of 3

11



Attachment B - Exhibit A to Resolution

SA! JOAQUIRI COIJI TV REGISTRAR F VOTERS

CERTIFICATIOIV OF RESULTS OF THE

CITY OF LATHROP GENERAL ELECTION

HELD OfV TUESDAY, I OVEMBER 6, 201

I, Melinda Dubroff, Registrar of Voters for the County of San Joaquin, State of

California, do hereby certify that this office has completed the canvass of the City
of Lathrop General Election, held on Tuesday, November 6, 2018 and that the

following are the results of said election:     

Lathrop i llayor

Number of Positions to be filled:     1

Total Votes 4, 923 100. 00% 

Sonny Dhaliwal 4, 675 94. 96° 0

Non- qualified Write- ins 248 5. 04%
i

Lathrop City Council Member

iUumber of Positions to be filled:     2 i'
Total Votes 8, 015 100. 00% 

Paul Akinjo 2, 529 31. 55%

Debbie Rock 1, 028 12. 83% 

Diane Lazard 2, 330 29. 07%

Minnie" Cotton" Diallo 2, 094 26. 13% 

Non- qualified Write- ins 34 0. 42% 

Lathrop City Council Member( Short Yerm)     
Number of Positions to be filled:     1

Total Votes 5, 042 100. 00% 

Steve Dresser 2, 499 49. 56% 

Jennifer Torres- D' Ca! laghan 2,525 50. 08° 0

Non- qualified Write- ins 18 0. 36%        

i

i

IN WITiVESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal this
6th

day
of December, 2018.     

u  

f y .  q      

i-lQ           ._...     
x    `       

Melinda Dubroff

r:+: Registrar of Voters, San Joaq in County
h,,:.

I,

i
j,
r

12



Attachment C - Exhibit B to Resolution

City C/erk' s Certification of E/ection Resu/ ts

I, Teresa Vargas, City Clerk of the City of Lathrop, State of California, as the
Elections Official for the City of Lathrop, do hereby certify the results of the
General Municipal Election held in the City on November 6, 2018, as set forth
in the Registrar of Voters Certificate of Resu/ ts as submitted and certified by
the County of San Joaquin Registrar of Voters on the

6rh

day of December,
2018,   for the Offices of the City of Lathrop Mayor and City Council.
Furthermore, I certify that the number of votes given in the City to persons
votes for, the respective offices for which the persons were candidates, were

as follows:

Office.-of Mayor -, Fu//.Term 2  :ears I;Seat   °     
A

y  `'       ;

Candidate Vote'°Coun' t   :       Percen#a" e ' '
Total Votes 4, 923 100. 00 %

Sonn Dha/ iwa/   4, 675 94, 96%

Non-  ualified Write- in Votes 248 5.04%
f    ,     

Councrl= Fu// Terr»,4 ears  ' Se"ats);. °: `.Members of the Ci  `
rCandidate : ,     ;:,;   ._:: .       ; Vote,Count..         Percenta e _,-;

Tota/ Votes 8, 015 100. 00 %

Pau/ Akin" 0 2,529 3Z. 55%

Diane Lazard 2, 330 29.07%

Minnie " Cotton" Dial/ o 2, 094 26. 13%

Debbie Rock 1, 028 12. 83%

Non- qualified Write- in Votes 34 0.4Z%

Member of:ttie°C t, Counci/= Partial.Une,x ired. Term`2 ears Z` Seat  '`
Candida. te     .;;:  .      , „      , ,. .Vote Coun#   _;      Percen# a e

Tota/ Votes 5,042 100. 00 %

lennifer Torres- O' Ca/ la han 2,525 50,08%

Steve Dresser 2, 499 49. 56%

Non-  ualified Write- in Votes 18 0. 36%

GG f I
Te esa Vargas, CMC

aty Cle k

13



14



i ITEM 2. 1 5    
CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING    -  ----- — 

ITEM:       APPOINTMENT OF VICE MAYOR

RECOMMENDATION:     Mayor to Appoint Vice Mayor for 2019

BACKGROUND:

Chapter I,  Section F of the City Council Handbook of Rules and Procedures

provides: " The Vice Mayor shall be appointed by the Mayor for a one- year term at
the first meeting in December.   If, in any year in which an election for Mayor of
Council takes place,  and the first meeting in December occurs prior to the

certification of election results, then action under this section shall be delayed to '
the next meeting of the City Council, either regular or special."  StafF is requesting
the appointment at this time.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

ATTACH M E NTS:

None.

APPROVALS:

7

GC i'    C ll
eresa Vargas Date

City Clerk

f Z   `  
Salva or Navarrete Date

City Attorney

yz• rB
phen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

15



16



i

ITEM 4. 2   
CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 19, 2018

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MINUTES

PLEASE NOTE: There was a Closed Session which commenced at 5•35 m The Svecia/ Meetina
reconvened at 7:05 a.m.  

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Dhaliwal called the meeting to order at 5: 35
p. m.  

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation -
Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956. 9( b)  

5 Potential Cases

1. 2. 2 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Existing Litigation Pursuant
to Government Code 54956. 9( a)

City of Lathrop vs. TCN Properties, L. P., et al., San Joaquin

County Superior Court, Case No. STK- CV- UF- 2017- 0001082
a

1. 2. 3 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: Pursuant to
Government Code 54957

City Manager
City Attorney

RECONVENE - Mayor Dhaliwal reconvened the meeting at 7: 05 p. m.

1. 2. 4 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete reported that the City Council met in
Closed Session pursuant to Item 1. 2 and provided staff with appropriate
direction; no other reportable action was taken.

1. 3 ROLL CALL Present: Mayor Dhaliwal; Vice Mayor Elliott;
Councilmembers: Akinjo and Salcedo

Absent: Councilmember Dresser

1. 4 INVOCATION - Mayor Dhaliwal led a moment of silence honoring victims
of the California fires and Thousand Oaks Borderline Bar and Grill

shooting.   

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 1

17



1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Vice Mayor Elliott led the pledge of allegiance.

1. 6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

Mayor Dhaliwal expressed his condolences related to the passing of
Councilmember Dresser' s younger brother.      

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST - None

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 PROCLAMATION - DECLARING NOVEMBER AS SIKH AWARENESS MONTH

Vice Mayor Elliott,   on behalf of the City Council,   presented the

Proclamation to members of the Sikh community declaring November
2018 as Sikh Awareness Month.   Daljit S.   Goraya   ( Lathrop,   CA)

commented on the matter.

2. 2 PROCLAMATION - DECLARING NOVEMBER AS HOMELESS YOUTH
AWARENESS MONTH

Councilmember Salcedo on behalf of the City Council,  presented the

Proclamation to Lacey Agbulos   ( Women' s Center-Youth   &   Family
Services). Ms. Agbulos provided information on resources available.

2. 3 PRESENTATIOIV   -  OVERVIEW OF THE LAW ENFORCEMENT AGAINST

DRUGS L. E. A. D" PROGRAM PROVIDED TO DETER YOUTH AND ADULTS

FROM DRUG USE, DRUG RELATED CRIMES, BULLYING, AIVD VIOLENCE

City Clerk Teresa Vargas announced that Item 2. 3 was moved to the
Regular Meeting of December 10, 2018.

2. 4 MAYOR' S COMMITTEE REPORT( S)  

Parks & Recreation Update on Committee Events and Programs

Parks and Recreation Director Zach"] ones reported the following past and
upcoming committee events and programs:

Veteran' s Day Celebration
Reported event held on November 11, 2018 at Valverde Park

Breakfast with Santa

Announced event scheduled for December 1, 2018, starting at 9: 00
a. m. at the Lathrop Community Center

Christmas Tree Lighting Event
Announced event scheduled for December 1, 2018, starting at 6: 00
p. m. at the Lathrop Community Center

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 2

18



Christmas Parade

Announced event scheduled for December 8, 2018, starting at
11: 00 a. m, at the Lathrop Community Center

Holiday Light Contest

Registration ends December 13, 2018, judging will take place the
week of December 17, 2018

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Craig Weis ( Lathrop,  CA) commented on the Measure C presentation provided
during the Council Meeting of October 8, 2018.      

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

On a motion by Councilmember Salcedo, seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal, the City
Council approved the Consent Calendar,  by the following roll call vote,  unless

otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser

Abstain: None

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waived the reading of ordinances and resolutions on agenda unless
otherwise requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember.

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of October 8, 2018.

4. 3 TREASURER' S REPORT SEPTEMBER 2018

Approved Quarterly Treasurer' s Investment Report for September 2018.

4. 4 DELINQUENT UTILITY TURN OFFS

Crais Weis  ( Lathrop,  CA)  expressed concern with the' reconnection fees
applied to terminated accounts due to non- pay;ment;    requested

information related to the City' s use of fees collected on delinquent
accounts. Finance Director Cari ] ames provided the information.

Adopted Resolution 18- 4472 suspending service disconnections for
delinquent accounts scheduled on December 12, 2018. ,

4. 5 FUNDING FOR A MAINTENANCE WORKER I/ II IN THE PUBLIC WORKS
DEPARTMENT

November 19, 2018  _    Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 3

19



Adopted Resolution 18- 4473 to approve funding for a Maintenance
Worker I/ II position.

4. 6 CHRISTMAS PARADE TEMPORARY STREET CLOSURE

Adopted Resolution 18- 4474 approving temporary street closur.es for
the Lathrop Christmas Parade on December 8, 2018.

4. 7 ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FOR THE 5T"     
STREET SIDEWALK

IMPROVEMENTS CIP PS 15- 19

Adopted Resolution 18- 4475 accepting improvements from McFadden
Construction, Inc. and Sinclair General Engineering Construction, Inc. for
the 5th Street Sidewalk Improvement Project CIP PS 15- 19 and

authorizing the filing of a Notice of Completion.      

4. 8 ACCEPT IMPROVEMENTS FOR MOSSDALE TRAIL LIGHTING CIP PK 18- 10
FROM T& S INTERMODAL MAINTENANCE, INC:

Adopted Resolution 18- 4476 accepting improvements from T&S
Intermodal Maintenance,  Inc.  for CIP PK 18- 10 Mossdale Trail Lighting,
authorizing the filing of a Notice of Completion,  and the release of
contract retention.

4. 9 RESOLUTION OF INTEIVTION TO VACATE A PORTION OF MADRUGA ROAD
TO SOUTH LATHROP LAND, L. L. C.

Adopted Resolution 18- 4477 approving the City' s intention to vacate
9, 789 square feet of Madruga Road to South Lathrop Land, L. L. C.

4. 10 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT
SIA)  FOR 89 LOTS IN TRACT 3999 VILLAGE  " BB"  WITHIN LAKESIDE

EAST DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Ado pted Resolution 18- 4478 approving final map for Tract 3999 Village
BB

within the Lakeside East District, totaling 89 single- family lots and a
Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development,
LLC,  and Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for portions of. Garden Farms
Avenue, Bosch Avenue, and Oberlin Avenue.

4. 11 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT
SIA)  FOR 103 LOTS IN TRACT 4001 VILLAGE AA" WITHIN LAKESIDE

EAST DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Ado pted Resolution 18- 4479 approving final map for Tract 4001 Village
AA within the Lakeside East District,  totaling 103 single- family lots,

Common Use Agreement with Island Reclamation District 2062 for a
portion of Riverfront Drive,  Subdivision Improvement Agreement with
River Islands Development,  LLC, and Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for
Riverfront Drive and Bosch Avenue.

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council' Special Meeting Minutes Page 4

20



4. 12 COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS ANNUAL BOND ACCOUNTABILITY

REPORT FOR FY 2017/ 18

Received FY 17- 18 accountability report for bonded and non- bonded
Community Facilities Districts.

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

5. 1 PUBLIC HEARING   ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)   TO CONSIDER PROPOSED

COMMUNITY .FACILITIES DISTRICTS NOS. 2018- 1 AND 2018- 2 ( CENTRAL

LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES) CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN

COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete provided the presentation.   Mayor    

Dhaliwal opened the public hearing for the proceedings of two districts,
Community Facilities District No.   2018- 1  &  2018- 2  ( Central Lathrop
Specific Plan Facilities).  City Clerk Teresa Vargas confirmed receipt of a
public comment letter received for Item 5. 1 submitted by Martin Harris,
Terra Land Group, LLC; and confirmed distribution to the City Council and
copies for the public.  City Attorney Salvador Navarrete announced that
Bond Counsel Dave Fama,  ] ones Hall,  was present and available for

questions.  A question and answer period ensued amongst the Council.

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete provided the information. There were no
speakers. Mayor Dhaliwal closed the public hearing.

On a motion by Ma,yor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council:

1.  Held a Public Hearing ( for CFD 2018- 1 & CFD 2018- 2); and

2.  Adopted Resolution No. 18- 4480 Forming a Community Facilities
District and Five Improvement Areas and Levying a Special Tax to
Refinance the Cost of Certain Public Facilities in and for Such

District ( for CFD 2018- 1).

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser

Abstain: None

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council:

3.  Adopted Resolution No. 18- 4481 Determining Necessity to Incur
Bonded Indebtedness for a Community Facilities District and Five
Improvement Areas Therein ( for CFD 2018- 1).

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser

Abstain: None

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 5

21



On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council:

4.  Adopted Resolution No.  18- 4482 Calling Special Election for a
Community Facilities District and Five Improvement Areas Therein
for CFD 2018- 1).

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser

Abstain: None

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council:

5.  Adopted Resolution No. 18- 4483 Forming a Community Facilities
District and Levying a Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of Certain
Public Facilities in and for Such District ( for CFD 2018- 2).

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser

Abstain: None

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council:

6.  Adopted Resolution No. 18- 4484 Determining Necessity to Incur
Bonded Indebtedness for a Community Facilities District  ( for CFD
2018- 2).

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser

Abstain: None

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council:
7.  Adopted Resolution No.   18- 4485 Calling Special Election for a

Community Facilities District ( for CFD 2018- 2)

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser

Abstain: None

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 6 ,

22



City Clerk Teresa Vargas opened the ballots and announced the results of
the election:

For CFD 2018- 1 Improvement Area 1:  100%  of the votes were yes",

which included a total of 94 votes;
For CFD 2018- 1 Improvement Area 2:  100%  of the votes were " yes",

which included a total of 62 votes;
For CFD 2018- 1 Improvement Area 3:  100%  of the votes were yes",

which included a total of 115 votes;
For CFD 2018- 1 Improvement Area 4:  100%  of the votes were " yes",

which included a total of 98 votes;
For CFD 2018- 1 Improvement Area 5:  100%  of the votes were yes",

which included a total of 134 votes; and

For CFD 2018- 2:  100% of the votes were " yes", which included a total of
503 votes.

Mayor Dhaliwal announced that the results of the elections being
unanimously in favor of the levy of the special taxes in both Districts, the
establishment of the appropriations limits and the incurring of bonded
indebtedness for each District. The Council then proceeded with the final
actions for the Districts.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council:

8.  Adopted Resolution No. 18- 4486 Declaring Results of Special
Elections for a Community Facilities District and Directing Recording
of Notice of Special Tax Lien ( for CFD 2018- 1)

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser

Abstain: None

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council:

9.  Adopted Resolution No.  18- 4487 Declaring Results of Special
Elections for a Community Facilities District and Directing Recording
of Notice of Special Tax Lien ( for CFD 2018- 2)

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser

Abstain: None

Mayor Dhaliwal opened the public hearing for the introduction and first
reading of an ordinance related to the levying special taxes within City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 ( Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Facilities). There were no speakers. Mayor Dhaliwal closed the public
hearing.

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 7

23



On a motion by Vice Mayor Elliott, seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal, the City
Council:

10. Held a Public Hearing; and

11. Introduced and held first reading of an Ordinance of the City
Council of the City of Lathrop Levying Special Taxes Within City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop
Specific Plan Facilities).

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser

Abstain: fVone

Mayor Dhaliwal opened the public hearing for the introduction and first
reading of an ordinance related to the levying special taxes within City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central Lathrop Specific
Plan Facilities). There were no speakers. Mayor Dhaliwal closed the public
hearing.   

On a motion by Vice Mayor Elliott, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo,
the City Council:

12. Held a Public Hearing; and

13. Introduced and held first reading of an Ordinance of the City
Council of the City of Lathrop Levying Special Taxes Within City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  2018- 2  ( Central Lathrop

V

Specific Plan Facilities)

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser
Abstain: None

The City Council considered and took the following actions to authorize
the issuance of bonds:

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council:

14.Adopted Resolution No.  18- 4488 Authorizing the Issuance of
Special Tax Bonds for and on Behalf of Each Improvement Area of a
Community Facilities District, Approving and Directing Execution of
Indentures,  Approving Sale of Such Bonds,  and Approving Other
Related Documents and Actions ( for CFD 2018- 1).

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser

Abstain: None

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 8

24



On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Salcedo, the
City Council:

15. Adopted Resolution No.  18- 4489 Authorizing the Issuance of
Special Tax Bonds for and on Behalf of a Community Facilities
District,  Approving and Directing the Execution of an Indenture,
Approving the Sale of Such Bonds,  and Approving Other Related
Documents and Actions ( for CFD 2018- 2).

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser

Abstain: None

5. 2 PUBLIC HEARING  ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER UNMET TRANSIT
NEEDS FOR FY 19- 20

Assistant Public Works Director Michael King introduced Assistant Regional
Planner Michelle Prince  ( San Joaquin Council of Governments).  Mr.  King
provided the presentation. A question and answer period ensued.  Mayor
Dhaliwal opened the public hearing. Christine Mendes ( Manteca, CA) and

Debra Williams  ( Manteca,  CA)  withdrew their request to speak on the

matter.  City Clerk Teresa Vargas confirmed receipt of a public comment
letter received for Item 5. 2 submitted by Martin Harris, Terra Land Group,
LLC;  and confirmed distribution to the City Council and copies for the
public. There were no speakers. Mayor Dhaliwal closed the public hearing.

On a motion by Councilmember Salcedo, seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal, the
City Council held a public hearing to receive public testimony regarding
unmet transit needs within the City of Lathrop   ( Transportation
Development Act requirements for transit funds). No other action taken.

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:  Appointment of One  ( 1)  Member to the
Senior Advisory Commission with Term Expiring June 30,  2019,  due to

Unexpired Term Vacancy
One ( 1) Application Received

Mayor Dhaliwal made the following appointment:

Senior Advisory Commission Term Expires
Robert Long June 30, 2019

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo,  seconded by Councilmember
Salcedo,  the City Council approved the appointment made by Mayor
Dhaliwal as noted above.

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 9

25



Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser

Abstain: None

6. 2 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL:  Appointment of One  ( 1)  Member to the

Planning Commission with Term Expiring June 30, 2019, due to Unexpired
Term Vacancy

Six ( 6) Applications Received

Mayor Dhaliwal made the following appointment:

Planninq Commission Term Exuires
Ash Ramilay June 30, 2019

Ray Mendes   ( Manteca,   CA)   requested clarification on the selection

process.   Mayor Dhaliwal provided the information.   Debra Williams
Manteca, CA) expressed support for consideration of applicant Christine

Mendes.

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo,  seconded by Councilmember
Salcedo,  the City Council approved the appointment made by Mayor
Dhaliwal as noted above.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Elliott, Salcedo, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: Dresser

Abstain: None

6. 3 COUNCILMEMBER DRESSER REFERRAL: TrafFic Calming Measures for the
Lathrop Acres Area

Mayor Dhaliwal moved Item 6. 3 to the next regular meeting due to
Councilmember Dresser' s absence.

6. 4 COUNCILMEMBER DRESSER REFERRAL:  Review of Recreational Vehicle
ancl Boat Parking Regulations,  and Potential Revisions to Ordinance

Language

Mayor Dhaliwal moved Item 6. 4 to the next regular meeting due to
Councilmember Dresser' s absence.

6. 5 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S) - None

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 10

26



6. 6 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

Councilmember Akinjo commented on the success of the Veteran' s Day
celebration event;  expressed sympathy for the California fire victims.
Councilmember Salcedo echoed Councilmember Akinjo' s comments and
wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. Vice Mayor Elliott commented on
the success of the Veteran' s Day celebration event;  thanked Deputy
Dominguez for his role as keynote speaker and the volunteers that
assisted with the event; thanked volunteers and first responders involved
in the California fire rescue missions. Mayor Dhaliwal also echoed similar
sentiments;  expressed sympathy for the California fire victims and the
loss of Councilmember Dresser' s younger brother.

7.       ADJOURNMENT — There being no further business, Mayor, Dhaliwal adjourned
the meeting at 8: 19 p. m.     

resa Vargas, CM

City Clerk

November 19, 2018 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 11

27



28



i

ITEM 4. 3
i

ORDINANCE NO. 18- 398

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP LEVYING
SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN CITY OF LATHROP COMMUNITY FACILITIES
DISTRICT NO. 2018- 1 ( CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN FACILITIES)

WHEREAS,  on August 13,  2018,  pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community
Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, Chapter 2. 5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5,

commencing with Section 53311, of the California Government Code ( the " Act"), the

City Council ( the " Council") of the City of Lathrop ( the " City") adopted a resolution

entitled Resolution of Intention to Form a Community Facilities District and Five
Improvement Areas Therein and to Levy a Special Tax in the District to Finance Public
Facilities" ( the " Resolution of Intention"), stating its intention to form  ( i) " City of
Lathrop Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan
Facilities)  ( the  " CFD"),  ( ii)  " Improvement Area No.   1 of the City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"

Improvement Area 1"),  ( iii)  " Improvement Area No.  2 of the City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"

Improvement Area 2"),  ( iv)  Improvement Area No.  3 of the City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"   

Improvement Area 3"),  ( v)  " Improvement Area No.  4 of the City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"

Improvement Area 4"), and ( vi) " Improvement Area No. 5 of the City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1  ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities)"

Improvement Area 5" and together, the " Improvement Areas");

WHEREAS,  notice was published as required by the Act relative to the
intention of the Council to form the CFD and Improvement Areas, to provide for
certain public facilities and to incur bonded indebtedness for the CFD and

Improvement Areas;

WHEREAS, the Council has held noticed public hearings as required by the
Act relative to ( i) the determination to proceed with the formation of the CFD and
Improvement Areas and the rate and method of apportionment of the special tax to
be levied within each Improvement Area to finance a portion of the costs of the public
facilities and  ( ii)  the issuance of bonded indebtedness and other debt for each
Improvement Area;

WHEREAS, at said hearing all persons desiring to be heard on all matters
pertaining to the formation of the CFD and Improvement Areas and the levy of said
special taxes were heard, substantial evidence was presented and considered by the
Council and a full and fair hearing was held;

WHEREAS, subsequent to the hearing, the Council adopted its Resolution No.
18- 4480 entitled  ' Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District and Five
Improvement Areas and to Levy a Special Tax to Finance the Acquisition and
Construction of Certain Public Facilities in and for Such District" ( the " Resolution of

Formation"), its Resolution Determining the Necessity to Incur Bonded Indebtedness

Ordinance 18- 398

29



for a Community Facilities District and Five Improvement Areas Therein"  ( the

Resolution Determining Necessity") and its Resolution Calling Special Election for a
Community Facilities District and Five Improvement Areas Therein" ( the Election

Resolution"), which resolutions defined the public facilities to be financed by the CFD
the Facilities"), established the CFD and each Improvement Area, authorized the

levy of a special tax within each Improvement Area, determined the necessity to
incur bonded indebtedness in each Improvement Area and called an election within

each Improvement Area on the propositions of incurring indebtedness,  levying a
special tax, and establishing an appropriations limit within each Improvement Area,
respectively; and

WHEREAS, on November 19, 2018 a special election was held with respect to

each Improvement Area at which the eligible landowner- electors of each

Improvement Area approved such propositions by the two- thirds vote required by
the Act.

NOlA/, THEREFORE,  BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF LATHROP, as follows:

Section 1.   By the passage of this Ordinance the Council hereby authorizes
and levies special taxes within Improvement Area 1,   Improvement Area 2,

Improvement Area 3, Improvement Area 4, and Improvement Area 5 pursuant to the

Act. With respect to each Improvement Area, the City shall levy the special taxes at
the rate and in accordance with the formula  ( for each Improvement Area,  the

respective  ' Rate and Method")  set forth in the Resolution of Formation,  which

Resolution of Formation is by this reference incorporated herein. The special taxes
are hereby authorized to be levied commencing in fiscal year 2018- 19 and in each
fiscal year thereafter for the period provided in applicable Rate and Method,  as

contemplated by the Resolution of Formation and the Resolution of Necessity, and all
costs of administering the CFD.       '

Section 2.  The Finance Director of the City is hereby authorized and directed
each fiscal year to determine the specific special tax rate and amount to be levied for

the next ensuing fiscal year for each parcel of real property within each Improvement
Area in the manner and as provided in the Resolution of Formation.

Section 3.  Except as provided in the Rate and Method, properties or entities

of the State, federal or local governments shall be exempt from any levy of the special
taxes.    In no event shall the special taxes be levied on any parcel within each
Improvement Area in excess of the maximum tax specified in the Resolution of

Formation.

Section 4.  All of the collections of the special tax shall be used as provided

for in the Act and in the Resolution of Formation including, but not limited to, the

payment of principal and interest on bonds issued by the City for each Improvement
Area ( the" Bonds"), the replenishment of the reserve fund for the Bonds, the payment

of the costs of the Facilities, the payment of the costs of the City in administering the
CFD, and the costs of collecting and administering the special tax.

Ordinance 18- 398 2

30



Section 5. The special taxes shall be collected in the same manner as ordinary
ad valorem taxes are collected and shall have the same lien priority, and be subject
to the same penalties and the same procedure and sale in cases of delinquency as
provided for ad valorem taxes; provided, however, that special taxes may be directly
billed by the City andjor the Council may provide for other appropriate methods of
collection by resolutions of the Council.  In addition, the provisions of Section 53356. 1

of the Act shall apply to delinquent special tax payments.  If the special taxes are to

be collected in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem taxes are collected, the

Finance Director of the City is hereby authorized and directed to provide all necessary
information to the auditor/ tax collector of the County of San ] oaquin in order to effect
proper billing and collection of the special tax, or take such other appropriate action,
so that the special tax shall be included on the secured property tax roll of the County
of San Joaquin for fiscal year 2018- 19 and for each fiscal year thereafter until the

Bonds are paid in full or such longer period of time provided in the Rate and Method.

Section 6.   If for any reason any portion of this Ordinance is found to be
invalid, or if the special tax is found inapplicable to any particular parcel within an
Improvement Area,  by a court of competent jurisdiction,  the balance of this

Ordinance and the application of the special tax to the remaining parcels within such
Improvement Area shall not be affected.

Section 7.. The Mayor shall sign this Ordinance and the City Clerk shall cause
the same to be published within fifteen ( 15) days after its passage at least once in a

newspaper of general circulation published and circulated in the City.

Section 8.   This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days from the date of final
passage.

THIS ORDINANCE was regularly introduced at a special meeting of the City
Council of the City of Lathrop on the 19t'' 

day of November 2018, and was PASSED
AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on the
10th

day of December 2018, by the following vote:

AYES: 

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Ordinance 18- 398 3

31



32



i I
ITEM 4.4

ORDINANCE NO. 18- 399

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP LEVYING

SPECIAL TAXES WITHIN CITY OF LATHROP  ' COMMUNITY FACILITIES

DISTRICT NO. 2018- 2 ( CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLi4N FACILITIES)

WHEREAS,  on August 13,  2018,  pursuant to the Mello- Roos Community
Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, Chapter 2. 5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5,

commencing with Section 53311, of the California Government Code ( the " Act"), the

City Council ( the Council") of the City of Lathrop ( the City") adopted a resolution       ,

entitled Resolution of Intention to Form a Community Facilities District Therein and
to Levy a Special Tax in the District to Finance the Acquisition and Construction of
Certain Public Facilities Public Facilities" ( the Resolution of Intention"), stating its
intention to form ( i) City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2018- 2 ( Central
Lathrop Specific Plan Facilities) ( the ' CFD");

WHEREAS,  notice was published as' required by the Act relative to the
intention of the Council to form the CFD, to provide for certain public facilities and to

incur bonded indebtedness for the CFD;

WHEREAS, the Council has held noticed public hearings as required by the
Act relatiye to ( i) the determination to proceed with the formation of the CFD and the

rate and method of apportionment of the special tax to be levied within the CFD to

finance a portion of the costs of the public facilities and ( ii) the issuance of bonded

indebtedness and other debt for the CFD;

WHEREAS, at said hearing all persons desiring to be heard on all matters
pertaining to the formation of the CFD and the levy of said special taxes were heard,
substantial evidence was presented and considered by the Council and a full and fair
hearing was held;

WHEREAS, subsequent to the hearing, the Council adopted its Resolution No.
18- 4483 entitled Resolution to Form a Community Facilities District and to Levy a
Special Tax to Refinance the Cost of Certain Public Facilities in and for Such District"

the Resolution of Formation"), its Resolution Determining the Necessity to Incur
Bonded Indebtedness for a Community Facilities District"   ( the   " Resolution

Determining Necessity") and its Resolution Calling Special Election for a Community
Facilities District" ( the Election Resolution"), which resolutions defined the public

facilities to be financed by the CFD ( the Facilities"), established the CFD, authori,zed

the levy of a special tax within the CFD, determined the necessity to incur bonded
indebtedness for the CFD, and called an election within the CFD on the propositions

of incurring -indebtedness, levying a special tax, and establishing an appropriations
limit within the CFD; and

WHEREAS, on November 19, 2018 a special election was held with respect to

the CFD at which the eligible landowner- electors of the CFD approved such

propositions by the two- thirds vote required by the Act.

Ordinance 18- 399

33



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF LATHROP, as follows:

Section 1.   By the passage of this Ordinance the Council hereby authorizes
and levies special taxes within the CFD pursuant to the Act. The City shall levy the
special taxes at the rate and in accordance with the formula ( the " Rate and Method")

set forth in the Resolution of Formation, which Resolution of Formation is by this
reference incorporated herein. The special taxes are hereby authorized to be levied
commencing in fiscal year 2018- 29 and in each fiscal year thereafter for the period
provided in applicable Rate and Method,  as contemplated by the Resolution of
Formation and the Resolution of Necessity, and all costs of administering the CFD.

Section 2.  The Finance Director of the City is hereby authorized and directed
each fiscal year to determine the specific special tax rate and amount to be levied for

the next ensuing fiscal year for each parcel of real property within the CFD in the
manner and as provided in the Resolution of Formation.

Section 3.  Except as provided in the Rate and Method, properties or entities

of the State, federal or local governments shall be exempt from any levy of the special
taxes.  In no event shall the special taxes be levied on any parcel within the CFD in
excess of the maximum tax specified in the Resolution of Formation.

Section 4.  All of the collections of the special tax shall be used as provided

for in the Act and in the Resolution of Formation including, but not limited to, the

payment of principal and interest on bonds issued by the City for the CFD  ( the

Bonds"), the replenishment of the reserve fund for the Bonds, the payment of the

costs of the Facilities, the payment of the costs of the City in administering the CFD,
and the costs of collecting and administering the special tax.

Section 5.  The special taxes shall be collected in the manner as ordinary ad
valorem taxes are collected and shall have the same lien priority, and be subject to
the same penalties and the same procedure and sale in cases of delinquency as
provided for ad valorem taxes; provided, however, that special taxes may be directly
billed by the City and/ or the Council may provide for other appropriate methods of
collection by resolutions of the Council.  In addition, the provisions of Section 53356. 1

of the Act shall apply to delinquent special tax payments.   The Finance Director of

the City is hereby authorized bill and collect the special tax until the Bonds are paid
in full or such longer period of time provided in the Rate and Method.

Section 6.   If for any reason any portion of this Ordinance is found to be
invalid, or if the special tax is found inapplicable to any particular parcel within the
CFD,  by a court of competent jurisdiction, the balance of this Ordinance and the

application of the special tax to the remaining parcels within the CFD shall not be
affected.

Section 7.  The Mayor shall sign this Ordinance and the City Clerk shall cause
the same to be published within fifteen ( 15) days after its passage at least once in a

newspaper of general circulation published and circulated in the City.

Ordinance 18- 399            2

34



Section 8.   This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days from the date of final

passage.

THIS ORDINANCE was regularly introduced at a special meeting of the City
Council of the City of Lathrop on the 19th day of November 2018, and was PASSED
AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on the
10t'' 

day of December 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador IVavarrete, City Attorney

Ordinance 18- 399 3

35



36



ITEM 4. 5
CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
I

ITEM:       PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2019/ 20 AND FISCAL

YEAR 2020/ 21 BIENNIAL BUDGET CALENDAR

RECOMMENDATION:     City Council to Consider and Approve the Proposed
Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 and Fiscal Year 2020/ 21

Biennial Budget Calendar

SUMMARY:

The City of Lathrop Biennial Budget outlines the City' s spending plan and priorities
for the coming fiscal years which run from July 1st to June 30th. There are several
key dates leading to the budget ad option that require input from the City Council
and City Commissions. Coordination is needed to make sure processes move forward
as planned,   prevent confusion and misinformation,   and ensure appropriate

stakeholders are involved.  With that in mind, Staff proposes the following key dates:

April 4, 2019 - Parks and Recreation Commission reviews Parks Budgets

April 8, 2019 - Council sets a Public hearing for Maintenance Districts
April 24,  2019  -  Planning Commission reviews CIP' s for conformity with
General Plan

May 13, 2019 - Council holds a public hearing on the Maintenance Districts

May 13, 2019 - Council reviews and prioritizes Capital Improvement Projects

CIP' s)

June 17 thru 19, 2019 - Council holds budget meetings to review and adopt

Proposed Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 and Fiscal Year 2020/ 21 Biennial Budget

Staff request that City Council consider approval of the Biennial Budget Calendar
Attachment A) outlining key dates to guide the development of the City' s Fiscal Year

2019/ 20 and Fiscal Year 2020/ 21 Budget.

BACKGROUND:       

Every other year,  the City Council is required to adopt a biennial budget and
accompanying documents before the July 1 start of the new fiscal year.  The City of
Lathrop Biennial Budget outlines the City' s spending plan and priorities for the coming
fiscal years which run from July 1st to June 30th.  The City' s budget is developed in
conjunction with the Council, Stakeholders, City Manager, and all City departments.
The budget is then reviewed and approved by City Council. The result is a budget
that reflects the community' s highest priorities.

Preparation of the budget is coordinated by the Finance Department in collaboration
with each City department.   The budget process, which typically spans about six
months, begins in January in order to ensure a budget is in place by July

ist.   As

recommended by the National Advisory Council on State and Local Budgeting

37



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2019/ 20 AND FISCAL YEAR 2020/ 21 BIENNIAL

BUDGET CALENDAR

NACSLB), the City develops a budget calendar with key dates, budget tasks, and

events to prevent misinformation and to ensure stakeholder participation.

The proposed Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 and Fiscal Year 2020/ 21 Biennial Budget Calendar

is provided in Attachment A. Some of the major budget activities are summarized on

the timetable below.    

BUDGET ACTIVITY JAN FEB MAR APR MAY 7UN

Finance rovides uidelines and trainin

Finance prepares target budget info and

ersonnel costs to de artments

Department' s prepare and submit revenue

ro' ections

Department' s prepare and submit expenses

Includin Measure C ex enses

Citizen in ut at ublic meetin s

Cit Mana er reviews De artment re uests

City Manager & Departments present proposed

biennial budget to Council at public meeting

Cit Council ado ts Biennial Bud et

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of the attached Biennial Budget Calendar to ensure all

departments and stakeholders are embracing key budget tasks,  events,  and

decisions.  This allows everyone to have an opportunity to plan and participate in the
budget development process. Additionally, a calendar will facilitate the preparation
and approval of a budget before the start of the new fiscal year beginning July 1,
2019.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

This item promotes Team Work by enhancing collaboration between the public,
Council and City Staff to develop a quality product such as the City' s Budget
document.

ATTAC H M E NTS:

A.   Proposed Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 and Fiscal Year 2020/ 21 Biennial Budget

Calendar

38



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2019/ 20 AND FISCAL YEAR 2020/ 21 BIENNIAL
BUDGET CALENDAR

APPROVALS:

2 3 I S

Sandra Frias Date

Budget Manager

1 C+ t    .      '       IZ o• 1

Vanessa Portillo Date

Deputy Finance Director

Cari James Date

Finance Dire to

f Z- y- g

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z 1•
phen Salvatore Date

City Manager

39



ATTACHMENT "        "

City of Lathrop
Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 and Fiscal Year 2020/ 21

Biennial Budget Calendar

January 2019 February 2019 March 2019 April 2019

S M T W TH f S 5 M T W TH F S 5 M T W TH F 5 S M T W TH F S

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 9 10 11 12 13

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 10, 71 12 13 14 15 16 14  15 16 17 18 19 20

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30

31

City Council Meeting

Holiday

Date Action

December 2018 Finance Office is responsible for providing departments with information necessary
to prepare their budget request.

January 23, 2019 Measure C Community Oversight Committee Meeting.

February 2019 Departments prepare and submit maintenance district budgets.

February 11, 2019 Finance presents Mid- Year Budget Amendments for FY 2018/ 19 for City Council

consideration.

April 2019 Notice of Public Hearing( May 13, 2019) sent to all property owners within district
boundaries.

April 4, 2019 Parks and Recreation Commission review Recreation' s budget requests.

April 8, 2019 City Council receives preliminary engineer reports for maintenance districts, adopts

resolution of intent to levy, and sets the date of the Public Hearing( May 13, 2019)

April 2019 Finance reviews departments budget requests and prepares a Draft Preliminary

Biennial Budget for the City Manager' s review.( Including Measure C Expenses)

April 17, 2019 City Clerk publishes the 1st Notice of Public Hearing for District Budgets.

April 23, 2019 City Manager meets with departments and reviews budget request.
and

April 25, 2019

April 24, 2019 Planning Commission reviews proposed Capital Improvement Projects for

conformity to the General Plan.

Page 1

40



City of Lathrop
Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 and Fiscal Year 2020/ 21

Biennial Budget Calendar

April 2019 May 2019 June 2019 July 2019

S M T W TH F 5 5 M T W TH F S 5 M T W TH F 5 5 M T W TH F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5 6

7   $   9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 . ..   9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12  3 14 15 16 17 18 9 „ 0'  11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31

30

City Council Meeting

Holiday

Date Responsible Party Action

May 1, 2019 City Clerk publishes the 2nd Notice of Public Hearing for District Budgets.

May 13, 2019 City Council holds a Public Hearing- Ordering the Levy and Collection of Assessments.

May 13, 2019 City Council reviews and prioritizes proposed Capital Improvement Projects.

May 2019 Finance prepared and prints the Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 and Fiscal Year 2020/ 21 Preliminary

Biennial Budget.

June 2019 Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 and Fiscal Year 2020/ 21 Preliminary Biennal Budget delivered to City
Council and made available to the public.

June 17, 2019 Budget Meetings: City Council reviews and Adopts Final Biennial Budget for FY 2019/ 20
thru and FY 2020/ 21.

June 19, 2019

August 2019 Finance prepares and prints Adopted Biennial Budget.

September 2019 Fiscal Year 2018/ 19 Year- End Report with potential amendments to Biennial Budget Year- 1

March 2020 Fiscal Year 2019/ 20 Mid- Year Report with potential amendments to Biennial Budget Year- 2

Page 2

41



42



IT°EM 4. 6

CYT I MAiVAGER° S REPOItT

DECENlBER 10, 2018, CITY COUIoICIL RECsUL IZ MEETIIVG

ITEM:       ACCEPTANCE OF IRI EVOC BLE OFFER OF

DEDIC 4TION FOR WIl1LHOLLAND DI IVE

RECOMMIENDATION:     padopt 18esolution lccepting an Errevocable Offer of
Dedication  ( IAD)  for Mulhollancl Drive located at

River Island at Lathrop

SU M lul ItY:

On November 19, 2018, the City Council approved a final map Tract 4001, Village
AA". The approving resolution neglected to reference acceptances of an Irrevocable

Offer of Dedication  ( IOD)  for Mulholland Drive.  It did,  however,  reference Bosch

Avenue, thus allowing only partial access and inadvertently included Riverfront Drive.
An IOD for Riverfront is not required since it was dedicated on the final map.

To provide for secondary access to Village  ' AA,"  acceptance  . of the attached

Irrevocable Offer of Dedication ( IOD) for Mulholland Drive is necessary. The IOD will
provide proper secondary access to Village  ' AA".  A vicinity map is included as
Attachment B.

Therefore, staff recommends Council accept the attached  ( Attachment B) IOD for

Mulholland Drive located at River Islands at Lathrop.

ATTAC FI M E NTS:

A.       Resolution Accepting an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication   ( IOD)   for

Mulholland Drive located at River Islands at Lathrop

B.       Irrevocable Offer of Dedication ( IOD) for Mulholland Drive vicinity map

C.       Irrevocable Offer of Dedication ( IOD) for Mulholland Drive

43



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

DECEMBER 10, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPTANCE OF AN IRREUOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION FOR

MULHOLLAND DRIVE

APPROVALS

2 /
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

1  ' Z..-- l. .. 1 g
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

5•l,
St J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

44



RESOWTION NO: 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE' CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

ACCEPTING AN IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION ( IOD) FOR

MULHOLLAND DRIVE LOCATED AT RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP

WHEREAS, on November 19, 2018, the City Council approved a Final Map for
Tract 4001 Village AA" within the La.keside East District, Totaling 103 Single- Family
Lots, Common Use Agreement with Island. Reclamation District 2062 for a Portion of

Riverfront Drive,   Subdivision Improvement Agreement with RiVer Islands

Development, LLC, and Irrevocable Offerof Dedication for Riverfront Drive and Bosch

Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the approving resolution neglected to reference acceptance of an
Irrevocable Offer of Dedication ( IOD) for Mulholland Drive; and

WHEREAS, it did, however, reference Bosch Avenue, thus allowing only partial
access and inadvertently included Riverfront Drive; and

WHEREAS, an IOD for Riverfront is not required since it was dedicated on the

final map; and

WHEREAS, to provide for secondary access to Village AA," acceptance of an

Irrevocable Offer of Dedication ( IOD) for Mulholland Drive is necessary.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop authorized the City Clerk to accept an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for
Mulholland Drive in substantially tlie form as attached to the December 10, 2018

staff report.

r

45



PASSED AIVD ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this 10tn
day of December 10, 2018, by the following vote:     

AYES:'

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FOR   :

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salva or Navarrete, City Attorney

1

46



s` 0 `, 0
i 3!

TRACT 4001

RIVER ISLANDS - STAGE 2A VILLAGE AA

OFFSITE Fq S I TE
ROADWAY DEDICATION N

BOSCH AVENUE

J

1

OUTRIGGERLANE

ti

MULHOLLAND DRIVE

OFFSITE ROADWAY DEDICATION

MULHOLLAND DRIVE

GARDENFARMSAVENUE

w

a

O   

O

w
0

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

Z

Q

W

VICINITY MAP

r
NOT TO SCALE

47



Recording Requested by and r
Please Return to: 

City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

This Instrument Benef ts City Only.
No Fee Required.

This Space Above for Recorder' s Use Only

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION OF EASEMENT

FOR PUBLIC ROADWAY PURPOSES AND PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

TRACT 4001— OFFSITE ROADWAY DEDICATION— MULHOLLAND DRIVE &

BOSCH AVENUE)

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, River
Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company, hereby grant( s) to the CITY
OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation in the County of San Joaquin, State of California, an
easement for ingress; egress and road purposes, and a public utility easement( PLTE), over and
across the hereinafter described real property situated in City of Lathrop and more particularly
described as follows:    

SEE EXHIBIT " A" ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF

This Offer of Dedication is made pursuant to Section 7050 of the Government Code of the State

of California, and may be accepted at any time by the City Engineer of the City of Lathrop. This
Offer of Dedication may be terminated, and right to accept such offer abandoned in the same
manner as is prescribed for the vacation of streets or highways by Part 3 of Division 9, or
Chapter 2 of Division 2 of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California, whichever

is applicable.

The above described easement is to be kept open, clear and free from buildings and structures of

any kind. This Offer of Dedication shall be irrevocable and shall be binding on the Grantor' s
heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns.

SIGNATURES:

Signed this day of 2018

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, L C

a California limited liability company

By:    
Name:   SusanDell' Osso

Its:  President

48



1

Notary Acknowledgment Itequired for Each Signatory)
This is to certify that the iriterest in real property offered herein to the City of Lathrop is hereby
acknowledged by the undersigned, City Clerk, on behalf of the City of Lathrop City Council to
authority conferred by the Lathrop Municipal Code and the grantee( s) consent( s) to the
recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer

TERESA VARGAS, GITY CLERK

By:

Date:      

r

49



EXHIBIT "A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

OFFSITE ROADWAY DEDICATION AND ADJACENT PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT
MULHOLLAND DRIVE& BOSCH AVENUE)

See Attached)

50



OCTOBER 23, 2018

JN 25502

EXHiBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATlON FOR RIGHT- OF- WAY PURP SES

TRACT: 4001 - VILLAGE AA

OFFSITE ROAOWAY DEDICATION= MULHOI. EAND DRi1/ E AND BOSCH Ai/ENUE

RIVER ISLANDS

l. ATHROP CALIFORIdiA

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATE IN THE CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DESCRISED A5 FOU.OWS:

BEING A PORTION OF PARCELS 2, 14 AND 17, AS SAlD PARCELS ARE SHOWN ON THAT
CERTAIN MAP ENTITLED` TRACT 3908, RIVER ISLANDS, STAGE 2A, LARGE LOT FINAL MAP",
FILED SEPTEMBER 20, 2018, lN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND PLP TS, AT PAGE 52, M RE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

PARCEL 1 [ ROADWAY EASEMENT):

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEASTERN CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 2, AT THE NORTHEASTERLY
TERMINUS OF COURSE L208, LABELED AS" NORTH 45° 00' 00" EAST 35. 36 FEET", AS SHOWN ON

SHEET 17 OF SAID MAP OF 7RACT 3908;

THENCE, LEAVING SAID P INT OF BEGINIVING, ALONG THE NORTHERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL
2, AS SHOWN ON$ AID MAP; THE FOLLOWIWG TEN{ 10) COURSES:

1)  SOUTH 45° 00' 00" WEST 35. 36 FEET,
2)  WEST 373. 50 FEET,

3)  NORTH 44° 30' 23°' WEST 35. 66 FEET,

4)  NOR7H 88° 53' 58" WEST 60A0 FEET,

5)  SOUTH 46°47'S0" WEST 35.85 FEET,
6)  ALONG A IVON TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1, 970. 00 FEET,

FROM WHICH TME CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS NOR7H 02° 3fi' 27" EAST, THROUGH A
CENI' RAL ANGLE OF 16° 24'40", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 564.26 FEET,     

7)  NORTH 25" 10'17'°WEST 35.$5 FEET,
8)  NORTH 69° 21' 40" VIIEST 60A0 FEET,
9)  SOUTH 66°26'57" WEST35.85 FEET, AND

tOj ALOIVG A NON TANGENT CURVE TO 7HE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 1, 970. 00 FEET,
FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE BEARS NORTH 22° 15' 34°' EAST, THROUGH A
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 18° 12'03", AIV ARC DISTANCE OF 625.80 FEET;

7HENCE, LEAVING SAID NORTHERN LINE, ALONG THE MQST WESTERN LINE OF PARCEL 14,
AS SHOWN ON SAID MAP, ALONG A COMPOUN CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF
52.00 FEET, THROUGH A CEN' i' RAL ANGLE OF 92' 27'01", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 83.91 FEET;

THENCE, ALONG THE SOU' fHEASTERN LINE OF PARCEL 17, AS SHOWN ON SHEET 16 OF SAID
MAP, THE FOL OWING TWO( 2) COURSES:

1)  NORTH 42° 54' 38" EAST 533. 82 FEET, AND

2)  NORTH 68°38'37" WEST 64. 51 FEET;

THENCE, LEAVING SAID SOUTH ASTERN LINE SOUTH 42°54'38" V11EST 510. 12 FEET TO A POINT
ON THE SOUTHWESTERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL 17, SAID POINT BEING THE NORTHWESTERN
TERMINUS OF COURSE L188, LABELED AS" NORTH 47° 05'22" WEST 60. 00 FEET", AS SHOWN ON
SHEE' f 96 OF SAID MAP;

PAGE 1 OF 5

T:125502- Rlver tslandslDWGIFINAL MAPSITRACT AOOi- VILLAGE AAILegal dwa+ ont25so2- ca4 s saaoo„ ioo.da

51



1       .

EXHIBIi' A OCTOBER 23, 2018
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION JN 25502
FOR OFF-SITE ROADWAY PURPOSES
FOR TRACT 4001- VILLAGE AA

TMENCE, ALONG THE SOUTHWESTERN LINE OF SAID PARCEL 17, AS SWOWN ON SAID MAP,
THE FOLLOWiNG TWQ( 2) COURSES:

i)  ALONG A TANGEWT CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVI{ VG A RADIUS OF 52.00 FEET,
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 92° 27'Oi", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 83. 99 FEET,
AND

2)  SOUTH 44° 1 U' 58" WEST 60.01 FEET;   

THENCE, LEAViNG SAID SOUTHWESTERN LINE OF PARCEL 17, ALONG A NONTANGENT CURVE
TO THE R[GHT, HAVING A RAOIUS OF 58.00 FEET, FROM WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE
8EAR5 SOUTH 45° 19' 34" WEST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 87° 35'Q4", AN ARC DISTANCE
OF 88. 6fi FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 47°05'22" EAST 60.00 FE T TO A PDINT ON 7ME NORTHWESTERN LINE O
SAID PARCEL 2, AT THE NORTHEASTERN TERMINUS OF COURSE L'! 9d, LABELED AS" NORTH
42°54'38" EAST 60.62 FEET', AS SHOWN ON SHEET 17 OF SAID MAP;

THENCE, ALONG THE NORTHERN LINE OF SAIO PARCEL 2 ALONG A NON TANGENT CURVE TO
TME RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 58. 00 FEET, FROM7 WHICH THE CENTER OF SAID CURVE
BEARS SOUTH Q7° 05'22" EAST, THROUGM A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 87°35'04", AN ARC DISTANCE
OF 88.6$ FEET;

7HENCE, LE4VING SAID NORTHERN LINE, ALONG A REVERSE CURVE TO THE LEFT, MAVING A
RADIUS OF 2,030.00 FEET, TWROUGH A CENTRAl. AIVGLE OF 40° 29'42", AN ARC DISTANCE OF
143 4. 75 FEET;

THENCE, EAST 395.00 FEET;

THENCE, SOUTH 45° 00'00" FAST 35.36 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EASTERN LINE OF SAID
PARCEL 2;

THENCE, ALONG SAIO EAS7ERN LINE O PARCEL 2, NORTH 110.00 FEET TO SAID POINT OF
BEGINNING.    

CONTAWING 3.80 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

AITACHED HERETO IS A PLAT TQ ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION, AND BY THIS
REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF.

END OF DESCRIPTION

yp.4 LAtVO
K 17T SG

Ai.t.. l t   t d R 1 S' c'
cPAUL KITTREDG DAi'  Pto. 57so       

PROFESSIONAI. LAIVD SURVEYOR
CALIFORNIA NO. 5790

9p
cAUF

PAGE 2 OF 5 25502- lEGALTRACT 40Q1_ fOD

52



LEGEND

ROAOWAY EASEMENT UNE

LOT UNE/ RIGHT OF WAY lJNE

I. O. p.    
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICA710N
FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES

N

f'ARC L ifi PARCEL 17
TRAC7 3908 F T 390

PARCEL i 4
TRACT 4001

TRACT 3908 VfLLAGE RA

O a c. 

7RACT 3808

PARCEL 2
PARCEL 1

SEE SFiEET 4
TRACT 3908

0

PARC L i2

7RAC7 3908

G D FARMS AVENUE

PARC L i3 PARCEL 3

7RAC7 3908 TRAC7 8808

40• EXHI IT A
oa w eY: c RIVER ISLAfVDS - STAC.-aE 2/, VILdeAG A 4

TE ACT 4001- OFFSITE ROADWAY EASEMENT
F1'      

IRR VOCABL OFFER OF DEDICAT' ION- MULHOLLAND ORIVE AIVO BOSCH AVENUE N G 1 N E f 1 N G

oatE: to/ t/ za s 91EEi: 3 5 CI1Y OF LATFIROP SAN JflAQUIN COUMY CAl1FORMA

i;\25542—RlVEF! ISLAtdDS\ O6YG\ f1NAL l AAS\ TR. CT 4 1— yLNGE AA RLAT\ I+fER ISLAk05—SUGE 2A—NUAC AA— Fu 40 1— IQD. DY

53



8

PARCEL 17

TRACT 390      p

y,
o, `' PARCEL 17

TRACT 390

c2 PARCELI4

TRACT 3908

TRACT 4001

4          p       VILLAGE AA

o

e      "o    PARCEL 1 PARC L 

L/,   °     3.80 AC± 7RACT 3908

sg,
O'

J e P0

R
ZO, `     R ygyO p, 

da 24,40'  
9'?`

b

L. 26' k     !  
EAST 373. 50'   

Or5 c

LECEND
J o

ROADWAY EASEMENT L1NE
5, 

j '  

LOT IJNE/ R1GHT OF VYAY LJNE
CEL Z

TRACT 39D8 Ho s:

I. a.d.    
IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEOlCA710N

1)   SEE SHEET 5 FOR UWE, CURiIf ANd RADIAL UNE TA8LE5
FOR ROADWAY PURPQSES

Z}  TH15 PU1T DOES NOT SHOWM EASEMENTS OF RECORD

EXHIBIT A

ORAWN BY_ BK RIVER ISLP NDS - STAGE 2A, 1/ ILLAGE AA

TRACT 4001- OF SI7E ROADWAY EASEAliENT

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION- MULHOLLAND DRIVE AND BOSCH AVEfVUE N G 1 fV fi 1 N G

anrE ia// zois s+ EE'r 4' s CITY OF LATHROP SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY CALIFORNIA

r: xssoz- eiv saa ns a c rNai. ars\ acr a- nu.a a Pw mv is u+as- sTac za- r uac an- a-. owc

54



LINE TI4BLE LiNE TABLE RADIAt BEARINGS CURVE TABLE

LqdE tl DlREC790N LElVGTH LINE N DIFiECT10N LENGTH LIME#   DIRECTION CUHVE#  AADIUS DELTA LENG' fN

L1 N45°00'' E 35.36'       L7 N66° 26'57' E 35. 85'  1( R}     NO2° 36' 2TE Ci 52.00'   92' 2T01'    83. 91'

L2     ( d4° 30' 23' W 35. 66'       LB N68°38' 37` W 64. 51'  2{ R)     N22° 15'34" E C2 52. 00°    92° 27'01'    83. 91'

L3 N88°53' 58' NI fiD.00'       L4 N44° 10' S8' E 60. 01'  3( R)     N45° 19' 34' E C3 58. U0'    87° 35' 04'    88. 66'

L4 N4fi ar o' E 35. 65'       L10 N47° 0522' W 64. Q0'     

l

4( R)     N47° OS' 22' W yg,pp'    8T35' 04"    88.66'

L5 N25° 10' 17' V 35. 85'       L11 N45° 00' 00' W 35. 36'  S( R)     ( d40°29'42' E

L6 N69° 21' 40' W 64. 00'       L12 NQRIti 110. 06'

20°'   EXHI lT A

DRANN BY BK R VE ( DS ' Tf"1GE GCY, VILLAGE AA

TRACT 4401- OFFSITE ROP DWAY EASEAA NT
Fl'      

IRREVOCABLE OFFER OF DEDICATION- MULHOLLAND DRIVE AND SOSCH A1/ ENUE N G 1 N fi 7 N G

DATE 10/ I/ Z918 9 EET: 5 5
Ci1Y OF LATF[ ROP SAN JQAQUIN CDUMTY CALlFORNIA

T; 25542—R1YtR ISLAtdOS\ d 1G RNAl. 4dAP5\ iRAC7 4p}1— VZliA{ AA PLAT RI1 E5iAN05—STAG£ 2A—NllAGE AA— Fk7 4t 1— iq?,p 45' i

55



56



ITEM 4. 7

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBEft 10, 2018, CITY COIJNCIL REGULI R NIEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP Af+ID SUBDIVISIOIV

IP+IPROVEMENT AGREEMEIVT ( SIA)  FO t 44 LOTS IIV

TRACT 3991 \/ ILLAGE " 0" WITHIId LAKESIDE EAST

DISTRICT OF RI lER ISLANDS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Fsnal Map for Tract 3991
Village ' V" writhin the Lakeside East District, l'otaling

44 Single- Family Lots, Common Use Agreement with
Island Reclamation District 2062 for Portions of

Enslen Avenue ancl Subdivision Irx provement

greement with River Islands Development, LLC

SUMMARIf:

On June 1, 2015, the City approved an amendment to Vesting Tentative Map Tract
3694  ( VTM 3694),  Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathrop that revised conditions of
approval for new development within Phase 1. On July 18, 2018, the Lathrop Planning
Commission approved a Neighborhood Design Plan and Architectural Guidelines, and

Design Standards ( AG/ DS) for the Lakeside East District ( also known as ' Stage 2A")
within Phase 1.      

This proposed Final Map Tract 3991 for Van Daele Homes ( Builder) will be the first

tract map within the Village " V" area. Builder is proposing forty- four ( 44) 65' x 100'

single- family lots. A vicinity map is included as Attachment B.

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map Tract 3991
Village ' V" within the Lakeside East District, totaling 44 single- family lots, Common
Use Agreement with Island Reclamation District 2062 for portions of Enslen Avenue
and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement  ( Attachment C)  with River Islands

Development, LLC.

BACKGRAl iV6v

On March 27, 2007, the City Council approved VTM 3694 and amended VTM 3694 on
June 1, 2015, with updated conditions of approval. Tract 3991 as proposed by River
Islands Development, LLC ( RID), as the subdivider, complies with the most current

conditions of approval.

The land for Tract 3991 is within the geographic boundaries of VTM 3694 ( Phase 1)

first approved by Council on March 27, 2007, and amended on June 1, 2015, with

updated conditions of approval.

57



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

DECEMBER 10, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3991 VILLAGE ' V" TOTALING 44 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

On August 25,  2016,  the City Community Development Department approved a
Finding of Substantial Conformance for VTM 3694 for the Stage 2A sub- planning area.
This action allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for VTM 3694 at RID' s
request.

On July 9, 2018, the City Council approved Tract 3908, a large lot final map consistent
with conditions of approval for VTM 3694.  This large lot final map creates large
blocks"  of land that are consistent with future proposed small lot final maps

associated with the Lakeside East planning District. This provides RID the ability to
process small lot final maps in an orderly fashion where one small map does not
depend on another. The approval of Tract 3908 also required the posting of security
for the construction of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B
boundary which provides the primary access from the existing River Islands

development to Village U and the rest of the Stage 2A sub- planning area.

On July 18, 2018, the Lathrop Planning Commission approved a Neighborhood Design
Plan and Architectural Guidelines, and Design Standards ( AG/ DS) for the Lakeside

East District ( also known as " Stage 2A") within Phase 1.   While the NDP contains

conceptual guidance on parks within Lakeside East, a Master Parks Plan amendment

that includes revisions to parks and open space to the Stage 2A area is pending

Planning Commission action.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a

Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee certain off- site and on- site

improvements. As a result, the SIA for`Tract 3991 requires that security ( bonds, cash
or equivalent) are posted to guarantee unfinished infrastructure within Village " V".

As a result, a performance bond in the amount of $ 1, 599, 953 has been posted as

well as a labor and materials bond in the amount of $ 799, 977 has also been posted

for performance bonds as security for all unfinished improvements within Village " V".

The SIA also refers to the Agreement for Dedication, Inspection, and Guarantee of

Streets and Public Improvements ( Off- site Agreement") that was first approved by
the City on September 30, 2013, to the extent that the Off- site Agreement is still

valid for certain improvements. Tract 3991 will not trigger any additional off.-site
improvements and the Off- site Agreement will apply to Tract 3991 as it has to all
previous final maps in River Islands with no additional security for off- site
improvements. Acceptance of all public improvements will be processed by staff at a
later date when the unfinished improvements are complete. At that time, RID will be

required to post one ( 1) year maintenance bonds as a warranty for the completed
infrastructure.

As with all new development within Phase 1 of River Islands, the villages within

Stage 2A are required to be annexed to the three different Community Facilities
Districts ( CFD' s) for maintenance purposes in accordance with the Third Amendment

to the River Islands Development Agreement.

58



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

DECEMBER 10, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3991 VILLAGE V" TOTALING 44 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

The CFDs are for the City,  RD 2062 and River Islands Public Fina.ncing Authority
RIPFA) respectively., and the annexations for Villages U, V, T, Ai4, BB and Y recorded

on November 2, 2018. The applicant has signed the appropriate documentation to

commit to the annexations.

There is also a need for a Common Use Agreement  ( CUA)  between City and
Reclamation District No. 2062 ( RD 2062), since a portion of Enslen Avenue shares an

area with the easements recorded in favor of RD 2062 for the Stage 2A levee system.

The CUA ( included as Attachment E) addresses the terms and conditions to which RD

2062 can install, operate and maintain its facilities, which protects the City' s street
and other utilities that are located in Enslen Avenue:

Finally, before Final Map Tract 3991 is recorded, RID must also satisfy the Escrow
Instructions  ( Attachment D)  that guarantee all fees required in the Sierra Club    

Agreement are paid.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The applicant has completed the most of the street and utility improvements within
Village " V" with some minor improvements left remaining. RID has posted security
with the City for the unfinished improvements as required by the SIA. RID shall also
provide a 10% maintenance bond to guarantee the full improvements ( completed

and uncompleted) for one year once the improvements are completed and accepted

by Council. RID has provided the tract map, the tract improvement plans, all required
documents and all fees for Tract 3991.

Following is a summary of documents and fees related to this subdivision:

Documents Status

1.      Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.      Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.      Performance Security - Uncompleted Landscaping and
Completed

Miscellaneous Im rovements rovided with Tract 3991

4.      Labor and Materials Security - Uncompleted

Landscaping and Miscellaneous Improvements provided Completed

with Tract 3991

5.      Street Improvement, Landsca,pe Plans Completed

6.     Street Light, ] oint Trench Plans Completed

7.     Geotechnical Report Completed

8.     Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks

Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee Completed

of Streets and Public Im rovements

I 59



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 4

DECEMBER 10, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3991 VILLAGE V" TOTALING 44 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

9.     Approval of 3 d Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Developer CFDs for Developer/ other public agency 
Maintenance

10.   Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

11.   Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review Committee

12.   Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

13.   Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

Annexed with FM

14.   Lathrop Community Facilities District ( CFD' s)      3989 on October

10, 2018

15.   Escrow Instructions Completed

16.   Common Use Agreement between City and Islands RD
Approval Pending

2062
with this item

for im rovements on Enslen Avenue

Fees Status

1.       Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.       Improvement Plans - Plan check and inspection fees , Paid

3.       Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

The above- noted documents and fees are required by the VTM 3694 conditions of
approval prior to approval of the Final Map by City Council. The guarantee is in the
form of the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with security and improvement
plans.

Extensive off- site improvements to serve this Tract 3991 have already been
completed including construction of levees,   participation in construction of a

Wastewater Treatment Plant ( Consolidated Treatment Facility) and related storage

ponds and sprayfields, purchase of SSJID surface water and construction of utility
infrastructure to serve the proposed Tract. Additional off- site improvements that are

required to serve this Final Map are detailed in the Off- site Agreement approved by
the City Council in 2014.

Before the Final Maps are recorded, RID must also satisfy the Escrow Instructions
Attachment D) that guarantee all required payments to the Sierra Club are made

under the terms of the 3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement.

60



CITY NIAN14GER' REPOR    P 9e 

DECEMBEI 10, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETIRIC
FINAL iNAP FOR TRACT 3991 VILLAGE V" TOTALING 44 SIIVGLE FAMILY

LOTS ARID 4 SEA 1NIT1 I RI\/ ER ISL/ 110lD DfE/ ELOPMEIV' P, LLC

UDGET IMP CT:

There is no budget impact to the City. All City costs are covered by development fees,
and any shortfalls in City maintenance and operating costs are covered by the CFD' s
for maintenance.  RID is also providing funds necessary to defray any staff time
required to process their request.

ATT ICH ful E IVTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 3991 Village V" within the Lakeside
East District, Totaling 44 Single- Family Lots,  Common Use Agreement with

Island Reclamation District 2062 for Portions of Enslen Avenue and Subdivision
Improvement Agreement with River Islands Development, LLC

B.       Village " V" Vicinity Map

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands Development,  LLC,  a California limited liability company,  for Tract

3991, Village V"

D.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 3991 Village V"

61



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 6

DECEM ER 10, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3991 VILLAGE V" TOTALING 44 SINGLE- FAMILY

LOTS AND A SIA WITH RIVER ISLA NDS DE\/ ELOPMEIVT, LLC

APPROVALS

Glenn Gebhardt Da e

City ngineer

a- g
Cari James Date

Finance Dire or

Z 1" f

Salvador avarrete Date

City Attorney

I • l8
St en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

62



RESALUTIOIoI f+10. 1-

A ItESOLUTION OF THE CITI( COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 3991 VILLAGE V" WITHIN TEiE

LAKESIDE EAST DISTRICT, TOTALING 44 SIIVGLE- FAMILY LOTS, COMMON

USE AGREEI IENT iNITH ISLAIVD RECLAMATYON DISTRYCT 2062 FOR

PORTIONS OF EIVSLEN AVENUE AND SU DIVISION IMPROVEMEIVT

AGREEMENT \ RIITH RIi/ ER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

V1 HEREAS, on March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative
Map No.  3694  ( VTM 3694)  with Conditions of Approval for a residential and

commercial development that is consistent with the West Lathrop Specific Plan
WLSP) and the River Islands Urban Design Concept ( UDC); and

WHEREA, on June 1, 2015, the City Council approved amendments to the
VTM, WLSP and UDC, with amended conditions of approval; and

WHEREA,   on August 25,   2016,   the City Community Development

Department approved a Finding of Substantial Conformance for, VTM 3694 for the
Stage 2A sub- planning area that allowed minor changes in the land use pattern for
VTM 3694 and the approval final maps within Stage 2A; and

WHEREAS, Tract 3991, the proposed subdivision, is part of the Lakeside East

District of River Islands as described in the UDC, consisting of 44 lots covered by VTM
3694,  located on the west side of the San Joaquin River,  north of Union Pacific

Railroad; and

VIIFIEREAS,  in its review of Tract 3991,  the Stewart Tract Design Review

Committee recommended approval of Tract 3991 on August 24, 2018; and

1NHEREAS,  River Islands Development,  LLC  ( RID),  has completed or has

guaranteed completion of all public improvements on Tract Map 3991, as identified
on the approved improvement plans, and has completed or guaranteed completion

of all required documents and payment of all fees; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City and RID,
and provision of security by RID for unfinished and deferred improvements,  are

required prior to final map approval per the Lathrop Municipal Code Section
16. 16. 190; and

WHEREAS, a Subdivision Improvement Agreement has been signed by RID
and presented to the City for approval and signature; and

IVHEREAS,  upon acceptance of all improvements as complete,  a one- year

maintenance and repair bond will be required to secure the RID obligation to maintain

all improvements and repair or correct any defective work; and

63



WHEREAS, several conditions of approval of VTM 3694 are satisfied by the
3rd Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City and Califia, LLC,

which the City Council approved on October 7, 2013; and

WHEREAS,  off-site improvements necessary for access to Village V and
Tract 3991 were guaranteed with performance and labor and materials bonds posted

by RID; and

WHEREAS,  City staff has confirmed that all Conditions of Approval of
VTM 3694 required for approval of Final Map 3991 have been met, including those
Conditions of Approval satisfied under the Subdivision Improvement Agreement and
Off- Site Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer has confirmed that the Final Map for Tract 3991
is substantially the same as it appeared on VTM 3694,  is technically correct, and
complies with the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act and Lathrop Municipal
Code, Chapter 16. 16; and

WHEREAS, RID will satisfy the escrow requirements prior to recordation of
the Final Map for Tract 3991; and

WHEREAS, a Common Use Agreement ( CUA) is necessary between the City
and Island Reclamation District 2062  ( RD 2062)  for improvements owned and

operated by RD 2062 that transverse City right of way of Enslen Avenue, dedicated
with the Final Map for Tract 3991; and

WHEREAS,  Capital Facilities Fees are not required until such time as the

builder applies for building permits.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the following actions:

1.       That the Final Map for Tract 3991 Villages V" is hereby approved as submitted
as part of the public record with the San ] oaquin County Assessor/ Recorder/ County
Clerk Office.

2.       That the City Manager, or their designee, is authorized to execute Common

Use Agreement with Island Reclamation District 2062 in Stage 2A area for Portions

of Enslen Avenue and Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands

Development, LLC, in substantially the form as attached to the December 10, 2018
staff report.

64



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this 10tn
day of December, 2018, by the following vote:       

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

65



V

PQ' VILLH it

J

9

oy

cp

Pt

oa
o   L E C

Svs

m

9'  

Q
GP

G9
09` F9

F

oQ ysT
Go

Q,t
0

9```' 

9i

ca\\   

G

9 s

OSA
9q

9'
y
2

V LLAG CC

OJP   9O9iLF
C\       

9

s'
O .     

PP\

GOP

G

G

oP      
G9T

G
G  

Q

f       r,`.      
TRACT 3991      

o,

a

BU yCS  

Rl        
yop FR T

Q S RE
o

i       /\   BUCyqNANCO
TRACT 3991   

VILLAGE V  `     TRACT 3992
JQ

o      
i

LAKE 11

Q      

VILLAGE U

N T, ;  ti

F s(
F

A`

FNUF

JQ

S   °

y   

TRACT 3992
p     U

C  \    U
A C

a 

N

AT ACHMENT B

VILLAGE V

ViCNITY MAP
SEPTEMBER 2018

66



SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

RIVER ISLANDS ( LAKESIDE EAST DISTRICT) - TRACT 3991, VILLAGE V"

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC,

A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this 10 h
day of December, 2018, by and

between the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California( hereinafter
CITY"), and River Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company( hereinafter
SUBDIVIDER").

B.       At its meeting on May 15, 2017, CITY approved the temporary closure of Cohen and
Paradise Roads associated with construction and grading activities in Stage 2 of River Islands.
This approval requires SUBDIVIDER to construct a paved public roadway to connect any
remaining gaps between the Paradise Road and Stewart Road intersection and the Somerston

Parkway/ River Islands Parkway intersection by August 1, 2020. As a result, previously provided
security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from the River Islands Public Financing Authority

RIPFA") has guaranteed the replacement of Cohen Road and Paradise Road with a set aside of
bond proceeds ( E ibit G) in the amount of$543, 600, that is available to CITY if SUBDIVIDER
does not meet the deadline of August 1, 2020. Further, the amount of set aside bond proceeds shall
be reduced by the City Engineer as River Islands Parkway is extended to replace these removed
roadways. The closed portion of Stewart Road is not anticipated to be replaced, but it remains for

now as legal access to parcels fronting Stewart Road and as emergency access. The security
referenced in this recital shall remain in place for this final map and all final maps associated with
this access until it is no longer necessary.

C.       At its meeting on July 9, 2018, CITY approved the Tract 3908 large lot final map which
includes the Village " V" area within Stage 2A of River Islands.  The approval of Tract 3908

required security for the construction of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage
2B boundary. As a result, previously provided security in the form of a Letter of Guarantee from
the River Islands Public Financing Authority(" RIPFA") has guaranteed the construction of River

Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary with a set aside ofbond proceeds
Exhibit H) in the amount of$ 450, 000, that is available to CITY if SUBDIVIDER does not meet

a September 30, 2019, deadline or as may be extended by CITY. The security referenced in this
recital shall remain in place for this final map and all final maps associated with it until River
Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is fully constructed and accepted
into use by CITY.  

67



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC) 

I

Tract 3991 Village" V"

Page 2

D.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and
CITY' s Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 3991. However, SUBDIVIDER
has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements associated with
Tract 3991 and Tract 3992( Village" V") located within the Lakeside East District ofRiver Islands

Phase 1, which also includes major streets necessary to access the site. The unfinished portion of
improvements total $ 1, 599, 950 ( including 20% contingency) and both performance and labor and
materials security is required by the Lathrop Subdivision Ordinance and the Subdivision Map Act
will be posted as outlined in this Tract 3991 ( Village" V") Subdivision Improvement Agreement.

E.       SUBDNIDER has completed a portion of the joint trench improvements for Tract 3991
and Tract 3992 and as noted in Recital D security shall be required for the unfinished portion of
these improvements along with other required infrastructure associated with Tract 3991 and
Village" V" overall. Improvement plans and street light plans prepared by Power Systems Design,
Inc., have already been approved by CITY. The street, sidewalk, underground utility, storm
drainage,  street light,  and joint trench improvements  ( hereinafter  " Improvements")  are

substantially completed and minor improvements not yet constructed as part of the required
infrastructure for Tract 3991 and Tract 3992 are required security as outlined in this Agreement.

F.       Since Village  " V"  contains a public street that includes improvements of Island
Reclamation District 2062  (" RD 2062"),  including levee improvements,  a Common Use

Agreement (" CUA") between CITY and RD 2062 is required to delineate the rights and

obligations of these agencies regarding CITY' s public street and RD 2062' s improvements. The
CUA is included and incorporated into this Agreement as Exhibit I.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration ofCITY' s pending approval and acceptance of the

Imp'rovements upon their satisfactory completion,  and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' s
construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable
laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations currently in force and effect in CITY, the terms
and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

1. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its
sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the Lakeside East neighborhood,
to the limits identified on E ibit A including the public landscaping, streetlight, and joint trench
improvements. All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City
Engineer,  in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above-referenced
improvement plans and specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of the

CITY' s Deparhnent of Public Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop, and the
California Subdivision Map Act.

68



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)
Tract 3991 Village" V"

Page 3

2. SLTBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to December 1, 2019.

3. CITY, or its agent( s), shall at any time during the progress of the Improvements have free
access thereto and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the
Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set   `
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/ or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements. CITY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of SUBDIVIDER to
ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5. CITY' s acceptance of the Improvements does not op'erate as a release of SUBDIVIDER
from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in
compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done and from any defects in materials furnished. Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CITY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' s acceptance of the Improvements. As required by this Agreement, prior to
acceptance of the Improvements,  SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a

Maintenance Bond in the amount of $ 175, 892, equal to 10% of the estimated cost of the

Improvements for the Village" U" entire area($ 1, 758, 917) as included in the Engineer' s estimate

attached to this Agreement as Exhibit F, to insure SUBDIVIDER' s repair and maintenance of the
Improvements in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The Maintenance Bond shall be
released at the end of the one- year guarantee period provided no claims against it are then
outstanding.

7.       Because some of the backbone improvements referenced in Recitals B and C are required
to provide access and to Tract 3991 and are associated with adjacent tracts as otherwise described
in this Agreement, as well as the " Agreement for Dedication, Inspection and Guarantee of Public
Streets and Improvements (" 2013 Agreement"), approved by CITY on September 30, 2013, the

security required by the 2013 Agreement shall remain in place for the following:

Rehabilitation of the pavement on Stewart/Cohen and Paradise Roads within the limits of
Stewart Tract, as detailed on the attached Exhibit " D" are now open to the public, and

rehaliilitation is guaranteed by a performance bond. Full improvement and acceptance of
these streets shall be completed prior to release of security previously posted by
SUBDIVIDER.

J

69



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)
Tract 3991 Village" V"       

Page 4

8.       If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, unnecessarily, or

unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements; fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement, or fails to repair, replace, or reconstruct

any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may, but is not required to, proceed to
complete and/ or repair, replace, or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or by contract for
such service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security deposited therein
as is necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement, or reconstructiori incurred by
CITY.  Once action is taken by CITY to complete, repair, replace,  and/ or reconstruct the

Improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY, even if
SUBDIVIDER subsequently completes the work.

CITY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to complete
the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security( including but not limited to any Letter
of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials and repair
and maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such amounts. All
administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government Code Section
66499.4, incurred by CITY in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be a proper charge
against the security and SUBDIVIDER. In the event it becomes necessary for CITY to bring an
action to compel performance of this Agreement or to recover costs of completing such
improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall pay reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit, and all other
expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in connection therewith.

9.       Because the Improvements are not entirely complete, SUBDIVIDER is required to only
post Performance or Labor  &  Materials bonds to guarantee the unfinished improvements
associated with Tract 3991 and Tract 3992 as included and described in E chibit E of this
Agreement.  The amount of the security shall be equal to a performance bond equal to 120% of

the amount of unfinished improvements as shown in Exhibit E($ 1, 333, 294 X 120%_$ 1, 599, 953—

performance bond amount) as indicated in Recital D. The corresponding labor and materials bond
amount shall be 50% of the performance bond amount ($ 1, 599, 953 X 50% _ $ 799,977), also as

indicated in Recital D.   Further,  SUBDIVIDER shall also comply with CITY' s insurance
requirements set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein.

10.      Any alteration( s) made to the plans and specifications which are a part of this Agreement
or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part thereof. The above- referenced sureties
hereby consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

11.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents shall be liable to SUBDNIDER,
and/or SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors for any error or omission arising out
of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

12.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agerits shall be liable to SUBDIVIDER
or to any person, entity, or organization for any injury or damage that may result to any person or

70



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)
Tract 3991 Village" V"

Page 5

property by or from any cause in, on,,or about the subdivision of all or any part of the land covered
by this Agreement.

13.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to; and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, agents, and employees ( collectively " Indemnitees") harmless from any

liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/ or SUBDIVIDER' s
contractors, subcontractors, agents, or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such
operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors, or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting as agent for, SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' s contractors or subcontractors. SUBDIVIDER shall, at its own cost and
expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal proceedings or any type that may be brought or
instituted against CITY and indemnities on any claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and

pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such
action, suit, or legal proceedings resulting from or alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER' s
performance or non-performance of its duties and obligations under this Agreement or from the
negligent act or omission of itself, its agents, contractors, representatives, servants, or employees.
The promises and Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this section is not
coriditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied, or approved
any plan or specification in connection with this work or subdivision, whether or not any such
indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters. CITY does not and shall
not waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold
harmless agreement because of the acceptance by CITY of any deposit with CITY by
SUBDIVIDER. The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDNIDER shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph, regardless ofwhether or not CITY
has prepared, supplied, or approved of plans and/ or specifications for the subdivision.

14.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' s agents, contractors, or subcontractors
are, or shall be,  considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of
SUBDIVIDER' s obligations under this Agreement.

15.     Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Ixnprovements and maintaining safety at the
project site. The SUBDIVIDER' s obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied
until after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied, all outstanding fees and charges have been paid, and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete. CITY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts ( CFDs) to finance maintenance and improvements. CITY expects to preserve

the ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of' the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements, which may require that acceptance of improvements by CITY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreement to be entered into by CITY and SUBDIVIDER providing
that CITY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special taxes.
SUBDIVIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

71



l

Subdivision Itnprovement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)
Tract 3991 Village" V"-

Page 6

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall pay service fees for the utility services from the time the
Improvements are aceepted by CITY to the end of the fiscal year, or up fo a one ( 1) year period,
whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity' for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two
weeks as directed by the City Engineer on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until. the Improvements are accepted by CITY.

18.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CITY.
If such consent is giyen; the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER; and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators, and assignees of SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable hereunder.

19.      SUBDNIDER shall, at SUBDIVIDER' s expense, obtain and maintain all necessary

permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements. Prior to the commencement of
Ixnprovement construction, SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws whether or not said laws are
expressly stated in this Agreement.

20.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 3991 and Tract 3992.

21.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed
by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b.       Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d.       Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect
upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents. All documents referred to herein and all documents which
may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

72



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)
Tract 3991 Village" V"

Page 7

g. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain

in full force and effect.

h. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns
of the parties.

i. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.
In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed

by excluding the first day and including the last. If the time in which an act is to be performed falls
on a Saturday, Sunday or any day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance
shall be extended to the following business day.

j. Venue. In tlie event either party brings that suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of
such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San
Joaquin.

ATTACHMENTS:

EXHIBIT A FINAL MAP - TRACT 3991

EXHIBIT B TRACT 3991 AND VILLAGE "V" AREA

EXHIBIT C:   CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:  COHEN/ PARADISE/ STEWART REHABILITATION MAP

EXHIBIT E:   UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT F:   VILLAGE " V" IMPROVEMENTS ENGINEER' S ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT G:  RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE- 1NTERIM PUBLIC ACCESS WITHIN

THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

EXHIBIT H:  RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE— RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITHIN

THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

EXHIBIT I:    COMMON USE AGREEMENT FOR ENSLEN AVENUE

73



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)
Tract 3991 Village" V"

Page 8

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this lOth day of
December, 2018, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Date Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FO vI

l,_ ''/
BY:

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

River Islands Development, LLC,

a California limited liability company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso Date

President

SUBDIVIDER"

74



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3991 Village" V"   

Page 9

XHIBIT A

FINAL MAP- T CT 3991

75



TRACT 3991
5

OWNER' S STATEMENT
D RI R LAiHROP RD

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A co PROJECTSITE1HE UNDERSICNED, OOES HEREBY STATE IMAT THEY AHE iHE ONTIERS OF ALl 7HE IAND DFIINEAIED AND Hf,y
EMBRACED WITHIN THE EXTERIOR BOUNDARY LME OF 7HE HER N EMBODIED flNAL MAP ENTIILED, TRACT} 99,      VILLAGE V R   

LOVISE AVERIVEF ISL WOS, STAGE 2A, NLLAGE V', pTY OF tATHROP, CAIIFORNIA, CON9511NG OF FIFiEEN( 15) SHEETS,    Sq, y    
AN WE HEREBY CONSENT TO THE PREPARATI N AND FIIJNG OF 1HI5 FINAL HAP IN THE OFFICE Of ME

q pORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCA ERO, BEINC QCOUNTY RECOR ER OF SAN JDAOUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA. i^ ti z
A SIlB01N010N OF PARCEL 7 OF iRACi 7909( 43 M0P 57),      

o sy.     s
THE UNDERSICNED OOES HEREBY DEOICAIE AN EASEMENT TO THE CITY OF IATHROP FOR PIIBUC CITY OF LA7HROP, SAN JOApUIN COUNtt, CALIFORNIA

RIGHT- Of- WAY PURPOSES, THOSE POR710N5 OF SAID LANUS DE9GNA7ED ON SAIO IAAP AS SIOWELL DRIVE,  NOVEMBER 2018
9p/

SF    RD s

TAFT DRI4E, MIODlFB11flY DRIVE, GRACEA A LANE, CRISWOLD COURT, COIDriFIL CWRT, AND ENAEN A hNUE. 

AS SHOWN ON THIS FINAL MAP.     c} f
tzo

THE I1N ERSICNED OOES HEREBY EOICAIE TO 7HE CITY OF LATHROP A NON- E% CLUSIVE EASEIAENT TOGEMER a a P
0. P  9 q

CO DUIT$ AINDTTHEIft APP RTENANCESNU ONC OVERPAN AUNOER

7HEI
SIRIPS OF LAND AS SHOWN ON 7HIS

Qp``

ENG1 N E E+ 1NG

FlNAL MAP DESIGNAlEO RS' P. U. E.'( PUBIJC UTllltt EASEMENT).      

7HE UNDERSIGNED DOES HEREBY DEDICAIE TO 1HE pTY OF lA1HROP A NON- E% CLUSIVE EASEMENT lOGE7HER

W11H 1HE RICHT TO CONSiRUCT, RECONSIRUCT, ftEPAIR AND IAAINTAIN, SiORIA DRAIN FACIIITIES ANO TMF1R

APPURTENANCES, UPON, OVER AND UNDER THE STRIPS OF LANO AS SHOWN ON THIS FINAL IAAP OE9CNATED ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( OWNER S  Z      
4,     

AS' STORM DRAIN EA MENT'.    Sti""

THE UNOERSIGNED DOES HEREBY DE ICAIE TO 1HE CITY OF LATHROP, IN FEE, PARCELS B, C, 0, AND E, FOR A NOiARY P 9lIC OR OiHER OFFICER COMPIETING iH15 CERiIFlCATE VERIFlES ONLY 7HE IOENTITY GRANT LINE RD
H

PARK PURPOSES, FENCE IAAINTENANCE, ANO APPURTENANCES 1HERETO, FOR THE BENEFlT OF 1HE PU6lIC, AS F 7HE INDIVIDUAI WNO SIGNED THE DOCUTAENT i0 WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE IS ATTACHED, ANO 5

OSH WN ON iH15 FlNAL IAAP.       NOT THE iRUTHFULNE55, ACCURACY, OR VALI ITY OF iHAT DOCUMENT

1HE UN ER57CNE0 DOES HEREBY OEDICAiE TO IHE q17 OF LAiHROP, IN FEE, PARCELS C AN H FOR VICINITY MAP
LANDSCAPE OPQJ SPACE PURPOSES, INCLUDING PUBLIC UiILIiIES, FENCE MAINTENANCE, AND MPIIR7ENANCES

STATE OF CAUFORNIA

THERETO, FOR THE BENEFli OF THE PlIBIIC, AS SHOWN ON THIS FlNAL IAAP.  
CWNTV OF SAN JOAWIN NOT TO SCALE

1HE UNOERSIGNEO DOES HEREBY RELINOUISH TO 7HE CITY OF LAiHROP ALL A6UilERS RIGHT OF ACCE55 TO
ON 201_ BEFORE ME,

LOTS 1, 13, 14, 23, 27, 35 AND 41, ALONG THE LOi LINES AS IN ICATED BY iHE SYM90L//////// AS
A NOTARY PUBLIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED,    WHO PROVED TO

SHOWN ON h115 FlNAL MAP.    
E ON THE BA95 OF SATISFACTORY EVIDENCE i0 BE THE PERSON( 5) WH SE NAME( S) IS/ ARE SUBSCRIBED TO CITY CLERK' S STATEMENT

7HE YATHIN WSTRUMENT, ANO ACKN0V5LEOGEU TO ME iHAT HE/ SHE/ THEY E% ECUiED 1HE SRME IN HIS/ HER/ 1HEIR

TFfE UNOEfl51CNE0 OOES HEREBY RESERYE PARCEL A FOR LANE PIIRPOSES, AS SHOWN ON 7H15 FlNAL FIAP. AUTHORIZED CAPACITY( OIES), AND 1MAT BY HIS/ MER/ iHEIR SICNANRE( 5) ON THE WSTRUMENT THE PFRSON( S), OR I, TERESA VARGAS, Cltt CLERK AND 0.ERK OF 1HE qTY CWNQL OF iHE CITY OF LAiHROP, STATE OF

SAIO PARCEL IS NOT UEOICA7EU NEREON, BUT 57LL BE CONVEYED i0 IXAND RECLAAIA710N OISTRICi N. T062 THE EN117Y I1PON BEHALF OF 4MICH THE PFRSON( S) ACiEO, E% ECUTED hiE INSiRUMENL CALIFORNIA, 00 HEREBY STAIE THAT THE HEREM EIABODIED HAP ENIITlEO' TRACT 3991, RIVER IAANDS,

BY SEPARATE DOCIIMENT SIIBSEWENi TO iHE IIJNC OF THIS FlNAL AIAP. SAID PARCEL W1LL BE SUBJECi TO STACE 2A, hLLACE Y, CITY OF LATHROP, CALIfORNIA, CON95iINC OF FlFTEEN( 15) SHEEiS, 7H15
A SIOPE EASEMENT AND SHARED OOCK ACCESS fOfl 1HE BENEiIT OF THE ADJACENT LAKE FRONT 10T5, TO I CERTIFY UNOER PENAL7Y OF PERJURY UNOER 7HE LAWS Of iHE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE FORECOING STATEMENT WAS PRESENiEO TO SA10 CITY COUNQL, AS PRO IOED BT LAW, AT A A7EEPNG THEREOF, HEL

BE CONVEYEO 9Y SEPARAIE DOCUAIENT Sl18SEQUENT 70 THE Flt1NC THIS FINAL MAP.     PAftAGRAPH IS IRUE AND CORRECT.      ON THE DAY OF 201 AN THAT SAID CITY CWNCIL 01

THEREUPON BY RESOLU710N N0. DULY PASSED AND A OPiE AT SA10

THE UNDERSIGNED DOES HFREBY RESERVE THE NON- E% CLU9VE' LAKE FILL PIPELINE EASEIAEN7' AND 7HE YAiNE55 MY HANO: MEEPNC, APPROVE SAID MAP, AND AU7HORRED Ii5 RECORDATION, AND ACCEPIED ON BEHALF OF THE

LAI( E CIRCUlA1lON PIPELINE EASEMENiS`, TOCETHER W1TH 7HE RICHT TO CIXJSTRUCT, RECONSIRUCT, REPAIR QTY Of LA7HROP, FOR PIIBLIC lISE, IHE OEDICAiION OF ALL PUBIJC UTILITY EASEMENTS, PARCELS B, C, 0,

AND AIAINTAIN, THE IAKE FlLL PIPELINE ANO LAKE GRCULAlION PIPELINE AND THEIR APPURTENANCES, UPON,  E, G ANO H, AND 7HE RELINOUISHIAENT OF ACCE55 RIGHTS TO LO75 I, 13, I4, 23, 27, 35 AND 41 A ONC

OVER MlD UNDER 7HE SIRIPS OF LANO AS SHOWN ON THIS FlNAL lAAP DESIGNATED AS' LAKE FILL PIPELINE SICNANRE:    THE LOT LINES AS INDICAIED BY 1HE SYMBOL///////. AND REJEL7ED RIE FER OF EDICA ON OF

EASEMENY AND' LAKE CIRCULAPON PIPELINE EASEMENT". 7HESE EASEMENTS ARE NOT OE ICAIED HEREOIJ,  NANE( PRINT):  1ME STORM DRAIN EASEIAENTS AND PUBl1C UTILITY EASEIAENTS ACRO55 PARCELS B, C, D, AN E, 1N1H A

BUT' MLL BE CONVE7ED TO ISLAND RECLAMATION DISTRICT N0. 2062 BY SEPARATE INSIRUMENT SUBSEWENT PRINCIPAL COUNiY OF BUSME55: RESERVAPON OF hIE RIGHT TO ACCEPT 7HE UEOICA710N OF IHE STORIA ORAM EASEMENTS AND PUBIIC

TO iHE FILINC OF Pr115 FINAL MAP. MY COMMISSION NUMBER:    UTILItt EASEMENTS ACROSS PARCEIS B, C, D, AND E, Ai A FUiURE DATE; AND ACCEPTED 7HE OfFER OF

MY COMMISSION E% PIRES:    DEDICAPON OF ALL STREETS, AVENUES AN WAYS AS SHOWN ON SAID AIAP SUBJECT TO iHE

1HE UN ERSIGNED DOES HEREBY RESERVE PARCEL F FOR LANDSCAPINC ANO RAINAGE PIlRPO5E5 AS SHOWN IIAPROVEMENTS 6EINC COMPLEIED IN ACCORDANCE 4AiH CHAPIER I6, TI1LE I6. 16 OF iHE Qtt OF

ON TNIS iINAL MAP. SA10 PARCEL IS NOT OEDICATED HEREON Bl1T W1LL BE CQNVEYED TO ISLAND RECLAMA7ICN LAINROP IAUNIpPAL CO E.

0151RICT N0. 2062 BY SEPARAIE OOCUNENT SUBSEOUENT TO 7HE FILINC OF 7HI5 FlNAL MAP. SAIO PARCEL

AIAY BE SUBJECT TO A SLOPE ACCESS EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFlT OF ADJACENT LOT 18, TO 9E CONVEYED I NftiHER STATE iHAT ALL BONOS AS flEplIREO BY LAW TO ACCOMPANY THE NiRIIN IAAP, IF APPLICABLE,

BY SEPARATE DOCUMENT SUBSEWENT TO iHE FNNG 7HI5 FlNAL MAP.       HAVE 9EEN APPRO4E0 BY iHE CITY CWNCII OF lA7HROP AND FILEO IN MY OFFICE.

nie uNoearcrieo ooes HERear Res v anae s i TnaoucH s FOR vumae oev oPueNT. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT CERTIFICATE( TRUSTEE)

OWNER: RIVER ISI. ANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC, A CALIFORNIA LIMITEO LIABILITY COMPANY.       TERESA VARCAS
A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OIHER OFFICER COMPLETING THIS CERPFlCATE VERIFlES ONLY 7HE IDENTI7Y CITY 0.ERK ANO QERK OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAiHROP, CWNTY OF SAN JOAOUIN, STAIE
OF hiE INDINDUAL Wr10 SICNED THE OOCUMENT TO WHICH THIS CERPFICATE IS ATTACHEO, AND OF CAUiORNIA
NOT THE IRIIiHNLNE55, ACCURACY, OR VALIOITY OF THAT OOWMENT

BY:NAIAE SUSAN OELL' 0550 ATE STATE OF CAIJFORNIA
ITS:     PRESIOENT COUN77 OF SAN JOAOUIN

oN ao,_ acroRe e,  RECORDER' S STATEMENT
A NOTAftY PUBtIC, PERSONALLY APPEARED,    WHO PROVEO TO

FlLFD h115_ DAY OF 201 AT_ M.DAIED THIS_ DAY Of 201_ ME ON THE 9AS15 OF SATISFACTIXtY EVIDENCE TO BE TNE PERSON( S) Wri05E NAIAE( S) IS/ ARE SUBSCRIBED TO
IN BOOK OF IAAPS AND PLATS, AT PAGE AT 7HE REWEST OF OLO REPUBLIC

OLD REPUBLIC PTl£ COAIPANY, AS TRUSTEE, UNOER 7HE DEED OF TRUST RECOROEU OECEMBFR 22, 2016,   
TME YATHIN INS7RUMENT, AND ACKNOWLEOCEO TO! LE iMAi HE/ SHE/ THEY E% ECUiED iHE SAlAE IN HIS/ HER/ TMEIR nRE COMPANY.

AS OOWMENT NUMBER 2016- 160886, OFFlpAL RECOROS OF SAN JOAOUIN CWNTY.      
AUTHORIZED CAPAqiY( OIES), AND R1AT BY HIS/ HER/ 1HEIR SIGNANRE( S) ON THE INS7RUMENT 7HE PERSON( 5), OR

THE ENTITY VPON BEHALF OF WHICH 1HE PERSON( 5) ACIEO, E% ECUlEO 7HE INS1RlIMQJi. FEE:

BY'  
I CERTIFY UN ER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNOER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA THAT THE FOREGOING

NAME:ITS:  PARAGRAPH IS TRUE AND CORRECT.

BY:

W17NE55 MY HAND:       SiEVE BESTOLARIDES ASSSTANT/ DEPUTY RECOROER

SECRETARY OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION' S STATEMENT ASSESSOR- RECORDER- COUNtt CIERK

SAN JOAQUIN COUNiY, CALIFORNIA

TMIS MAP CONFORUS TO TENTA7IVE MAP N0.} 694 APPROVE BY 7HE PLANNING COMWSSION. 
SIGNATURE:

NAAIE( PRINT);

DATEO 1H15_ OAY OF 201_    PRINCIPAL COUNTV 0 BUSINE55:

MY C0IAIAISSION NIIMBER:

MY CONMIS90N E% PIRES:

EXEAIPT FROM FEE PER GOVERNIAENT COOE 27388. 1; OCUMENi
MARK NEISSNER, COIAMUNITY OEVEIOPMENT OIRECiOfl RECOROEO IN CONNEC710N W11H A CONCURRENT TRANSFER SUBJECT TO
CRY OF LAIHROP 7HE IMPOSITION OF OCi1MENiARY R2ANSFER TAX

SHEET 1 oF 15

76



NOTES TRACT 3991 CITY ENGINEER' S STATEMENT

PER CIiY

OFR
ATHR P MUNICIPAL CO E OF ORDINANCES, TITLE I5, CH0.PTER 15. 48. 04, 7HE CITY OF LAIHROP RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A HAYE E% AlAWE RIHIS FNALYMAP OF'

7RACTA99T1H.
ERI R ISLANDSRSiAGE 2A,

I

U

LtACEA
P,RCITY OFIFLAIHROPNCALI ORNIA,

THAT' UII ZERCHEMICAL FERPl1ZER5 ANO PES TIqDE5. UY0URAREaHEREBY

NOTIFIEDN
AT iE PROPERTY

YOUNAREHOSE
VILLAGE V MAP OA 3694, ANDDIANY APPROVEDHALTERATSON587HEREOFLL I UR H RESTAiE THAT THIS FlNALHMAP COMPLES YATH ALL

PURCHASING MAY BE LOCATE CLOSE i0 AGRICULNRAL LANDS AND OPERATIONS. Y011 MAY BE SUBJECT TO APPLICABLE OROINANCES OF THE CITY OF LATHROP, AND ANY AMENOMENTS hIERETO, APPLICABLE AT 7HE 71A1E OF

INCONVEMENCE OR DISCOlAFORT ARISING Fl20M THE LAWFUL AND PROPER USE OF ACRICULNRAL CHEIAICALS AND A PORPON OF RANCH EL PESCADERO, BEING APPROVAL OF VESPNG IENTAPVE MAP.

PESPCIDES AND FROM O7HER AGRICULNRAL ACTINilES, INCW ING YA7HOUT IIMITAPONS, Cl1LTIVqTION, PLO`MNC,   A SUBOIN I N OF PAftCEI 7 OF iRACT 3908( 43 MkP 52),
SPRAYINC, IRRICATION, PRUNING, HARVES7INC, BURNING OF AGRICULIURAL WAS7E PRO UCTS, PROTECTION OF CROPS CITY OF LAIHROP, SAN JOApUIN COUNiY. CALIFORNIA DATED THIS DAY OF 2=

paFEss aAND ANIMALS FROM EPREDATION, FNO OTHER ACTINTIES WHICH IAAY CENERATE USi, SM NE, NOISE, ODINt, NOVEAIBER 2016 Qoa c[ NarRODENiS AND PESTS. BE AWARE ALSO, THAT THIS PROPERI7 MAY BE LOCAiED ADJACENT TO AGRICULNRAL

OPERAilONS OUTSIDE THE CITY' S JURISDIC110N. CONSEQUENTLV, OEPENDINC ON THE LOCAPON OF YOUR PROPFRTY,

li MAY 8E NECESSARY THAT YOU BE PREPARED TO ACCEPT SUCH INCONVENIENCES OR OISCOMFORi AS NORMAL AND
Na. 3468I

NECESSARY ASPECT OF LINNG IN AN ACRICULNRALLY ACP4E REGION. GLENN GEBHARDT, R. GE. 34681

2.  A SOILS ftEPORT ENTIILE" GEOIECHNICAI E% PLORATION, RIVER ISLANDS PHASE 1, LATNROP, CALIFORNIA", CITY ENGMEER OF THE CITY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

REFFRENCED AS PROJECi N0. 5044. 5. 001. 01 AND OATEO JI/ LY 29, 2005, HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR THIS PROJECT E N G 1 N fZ 1 N G r4j flylt o.
6Y QJGEO, INCORPORAIE, JOSEF J. TOOTLE, G. E. N0. 2677, AND IS ON FlLE W1iH THE CIiY OF LA7HROP. A

7.  TRACT 3991, RIVER ISLANDS, STAGE 2A, NLLAGE V, CONiAINS 48 RESI ENTIAL L015, AN B LETTERED PARCELS

CONTAINING 27. 99 ACRES, MORE OR LE55, MLLUOING ROA WA75 iHAT ARE BEING EOICATEO BY 7HIS FINAL MAP;

AND PARCELS 1 THROUGH 5 CONiAINING 7. 16 ACRES, MORE OR LE55, ALL AS SHOWN ON THIS FINAL MAP( PIEASE

N
REFER TO THE AREA TPBLE BELOW):       

CII 1 SURVEYOR' S STATEMENT

TRACT3991 APEASUMMhFY
I, LAWRENCE COSSETT, HEREBY STAiE THAT I HAVE E% AMMED 7HIS FINAL IAAP OF' TRACT 3991, RIVER ISLANDS, STAGE

2A, NIIACE V', CIIY OF LAIHROP, CALIFORNIA, ANO 7HAT THE SIlB0111510N SHOWN HEREON COMPLIES WITH ALL hIE

LOTS I THROUCH 48 8. 29 AC4
PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 2 OF RiE CALIFORNIA SUB MSION MAP ACT, AS AMENDED. AND 7HAT 7H15 FINAL MAP IS

TECHNICALLY COftRECT.

PARCElS A hiROUCH H 12. 23 ACt DATEO THIS DAY OF 201 .

PARCELS I 7HROUGH 5 7. 16 ACf
oaµ0FEY5CpN'( V

p    l c.SiREET
DEDICATIONS 7. 47 Att LAWRENCE COSSEii, P.E. 31695 No.

31695 TOTAL

75. 15 AC2 4.  

BASED ON MFORMATIINJ CONTAINEO IN THE PRELIMINARY TlllE REPORT, ORDER Nl1MBER 1614020160- KB(VERSION 2),r o I[ AU pR OAIED
SEPTEMBER 21,2018, PRON ED BY qD REPUBLIC 71T1E COMPANY. REFERENCES

SURVEYOR' S STATEMENTR  

RECORD
OF SURVEY FlLEO AUGUST 4,2004, IN BOOK 35 OF SURVEYS, PACE 14P, AS CORRECTED BY CERTIFICATE THIS

MAP WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY IRECTION AN IS BASED UPON A FlELD SURVEY IN CONFORA7ANCE WITH OF
CORRECTION RECORDED JULY I5, 2005 AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2005- 171264, S.J. C. R.(35 SURVE75 142)       iHE REOUIREMENTS OF 7HE SUBOINSION MAP ACT AND LOCAL Oft01NANCE AT 1HE REQUEST OF RIVER ISLANDS R2)  

1RACT 3876, FlLE MARCH 71,2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PACE 56,S. J. C. R.(42 M&P 56) EVELOPMENT, LLC, ON Jl1NE 25, 2018. I HEREBY STATE ALL THE MONUMENTS ARE OF THE CMARACTFR ANO OCCUPY 1HE R3)  

CRANT DEED RECORDED MARCH 30, 2001, AS OCUMENT NUMBER 2001- 04fi177, S.J. C. R.  POSITIONS
INDICA7E0 OR iHAT 7HEY W1LL BE SET IN 7HOSE POSITIONS BEFORE OECEMBER 31,2023, AND THAT THE IAONUMENTS

ARE,OR THAT THEY YALL BE, SUFFICIENT TO ENABLE THIS SURVEY TO BE REIRACED, AND THAT h115 FlNAL R4)  
GRANT EED ftECORDED JANIIARY 11,2016, AS OCUMENT NUMBER 2 016- 00407 7,S. J. C. R. A7AP SUBSTANPALLY CONFORMS TO THE CON IPONALLY APPROYEU iENTA7IVE MAP. RS)  

CRANT DEEU RECORDED A1NE 3,2016, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 2016- 063962, S.J. GR: DATED

THI$ OAY OF 201 R6)  CRANT EED RECORDED. p1NE 3,2016, AS DOCUMENT NIIMBER 2016- 064006, S.J. GR. o
N ANO R7)  

CRANT UEE RECORDED JUNE 6, 2005, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 20 5- 1J4736, S.J. C. R.      WySoyP

cRqw,.
pG, PRB)  

1RACT 3826, FlLED SEP7EMBER 1,2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 67, iJ. C.R.(42 lAdrP 67)   a F, R9)  

7RACT
3828, FILE AUGUSi 24,2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS ANO PLAiS, PAGE 65, AS CORREC7E BY CERTIFlCATE No. nea o OF
CORREC710N RECOR ED AUGUST 31,2016, AS OCUMENi NIIMBER 2016- 102979, S.J.C. R.(42 IA&P 65) DYLAN CRAWFORD, P.L. S. NO 7788 R10) 

7RACT 3832, FILE AUGUSi 24,2016, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 66,S. J. C. R.(42 MkP 66)    r ZP R71) 

TRACT 3BJ4, FlLE OECEMBER 21,207fi, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 72,S. J. C. R.(42 M&P 72)    9 fFCAL\ FOe' UNFIIED
MAP ENPTLED' CALIFORNIA IRRICAIED FARMS, UNIT N0. 3 PESCAOERO COLONY BEINC RECLAMATION R12) 

DISTRICT N0. 2062, SURVEYED APRIL AN MAY 1929 BY OHM AN RAAB, DAIED NOVFMBER 7,1929, FlLE IN THE

OFFlCE OF THE SAN JOAOUIN COIINTY SURVEYOR. R13) 

PARCEL A1AP 06- 03- PM, FILED OCTOBQ2 23,2006, IN B OK 24 OF PARCEL MAPS, PAGE 51,S. J.C. R.(24 PIA 51)  LINEANDCURVETABLESFORCOURSESSHOWNONSHEETS3THROUGHSONLY R14) 

TRACT 3836, FlLED MARCH 15,2017, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PIATS, PAGE 84, S. J. C. R.(42 M&P 84)    LME
TABLE LME TABLE lME TABLE lME TABLE CURVE TABIE CURVE TABLE R15) 

7FtACT 3693, FlLE JUNE 1,2017, IN BOOK 42 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PACE B6, S. J. C. R.( 42 M& P 66) RI6) 

1RACT 7895, FILED JUNE 20, 2017, IN BOOK 42 Of MAPS AND PLATS, PACE 89,S. J. C. R.(42 M@P 89) LINE OIREC710N LENCTH LME DIRECPON LENCiH LME OIREC710N LENGiH LME DIRECPON lENG7H CURVE RADIUS OELTA LENCTH CURVE d RA IUS  ELTA LENGiH R) 

7RACT
7838, FlLED NOVEMBER 70,2017, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS ANO PLATS, PAGE 12, AS CORRECTEO BY CERTIGICAIE OF         N33'

52' 43' E 92: 29'   L13 NI6' 07' 31' E 60. 05   L25 N47' 30' 03' E 60. 04'   L37 N49' 73' 09"W 65. 00'     C1 2538. 00 4' 05' 34"  181. 30'    C11 2190. 00 1' 55b2"  73. 55' CORRECiIONRECOROED OCTOBER 16,4018, AS OOCUMEN7 NVIABER 2 018- 17 485 4,S. J. C. R.(43 M@P 1])R18) 

7RACT J875, FlLED SEP7EMBFR 22,2017, IN BO K 42 OF IAAPS AND PLATS, PACE 100, S. J. C. R.( 42 MAG 100)     L2 N5530' 33'W 78. 00'   Li4 N27' ISbS"W 74. 98'   L26 N8559' S4"W 35. 71'   L38 N50' 54' 51' W 65. 00'     C2 2859. 0  3' 01' 37'  151. 04'    C12 2100. 00 p8' 45b5° 1057. 79' RI9) 

7RAC1 3831, FlLED JANUARY 23,2018, IN BOOK 43 Of MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 16,S. dC. R.(43 IA&P 16)       3
N} 3• 5743' E 87. 01'   L15 N72' S1' OB° W fi0. 00'   l27 N48' 25'S4' E 142. 03'   L39 N52' 2fi' J2' W 65. 00'     C3 17. 00 66' 14' 07'  19. 65'    CI3 2100. 00 5' 07' 38'  187. 92' R20) 7RACT 3912, fILED FEBRUARY 7,2018, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PACE 19, S. J. C. R.(4} MkP 19) R21) 

GRANT DEED RECOR ED JUNE 3,2016, AS OOCUMENT NUMBER 2016- 0639fi3, S.J. C. R.  l4 N3678' 29' E 157. 05'  L16 N61' 36' OS' E 75. 02'   L28 N4' 01' 57' E  }q. g8'   L40 N54' OS' 17' W 93. 48'    C4 50. 00 194' 4fi' 16° 1fi9. 97'    C14 1095. 00 5' 07' 02'  97. 80' RZZ 

1RACT
3908, RIVER ISLANOS, SiAGE 2A LARGE LOT FINAL IAAP, FlLEO SEPTEMBER 20,2018, IN BOOK 43 0(MAPS AND 5

N56' 07' 17"W 13. 47'   LI7 N32' 31'OS' W 35A2'   L29 N47' 24' 34"E fi0. 05'   L41 N} p• p3' S3°E 57. 82'    C5 fi09. 0  4' 46' 28'  S0. 75'    C15 500. 00 070' IS'   1. 49' PLATS,PAGE 52, S. J. GR.( 43 M&P 52) RZ3 

1RACT
3989, RIV' cR ISLANDS, STAGE 2A,NLLAGE U,FILED NDVEMBER 2,2018, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND PLATS, PAGE 54,      L6 N58' 10' 28' W 87. 07'   LIB N78U3' SYW 60. 00'   l30 NBS56' 28 W 35. 74'   L42 N33' S2' 43°E 87. 04'     C6 71 0 4033' 24'  S1. 67    CI6 200. 00 4' J1' 38'  I5. 80' S.
J. C. R.( 4J AI@P 54)     V

N59' S7'43' W 65. 00'   L79 N30' 36' 36' W 37. 07'   L31 N41' 34' O6" W 60. 00'   L43 N29' S0' 31' W 44. 80'    C7 87. 00 2375 21'  7531'    C17 50. 00 6977' 10°  6D. 46' SIGNATURE

OMISSIONS L8 N6179' 24'W 65. 00'   L20 N29' S0' 31' W 9. 67'   L32 N48' 25'S4" E 75. 58'   L44 N71' O6' OZ" W 10. 34'     C8 87. 00 2375' 22°  35. 31'    C18 5000 125' 29' Ofi'  109. 51' PURSUANT

TO SECPON 6fi43fi OF THE CA IFORNIA Sl1B IVISION MAP ACi, THE SIGNATIIRES OF 1HE FOLLOWINC PARTIES HAVE L9
Nfi4' 39'51' W 75. 00'   L21 N56' 49' S8° E 16. 67'   L33 N43' 09' 19' W 75. 00'   L45 M537' 40'W 73. 27'     C9 73. 00 52' 48' 00"  67. 27'    C79 2850. 00 1' 31' 36'  75. 94' BEEN

OMITTED:     L10
N23' 44' S6' E 74. 58'   L22 N50' 30'25' E 90. 37'   L14 N44' 48'04"W fi5. 00'   L46 NIO' 17' 37" W 41. 73'    C10 980. OD R' S3' 2}"  49. 43' 1.  

RECLAIIAED ISLANDS LAND COMPANY, RESERVATION FOR OIL, GAS, AIMERALS, ANU Oh1ER HYDROCARBON SU65TANCES IYING       7  N6577' 4fi" W 60. 01'   L23 N48' 42' 31' E 65. 00'   L35 N46' 19' 46°W 65. 00'   L47 N63' O1' O6' W 65. 00' BELOW
A OEP7H OF 500 FEET, PER OOCUMENT NUMBEft 2 01- 046177, S.J. C. R. 2.  

LEVEE EASEMENT M FAVOR OF ISLAND RECLAMAPON OIS7RICT 2062 PER DOCUMENT NUMBER 2018- 0 6 0 092,S. J. C. R.   L12 N21574YW 35. 74'   L24 N78}' pq E 42. 93'   L36 N47' S1' 27° W 65. 00' SHEET

2 oF 1 5

77



R" R' S os°,,`       

TRACT 3991
RIVER 151AN05 EV, LLC pARCEL I

QT Z N 2016- 004077 IR41
DN 2016- 063962 Rs  

T, 4 R      RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
R>>     VILLAGE V

FNyOq0 A pORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

G4IJFIA, LLC  .          

A SUBDINOION OF PARCEL 7 OF TRACT 390B( 43 M& P 52),

PARCEL 2d

CITY OF LAIHROP, SAN JOAWIN COUNtt, CALIFORNIA

N 2001- 046177 lRsl

NOVEMBER 2018

CAIJFLA, LLC TRAC739 IRI)

LOT I

ON 2016- 063963

IR21)

o(D9
N NG1N f{1NG

PARCEL I 5
PARCEL 17

rye  O 0'  250'  S 0

CAIJFL4. LLC
IR221

IR221 SCALE: 1'= 500'

J'    2005- 13473fi IR71

S

991'
0\\

7RAR R   V//   

q ANID OTHER MAPS50F RECORO. ftE ERSTO SHEETI4CFORCALIFl4, LLC qQ`    0
pARCEL 4

G/
y 7HE BOUNDARY OF TRACT 3991

N 2001- 046177 IR31 PMCEL I4
PARCEL I

9
L

c c4UFlA, LLc
iRACT 19 IRII IR221 9

PARCEL 24P

IR221I
I IR22)    

ey\        pN 2001- 046177

o     IR3)       

LEGEND( SHEETS 3 THROUGH 5 ONLY)TRAL7 39 IR11
PARCEL lo iRACT 323a

IR22)  1 171' q      aQ IAONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R17), UNlE55 O7HERW15E NOTED

PF<  O'    MONUMENT TO BE SET PFR( R22)

PARCEL 2

2j  \     
3/ 4' IRON PIPE N7H CAP STAMPE' PLS 7798' PEft( ft22)

R22    
I AN( R23) RESPECTIVELY, UNLESS O7HERN15E NOIED

CAIJFL4, LLC     \\    L Pa'RCEL 12

MONl1MENT PER TRACT 3834( R11)

PARCEL 2           F9 IR221 WCE 9 d AIONUAIENT i0 BE SET PER( R23)

N 2001- 046177 IR31         s      p- 1/ 2" BRASS DISK STAMPED' PlS 7788
iftACT 19 IRtI P

R22)

9 92
s

TO BE SET PER( R2S)

q SEE DETAIL A  /     BOUNDARY

9'

byqr PARCEL 13 ON SHEET 5 LOT LME OR RICHT- OF- WAY lWE

IR221

ppR EL 3 I TRACT 3 9 1 2 EA S E M E N T L I N E

Ift221     /   
IR20)  

CENTERLINE

PIVEHISfAN SPAPKWAV MONUMEM LME

PARCEL7
sao. 00'( Ri)     IAEASURED AND RECOR DATA PER REFERENCE( RI)

R,,  
R1) ENOlES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE LISi ON SHEET 2

CAIJFIA, LLC
z        

T2ACT, 39a9 M- M)       MONUMENT TO MONIIMENT
SEE SHEET 4 RZ3i apSisoF o Tw, cr 3oaa

PARCEL IS             
BEAIiINGS      "    L.    

M- CL INTX)     MONUMENT TO CENTERLME INTERSECiION

DN 2001- 046177 IR31       q RADIAL BEARINC

TRACT 2a IRII PARCEL 4 I           r TOTAL
IR221 MAflINADIiNE B) BOIIN ARY

pN DOCIIMENT NUMBER

PARCEL 5 I O. R. OFFlCIAL RECORD

IR221 ON MONUMENT
CALIFIA, LL[     __--    3

PAR[ EL 6 I Q1 EASEMENT REFERENCE Nl1MBER- SEE THIS SHEET

DN 2001- 046177 IR3)  

iRACT21 IRII I
LAI 7

i ci aaaz

CALIFIA, LLC IRIoI

aAecEL 5

BASISOFBEARINGS
DN 2001- 0461771R31

iRACT 22 IRII

IiHE BEARING OF NOR1H BEM'EEN FOUND MONIIMENiS ALONC OELL' OS50 DRIVE AS SHOWN ON TRACT 39D8, CAfJFl4, LLC
RIVER ISLP. NDS, STAGE 2A, LARGE LOT FINAL MAP, FILE SEPiEMBER 20, 2018, IN BOOK 43 OF MAPS AND PAftcEL 13

1
pCA EIAV FIVE

PLATS, AT PAGE 52, OFFICIAL RECORDS OF SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, WAS TPHEN AS THE BASIS OF BEARINGS pN 2001- 045177 Ift31     
SHOWN ON 7HI5 IAAP( ZONE 3, NAD83). ALL OISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE GRWN OISTANCES.     TRACT 23 IR11   -

1 I - 3aza EASEMENTS
I

IR9)
T

NOTES I TRA 3gZ        O 60' N1DE ROADWAY EASEMENT W FAVOft OF CITY OF LATHROP PER 199 O. R. 212,
1. SEE SHEET 2 FOR A DITIONAL NOTES, REFERENCES, AND THE LINE TABLE& CURVE TABIE OF COURSES I 42 MkP 611 S. J. C. R.( SiEWART ROADJ.( OOES NOT AFFECT THE SUBJECT PROPEFTY)

60 IN E ROA WAY EASEAIENT IN FAVOR OF CITY OF IATHROP PER 199 O. R. 335.
SHOWN ON SHEETS} THROUGH 5 ONl7. a I I O2

o       S. J. C. R.( SiEWART ROADJ( D ES NOT AFFECT 1HE SIIBJECT PROPERTY).

I IN( ESIUE HIVE- O STACE 2A IEVEE EASEMENT IN FAVOR OF ISLAND RECLAMATION OISIRICT 2062
I

PER OOCUMENT NUMBER 2018- 060092, RECORDEO MAY 31, 2018, S. J. C. R.

CAIJFk, LLC
I

N

I^
LOT 3      I.   

7

R75a93
TRA 1226

N 201R6064006 i

I '    
F ,  

I-      SHEET 3 oF 15t J

78



PARCEL 2 TRACT 3991
PARCEL 12

7RACT 3902 1ft221

q   \
7IUCi 3903 ezzi RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

00
VILLAGE V

A PORPON Of RANCHD EL PESCAOERO, BEINC

PARCEL 9 A SU6DINDION 0 PARCEL 7 OF TRACT} gpB( 4S M@P SI),

iRACT 39oe IR22)      
J,s,    p CITY OF LAIHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COIINTY, CALIFORNIp

O•  NDVEMBER 20I8

9     O
JJ

9l    6 j̀'TlJ.
L30

P
1  \ 9 PARCEL 13

9    ,` 
JJ p(  iRACT 3903 IR221 N G 1 N E E R 1 N G

o NJ N33' S2' 43' E R

L26    

f

rs N35' 44' 03' EIR).       

N
0'   75'  t o'

0},

6`

A1

9
y    '

ry
J6.`

J

L46(

Z, J. •
N32' O6' 14' E F O

SCALE: 1'_ 50'

h  01 BOUNDARY SHEET
N49' 31' 40' E R JB L24

n        Js

Rz
op SEE DETAIL A

y ,' L  
4o

v              

R
Z sJ FR` 7B•

qsps
ON SHEET 5       __    

7H 5 SHEET SHOWS THE BWNDARY OF TRACT 3991

L43    BU,p,

CO

zs•SJqDpq 3.
s•(\

z1

BEING PARCEL 7 OF iRACT 3908( R22)

MJ( R
20   :    

s    s

t

aaR
f    

L9\/

yFRSTqF 95zar(r) A    _ N62V4' 31° E R

o N59' 11' OB' E( ft) R= 980'     
8  Rp3j

N6B' S6 02 E ft R= 73
4            N36' OBb2' E R)       Q

W

CB o

C9  /

Q PARCEL 2 IR231   8(1C

PARCEL7 t 

SEESHEETI4 0/       = R_vE

N2279' 4I' E R
TRACT 3908( R22)  Q zlJ5. 75 AC

c

N1824' OYE R
TRAcf 39a9

P fR231 I PARCEL 5

SJ
O\\ 

I\ 
O

1RACT 39 8 1R221

o,     

a,?v', EBURYD      _    I
4

r.      e3
qo`'   RIVf

p g e N75' 42' DI' ER

r.       yS

o
4C, y N       

I
g 

a

s6s
co

A  SEE SyEET 13
y

Q'h   N16' 03' 18' E R)    
PARCEL 7

TRACT 3908( R22)
p

35. 15 AC

NSS
c s•

6 
Nqoaiv

J/
7p     N13' 01' 41' ER i       — 

E

Js,      
118

N
3)'

6 ti5  

Pl7. 0g' W
SEE OETAIL 8      

TRq °, qR `\   
N 9' 35' S2' E R) R= 609'      THIS SHEET h a PARCEL 5

N5028' 1YE R   '`      
A`

TRAC7 390d( R221

O \    
3 f

c \  

NZ2' 0955' WR R= 73 z^       
e M877' 29' E R

N35' 42' 01' E R OSTACEA 2A LEVEE C/) C) 5
CS 3

EASEMENT
N78' 48' S3' Wft R= 50'     94

STc, q9T\\     221   \ d
3gz3?

300'

J2.59   --__ N8206. 75'

E.

C7'  
C6

N 5; 7J'   1 N18' 43' 43' E( R) R= 500'  C769
q0\      777. 09a•

W  \ 

G
NIB' 4B' S3' W( R) R= 50'   

PARCEL C

45

NI9' 4343 E R R= 500
N502B' l7' E R iRACT 39oa IR221

DETAIL B
NOTTOSCALE

NOTES
1. SEE SHEET 3 FOR LEGEND, EXISTINC EASEMENTS, EASEMENT       `     

REFFRENCE LIST AND BASIS OF BEARINCS.

2. SEE SMEEi 2 FOR ADDIPONAL NOiES, REFERENCES, AND iHE

IJNE AND CURVE TABLES FOR SMEETS 3 TMROUGM 5 ONLY.

3. REFQ2 TO SHEE15 13 AND 14 FOR ilES TO SiftEET

MONUMENTS AS 540WN 1RACT 3989( R23J.   
SHEET 4 oF 15

79



NOTES PAR E E

T RACT 3991
o m p      , w, T 3a3a, R,,,  

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
I. SEE SHEEi P FOR ADOITIONAL NOTES, REFERENCES, AND iHE LME AND J     VILLAGE V

CI1Rl E TABLES OF CWRSES SHOWN ON SHEE75 3 THROl1GH 5 ONLY.

2. SEE SHEET 3 FOR IEGENO, EASEMENT REFFRENCE LIST, AND BASIS OF

BEARINGS.     A PORTION OF ftANCHU EL PESCAOERO, BEINC

A SUB INOI N OF PAftCEL 7 dF 7RACT 3908( 43 MkP 52),

EAST_ EAST 579. 02'( M- M)( RI7)  CITY OF LAIHROP, SAN JOApUIN COUNtt, CALIF4RNIA

45. 00'    NOVEMBFR 2018

Mou GARDEN FARMS AVENUE
PER( R14)

ENGINEEi 1NG

I eia
a36

SEE BELOW LEF7

I
HOLBORN

Z    DRIVE

PLUMAS o
DRIVE m$ LL'"  

TRACT 3834O
IR111

W
W m z 

PARCEL 4
W TRACT 3900 IR221

O      ¢
o

i       €  O Q
TRACT 3912IR201Y q5T_ EAST 675. 00'( M- M)( ft16)

45. 00' 
ON

I I  PER( R76)   
MARINADRIVE

I

SOLANOPARCEL 3 0

TRacr asoa iRzzi DRNE

I

PARCEL 6 8

iRACT 3900 1R221    `     

NS' a7' 38" E( R)      

g I
iRACT 3832IRI01

M)(
R2p-    C13

RIVER ISLANDS PARKVJAY
45.00' EAST 1087. 07( M- M)( R11)

M- M)( R22) —-    EAS7 1047. 3Y( AI- M)( R22) g I         RIVER ISLANDS PARKYJAY as. 00
I_

Morv

I I PER( R16)

W

BUCHANqN
OURT w TanR

saaa I
BALSAM

TRACT 3989
PARCEL 4

I
COURT

IR231  
7RACT 3908 IR221

Z
Wm i ¢

O
w

SEE SHEET4
m WATER LILY

o DRIVE

Ioa
mI

c4.  
Q

zQ

a
DETAILA asoo_ I
NOT TO SCALE

SEE A80VE RIGHT MON 7RAGT 3995

5 oF 15FROM SHEET 3)       
PER( R16)      RI61 SHEET

80



o-    o, TRACT 3991
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

Trracr seoa is    `  VILLAGE V
PARCEL 9

7RAC7 3908

p  `` p rE g    .       A PORPON OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING

N`  '   
O A

CITYIOFI
LAIHROP, 4AN JOAO

NACOUNTYgCALIFORNIAZ'
NOVEMBER 2018

S,   
ia  ~           O

io        
Hi

Fqig
o

15 4.' o Q   ,    Sp'
99,fyy

N NG1N. EiZ1NG0 9 a

Q

G

e      o       

Ay

5 0'   so'  ioo'      sao•

17

16     

A 19

S e`   
PARCELI    / FBG 7     I          scn: f= iao'

s  ,

a
G°°

P

20    

s 9

9i
F

6

QQQ°'    
B

Sy
oU

SHEET INDEX

QG

F 2t    ,    

Q°`       `     

RT
N

VFRSTO QP zz          e QP 5         RFFr
LEGEND

10 29 I'  4          

0 3 N BOUNDARY

y_  2      `                 
LOT LME

24 I         PARCELC
TRACT 3989

E% IS11NC ROADWAY EASEMENT

I
R23)  O SHEET NUAIBER

O o 25    ~, 30 sy

31

1 48
iiiiiiiiiiiii kesiaicieo nccEss

29

ps SHEET LIMIT LINE

28

Q,       

1 O    .    PARCEL5         
47

46 14    `

27 OG

J 32 e
PARCELA 45

y
o  e

OQy

34

33
I o       PAflCEL2

11

35

ti1/

DDLEBURYDR/ VF11

3s      `

37      ,   PARCELE    ,           

W

zw

38 PARCELD , z
e w

ss
Q

f
t` 

o

40 qp      
J I

s MAR/ NADRIVE
yy

S
F 41 O    

4q
FNG

c,   

12 I
TRACT 3900  ` 

PARCEL C      ,     PARCEL3    '  
PARCEL 4 I

isl
k,
qyr 

O`  1 13 rrzacr aeoa tezzi

PARCEL 59p

1\\   v

l I

SHEET 6 oF 15

81



TRACT 3991
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

o  
VILLAGE V

A POR710N OF RANCHO EL PESCAOEAO, BEING

A SUBOINDION OF PAftCEL 7 OF TRACT 3908( 43 M@P 52),

C°        CIiY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

NOVEMBER 2018

i    i
i i

O   / 

i

s     

s, NGIN EEfZ1NG

s9 0   FT N
O    9

0'   zo ao eo'
OP '      

so scae: r= ao'

P i    
19    ` l PARCEL 6

PARC_ FL 1 9qy
5`

0     CQ '   Zo     ;  

s 9%     THIS SHEET SHOWS

5 /  '  
5'  G\  PARCELAONLY

v/'   

2z

z      

s1 SFFSy
FT LEGEND

o    ' 6,  

o o\       ?
t

Z3     • O° SET STANDARD CITY OF LA7HROP MONl1MENT WELL STAIAPE° PLS 7788'

6S
o o

eQ MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R22)

0 24 5}    ( Sp
PAR        \

Jr ONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R27)

5a

5   Nssos, o SET 3/ 4" IRON PIPE W17H GLASPC PL11G° PLS 7788'
l

5 v'
S

3 so
zi64 S

SET 2- 1/ 2"' IRON PIPE WIiH PLASPC PWG' PL5 7788'

2$       6
31 P

9•      FFSy 3/ 4 IRON PIPE WITH PLASPC PLUG" PLS 7786 PER( R22), AND

g     4g    \   \    \     F'   R23) RESPECPVELY, UNLESS OTHERVNSE NOiEO

p(     PARCEL 5  < 66 4 SET 3. 00' 1TNE55 CORNER( W.CJ, UNLESS OiHERWISE NOiED, I EASIIREO
4]      AIONC LOT LME, RA IAL LME OR PERPENOICU AR TO STREET CENiERIJNE

Z`       j    I s  

45 \   
L

AS NOIED. 3/ 4" x 24' IRON PIPE W11H PLASTIC PWG' PLS 7788"

27     /
f`

Q       /   
3Z

PARCELA 68
4\ \ \\ 

200. 0'( RI) IAEASURED AND RECORO DATA PER REFERENCE( R7)

V  ' _ 1124AC sQ5 JQ% 9 RI)    DENOTES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE LIST ON SHEET 2

d o   G       33     PARCEL 2    i      (-
B)   MONUMENi TO 90UNDARY

C      34 M- CL INT) MONUMENi TO CENTEftLME INTERSEC710N

s

C`\       35

p

l37

C' Z  (

JJ
l l M- M)   MONUMENT TO MONUMENT

S',
S,
cc \         

3s t,. r)     rara

6`, 6 4J

y    

PAftCEL D
8)     BOUNDARY

9 PARCEL E 44
S P. U. E.   PUBLIC U7ILITY EASEMENT

7 Z
S. D. E STORM DRAIN EASEFIENT

33 NSSJ,       ao a
oi uNE

Z,
7j

z{
y ` q1

v

43
1 y`  RIGHT- OF- WAYLINE

J I   Qo I

A

BaIIN ARY

O\  "   39
EASEAIENT UNE

FyS+      
40

42    4v   
v

2 Z AIONUMENT LME

Y9` \    A    / O
OOQ/    

L30
CENTERLINE

F\        Q V//
ii ii  RES7RICTEDACCESS

Q     / 
O EASEMENi REFERENCE NUMBER- SEE SHEET 3

l5
Z

Lq    y  N85' 08' OB' E—     

C'     3o.00•m

PARCEL 3

co\\\ _
Jo  /  1.. 1. 17' BRA55 OISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREiE

y SIDEWALK 1. 00' INTO THE RICHi-0E- WAY, ALONG PROLONGAPON OF

SIDE LOT LMES, OR AS NOTED.

SF S—_ T
J—O

2. 5/ B' REBAR ri11H CAP° PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LOT

NFET
2

O
3. SEE SHEETu2LFOR AO ITRI NAL NOTES ANO REfERENCES.

4. SEE SHEET} FOR E% ISPNC EASEMENTS AN 8A515 OF BEARINGS.

5. SEE SHEET 15 FOR L1NE ANO CURVE TABlES.

SHEET 7 OF 1 5

82



N3S52' 43" E( R)\

TRACT 3991
J   y, y

c s\
RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

Q
4,°".^  P? RCEL 3 ti R,  

9i,
F VILLAGE V

lV'    ti°   7RACT 3989 IR23)      
q./      ?

oq 9/S
V

ea  (     
A POftTION OF RANCHO EL PESCA ERO, B NC

2''
y0< s 

J
9 NSSJ 4

Bq5, OS p A SUBDIN ION OF PARCEL 7 OF TRACT 3908( 43 M@P 52),

N r
op. ; tj:      OS.   qjsi CITY OF lA1HROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CAL1FOFNIA

s8 PAR.. EL 9 m v      i.       NovFr ecR 2ote

y^      

e
o

e
y

7RAG7 3900 IR22)    

p
m  

aBo°"     25          

0S'
9(

9y
o  °

yy

w,'
e          RZzJ

1p.   

QQQ`~ 
4,       

eo  ' N G 1 N fZ 1 N G

a
rn`

v a v N

2

ti

y'
rv  ,   o'   zo'  ao'       aa'

1

5
2^,"'  

2R    scue: i'= aa'

o-       
4 „   

Q      LEGEND

DETAIL A i
h   o po QQ SET STANDARO CITY OF LATHROP MONVMENT WELL STAIAPEO' PLS 7788'

p NOT TO SCALE m' e'  , 0

p    y.

h^.       '     a O aNUMENT TO BE SET PER( R22)
ti O >

o  . ,     ` 1 p' MONUMENT i0 BE SET PER( R23)

1',

pyb 2"    . Z"'' ryo^,'    
y'       

ti'      PARCc". L I o SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE WITH PLASPC PWC' PLS 7788'

Sl)    7R GT 3989 IR23)   
SET 2- 1/ 2" IRON PIPE WIiH PIASPC PWG° PLS 7788"

a 
9'

TSB,  a' `' 0 7/ 4° IRON PIPE W17H PLASIIC PLUG' PLS 7788' PER( R22). AN

DETAIL B J       h`
O

R23) RESPECTIVEIY, IINlE55 OTHERYASE NOTED

SEE SHEET 9 SET 3. 00' YAINESS CORNER( W. C.), UNLESS OTHFRWISE NOTED, MEASURFD

0.LONG LOT LINE, RADIAL LINE OR PERPEN ICULAR TO STREEi CENiERLINE

C/ 6 AS NOTED. 3 4° x 24' IRON PIPE YnTH PLASTIC PWG' GLS 7788'

5      DETAIL A
ZJo6

d    2 0. 00'( R1) MEASUREO AND RECORO DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)
4 p`      PARCELH      (    SEE THIS SHEET e      ° S

fi    iQ.    PARCEL G
o  /  602 S. F.   o J UsL,     J'`

J

RI)    ENOiES REFERENCE( ft1)- SEE REFERENCE ll5i ON SHEEi 2

JJ

2568     \ Jp  /  
y,\.       N

C/
n,,   981•

MMI
M- 9)   MONt1MENT TO BOUNDARY

ssZ?.
y    o\      2fi1  /    10     "

y   

Se
o2

T      \      

M- CL INT) MONUMENT TO CEN7ERLME INTERSECPON

C    o 0• o ti        BK'
g

M- AI)   MONU IENT TO MONUMENT

µr/   
M'    

J  
rr

T)     iOTAL

CJ9 NSg YP A3939 R23)    
B)     BOUNDARY

1      
yh 5

4J'
y,   N23' 44' S\     

P U. E.   PUBIIC UPlltt EASEMENT

s\    i o n,   h    9, 24U S. F,     
0 6S

o
S. D. E STORM ORAIN EASEMENT

J   _______\     ... 
P   

LOT LINE
ti

N33' S2' 43' E( R) V6J
Z'  +°'  y' y_  

o `     J4''   
4'  79•       RIGHT- OF- WAY UNE

0 74.

PARC@L 1 
p^

O a P coo a q o wssoo,       eourvoaRv

h       ;
J. 

B o   \ CT\     "'    6. TI SF.     .
EASEIAENT LINEa ,

ra oo\ tio     
S     2

N630 3p•      3p•   

O    6'
y,       M NUAIENT LMEa L_   

NSJ•
s

SJ/    9A5'
Bll"\_    o/    \   3 6500 CENTERLINE

Sis.  I07. 70' G     _'    6, 711 S. F.     ^ Q
L C3 oR     Z  \ N6qJ Q i  RESTRICTEOACCESS

ARCEL C ti zs9
p.\ R

ZS   \   
0

95j
5 Q OO EASEMENi REFERENCE NUTABER- SEE SHEET J

o. az nc    ;, ti e-   
Q

a,. \\       3apo,    \ a 2
0

p 2
ti r9p• l R.   d.    fi. 711$. F.      

P. U. E.   , Z o,   
7y.`     

756Bo
656zs `  2 N

Nss
a,

t

6.

10      °"\.       <-, r NOTES
A6j(      

B

TJ       
0, 636.       7JB, r 7. 458 S. F.

JJ 
Q•

a•` J

r    \

C     2' 2`'  
1. 1. 17' BRA55 UISK STAMPED° PLS 7788° TO BE SEi ON CONCRETE

spg, QQ QSq Op 58    \
5.       

a SIOEWALK 1. 00' INTO iHE RICHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONGAPON OF

FB /,   PUE   _,         SI E l0T lMES, OR AS NOTED.

RY   ,   2: 5/ 8' REBAR W17H CAP" PLS 7788" TO BE SET AT AlL REAR lOT

SEE DETAIL F ON SHEET 15 \      q'      Qi9 T

y CS y    /      
CORNERS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOiED.

FOR EASEMENT DETAILS       \  F ZSD/ 3
9\       65•

Q

3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AD ITIONAL NOIES AND REFERENCES.

PARCEL 5 z('
R o  

6  • 

OpN, }
ys 4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR EXIS7INC EASEMEMS ANO BASIS OF BEARINGS.J

o   3p
0•        5. SEE SHEET IS FOR t1NE AND CURVE TABLES.

e m     `

PARCEL A i N2J4q       `       
SEESHEET7 v,

9
s,.      

4a
c456ER 

a,

os   

SEE SHE T 14  \             SHEET $ OF 1 J

83



oo °

Zo  °,     

RIV

RRAC
T 399 E 2A

b'`!.  

v h       J

a` 7 o
s•      VILLAGE V

P{ aRCEL 9 y7

N49' 3973' E( R)  $ 61y h5       ' G 9
7RAC7 3908 IR22) a°'

Qp'
L          E,  

Joa'
o$ 

0
S  A POR710N OF RANCHO EL PESCA ERO, BEING

JI

ry5j '
1 '$.       

Q.     A SUBOIN ION OF PARCEL 7 OF 1RACT 39 8( 43 AIkP 52),

j 60  a'   

9

QiY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

N48' 25' S4' E R    5

0

a0.

0
13

NOVEMBER 2a18

7, aBa SF:           P9b9
o i a"//\ s° r   /,. \   

Q1

o  s.g   
o•   h

i       a ENG1NEEfZ1NG

D C69\\     ' h^    v

o+,  

o'
04°

i p sYy.     N
L'  T\     LB           6, 711 S. F.      6'   

O
o'   20'  40'       Ba'

4', 
p0`     

o/    

o 6S SCALE: 1'= 40'

ryh

o/
Q,    /   `

P,  p     
oa.

y
h, h%y

ry
OQ,         "'>       c6     

a'`°   
y9>.

j,
ok3'    ,    > ii 2.  NOTES

9      

6. 711 S. F.      po

ss
PARC@L 9

o'   1. 1. 17' BRASS DISK STAMPED' PLS 7768' TO BE SET ON CONCflEIE

fp     /     h`
1 , ry///       1

o       TRAC7 3908 IR221
SIDEWAIK 1. 00' INTO THE RIGHT- 0E- WAY, ALONG PROLONGAPON OF

ti '/     j" SIDE LOT LMES, OR AS NOiED.

Y
F,

56         cs      
y°

ry

9 2 5/ 8' REBAR W1TH CAP" PLS 7788 TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LOT

5  / i a             Jp9  CORNERS, UNLESS O7HERW15E NOTEO.

a   i 6, 711 S. F.      o 6

3. SEE SHEET 2 FOft ADDITIONAL NOlES AND REFERENCES.

p  S 4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR E% ISTINC EASEMENTS ANO BASIS OF BEARINGS.

i S. SEE SHEET 15 FOR LINE AND CURVE TABLES.
i L1

i 

q  
c\ 

p  ys
25j sb'      '    o•

B         SO

r`       
P•  \   /•,/ 00•   \         9

O       , 6

Gf J4,        lsy,  \ Q 0.    6. 711 S{'.      o S

Q'            Ba O i.   
lj.   \ O'   00•

p 2sb 2y,
9

0
R

o'

a
j JJOS CCeG Jps      1

9
pE     

D.

SO S.
TB s9B JpJ, B•\ Cs, y `

S  \\
O  Nsz

y.

oo o  '"
t° se°s

9/.`'
a

ss.    °'
y

e J"w
PARCEL B   

O•

kti

va

ry.  ss d'    `  t    
6. 71t S. F.      

oo

sy.op.
5, Ll JJA '     

O

S^ yh`
1

yss)

s

8  ,      
4, 

L1

N
s p\ PP

JSi
J, s?:

J 
ll\ C6   o   '      S9bSy(C

J
p  \/  '      ]

p jy a' -^>

PARCELI fiJtl$. E 0 BJ9 9J9 q^. •.
p t. sa ac B^  

6
PARCELG y

y>

Bo,,
S. 

s\      
a  833 S. F.       , o

hJ    
J  \   =      

8, 2065. F.   / 0     /
PARCEL 9

a   '`   /      TRAC7 3908 IR22)

s
JS'

a \ C  

a''   2, i Ns4b.
99

J
S.  

J

jA.
d'2  

X  (   ( V SIJ. 0h 1

y,     R Jp o\   \       
BJ9 N'

9J9 q.,h
LEGEND c  cs,   

blj / 
0

pe g,   ,.

o c` 4,

SET STANDARD CITY OF LAiHROP MONUMENi WELL STAMPED° PLS 7788'   ( i)     TOTAI NJSq,    `
h       

ETAIL 8    °'' + V

9 ' y

Q MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R22) B)     BOUN ARY sp SJ,       F
R o   SEE 1HIS SHEET

2„

h"

ry'

o(
7    

p      

2tip 
P. U. E.   PUBLIC U LITY EASEMENT S•       C Qd IAONUAIENT TO BE SET PER( ft23)      y o^,°  \

9 0  C?  
S. O. E STORM RAM EASEFIENT C

j      

P

4.      Q
o SET 3/ 4 IRON PIPE W1TH PLASTIC PLUC' PLS 7788'    n a G h'     V

LOT LINE C6    o    s

SET 2- 1/ 2' IRON PIPE R1TH PlASTIC PWC" PLS 7788'  sj
ti

QQQ
h ^  v

3/ 4° IRON PIPE W1TH PLASTIC PLUG' PLS 7788' PER( ftP2), AN     

BOUNOARYWAY
LINE

S2j9,s•     h  P o

N43' 19' 22° E( R)            
y 

Q
R23) RESPECTIVELY, I1NLE55 OiHERWISE NOTEO P, RrE a hi y

SET 5. 00' W17NE55 CORNER( W. C.), UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, AIEASUREO EASEMENT IJNE a   °
ry ay'

ALONG LOT LINE, RAOIAL LME OR PERPEN ICULAR TO STREEi CEN7ERlINE SEE SHEET 7 a C/      o

o

J \
AS NOiEO. 3/ 4' x 24' IRON PIPE W1iH PlASTIC PWG' PlS 7788°       ---- MONUMENT 11NE 6j

2hh     .      
2     g0   ,  0• \

NSJ, . SJ,
200. 00'( RI) MEASURED ANO RECORO DATA PER REFERENCE( R1) CEN7ERLME

ASjs•     C61
5    DETAIL B

RI)    ENOTES REFERENCE( R7)- SEE REFERENCE LISi ON SHEET 2       
RESTRIC7ED ACCE55 PARCEL C

Z
NOT i0 SCALE

IA- B)   MONUMENT TO BOUNDARY
O7 EASEIAENT REFERENCE NUMBFR- SEE SHEET 3

IA- CL INT) IAONUMENT TO CENTERLME INTERSECTION

IA- M)   MONUMENT TO MONUMENT

SHEET 9 OF

84



N51' 03' 16' E( R)      
TRACT 3991

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

s
VILLAGE V

0    ,    n
o0°   l22  /     A POR710N OF RANCHO EL PESCAOERO, BEING       '

e  QJ'  

9
BS       O

QO' To   /
s'     

A Sl1BDIN ION OF PARCEL 7 OF TRACT 3908( 43 IAAP 52),
y

9 \    N49' 72' S8' E( R)  '/  J
9

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

p o'    ory

NOVEMBER 2018

rypb'     4      /
q`.- o '     \ s      " h 91" 04 e!1

4.     7. 490 SF.      hh' `'

Loa,     .

PARCEL 9
y

o e5o       > 9
yti°     

TkACT 39D8 IR221        
0

0,      
m ry

i
E N G 1 N E R 1 N G

oJ a1  LPI

vy,     i.   ` a   `°  5 N
e`

o S.    ry`' y o'   20'  ao`      so'

o       0 15 ho.        ae

9 PARCFL 165 A,  6, 856 S. F. p
SCUE: 1'= 40'

ps     
a6

gy\ '
L 4r       

Q;-      ' Oo
s9,,.     ,% o s      w•       LEGEND

gati

p 16
5'   

o/  A  y,'"y   p q      g;
a

y5 o,  7, 049 S. F.  bh      P p YF•  oo
o• 

o< q' f,
q

SET SiANDARD Cltt OF LA7HROP MONUMENT WELL STAMPEO' PLS 7788'

O' Po
i

s    Ll          
ryh\

1  
s `     \       '     l 4qcGf.  Q MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R22) 

9 `

o 9
ryb  `  

1   //     
0

0>

5 F
y p' MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R23)

i ., 

P/   y;

4,   i

y,    
oo.  ti ti PARCEL B  `,° v^

o o       
y                

6
p0'

hh`

TOO" i•  1'

f, 
ae

y

po      >•  6, 5 O95. F.    
J 6a     

6. 487 S. F.      yr o SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE Wi7H PLASTIC PLUG° PLS 7788"

9 7, 156 S. F.   ( i a G ryb' b ',
L   

65 os,  3' X3'        P. I1. E.( ACROSS PARCEL 8)    SET 2- 1/ 2" IRON PIPE WIiH PLAS7IC PWC" PLS 7789'

y p

ryy

F,°

k     

i    o
W C'

o

3/ 4' IRON PIPE W17H PLASIIC PLUG" PLS 7786' PER( R22), AND

yo o.         o o•       p0 o,   R23) RESPECTIVELY, UNLE55 OTHERYASE NOTED

W  \ 18       s-      i po i
a'

L j
v

6h'

s    SET 3. 00' WITNESS CORNER( W. CJ, UNLESS OTHERYASE N07E0, MEASIIREO
9, 258 S. F.   

6h'     /            20 F, ` l o pLONG LOT LME, RADIAL LINE OR PERPENDICULAR TO SiREET CENiERIJNE
po/      y.  6, SOU S. F,    y P1

d yA,
p,       

0y"       °
s.       o ''

h
cH'      

AS NOTED. 3/ 4" 24' IRON PIPE WIiH PLASTIC PWG' Pl5 7786'

L h A Q-s,  

oso>,   yBJBp. o fpo
P

200. 00'( RI) IAEASURE ANO RECORO DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)

J

6   i,
P    J   /    rJ bg 

Q
qa       (

R1)    DENOTES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE( 15T ON SHEE7 2

0

ooB
J /  (,,    \ Op    

i//   

y

P 6, 50' S. F. r• ZZ  65  4.
k111       ( M- 8)   MONIIMENT TO BOIlNOARY

PAqCELF i
e y 6 s)       i  

y'
1.1 

0'
L`' 

GE% M- CL INT) MONVMENi TO CENTERLME MTERSEC110N

N62' 04' 31' E( R)   
3, 523 S. F.   a poo

J/$$     k
LOS   p

L   
M_ M)   MONll1AENT TO MONl1MENT

h``      9ry

v 22

o

J     °    s°      PARCELA     ( i)     ioia
ei

j .^' 0     >   6. 500 S. F.       P; aRCEI_ A
23      ' Oo• y B)     BOIINOARY

u h  p•    
b     '   '       

0 0       %'      P. U. E.   PIIBLIC UTIIITY EASEMENT
a`

O          
h

5',

ylll
SEESHEET7

k

q`,  

k`; 

n    S. D. E STORM DRAIN EASEMENT
p'    

a

ryy
ry

0 7l
J c'

C Jf„     J  `      
g'

Lh

1'
L  ,

L5y1`
l,    24      j

LOT LME

N59' 11 08° E( R) R= 9B0'/       s.        5
Q' bh'       

C` \  
a L RIGHi- OF- WAY LINE

NBB' S6' 02' E( R) R= 73'       23 DETAIL G
8' 449 5' F' EE THIS SHEET

BOUNDARY

s    ,,,,, yJo. 20 DETAIL G easeueNr uNE

S  ' m-      Sl g    y„ NOi i0 SCAIE
w w,    1' p

MONl1MENT LME

OSiAGE 2A o   
yy\ a`\      

o

LEVEE EASEMENT J,,f  ,       A
y5 til T'

p'

c
CENTERLINE

N36' 08' 02' E( R)   cJ    p     `
T ry`. 1

24 i ii i  RESIRICTE ACCE55

5    ' Z99 5' F'
S1 O3 EASEMENT REFERENCE NUTABER- SEE SHEEi 3

DETAIL C 23 1`

J .  .
yo°°

Pp\  
SEE THIS SHEET

0.5\     

olti
J 

0.
0"    ' o,.`   o•

0,,    
ye' tis o,o

o.,
R    NOTES

y `  

T

o F2 o 

gbp91   
o-

c\ °°
0`

h^       
1. 1. 17' BRASS ISK SiAMPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREIE

PARCEL C w     o,
l   ZS 0 i P .  ? ag9'     S EWALK 1. 00' INTO THE RICHi- OF- WAY. ALONC PROLONGATION OF

CC ,    SI E LOT LMES, OR AS NOTED.
7R4C7 3903 IR221 o \   ' ty y 9 a        ,

i    ((

2

P'

o        2 5/ 8 REBAft WIiH CAP° PLS 7788" TO BE SEf AT AU. REAR LOT

o \\ J   

G ',
p  \   

o
p.'       

o.          CORNERS, UNLESS OTHFRWISE NOlEO.

2             q 4', \   P4 3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR ADDI710NAL NOTES AND REFERENCES.

p  \  W ss G     
o

c, \  

4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR E% ISPNG EASEMFN75 AN BASIS OF 6EARINGS.

9\    ,        
9`' o, \\ 5. SEE SHEET IS FOR LINE AND NRVE TABLES.y          ,,

6': lG  2G '  
i 0 eJ

5 DETAIL C   
NOT TO SCAI£ 

SHEET 1 O OF 1 5

85



S6E     

N
4j 9 W TRACT 3991

o za  , 5        PARC L A bh65      wc "     °" 657 z,. RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
0' o SEE SHEET 7 o

J'   

e,   
9   

9' 
q VILLAGE V

Ci  \    k9'      G9.. 0.  1 
p

b 3' X3'    0
3,% 3,

I
p

S     S6          

0      

W. C,    h W   
6>•

ps A POR710N OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, 6EING

Qv'      r    30 J' Ts, q SUB INDION OF PARCEL 7 OF TRACT 3909( 43 MAP 52),
0 oti rp 11, 315 S. F. CITY Oi' LATHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COIINTY, CALIFORNIA

Q     6. 8 955. F.       N68q92p w      
k9

b
g

9`

uo. 2/

yW

y

NOVEM6ER 2018

y
l S

g, 9•       3'%3' J m;,;+
B

J  \       \ q4.1
1,

0,  
O

o,

v

s%

y 2'

N

8. 763' S. F.     
W. C.    

6 2y
J

9 

C14      1 29 ENGIN E R1NGPa.  Se; ll
by}

p.  6, 659 S. F.    CI3  /    
R= 50. 00'

dc         5    
26 p•       O 7q S\    051

000      8. 104 S. F.   `
Q'l, v i/  Jo   

sg. \   
9oi

a"
A` 

u
N

O Jy\  
Be
l    /' L

p     \'    
H6

N..£ 0'   20"  40'      BO"

a     .         5
ti J   e O O

SCUF: 1._.

o-!, o r 28 i 2\    I

P po    ; o, e     yo
c•   7, 043 S. F.  

I 3k3'

soo'    c o..   o;   
y      '   , W i i w.c LEGEND

00\; to    '°,
v f,.     i  . 

1/     ry/ o
Q`, Ps   ' s     p.     p,     dj

o  `,  o.   32 OO SET STANDARD CITY OF LA7HROP MONUMENT WELL STAMPED' PLS 7788°

J,     27 p i 0 ' V yh y    11, 762 S. F. 
Q MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R2P)

S  / S O o

9
8. 871 S. F.    :

G,      
a4` ' L

yh Q.  
G18 yJ•

a o•       Q IAONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R23)
n  ,    y      yti 0} ' 

J
Cl   

yP   y
3 X7

us2 0 os 5 O OG    /  319•___       F   
J W, C.   o SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W17H PLASPC PWG" Pl5 7788°

c

p;    PJ       / b       /  ` O,`\   .`  O 0 SET 2- 1/ 2" IR N PIPE WITH PLASiIC PWG' PLS 7788'

J
y

yV;

y
L̀ . ah/ '    vA,      Op o" o 3/ 4' IRON PIPE WITH PLASPC PWG" P S 7788' PER( R2Y), ANO

AI/ I A I
o

Q4,        Gf, o J•      O(

l     "       

R23) RESPECiIVELY, UNLESS OTHERYASE NOTEU

j/i  Z        ap. ' o/     33 J 2h SEf 7. 0' VAINESS CORNER( W. C.), UNLE55 OiHERWISE NOiED, MEASURED
Sp  

JD        a5   /   
7, 588 S. F.    a qLONC LOT LINE, RADIAL UNE OR PERPENDIWLAR TO S7flEET CENiERLINE

34 Op•    AS NOIE. 3/ 4' x 24' IRON PIPE W17H PLASTIC P UG' PLS 7788'

6, 577 S. F. J

A
Jp    i    ° c.     50o PARCEL A 200. 00'( Ri) MEASURED AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)

OSTAGE 2A        ''
f >     y6?j,y   ' o•  // Jyo    A°

j

y.y' 6y'
ry

SEE SHEET 7 R1)    OENOiES REFERENCE( R1J- SEE REFERENCE llSi ON SHEEi 2
LE EE EASEMENT

s \„     /

y iy  p o      a

y    \    y' i y    .
p,    

Jo   \  f,
9

M- B)   MONUMENT TO BOUNOARY

o,

a` \

J  \ u

A

35 ryy, 
M- CL INT) MONUTAENT i0 CENTERUNE INTQ25ECPON

p.   7. 929 S. F.
y
a      \ 9B         2j,• 1

M
M- M)   MONUTAENT TO MONUMENT

9`

q a'   
r)     ioinp9

o      (   

J   .
l"    `

1
e

z

B)     BOUNDARY

ssS
y' \   \

c-•  

y   ^
b^,     

36
N'

J3.      P. U. E.   PUBLIC UTILItt EASEMENT

r         
oA

8, 707 SF.     1 6 BJ.
o`     

S

0
2h,    S. O. E STORM RAM EASEIAENT

B9
9       , g,  \

O LOT LME

rOp       0. 2,    1 RIGHi- OF- WAYLINE   ,

PARCEI_- C
n

PARCELEoo    .  o` >.  y ss.
a

2 B,

s`,
A'

S,

9• 6g   +

o

6

as       

P. U4E.( ACROSS PARCEL E)  EASEMENT LMETR?.!T 3908 IR221 b, o,   , i .       "'      37 S   

56.. S • y   (` Jy,   2 6, 841 S. F.     

289•" 9'
c,

I
1J

6    

3'% 3' A.`      MONUMENT IINE

C    9z 2,
1'` G l p oo-  4. W.C. N

A sT Yj.     A4     • h°
j m RJ`

J
7

CEN7ERLINE

y i  ''     38 1     ' 3. ) Y ii/ iiiiiii RESTRICTED ACCE55
C`

p`  2'    6. 5655. F.     00 o i zJ.
y\( 

C19 0 $/     1   
O3 EASEMENT REFERENCE NUMBER- SEE SHEET 3

B   \      
J"  

o-      
o l3%3

lc O        o  +. a
o

4,
2

4y
oo W. C.

6°

Ss,/   :  .`'
o

o NOTES
Q  a

oo    

1<
As.  ?     .,

0 39
1. 1. 17' BRA55 OISK STAMPED" PLS 7788" TO BE SET ON CONCRETE

ti  \      
1'
SSJ 59. =^ i SI EWALK lA' INTO iHE RICHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONGATION OF

i\

S       \      /
Zo 4

J
SIDE LOT L1NE5, OR AS NOTED.

2. 5/ 8 REBAR WITH CAP PLS 7788' i0 6E SET AT ALL REAR LOT

S 2g2'     CORNERS, UNLESS OTHERYASE NOiED.

SJ•  
J     j     `   3. SEE SNEET 2 FOR ADOITIONAL NOlES AND RFFERENCES.

20
y 2g,      4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR EXISIING EASEMENTS AND BA515 OF BEARINGS.

J6JS 5. SEE SHEET IS FOR LME AND CURVE TABLES.

NSS    ( 4
ti

20,      BC      

JSJs(
J\

Bs/   \`
C/

SHEET 11 oF 15

86



N85' IS' 45° W TRACT 3991PARCr". L A

SEESHEET7

N66p0A,
Eg4?

0 6910• 

ss ssz RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

VILLAGE V

3'% 3'      y
A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCA EflO, BEING

p W. C.  U A SUBDINDION OF PARCEL 7 OF TRACT 3900( 43 IAhP 52),

ry o y• CITY OF LATHftOP, SAN JOAQUIN COVNTY, CALIFORNIA0 
fl,
r.  NOVEMBER 2018

44
11, 614 SF.    

O

4   NS51.   p      

i/ 
p,

246' 14' 06'( d ji     E N G 1 N E fZ 7 N G

C/

C7       ! zp`
fJ,      c NSSJ'}

o '

B

Q9j,•  / c,

opo
zj°

s s̀,\   

N
y

P AftC EL E

zJ(  
2~ 

6

z o• 

frJ l         

l `:

1   Zscue'_ ao

80'

S
J I Os

o a' x3' ' Op'       
N e•

oiza' c
a

i
3qE

R' 

LEGENDw. c.    z    43            
g

a
o

g O.       I538     '
91•   ,,

5
8.394 S. F.      \ 5 SpA

J     

m SJ•     Op•
p /      

OO SEi S7ANDARD- CITY OF LAiHROP MONUMENT WELL STAMPED' PLS 7788

2.'       3g 1 7py"
iz    ,

O'

LE,` I ti QQ MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R22)
6, 565 S. F.     $       

p 0,

9'
J      

7 o'  f MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( RP3)1
ro`  Op.       ti

o

o       o  o SET 3/ 4° IRON PIPE YniH PLASTiC PLUG" PLS 7789"

Q  °'     4Q a      

6S      '
0

8, 377 S. F.  4,    Qp PARCEL A Q 5ET 2- 1/ 2" IRON PIPE WITH PlAS11C PWC' PL5 7768'

m 6, 500 S. F.          ye     ,`\      

y.
3/ 4 IRON PIPE{ YITH PLASiIC PLUC" PLS 7708' PER( R22), AN

ps o`   q^,  Q
ti

i SEE SHEET 7 R23) RESPECTIVELY, UNlE55 O7HERVNSE NOiED
s,   oo

y.      ,,
5 J ,,o i ppRCEL3 SET 3. 00' W1TNE55 CORNEft( W. CJ, UNLE55 OIHERYASE NOTED, MEASURED

NS,\\   o 0}
y

e`', 4,      , o°
j

V o   p. 66 AC ALONG LOT LME, RA IAL lME OR PERPEN ICULAR TO SiREET CENTEftl1NE
S,
J ZosS\     '`'    00

0           
VtiO       AS NOTED. 3/ 4" x 24' IRON PIPE W1TH PLASTIC PWG' PL5 7788'

B6
ry    

V."'         ti 200. 00'( R1) MEASURED AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( RI)J
sz.       e 41

i a"'   
y,  p           

o,.k     \,(. J
o^   O           4,      ftt)    ENOTES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE L15T ON SHEET 2

ss.
y

7, 78BS. F.      i•       ti i
J

10' J\

29Z Jy.
00

o     o             
n,
e M- B)   MONUMENT TO BOUNOARY

K(
g)   ` 76J 4 Jp.   2î
x    .,(    pLf

M- CL INT) MONUMENT TO CEMERUNE WiER5EC110N

NSSJ,   
e

J o" q  Op
M- M)   MONUMENT TO MONUMENT

20• eB     \\   poj      3       /  
NI6' 96'      T)     TOTAL

JSJ, g,/

0     \   //    

65 2)'

9• W

NB
N85' 08' 08' E 150. 00'( n

8)     BOUN ARY
p
r \      \ 

4D5' S9' W NBBV2' 19" E

A . 65. 00'  65. 00'  
P. II. E.   PUBLIC UilLltt EASEMENT

5/ m SD. E STORM ORAIN EASEIAENT

STAGE 2A N29' 13' O6" E( R)

O IEVEE EASEMENT
LOT 11NE

oo           y     `"  ^ W RIGHT- OF- WAYIJNE

DETAIL D     '(
B \      Oo    \  '      m m

BOUNDARY

SEE THIS SHEET o 
9\   / I\`   _      

EASEMENT LME

MONUMENT LINE
a

7 

41

0

HS:\\ N
R, g.

00' d_  L______–_–_________–_–_– iiiiiiiiii. iii RESTRICTEDACCE55
S,

Zo\     
R.

s0000,
d`  

SCFNAVENUE3 o4 se• i_azs. rT N85' 08' OB" E 261. 83'( T)    m
3g

3 EASEMENi REFERENCE NUTABEft- SEE SHEET 3

J,?`

42'\      /
o/

J   N21' 27' 25E( R) .`,      
55j2'(=

qpd-
JJ' 0458'  o      N85' 8 08" E290. tfi'( M- M)    _

VD        ST
M-  _—'_   I 261. 83_       T

Ssa,•? e•        ,'    
R,  O–     206J5'    

C79 —'   NOTES

FNS
1.      o/

O      \   

h Pi. RC I_ C 630. 0• L92

Ns,,
o\

So O

Qv /'        

TRACT 39 J 1R221

0
a_ 3g' 10' 32'(

q32. 59' T

L90( T)_  __ 7
9–

78__}--'---  

1 SI EWALK 1SOOISIN OT7HEERIGHTS F7WAYTALONGEPRONONGAlION OF
GF

ec SB   ?    
P.ARCEL 3

C82
N85' 08' OH" E 206. 75'( T)  

SIDE LOT LWES, OR AS NOTEO.
NOS' 09' 02" E( R)      2. 5/ 8' REBAR WITH CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LOT

NG( q9/

b     \   

STACE 2A Oy CORNERS, UNLE55 OTHERWISE NOiED.

4S LEVEE EASEIAENT 7. SEE SHEEi 2 FOR AOOITI NAL NOiES AN REFERENCES.

SO    °        4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR E% ISPNG EASEMENTS AND BASIS OF eEARINGS.
R`

6(`
6<

1J
4 /, 

R    
5. SEE SHEET 15 FOR LINE ANO Ct1RVE TABLES.

Jy  00,    '
o  570 

bJzpF(

RQ
JBSS a

JJ
p. a\\

l   
2.  pqs b4s  

DET ASLAD       ,° Ozs,(\
J'

s\

a<.,

79
z(J

SHEET 1 G OF 1 5

87



NOTES TRACT 3991
I. 1. 17' BRA55 ISN SiAMPED' PLS 7788" TO BE SET ON CONCRETE

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2ASI EWALK I. 00' MTO THE RIGHi-0E- WAY, ALONG PROLONGAPON OF

SIDE LOT LINES, OR AS NOTF.

PARCEI_ 2      SFFSyFFr14
Z 

ORN RS, AUNLE 5 OTHER'

MSE7NOTEDO
BE SET AT ALL REAR LOT VILLAGE V

30'     3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AODIPONAL NOiES AND REFERENCES.       A POR710N OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEING
N

zs'   4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR E% ISTING EASEMENTS AND BA515 OF BEARINGS.     A SUB M ION OF PARCEL 7 OF 7RACT 3908( 43 M& P 52),8 W
Op O,      

J       
5. SEE SHEET 15 FOR LINE AND CURVE TABLES.  CIiY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

N 737p8.      NOVEMBER 2018

3 N7FR O.p.    .     ?  . j
UNf   

o`

WIDf SD.f.    . I m
o O I

PARCEL D       N ti          39 7RAC7 39a9 IR231
E N G 7 N R i N G

9. oas s. v. ti/  40
P. LLE.      o pm

N z' sr
41 N

0'   20'  40'       80'

B W
JOp

o    

2   / NI7' 0      SZ
SCPLE: 1'= 40'

PNfCFL?.      
N Zs be•

µ, o    °'  

I           

43       4O

i SEE sHEET

7
Wp pp

NE
38.

Q a ^/ ;           `

95_ Z819po,    Mqq
NA as

LEGEND
f NE EqgAn

N
E   / o-  

o d 5 2'
4a•     DR VE OO SET STANDARD CITY OF LATHROP M NUMENT WELL STAMPFD' PL5

7798' o EMfM1' T            " NI6' 03' 18' E R  /, o dcJ• Q/ 3)"-25J36'
M N) p, l C= q M)( Rp31 OO MONUMENT TO BE SET PER(

R22)
30. 00' ef 3p:

00'  b  ` 
R 2̀859. 00• d,J, O

C_  N11' S6' OB' E

ft

o jf MONUMENT TO BE SET PER(

R2J)

3°(,
5jp4 Ig 96     _       "       o SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE W1TH PLASTIC PWC" PLS

7788" y
WI C97    _SET 2- 1/ Y' RON PIPE W17H PLASPC PWG' PLS

77BB° la 3/ 4' IRON PIPE 4A1H PLASPC PLUC' PLS 7788" PER( R22),
AND

a   /N13' 01' 41" E
R          , Im IM R27) RESPECTIVELY, UNLESS O7HERYASE

NOTED

y

m SET 3. 00' W11NE55 CORNER( W. C.),UNLE55 07HERWISE NDTED,

MEASURED 30,
pp• ry9   _  a ALONC LOT LINE, RADIAL LINE OR PERPENDICULAR TO STREET

CEN7ERLME 0
P. E pJ, Z,

W J400' ./N10' S0' 34' E R AS NOTED. J/ 4' x 24' IRON PIPE N1TH PLASTIC PLUG° PLS7788° U N78' 

S
N  ` .

s'  200. 00'( R)MEASURED AN REC4R0 ATA PER REFERENCE(

R1) m io

m   .^  N
mh ,   , W   R1)    DENOTES REFERENCE( Ri)-SEE REFERENCE LIST ON SHEET

2 M- B)   MONUMENT TO
60UNDARY

p'

p
Ey/           .o 0

N ^   ' m   2     M- CL INT)MONUMENT TO CENiERLWE

IN7ERSECPON
N79'

S513"

E ry= 
O    N05' OB' OS' E 150. 00'(

i)    -      
bg,

6' M- M)   MONIIMENT TO AI

NUMENT Q/     T)     

TOTAL
PARCEL3       /    _        %     e)     

BOUNDARY 2. 66
AC P. U. E PU9L1C UTILITY

EASEIAENT
3p 0'    

P202
AC4 SA. E STORM ORAM

EASEMENT

LOTLINE
I   z RICHT- OF- WAY

LINE I N83' S370' E(
R)     

BOUNOAftY
J ,1a' P. U. E.  0' I

m EASEIAEM

LINE

y 
N        I PARCEL
5

I MONUMENT

LME- N85' OB' OB' E 261. 83( T)      
ol

A     TRACT 39D8IR22)

CEN7ERLME m j 28—
Z• O

y / RESTRICTED

ACCE55
R7 N85' OB' 09" E 290. 16'( M- M)     ENSLEN

AVENU 83.

40   h i',,0/ y

4 O EASEUENT REFERENCE NUTABER- SEE SHEEf

3 2     20675'   
CBO N04' 25' 18' WR.   lo

5v  m c s( T)       T9T---  Ce     

0^"

9     PARCEL
4

o

C-_'_-_. D'      N35' 42' 01"

ER
N N85' OB'oe E 2a6. 75'( T)       C54 27 N

SJ7'     IEVEEE SEMENTO N18' 23' 29° E(

R) 4p W
Z 09'      ( gq yOL

1  `N22' 09' S5° W R R= 79'      N) 57J'   CB

pe'N0935' S2' E( R) R=
609' 4p' W

y
p9,     N50' 2BY7" E R 3      PARCEL

5

U OsracE zn icv E css     \
cs     3908

IR22) EASEMENT
3 u N18' 48' S3" W R R= SD'       

1C53 N18' 43' 47' E( R) R=

500'       oeini E    
css  \         PARCEL

C
P SEE THIS SHEET           DETAIL E TRACT 39D2

IR22) 7R. AC7 39 a
IR221 NOi TO

SCAIE SHEET 13 oF 1-

88



TRACT 3991
s RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

P
VILLAGE V

o ' YJi, \    A POftTION OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEING

SJf\ 4
q SUBDIN ION OF PARCEL 7 OF 7RACT 3908( 43 M& P 52),

F g

R \  SFFS CITY OF LAiHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

w— o—/'
o yFFT

NOVEMBER 2018

1'
J2p\ B

SZ6fR   \\    \ k,
Z       

3 0/       
tW

cR Rz
sBpo.   

S

Podcss\    
ry

o Q ENG1N Ef{1NG
d s.      Q

00
4

zj'<,

0

2 N
PARCEL

1 \ 90
4

J

Jg.    ti/ Q       0'   40'  40'       BO'

o

M   e,
s4

7
r

2 0 O
scue: r= ao'

O
c B

B?,

r0'
rI 1

i  

h`'  PARCEL 5 0 \ 

s    9Y
9`'

3BB..   
150 \\\ D' J65y, 46/       

Z.'    fi. 683 S. F.    ^   
F      \\ \ 3

R1iP  `'
6   °°'  

36po•   
3'% 3'  

C9 o      0 .      . W
O W. C.  

2
o.  

W-    

h

48 o
m

rys
s?

SJ.       .    6, 683 S. F.        

h     '   :.

o      \       PARCEL 2

9Rj"
os      _      cyJ Rzs

4\=

y    TRAC73989 IR231
T 98

y a       ;  o

n, 
6l a 6. 693 5.(.     $' y.       

J

4qzg•       Z 4?   ,  R
zs N

s

yJ01
f'      

2

yW

o

4\\ 61`JOg
T 

3q4
FR    

JBao
4

O•

p534

LEGEND

s' y fi, 693 iF.    

o

d'

S71Z3, 18z3p,    OO SET STAN ARD CITY OF LATHROP MONUMENT WELL STAMPED' PLS 7788°

N6?. 1'      2'     2q
d' 4• p. N/     QQ MONIIMENT i0 6E SET PER( R22)     

J9o    
h     45

R`

zssep' M B•(` 18
6J•   

N7g18Z4p
ER rv If MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R23)

N
s

J
2ry

6, 683 S. F.    

o

d

5Z4s4'    
d

s'

sOq•` \ 7z3jER o, N1fi' 07' 31' E A       o SET 3 4' IRON. PIPE NTH PLAS7IC PLUG' PLS 7788°

6qb5,      h;    
zQss4       ? 95gsYM M_ 

60. 05'    = 
Q SET 2- 1/ 2 IRON PIPE WITH PLASPC PLUG' PLS 7788

W
e B    /        • 3/ 4 IRINJ PIPEµ1TH PLASPC PLUG' PLS 7798° PER( RP2), ANO s

h R23) RESPECTI4fLY, UNLESS O7HERtNSE NO7ED N6SJ

SJ      
SET

3.00' W1TNE55 CORNER( W. C.),UNLE55 OTMERNISE NO7E0, MEASUREO 9
y,   0 µ.     

ALONG LOT L1NE, RAOIAL LINE OR PERPENDICULAR TO SiREET CEN1ERlINE

PARCEL2 N18705)  AS NOiED. 3/ 4' x 24' IRON PIPE WI7H PLASPC PLUC' PLS 7788'

ysss'' 
74, 423 S. F.    

ER  •  

2 /    200. 00'( RI) MEASURED AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)

30. p

y/////     

R1)    DENOlES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE LIST ON SHEET 2

PARCEL A

hses
53'      S

P.
uE   

I  \ 

l B)   MONUAIENT TO BOUNDARY

7370 jy
SEE SHEET 7 46

A7- CL INT) MONUMENT TO CENiERLINE INTERSECPON

h'
6SSB   ' A1- M)   MONUMENT TO MONUMENT

BW H /  Q- .`      T)     TOTAL

B)     BOUNDARY

r   
Q  P. U. E.   PUBUC UPLItt EASEMENT

p 
S. D. E STORAI RAIN EASEIAENT

0 P
E!

lA LOT LME            

NOTES o     =       RIGHT- OF- WAY 11NE

N)    BOUNDARY

I. 1. 17' BRA55 DISK STAMPED PLS 7788 TO BE SET ON CONCREIE v z$ j Og} y       /  ..
SIDEWALK 1. 00' INTO THE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONC PROLONGATION OF Op•   /  p m       EASEMENT LINE

SI E LOT LINES, OR AS NOIED.       o MONUMENT UNE
2. 5/ 8° REBAR YATH CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT ALL REAR LOT

CORNEftS, UNLESS OIMERWISE NOIED.   PARCEL D p CENTERIJNE

3. SEE SHEEL 2 FOR A DITIONAL NOTES AN REFERENCES. 2 RES7RICIED ACCE55
4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR EXISPNG EASEMENTS AND BASIS OF BEARINGS.

5. SEE SHEET 15 FOR IJNE AND CURVE TABIES. 3 EASEMENT REFERENCE NUMBER- SEE SHEET 3

S       yEEr s

sHEer 14 oF 15

89



LINEAN CURVETABLESFORCOURSESSHOWNONSHEEfS77HR0UGH150NLY

TRACT 3991
LINE TABLE UNE TABLE LME TABLE LINE TABLE LINE iABLE

RIVER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A
LINE N  IRECTION LENCTH IJNE g DIRECTION LENCTH 11NE 8 DIRECPON LENCTH LINE B OIRECPON LENGTH LINE  IftECTION LENGTH

VILLAGE V
L1 N56' 07' 17' W 13. 47'   L21 N09' 01' S7" E 34. 98'   L41 N78' 01 24' E 53.BI'   Lfi1 N48' 01' 13° W 67. 53'   L81 NO2' 48' 17° E 35. 74'

L2 N79' S5' 13" E 66. 16'   L22 N85' 59' 54" W 35. 71'   L42 N55' 30' S7° W 65. 00'   Lfi2 N4977' 14' W 67. 53'   L82 N35' 4' 18• W 5977.     
A PORTION OF RANCHO El PESCA ERO, BFJNG

A SUBOINOION OF PAftCEL 7 OF iRACT 3908( 43 MkP 52),

L3 N88' 02' 19° E 65. 00'   L23 N30' 76' 36° W 37. 87'   L43 N53' S8' 32' W 65. 00'   Lfi3 N50' S3' 15' W 67. 53'   LB7 N35} 4' S1' W 95A5'   CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

NOYEMBER 2018

L4 N84' 05' S4' W 65. 00   l24 N1011' 37" W 41. 73'   L44 N0771' 26° E 39. 93'   L64 N5279' IS' W 67. 53'   L84 N450fi' 37' W 96. 5i'

LS N76' 46' 44' W 6527'   L25 N7871' 24" E 42. 93'   L45 N45' I6' 20° E 65. 00'   l65 N53' 45' 16' W 67. 53'   L85 N52' 35' S3' W 35. 95'

L6 N39R8' 40" E 106. 31   L26 N27' S2' 42' W 35. 74'   L46 N38' 17' 10° E 57A5 l66 N59' 47' O6" W 67. 53'   Le6 N57' 03' IS' W 88. 46'

ENGIN E fZ7NG
U MS' 37' 40' W 73. 27'   L27 N44' 47' 40' W 2U.00'   L47 N10' 48' 38' E 65. 00'   L67 N6173' 07' W 67. 53'   L87 N52' 752fi' W 19. Ofi'

LB N8770' OB W 34. 98'   L28 N55' 31' 20' W  ] 0.00'   L48 N09' 03' 37' W 53. 82'   L69 Nfi239' 07' W 67. 53'   L98 N57' 03' 15' W 62. 56'

L9 NOS58' 47' E 35. 07 L29 N56' 23' 21' E 35. 02'   L49 N28' 38' 37' W 27. 55'   L69 N64' OS' 08' W 67. 53'   L89 N56' 48' 15' W 203. 44'    259
LIO N48' 15' S4° E I6. 47'   L30 N38' 09 34' E 21. 96'   L50 N44' O6' 56' W 65. 00   l70 Nfi571' 09' W 67. 53'   L90 N85' 08' 08° E 114. 88'       

B'       

L11 N56' 49' S8° E 16. 67   L31 N71' O6' 02' W 10. 34'   L51 N65' 21' 23' W 37. 49'   L71 N6fi' S7' 10° W 67. 53'   l91 N79' S6' S1' E 10. 52  Jj•  NJS>,
9g.   0.

L12 N96' 30' 17' W 36. 10'   L32 N38' 09' 39' E 21. 66'   l52 N77' 41' 09' W 71. 13'   L72 N68' 23' 10' W 67. 53'   L92 NBS' OB' OB° E 23. 17' fR
q     .

O i

LI3 N 0' 41' 10' W 35.94'   L3J N22' 00' 43' E 65. OD'   L53 N65' 28' S6' E 65. 0'   L73 N65' S8' 18' W 4fi. 83'   L93 N89' S5' 45' W 925'   J?%r  
L14 N79' 28' 40' E 35. 36'   L34 N11' 09' 51" W BO. SD'   L54 N51' 39' 3YE 34. 76'   U4 N5607' 17" W 4. 91'   L94 N75' 37' 40' W 18. 85'

L15 N13' 39' 07' W 37. 23'   L35 N33' 23' 19 W 59. 93'   L55 N49' 34' 02" E 65. IB'   L75 N56' 07' 17° W e. 6fi'   L95 N33' S2' 43° E 7. 35' 

Jj
L16 N61" 36' 05' E 35. 02'   L36 N607552' W 65.0'   L56 N68' 49' 20" W 75. 9'   L76 N69' 2T 34' E 37. 14'  

ary

e,

h

L17 N32' 31' 05W 35A2'   L37 N85' IS' 45' W 69. 10'   l57 N74' OB' 29' W 64. 99'   L77 N33' SY43' E 3892'

L18 N11' 07' 17° W 19. 67'   L38 N66' 00' 42' E 94. 7D'   L5fi N3} 77' 04' W 79. 74'   L7B N3678' 29" E 8. 10'  P

OOI
G

PARCEL I
h;       a

L19 N2715' OS' W 34. 98'   L39 N3428' 40' E 65. 00'   L59 N45' OS' S8' W 72. 59'   L79 N54' OS' 17' W 11. 51'
op.      ryp

L20 N85' Sfi' 2B° W 35. 74'   L40 N23' S7' J4 E 66. 11'   L60 N46" 35 12" W 67. 53   L80 NJO' 03' S3' E 7. 55'      
0

P
9'

O

h

0.  

s F
CURVE TABLE CURVE TABLE CURVE iABLE CURVE TABLE 2'       o.

CURVE RADIUS OELTA LENC7H CURVE RADIUS DELTA LENGIH CURVE RADIUS  ELTA LENG7H CUR4E RADIUS DELTA LENGTH
99 N

Ct 17. 00 66' 14' 07' 19. 65    C23 53. 00 3352' S4' 31. 34'   C45 2569. 00 172' OS'  S}. 85'    C67 2578. 0  ' y' 42'  67. 70'      
NSJ'

aS•     
OF.

S     S6 `   o i

OC2 47. 00 3B' 01' 27°  31. 79'    C24 53. 00 58' 01' S6' S3. 68'   C46 2820. 00 I' 07' 04'  S5. 02'    C68 2538.00 131' 42'  67. 70'      

s', s   

E
tE

vN

titi$'

M1 

o  

cB,,+ (`'
o'

C8B

CB9C3(
nC   ///

C3 47. 00 45' 40 48` 37. 47'    C25 12. 00 67' S9' i6"  1424   C47 1500. 00 271' 29'  S7. 37'    C69 2578. 00 1' 12' S2'  S3. 80'    JqJ)
10

2
y' _' 

z9

oRZSBI      9

C4 2598.00 1' 09' 32'  S2. 55'    C26 53. 00 91' S4' S1'  BSA3'   C48 1500. 04 270' 17'  56. 85    C70 1470. 00 3' 39' S5'  94. 04' 
p``

N7b'

S2q4E

y,
h a

C Q.
2 s` 2<"     ] 2. 14

q
4 1J.

C5 73. 00 52' 48' 00° 67. 27'    C27 fi09. 00 4' 46' 28'  S0. 75'   C49 600. Q0 0' 2520'  4. 42'    C71 1470. 0 3' 15' 02"  83. 40'
29    +",

0Q4; ,      2'       ,"'     _  q42
6J,    e a 2

0

9'(.

C6 47. 00 7' 79' 21'  628'    C28 73. 00 7J' S6' 35°  94. 21'   C5  50. 00 194' 46' I6' Ifi9. 97'   C72 990. 00 4' S1' 26"  83. 08'  q',   A`      b'2J
PARCELC i ti o ° B•

C7 B7. 00 2375 22°  35. 31'    C29 47. 00 1952' 3Y 16. 77'    C51 500. 00 070' 15'   1. 49'    C73  741. 00 9' S1' 46'  299. 69' Z e\ T

CURVE TABLE 0. 4i AC

CB 73. 00 26' 46' 23" 34. 11'    C30 87. 00 23' 1522' J5. 3I'   C52 2538. 00 1' 31" 41'  67. 69'   C74 500. 00 7' 29' 16'  65. 34   
CURVE RADIUS DELTA LENGTH Ns64,   P E 

P 2~ ry  h"'   

C9 73. 00 q5' S8 51' 58. 58    C31 47. 00 45' 40 48 37. 4Y C53 200. 00 4' 31' 3B'  15. 80'    C75 I740. 0 4' 2Y22" 135. 33'   sry.      m,    20
C69 47. 00 ZS' 48' 11"  21. 17'      

1j6 4, Q /•
C70 2198. 00 7' S5' 02°  73. 55'    C32 1470. 00 0' 01' S4'  O. B1'    C54 73. 00 4033' 24'  S1. 67'    C76 500. 00 4' 27' 49°  38. 95' g9•         

C90 2598. 00 1' 26' 00'  64. 99'  p D4 W` 2/ n      •
CI1 980. OD 253' 23'  49. 43'    C33 87. 00 23' IS' 22" 75. 31'   C55 50. 00 69' 17' 10"  60. 46'    C77 630. 00 11' 01' 15°  I21. 18'  

R( 9S
a 2     y

C91 2599. 00 176' 01°  65. 01'      y oh

C12 12. 00 79V2' 70' 16. 55'    C74 97. 00 23' 15' 21'  5. 31'   C56 50. 00 125' 29' O6' 109. 51'   C78 500. 00 5' 11' 17°  45. 27'   
C92 2598. 00 i zs' oi'  ss.or PAIZCEL A

h

PARCEL 5
C13 50. 00 S23' S4'  2. 97'    C35 2538. 00 1U9' 45°  51. 49'   C57 253B. 00 131' 42'  67. 70'    C79 500. 00 4' S6' 07'  43. 07'   

C93 2598. 00 1' 26' 00'  64. 99'

C14 50. 00 61" 35' 42" 53. 75'    C36 2100. OD  ' 46' 29°  65. 05'   C58 2538. 00 1' 31' 44'  67. 70'    C80 100. 00 4' 29' 33"  7. 84'    
C94 2598. 00 1' 26' 01'  65. 01'      9j,5y.,

C15 50. 00 48' 46' 12' 4256'    C37 2568. 00 1' 47' 18'  80. 15 C59 1538. 00 I91' 31'  S2. 80'    C81 609. 00 14' 01' 10' 149. 01'   
C95 2ffi9. 00 I' 0534"  53. 95'

CI6 50. 00 fi5' 40' 42' S7. 32'    C38 4568.00 I' 47' 18'  80. 15'   C6a 53. 0 39' 19' 24°  3638'   C82 630. 00 10' 00' S4' I10. 12'   
C96 2829. 00 ros' aa•  sa. ea' 

DETAIL F
599J

C77 50. 00 66' 47' 36° 58. 29'    C39 25fi8. 00 1' S4' S1'  85. 79'   C61 53. 00 52' 35' 27'  48. 65'    C63 5 0. 00 4' 21' 23'  38.0Y
NOi TO SCALE

6 ps,
C97 2879. 00 I' OS' 34'  S3. 95' FROM SHEET 8)     Sj, y'

C1B 17. 00 66' I4'O6' 19. fi5'    C40 2568.00 1' S4' S1'  85. 79'   C62 2538. 00 I' 00' 03'  44. 33'    C84 53. 00 91' 54' 50' 85. 02'   
C98 2568. 00 193' 39'  S5. 02'

C79 1470. 00 090' 24'  4A5'    C41 2568. 00 196' 36'  57. 22'   C63 4538.00 1' 31' 41'  67. 69'    C85 2850. 00 I' 31' 76"  75. 94'

C20 17Aa 66' 14' O6"  I9. 65'    C42 25fi8. 00 I' 15' 15 Sfi. 21'   C64 2579. 00 I' 31' 42  fi7. 70'    C96 fi5. 00 51' 08' 48' 5BD7

C21 50. 00 2534' 43° 2232'    C43 2568.00 175' 15'  S621'   C65 2539.00 131' 44'  67. 70'    C97 65. 00 476' 49'  4. 86'

C22 SU. 00 89' 02' SB' 77. 71'    C44 25fi8.00 1Y3' 39'  55. 02'   C66 Y538. 00 131' 47'  67. 69'    C88 65. 00 39' 30' 33' 44. 92'

sHeer 15 oF 15

90



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3991 Village" V"

Page 10

EX IISI' I' B

TRACT 3991 Al TI) VILLAGE " V" Al2EA

91



v

p.P
r'       VILLH( Ut

00
o a   L E C

Q

PS

S
O o

9.       

9  

9G F,fl
c`  

PPOP\ 
l

sT9F

G\\

GO

P    
0

9/
G

9s

2OSA
99

9y V LLAG CC
2
90 9r

P  oJQ,'

C 9GF s

o

PQPGOQ     
G

OP      
G9l

G

Q
O

TRACT 3991      
a'"

9%''    

e
sy

oUqr y0O FR
o STRFBT

o

BUCT..   HANAN CO

TRACT 3991\   
VILLAGE V  `

Q      .       TRACT 3992
G

J I LAKE 11

O' -    
i

P
S o

Q VILLAGE U

i
1

Fiys!<
cy 2  

1

F

p

y

TRACT 3992 o
U

J

T/    

s   

r

EXHIBIT " B"

VILLAGE V

VICNITY MAP
SEPTEMBER 2018

92



z

Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)
Tract 3991 Village" V" .

Page 11

EXHIBIT C

CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1.       The Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to
do business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no
less than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least$ 1, OQ0, 000 for each occurrence and$ 2, 000, 000 in the

aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy
endorsements, executed by an authorized official of the insurer( s). All parties to the Subdivision

Improvement Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be
attached to the certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability
arising out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or
the equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that" the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary
insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in
excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to
any loss.

c. Include a, statemerit that, " the insurer will provide to the City of Lathrop at least
thirty( 30) days. prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." Tlie above language

can be included on the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d.       The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.
r

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at

least five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially
available at reasonable rates.

93



Page 1 of 2

e--y'      DATE( MMIDD/ YYYY)
sJ CERTIFICATE OF LIA ILITY IIVSUR IVCE o9, o, izo18

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AF1D THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:` If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement( s).

PRODUCER
CONTACT
NAME:

Willis Insurance Services of California, Inc. PHONE
1- 877- 945- 7378

FAX
1- 888- 467- 2378

c/ o 26 Century Blvd
AIC No Ext:      A/ C No:

E- MAIL
certificates@willis. com

P. O. Box 305191 ADDRESS:

Nashville, TTI 372305191 USA INSURER( S) AFFORDINGCOVERAGE NAIC

INSURERA: United Specialty Insurance Company 12537

INSURED
INSURERB: Starr Surplus Lines Insurance Company 13609

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W Stewart Rd INSURER C:

Lathrop, CA 95330 INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: w n39343 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
7ypE OF INSURANCE

ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LIMITSLTR INSD NND POLICYNUMBER MMIDDIYYYY MM/ DD/ YYYY

X COMMERCIALGENERALLIABILITY
EACHOCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000

CLAIMS- MADE  OCCUR
DAMAGETORENTED
PREMISES Ea occurrence    $

MED EXP( Any ane person)    $
Y ATN- SF1811649P 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021

PERSONAL& ADVINJURY    $ 1, 000, 000

GEN' LAGGREGATELIMITAPPLIESPER:   GENERALAGGREGATE      $ 2, 000, 000

POLICY ECT   LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/ OPAGG  $ 2, 000, 000

OTHER: 

AUTOMOBILELIABILITY COMBINEDSINGLELIMIT    $
Ea accident

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY( Pe person)  $

OWNED SCHEDULED
BODILY INJURY( Per accident) $

AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON- OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE      _ $
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident

UMBRELLA LIAB
OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000

A

x EXCESSLIAB CLAIMS- MADE
BTN1814514W 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021

AGGREGATE 3, 000, 000

DED RETENTION$   

WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
N

STATUTE ER

ANYPROPRIETOR/ PARTNER/ EXECUTIVE E. L. EACH ACCIDENT
OFFICER/ MEMBEREXCLUDED? N A

MandatoryinNH)     E. L. DISEASE- EAEMPLOYEE $

If yes, describe under.
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT  $

B Excess Liability 1000024047 03/ 19/ 2018 03/ 19/ 2021 Each Occ/ Agg:  7, 000, 000. 00

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES ( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

RE: Tract 3991 River Islands- Stage 2A Village V.

The City of Lathrop, its of£icers, City Council, boards and commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents

are Additional Insureds as respects the General Liability policy.

The Insurance coverage a££ orded by this policy shall be Primary Insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

The City of Lathrop
AUTHORIZEDREPRESENTATIVE

390 Towne Centre Drive j f/+

Lathrop, CA 95330 y
O 1988- 2016 ACORD CORPORATIOM. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2016/ 03)       The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR iD: 16707142 TCH: BSS9OB

94



AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:

LOC#:

ADDITIONd4L REMARaCS SCHEDl1LE Page 2 ot'   2

AGENCY NAMEDINSURED

Willis Insurance Services of California, Inc.
River Islands Development, LLC

73 W Stewart Rd

POLICY NUMBER Lathrop, CA 95330

See Page 1

CARRIER NAIC CODE

See Page 1 See Page 1 EFFECTIVE DATE: See Page 1

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

FORM NUMBER:     25 FORM TITLE: Certificate of Liability Insurance

officers, employees, and agents. Any insurance or self- insurance maintained by the City o£ Lathrop, its of£icers,
employees, or agents shall be in excess of the insurance afforded to the Named Insured by this policy and shall Not
Contribute to any loss as respects the insured' s operations.

l

ACORD 101 ( 2008/ 01)   O 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

SR ID: 16707142 BATCH: 858908 CERT: W7439343

95



POLICY NUMBER: ATN- SF1811644P COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 10 04 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR

CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s) Or

Organization( s)   Location( s) Of Covered Operations

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards River Islands @ Lathrop Development
and commissions and members thereof, its

employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these
include as an additional insured the person( s)  or additional insureds, the following additional exclusions
organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only with apply:
respect to liability for" bodily injury", " property damage" This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or
or " personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole property damage" occurring after:
or in part, by:   1. All work, including materials, parts or equipment

1. Your acts or omissions; or furnished in connection with such work, on the

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf;     project( other than service, maintenance or repairs)

to be performed by or on behalf of the additional
in the pertormance of, your ongoing operations for insured( s) at the location of the covered opera# ions

the additional insured( s)   at the location( s) has been completed; or

designated above. 2. That portion of" your work" out of which the

However:   
injury or damage arises has been put to its
intended use by any person or organization other

1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only than another contractor or subcontractor engaged

applies to the extent permitted by law; and in performing operations for a principal as a part of
2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is the same project.

required by a contract or agreement, the insurance
afforded to such additional insured will not be broader

than that which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional insured.

l
CG 20 10 04 13 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2

96



C.       With respect to the insurance afforded to 2.  Available under the applicable Limits of

these additional insureds, the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;
Section III— Limits Of Insurance: whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional insured is
This endorsement shall not increase the applicable

required by a contract or agreement, the most we
Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1.  Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 20 10 04 13

97



UiVITED SPECIALTY INSURANGE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMEfVT CHA NGES THE POLICY— PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07

IVamed Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN- SF1811644P

PRIM 4RY AND NON- COMTRIBUTING IfVSURANCE

Third Party's Sole fVegligence)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

PRODUCTS/ COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to Section IV  —  Commercial General Liability Conditions,
Paragraph 4:

Section IV: Cornmercial General Liability Conditions

4.     Other Insurance:

d.  Notwithstanding the provisions of sub- paragraphs a, b, and c of this paragraph
4, with respect to the Third Party shown below, it is understood and agreed that
in the event of a claim or  "suit"  arising out of the Named Insured' s sole
negligence, this insurance shall be primary and any other insurance maintained
by the additional insured named as the Third Party below shall be excess and
non- contributory.

The Third Party to whom this endorsement applies is:

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council,   _
boards and commissions and members thereof,

its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Absence of a specifically named Third Party above means that the provisions of
this endorsement apply " as required by written contractual agreement with any
Third party for whom you are performing work."

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this
Endorsement and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 016 11 10 07 Page 1 of 1

98



i

UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07

Named Insured: River Islands Development, LLC

Policy Number: ATN- SF1811644P

THIRD PARTY CANCELLATION NOTICE

This endorsement shall not serve to increase our limits of insurance, as described in

SECTION III - LIMITS OF INSURANCE.

This endorsement modifies Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

If we cancel this policy for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail
notification to the persons or organizations shown in the schedule below( according to the

number of days listed below) once the Named Insured has been notified.

If we cancel this coverage for nonpayment of premium, we will mail a copy of such written
notice of cancellation to the name and address below at least 10 days prior to the effective

date of such cancellation.

Our failure to provide such advance notification will not extend the policy cancellation
date nor negate cancellation of the policy.

SCHEDULE

Name and Address of Other Person/ Orqanization Number of Davs Notice

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and 30 Days

commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this Endorsement
and remain unchanged.

USIC VEN 078 03 11 07 Page 1 of 1

99



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3991 Village" V"         

Page 12

EXHIBIT D

COHEN/PARADISE/ STEWART REHABILITATION MAP

100



p.`  .    I i GE

I     '      
y..<.    

s     r
t#'

i..    

f

f
z

a

N». 
a''."    "'.  .   v'     

j:

tk er_t-''" . ti,:
a ...,  I- ,--.""      _:'

n e

j
k      .-    

d

3

r"', 
Y    fe- c,    r 1   ,          ...      t..:-   i

i Y
fie

fi"

j

t:  ,' "  ,
c

m,     z r J, i jK       _
sw  '      

k    )

3
w

a  ,
S

c`' "

n,

R,  

w

Y kd ir e
w..... 

a

r

k 

1 1   '      .    -.

a   w
s   

t . r      . ,  ...     .       

z         =    ,.
r

rt_'f,_ .  wfr

1

b,
nutt

p
M

E u'is+ av- s seu y

7 xo. aU t       `     -. r"_

r     .    a

W.      e
a``       

sa r

P

5       1 P'.,    ,-;   ;<

a'      t"

R

s.      t'
p=

t 3"

t

s_' 

x
ch+

q`   
t

s,   .   
t

t               y

1  
E           '..    4,      

r    .  .,.     

P,       

M1.

i
vy'

Y

I' .   j   .
1      #:      :   3r  _   r, 3'   9-` 6y ."

r"}

f   
t       ` ' +         

r:       

y

4 

s 

f.

i'             ," ti.       ``` _   
i+  l   }, 3A',

g

3

y

v

x       6•• 
4

i' 3; ar n-       3g  \       v s_`.    <,      f      _    
ja.. _   _    B   

M.me....'.

a  i

f

As

i

y        ' H
Y    .      

T,,   .' `:§ . .s

y_     

i       
k

LEGEND t   ..

EXI III3l I ....ROADWAY TO BE FULL REPAIRED, PAVED AND OPEN TO GENERAL PUBLIC a  ^  .,,` ki.    

1 ROADWAYTOBEREPAIREDASALL- WEATHEREMERGENCYVEHICLEACCESSONLY R ADWAYREHABILITAI IONEXHIBIT

tI
V/// \\\\\

VII
RIVER ISLANDS

COMMUNITYATSOUTH RIVER BEND PROJECTAREA
a    -       

1.— 1

cirv oF nrrtaoe s. ti' lonp iv co ntv c, v eo v n

w

nnn

101



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3991 Village" V"

Page 13

EXHIBIT E

UNFII TISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

102



J•

N !

r l... L. 

E' NG1 NEEftI NG

ENGINEER' S BOND ESTIMATE September4, 2018

COST TO COMPLETE Job No.: 25502- 96

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 2A

VILLAGE V( 86 LOTS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Catch BasinTops(, 0% Completion)/ A 7_       1 LS   $   51, 000. 00  $ 51, 000. 00

2 Handicap Ramps; Completion) y y_ 1 LS   $   36, 400. 00  $ 36, 400. 00

3 Joint Trench fg% Completion) QO' B.      1 LS   $  316, 070. 00  $       316, 070. 00

4 3" AC Paving ( o% Completion)   1 LS   $   56, 700. 00  $ 56, 700. 00

5 4. 5" AC Paving ( 0% Completion)       1 LS   $  319, 680. 00  $       319, 680. 00

6 Storm Drain& Sanitary Sewer Manholes and Gate Valves Raising Iron 85 Completion)    1 LS   $   28, 500. 00  $ 28,500. 00

7 Set Water Boxes and SSCO Boxes s Completion)  Q%,       1 LS   $   43, 000. 00  $ 43, 000. 00

8 Survey Monuments( o/ Completion)     1 LS   $    5, 700. 00  $ 5, 700. 00

9 Signing& Striping ( 0% CompletionJ 1 LS   $   26,400. 00  $ 26, 400. 00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE $       883, 450. 00

Notes:

1) Estimate for cost to complete based on contractor' s cost to complete summary sheet and backup documents for Village V.

3   

I 6       

hn        2 ,

I , °  ' '

6200 STOfVERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUfTE 330. PLEASANTON. CA 945SS • P. 925. 223. 8340 • F: 209. 571. 246G

T: 125502- River IslandslPhase 96- Village VIEXCEL1Cos[ EsGma[ e\ Cost To Comple[ e12 01 8- 0 9- 04 Village V Bond Estimale. zlsUmprovements

103



NG7NE£{ t1NG

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE October 29, 2018   ,

VILLAGE V( 86 LOTS)    Job No.: 25510. 76

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREETSCAPE

1 Landscapellrrigation Improvements 7, 244 SF    $    5. 00  $  36, 220.00

2 Bouy 1 LS    $      10, 000. 00  $  10, 000. 00

Subtotal Streetscape 46, 220. 00

POCKET PARK

1 Landscapellrrigation Improvements 50,453 SF    $    8. 00  $ 403, 624. 00

Subtotal Pocket Park 403, 624. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000)  $ 449, 844. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, frontyard/ pkwy strip landscape
and irrigation, docks, steps/ stairs to dock, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P: 925.223.8340 • F: 209.579. 2466

T: 25510- River Islands\ To OtherslRl\ Ramon\ EST- 2018- 10- 26-Stage 2A Village V-Engineer's Estimate-25510. 76\VILLAGE V

104



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3991 Village" V"

Page 14

EXHI IT F

VILLAGE " V" IIVIPROY 1VIEleTTS ENGINEER' S ESTIMATE

105



i
ENG1NE fi7NG

ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST March 7, 2018

VILLAGE V( 86 LOTS)  '    Job No.: 25502- 96

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS

r

CITYOF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREET WORK

1 .   Fine Grading 242, 900 SF   $   0. 45  $ 109, 305. 00

2 3" AC Paving 34, 500 SF    $   1. 50  $  51, 750. 00

3 4. 5" AC Paving 132, 800 SF    $   2. 25  $ 298, 800. 00

4 6" Aggregate Base 34, 500 SF    $   0. 90  $  31, 050. 00

5 8" Aggregate Base 132, 800 SF   $   1. 20  $ 159, 360. 00

6 Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)      4, 030 LF    $  15. 00  $  60, 450. 00

i
7 R.olled Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)       5, 930 LF    $  15. 00  $  88, 950. 00

8 Concrete Sidewalk 37, 300 SF   $   5. 00  $ 186, 500. 00

9 DrivewayApproach       86 EA   $ 600. 00  $  51, 600. 00

10 Handicap Ramps 12 EA   $      2, 500. 00  $  30, 000. 00

11 Survey Monuments 13 EA.   $ 300. 00  $   3, 900. 00

12 Traffic Striping& Signage 5, 060 LF    $   5. 00  $  25, 300. 00

13 Dewatering( budget) 5, 060 LF    $  40. 00  $ 202, 400. 00

Subtotal Street Work 1, 299, 365. 00

STORM DRAIN

14 Catch Basins( rype A inlet)   1 EA   $      2, 400.00  $   2, 400. 00

15 Catch Basins( type A inlet overtype 1 manhole base) 25 EA   $      2, 800. 00  $  70, 000. 00

16 Catch Basins( type A inlet over type ll manho/ e base)  5 EA   $      5, 000.00  $ 25, 000. 00

17 15" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 720 LF    $ 34. 00  $  58,480.00

18 18" Storm Drain Pipe 220 LF    $  46. 00  $  10, 120. 00

19 24" Storm Drain Pipe 660 LF    $  65. 00  $  42, 900. 00

20 30" Sform Drain Pipe 550 LF    $  80. 00  $  44,000. 00

21 36" Storm Drain Pipe 250 LF    $  95. 00  $  23, 750. 00

22 42" Storm Drain Pipe 290 LF    $ 120. 00  $  34, 800. 00

23 54" Storm Drain Pipe 160 LF    $ 130. 00  $ 20, 800. 00

24 Manholes( type Iq 1 EA   $      5, 000. 00  $   5, 000.00

25 Manholes( type ll!)   1 EA   $      7, 500. 00  $   7, 500.00

26 Connect- to Existing 11 EA   $       1, 700.00  $  18, 700. 00

27 Stub& Plug
2 EA   $       1, 000. 00  $.   2, 000. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 365, 450. 00

SANITARY SEWER

28 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 4, 630 LF    $  28.00  $ 129, 640. 00

29 Manholes 17 EA   $  ,    4, 000. 00  $  68, 000. 00

30 Sewer Service 86 EA   $ 600. 00  $  51, 600. 00

31 Plug& Stub 3 EA   $       1, 000. 00  $   3; 000. 00

32 Connect to Existing        3 EA   $      3, 000. 00  $   9, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 261, 240. 00

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUITE33a,, PLEASANTON, CA 94588  P: 825.223. 83d0 • F: 209. 571. 2466

T: 25502- River ISlandslPhase 96- Village VIEXCEL\ Cost Esfimate12018- 03- 07 Stage 2A Vlliage V Engineer' s Estimate. xlsx\VILLAGE V

106



f

ENG1NE iZ1NG

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

WATER SUPPLY

33 8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)       3, 750 LF    $  32. 00  $ 120, 000. 00

34 10" Water Line( including all appurtenances)      1, 230 LF    $  40. 00  $  49,200. 00

35 Water Plug& Stub 3 EA   $       1, 000. 00  $   3, 000. 00

36 Water Service 89 EA   $      2, 000. 00  $ 178, 000. 00

37 Fire Hydrants 11 EA   $      4,000. 00  $  44, 000. 00

38 Connect to Existing 5 EA   $      4,000.00  $  20, 000.00

Subtotal Water Supply 414, 200. 00

NON- POTABLE WATER

39 12" Non- Potable Water Line( including all appurtenances) 890 LF    $  50. 00  $  44, 500. 00

40 Non-Potable Water Service 1 EA   $      2, 000. 00  $   2, 000. 00

41 Connect to Existing 3 EA   $       3, 000. 00  $   9, 000. 00

Subtotal Non- Potable Water 55, 500. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $      2, 396, 000. 00

COST PER LOT $  27, 860. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion control, joint trench, landscaping,
irrigation, or street treea

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6200 STONERID6E MALLROAD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTON; CA 9458H • P: 925. 223. 834Q • F: 209'.5712466

T: 25502- River Islands\ Phase 96- Village VIEXCEL\ Cost Estlmate 2018- 03- 07 Stage 2A Village V Engineer' s Estlmate. xlsx\ VILLAGE V

107



ENGIN EfZ1NG

ENGINEER' S PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATE October 29, 2018

VILLAGE V( 86 LOTS)    Job No.: 25510. 76

STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Gluantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREETSCAPE

1 Landscape/ Irrigation Improvements 7, 244 SF    $    5. 00  $  36, 220. 00

2 Bouy
1 LS    $     10, 000. 00  $  10, 000. 00

Subtotal Streetscape 46, 220. 00

POCKET PARK

1 Landscape/ Irrigation Improvements 50, 453 SF    $    8. 00  $ 403, 624. 00

Subtotal Pocket Park 403, 624. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000)  $ 449, 844. 00

Notes:

1) This- estimate does not inciude surveying, engineering, clearing, grading, erosion controi, joint trench, frontyard/ pkwy strip Iandscape
and irrigation, docks, steps/ stairs to dock, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD. SUiTE 330, PLEASANTON; CA 94588 • P: 925. 223. 8340 • F209. 5712466

T: 25510- River Islands\To OthersU21\ Ramon\ EST- 201& 10- 26-Stage 2A Village V- Engineefs Estlmate- 25510. 76\VILLAGE V

108



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3991 Village" V"

Page 15

EXHIBIT G

RIPFA LETTER OF GUARANTEE

INTERIM PUBLIC ACCESS WITHIN THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

109



RIVER ISI..ANDS PdJBLIC ElPIAIdCING AUTHORITY

73 W. STEWART ROAD

LATiiROP, CAUFORNIA 95J36

TEL: ( 209} 879- 7D00

May 4, 20I7

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, Califomia 95330

Subject: Letter o4' Guarantce- Construction of Interi Public Access within the Itider

Islands at Lathrop St gc 2A Dcvelopmcnt A ca

This Letter of Guarantee is being madc in lie a of a perfarmance bond for thc construction of an
interim public access( public right of way) within the Sta e 2A development azea of the River
slands development project. River Islands Development, LLC(" RID") has requested the

permanent closure of Cahen Road from Sta e 1 to Paradise Road and Paradise Road from
Stewart Itoad to the 5tage 2A levee ( see Exhibit" A" attached to this Letter of Guarantee}. Tt is
closure would allaw the construction of the Sta e 2B levee system. The closure wilI not allow

public traffic to utilize Paradise Road to access the River Islands development area while the

construction of the Stage 2B Ievee is occurring, but still allow emergency vehicles access to the
area via all- weacher access roads.

RID plans to conswct River Islands Pazkway from its current terminus in Stage 1, through the
Stage 2A developmen area and into Stage 28 and reconstruct Paradise Road within Stage 2B to
restore pubtic access to the project from 4he TracyBanta area Until these roads are constructed

and dedicated to the City for public use, the City is requiring security to restore public access to
Paradise Road should RID fail to perform. We are providing you this L tter of Guarantee for
this purpose.

The engineer' s estimate as provided by O' Dell Engineering for a 28- foot- wide paved roadway,
equivalent to existing Cahen Road, in the scneral alignment of proposed River Islands Parkway
from Stage 1 to Paradise Road through Stage 28 is 453, 000( See Exhibit" B"). The total length

of this" guarantee roadway" is 6, 1501incar feet. As a result, the Authority hereby agrees to set-
aside funds in the amou t of$ 543, 604, which amount is equal to 120% of the engineer' s

estimate, in- lieu of a performance bond. The funds are currently held, and will be set aside, in the
Improvement Fund established under the Fiscal Agent Agreement, dated as of December 1,

2015, between the Authority and Wilmington Trust, National F ssociation, as fiscal agent. The
Jaint Co nmunity Facilities Agreement, dated as of November 16,? 015, between the Authority
and the Ciry ailows for funds in the Improvement Fund to be used to pay costs of infrastructure
improvements for the lziver Islands development, including roadways,

Under the terms of this Letter of GuaranEee, the Authority shall hold the funds as stated herein in
the Improvement Fund until August 1, 2020, ur until such time that permanent readways are

110



Glenn Gebhardt, City En ineer
Ciry of Lathrop
May 4, 2017
Page 2 of 3

constructed and dedicated to the City to restore permanent public access to Paradise Road,
whichever comes first. If the permanent roadways are not constructed, inspected and accepted

by the City by August 1, 2020 and the deadline is not extended by the City in writing, no later
than Augvst 2, 2020, the Authority will cause one of the followin to occur:

1.       The Authority shall use the funds set aside in the Improvement Fund to corjstruct a 28-
foot-wide paved roadway in a new alignment, equivalent to the existing Cohen Road or,
to reconstruct the existing 28- foat-wide paved Cohen and Paradise roadways in the
original alignment at the City' s direction. The Authority shall utilize a suitable contractor
and bid the work under applicable law. The Authority and the City shall mutually agree
to a timeline to which the roadways necessary to restore access are constnicted, inspected
and operational, not to exceed December 31, 2024-.

2.       Thc Authority shall withdraw the funds from the set aside monies in the Improvement
Fund and provide said monies to the City, to be held in a segregated account maintained
by the Ciry, to be used solely for construction or reconstruction of the applicable
roadways. In such event, the City will use reasonable diligence to complete the
construction of the roadways. Once permanent access has been constructed to the

satisfaction of the City Engineer, and all costs related thereto have been paid, the City
shall return any of the unspent funds and any investment earnin s thereon to the
Authority for redeposit to the Improvement Fund. Until the campletion of the raadways
and return of any excess funds to the Authority, the City will maintain records as to the
reinvestment of the funds pravided to it, and will provide the Authority with its records as
to any such investment earnings upon written request of the Autl ority. Additionally, in
the event that the City advises the Authority in writing that the funds provided to the Ciry
aze not sufficient to pay all of the costs associated with the roadways necessary to restore
public access, and advises the Authority as to the amount of the shortfaIl, the Authority
will advance funds to the City from the Improvement Fund in the amount of the shortfall.
In such event, and upon the written request of the Authority, the Ciry will provide to the
Authority a detailed breakdown of the casts of the constivctiun of the remaining roadway
work necessary to restore public access.

3.       Since the canswction of roadways within Stages 2A and 2B are phased and will continue

to be constructed by RID, RD 2062 or the Authority over time, the Authority may request
a reduction in the amount of funds necessary to be hetd from the Improvement Fund as
segments of permanent public roadways are constructed and dedicated to the City. For
instance, segments of River Islands Parkway through Stage 2A should be completed in
late 2017/early 2018 and cledicatian of this segment would reduce the amount of security
described herein. As a result, a reduction of$ 88.40 per LF($ 43, 600/6, 150 LF) shali be

ranted for each linear foot permanently constructed and dedicated to the City.

The Authority shall retain the discretion to choose between the two options outlincd above as the
applicable security and to request reduction ofthe secucity as described in section 3 ebave. As
confirmation of the acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Letter of Guarantee by the

f

111



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrap
May 4,? 017

Aage 3 of 3

City, please sign and date this letter as shown oa the next page. Should you have any questions
regarding this Letter of Guarantee, please contact me at( 209) 879- 7900.

Sincerely,

By:
Herb Moniz, Execut v Director

River Islands Pubtic Fi ancin Authority

Enclosures:    Exhibit" A": Location of Applicable Roadways— Cohen/ Paradise

Exhibit" B": 0' Dell Engineering— Engineer' s Estimates

cc:      Susan De1POsso, River Islands Development, LLC

John Zhang, O' Dell Engineering, Inc. 

1 Accept on Behalf of the City af Lathrap the Terms and Conditions
of the foregoing Letter af Guarantee.

B .       Y'
Glenn R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

I"      l /

Date   .
r

112



r! w-`'  

x `  i
a '      r   °'".   EXHIBIT A

r  , .:.

k i         t

1      _     

Hp ` r.    

rf   '.<  ;,

r r       ,'         i`Ra`°$ t

s I A       y``      -'    /    35 S}'        aj.

I 4.'     ._..    t=   t      \       :,.

y"-       ``  .' a.  

a
t i   

b`'    v-, 4N«C
a T     ;    

STAGE 2B 7r. g € t:   C"' y      

r;          ` z

R    +'   `       4f       y., r
a' **"

k   
t ^ a:      1 l ,,

a e                   `' 4Yy     . v+ ey y

r t

ff'      '      

i
l   {  

D Ly    

rb'    

BEGIN PERMANENT rw'     ¢  a s*``  +  ""  t           r    #

r ,.'  ` -

Y'
ROAD CLOSURE .   2 LANE ' GUARANTEE"       ., g+    

aT 

w #   px   ; „>       
ROADWAY ( 28' WIDE)   

a K a w r .:\,
i`

i i "\

q n y

b
l' i

jy   _
1 A+.      

N,,

A   .. i' au yy7 4,, { j

IlCB
AD

1,     
tl.. 

v 9$..-,`.     T 4  ,° "   ,,

7p   '
Q _

p`
r 77' _.       

M

w' '' .._„

y itY a
er i

rt'  

v.   

1J

j          
1

Li   '       ` `:.   
r  

i.  ' f. s` '
t j  ' f.

d ,,  1\ a V*.'? y  { ,..    ,  i i ,,{ i"     ' jj`;1 i k,,c
i[

i.S̀C; ?{     
1 li*       - 1  

t`' END PERMANENT     , %'      c3 f,
TRANSITION              `     STAGE 2A

t   "   AREA T    
ROAD CLOSURE x r g

TO LEVEE ROAD
i  ,''""

i  . a   ,..  

r   .

c'
y   

vuw 1
1

w..  . 
z-:

d.  
A« `--,"„'` '

F`
T

I   

T    " I"i(,IL".L._  i  
N, t ..   

r  "     
r,' A: d ,. :. y'+ n.

i
i

G tl  . '  

ri       < c.ti Fi i s   '':.x

PROVIDE ' LOCAL
jE

C      -"-.

w
i',

i       -
r;-: t '  Y'      1TRAFFIC ONLY"       w r+ 7: i

SIGN ( R11- 3)    
rr,t.,,,.      ,    -  ', „

e°} j =:`       , e. E'"?,'     _"          
I 3+'

i i': s     ."    p
a,

r;  .

c-      
STAGE 1  _     a;

TRANSITION 1   AREA 1

y TO LEVEE ROADI,„,. I"       
i 5  "

a  

DELL' OSSO DRIVE      '  ., r n c- r--- +,,     

1I--
ti'

y/'"

Y h`

I 1 
F I 1' i

f »  

F      
t

ti s L

i p  
I j°  Ra            

a a     ^ e. t_

t     .'+ t"
r,     G        

l'. l

1

Y"      , i L    _  '       ,` t

z p
a

tt        

I  ; 

p5y         .   ...       " ,'    a   '   

y„
rr+"",;'

1   <,„,:
z": -

r t       
r I

y   `        

i i
i     

t      =     

A xng+ a. - .   *..,.   `

N.  
ka,,..   

we'     .       '     

I   :  
I
t t     

r*

LEGEND
e.

t.

PHASE 1 BOUNDARY
y

t    ,.    
t

I'     ! ,  
t

l  ,  
RETAIN PUBUC MAINTAINED ROAD

r

r° `   3, r.    . ,  r»
ra  :*.       ` .    

PERMANENT ROAD CLOSURE( ABANDONMENn i        STAGE 2 INTERIM ACCESS

RIVER ISLANDSINTERIM PUBLIC SAFETY ROAD( ALL- WEATHER)       , '

28' PAVED ROADWAY( OUAFANTEE SEOMENn C LAND USE MAP

qTV OF LATHROP SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY CALI WRNIA

y

s

ENGINEERING MAVd, 201]

113



EXHIBIT " B"

NG1N£ f{1NG

ENGINEER' S OPINION, OF PROBABLE COST May 4, 2017
INTERIM ROAD CONNECTION- STAGE 2A

GUARANTEE

RIVER ISLANDS- PHASE 1

CITY OF LATHROP; SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Unit

Item Description Quantity Unit Price Amount

SITE PREPARATION

1 Mobilization 1 LS     $     25, 000. 00   $ 22, 750. 00

2 Erosion Control 1 LS     $      2, 500. 00   $  2, 500. 00

f

Subtotal Site Preparation 25, 250. 00

GRADING

3
Earthwork2

1, 600 CY    $    5. 00   $  8, 000. 00

Subtotal Grading 8, 000. 00

MISCELLANEOUS

4 3" AC( 6150 LF)       172, 200 SF     $    1. 50   $ 258, 300. 00

5 6" AB( 6150 LF)       172, 200 SF    $    0. 90   $ 154, 980. 00

6 Conform to Existing 2 LS     $       3, 000. 00   $   6, 000. 00

Subtotal Miscellaneous 419, 280. 00

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST $ 452, 530. 00

TOTAL CON$ TRUCTION, COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $ 453, 000. 00

Notes

1) Mobilization assumed to be 5% of total cost.

2) Earthwork quantity includes 35% shrinkage.

S20G STONcRIDGE IbtALL R AD. SUITE 330, PLEASANTOM; A 94 88,• P: 925. 223.$ 3 30 • F:209. 571, 2466

1 114



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3991 Village" V"

Page 16

EXHIBIT H

I IPFA LETTEI OF GUARANTEE

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITI3IN THE STAGE 2A DEVELOPMENT AREA

115



RIVER ISLANDS PUBLlC FINANCING AUTHORITY

73 W. STEWART ROAD

LATHROP, CAI. IFORNIA 95330

TEL: ( 209 879- 780a

June 26, 2018

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop
39U Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

Subject: Letter of Guarantee- Construction of River Islands Parkway from Deli' Osso
Drive to the Stage 2B Boundary( Lakeside East District)— Tract 3908

This Letter of Guarantee is being made in lieu of a performance bond for the construction of
unfinished portions of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary
within the Stage 2A development area of the River Islands development project( also known as

the Lakeside East District). River Islands Public Financing Authority( Authority) is providing
the fitnding for public improvements in the Stage 2A development area, including improvements
to River Islands Parkway( Improvements). It is our understanding that a guarantee for
construction of the River Islands Parkway Improvements through Stage 2A is required as a
condition precedent to City Council approval of the Tract 39081arge lot subciivision map
propased by River Islands Development, LLC. Since the Authority is already setting aside funds
far the full construction of River Islands Parkway, we are providing you this Letter of Guarantee
as the required subdivision guarantee necessary for the Tract 39081arge lot final map.

The engineer' s estimates as provided by O' Dell Engineering for the full cost of the of River
islands Parkway Improvernents from Dell' Osso Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is$ 5, 264, 000,
and for the unfinished portions( as of June 15, 2018) of River Islands Parkway from Dell' Osso
Drive to the Stage 2B boundary is$ 338, 004( attached as Exhibit" A"). The Authority hereby
agrees to set- aside£ unds in the amount of$450, 000, which amount is equal to 180°to vf this
engineer' s estimate of the unfinished improvements, in- lieu of a 100% performance bond and
50% labor and materials bond. The funds aze currently held, and will be set aside, in the
Improvement Fund established under the Fiscal Agent Agreement, dated as of December 1,

201 S, between the Authority and Wilmington Trust, National Association, as fiscaI agent. The
Joint Community Facilities Agreement, dated as of November 16, 2015, between the Authority
and the City allows for funds in the Improvement Fund to be used to pay costs of infrastructure
improvements for the River Islands development, including River Islands Parkway. Also    
attached to this Letter of Guarantee is an exhibit showing the portion of River Islands Parkway
being guaranteed by this Ietter for yow reference( Exhibit" B").

116



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop— Letter of Guarantee for Trac# 3908

June 15, 2018

Page 2 of 3

Under the terms of this Letter of Guazantee, the Authority shall hold the funds as stated herein in
the Improvement Fund until July$, 2019, or until such time River Islands Parkway through
Stage 2A is fuliy constructed, inspected and accepted into service by the City, whichever comes
first. If this portion of River Islands Parkway is not constructed, inspected and accepted into
service by the City by July 8, 2U19 and the deadline is not extended by the City in writing, no
later than Septcmber 30, 2019, the Authority will cause one of the following to occur:

1.       The Authority shall use the funds set aside in the Improvement Fund to conshuct the
River Islands Parkway Improvements. The Authority shall utilize a suitable contractor
and bid the work under applicable law. The Autharity and the City shaIl mutually agree
to a timeline to which the roadway will be constructed, inspected and operational, no later
than one year from the deadline noted above.

2.       The Authority shall withdraw the funds from the set aside monies in the improvement
Fund and provide said monies to the City, to be held in a segregated account maintained
by the City, to be used solely for construction or reconstncction of the applicable porrion
ofRiver Islands Pazkway. In snch event, the City will use reasonable diligence to
complete the construction of the R.iver Islands Parkway. Until the completion of the River
Islands Parkway and return of any excess funds to the Authority, the City will maintain
records as to the reinvestment of the funds provided to it and will provide the Authority
with its records as to any such investment eamings upon written request of the Authority.
Additionally, in the event that the City advises the Authority in writing khat the funds
provided to the City are not sufficient to pay all of the costs of the construction of the
River Islands Parkway and advises the Authority as to the amount of the shortfall, the
Authority will advance funds to the City from the Improvement Fund in the amount of
the shortfall. In such event, and upon the written request of the Authority, the City will
provide to the Authority a detailed breakdown of tiie costs of the construction of the
unfinished portions of River Islands Parkway through Stage 2A.

The Authority shall retain the discretion to choose between the two options outlined above.
However, if any River Islands Parkway improvements remain incomplete on September 30,
2020, the Authority shalI immediately resort to Option 2, and shall provide set aside moneis in
the Improvement Fund as requested by the City to allow the City to complete the uncompleted
improvements. 

In addition, the commitment for the Authority to set aside these funds shall continue until the
Improvements are constructed and accepted by the City Council, and the developer provides a
one year maintenance bond in the amount of$526,400( 10% of the full cost of the '

Improvements}, or until the Authority provides an acceptable replacement letter ofguarantee in
that same amaunt of$ 526, 400 to guarantee the quality and condition of the full Improvements
for one year from the date of acceptance by the City Council.

r117



Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer
City of Lathrop-- Letter of Guarantee for Tract 3908

June 15, 2018
Page 3 of 3

As confirmation of the acceptance of the terms and cnnditions of this Letter of Guarantee by the
City, please sign and date this letter as shown on the next page. Should you have any questions
regazding this Letter of Guarantee, please contact me at{ 209) 879- 7904.

Sincerely,

By:
Herb oniz, Exe fiv irector

River Islands Pu ic in cing Authority

Enclosures:    Exhibit" A": Engineer' s Estimate of full improvements from O' Dell Engineering
and Engineer' s Estimate of unfinished improvements from O' Dell

Engineering
Exhibit`: B̀": Location of guarantee on River Islands Parkway

cc:      Susan Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC

I Accept on Behalf of the City of Lathrop the Terms and Conditions
of the faregoing Letter of Guarantee.

B :   Y
Glenn R. Gebhardt, City Engineer

9  /
Date       .

118



ENG1N£ fi1MG

ENGI fEER' S OPI VlON OF PROBABLE COST March 6, 2018

RIiOER ISLAN S- S'PAGE 2A Job No.: 25503- 01

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

CITY OF LkTHROP, SAiV JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFQRIVIA

Item Description Gluantity Untt Unit Price Amount

TREET WORK

1 Fine Grading 621, 700 SF S 0. 45        279, 765. 00

2 T' AC Paving 316, 8U0 SF   $ 3. 5  $    1, 108, 80, 00

3 11" Agg gate 6ase 316, 800 SF   $  1. 65  $      522, 720. 00

1 12" Lime Treatment 316, 800 SF   $  1. 10  $      348, 480. 00

5 Vertical Curb and Gutter ( wlth AB cushlon)       9,600 LF    $ 15. 00  $      144, 000. 00

6 Type F Median Curb( w1 A8cushlon)    9,100 LF    $ 18. 00  $      963, 800. 00

7    oundabout Concrete 2,400 SF   $ 5.00  $ 12, OOOAO

8 Concrete Sidewalk 77,400 SF   $ 5. 00  $      387, 000.00

8 Handicap Ramps 20 EA   $     2, 500. 00  $ 50, 0OO. OQ

10 Survey Monuments 7 EA   $       3 0. 00  $ 2, 100. 04

11 BaRicades 1 EA   $     1, 500. OQ  $ 1, 500. 00

12 Traffic Signing 8 Striping 4, 71U LF    $ 5.40  $       23, 550. 00

13 Dewatering( 8udget)     4, 710 LF    $       75. 40  $      353, 250. 00

Subtotal 5treet Work 3,396, 985. 00

STORM DFtAIPI

14 Catch Basins( tyFeAlnlet}   24 EA   $     2, 404.00  $       57. 600. 00

15 15" Storm Drain Pipe 1, 110 LF    $ 34. Q0 S 37, 740_00

16 18" Storm Drain Pipe 220 LF S 46.00  $ 10, 120. 0

17 24" Stortn Orain Pipe 780 LF    $ 65. 00  $       50, 700. 00

18 Storm Drain Stub& Plug 9 EA   $     1, 0OO. OQ  $ 9,OQ0. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 165, 160. 00

SANITAf2Y EWER

19 24" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 50 LF   $       150. U0  $ 7, 500. 00

20 Manholes 24 LF   $     4, Ofl0. 00  $       96, OOO. dO

21 Connect to Existing Sanitary Sewer 2 EA 3 3,a00. 00  $ 6,000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 109, 500, 00

WAi' ER SUPPLY

22 8" Water Line(! ncluding aU appurtenances}    740 LF   $ 32. 00  $       23, 680. 00

23 10" Water Line ( includirtg all appurtenances) 280 LF   $ 40. 00  $ 11, 240. 00

24 20" Water Line ( fncluding eli appurtenarrces)       4, 630 LF    $       1Q0. 00  $      463, 000. 00

25 Fire Hydrants 96 EA S R, 000. 00  $       64, 000. 00

26 Water Service 6 EA   $     2, 000. 00  $ 12, 000. 00

27 UVater Plug& Stub 9 EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 9, 000. 00

28 Conneet to ExiSting Water I EA 3 4, 000. 00  $ 4, 000. 04

Subtotal Water Supply 586, 880. Q0

6200 STONERIDGE MALL ROAD SUiTE 330, PLEASANTON, CA 94588 • P 925 223. H3-00 • F 209. 571: 2466

T 1255U3. Rivcr Islanaswhasa 01- River Isfaretlo ParkwaytV+rord a ExcailCost Eeammto12019- 03-98 F:v6r island. PaArnoy- SW m 2A Cas1 EstimetsUmprovemQnta.

119



I+       

I I I . ib

NGINEERING

It m Description Qu nttty Unit Unit Pric  AmouM

RECYCLHD WATER

29 8" Recycled Water Flushing Line ( rnclud;ng a! 1 appurienances) .     80 LF    $ 45. 00 S 3, 800. 00  '

30 12" Recycled WaterDrain Line ( lndudingaUappurienances) 150 LF    $ 55.00  $ 8,250. 00

31 16" Recycled Water Line ( ineluding alf appurtenances)    4,650 LF   $ 85. 00  $      302, 250. 00

32 Recycled Water Plug& SWb 4 EA   $     1, 000.00  $. 4,OOD. 00

33 Connect to Existing Recycled Water 1 EA   $     5, Q00. 00  $ 5, 000. 00

Subtotal Recycled Water 323, f 00.00

NON- POTABLE WATER :

34 8" Non- Potable Water Line ( incruding a l appurtenances)  850 LF   $ 35. 00  $       22, 750. 00

35 16" Non- Potable Wster Line ( lnclud/ ng all appunenances) 4, 660 LF   $ 80. 00  $      372, 800. 00

36.  Non- Potable Water Senrice 6 LF    $     2,Op0. 00 S 42, OOU. 00

37 Non- Patable Water Plug 8 Stub 7 EA S 1, 000. 00  $ 7,000. 00

38 Connect to Existing Non- Potable Water 1 EA   $     3,000. 00  $ 3,000. 00

Subtotal lrrigation Water S 497, 550. 00

LAKE FILL LIIVE

39 16" Lake Fip Line( lncJudingaNappurfenances)    4,820 LF   $ 5a. 0  $      241, 000. 00

40 3" Aeration Line pnr uding a 1 sppurtenances)      4,820 LF   $ 4. 00  $ 19, 280. 00

41 Lake Fip Stub 8 Plug 3'   EA   $     1, 000. 00  $ 3, aoa. 00

42 Connect to Existing Lake Fill Line 1 EA   $     1, OOd. 00  $ 1, 000. 00

Subtotal Lake Fill Line 2fi4, 280. 00

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST S 5, 263, 435. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST{ nesrast S1, OOD) S 5 264, 000. 00

Notes:

1) This estimate does not include surveying, engineering, clearing, grad'ing, erosion control, jaint trench, landscaping,
imga6on, or street trees.

2) Unit prices are based on estimated current construction costs and no provision for inflation is included.

6Z00 S70NERIDGE MAL! ROAD. SLlITE 330 PLEASANTON CA 94598 • P: 925. 2. 3. 8330 • F 209: 571:: 466

T125503- Rtvar islands sa 6t- Riva 1slsndf Parkwa}M1VWrC 8 Ezce( tiCosf£ aUmAlat2018- 03-08 River f lands Parkwoy- Stape 2A Casl 63dmakeUmprovemeMe

120



ENG7N6ERTNG

ENGINBER' S BpN ES7IMATE June 13. 2078
COST TO COMPLETE Job No: 25503• 01

R1VER ISLANDS- STAGE 2A

RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY

CITY OF lATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUN' I' Y. CAUFORNIA

Item Descri Uon   '    Quanti Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Sanitary Sewer 8 Water Ralsing Iron( 95% CompJeNon}  t LS S 54,400. 00 S 54,A80.40
2 Final AC Lift( so96 Comptation) LS S 2q6, 604. 00 S 246, fiQ4 00

3 Final Sipnin, Striping 8 Monument( 096 Comple on)     LS 3 37, 000. 00 S 37, Ofl0 00

TOTAt COST TO COMIPLETE S 338, 004. 00

Notes:

1} Eslimate tor msl to complete 6ased on oonuadcr' a Wst to Wmptete summary shaet and backup doeumentslar Stage 2A River tsland Parkway
OeIPOsso prive to Stage 2A/ 28 Levee) dated. 1une i2, 2018.

i

63t30 S70NERIDGE AfALL RGFD SUITE 130. i' LE:. SA JTOhJ CA 4 58? • ? 9... 3. 65a0 • F Q5 577_ a6fi

T' @SSOS- Rrvm Iau sWhp Ot- RN klandt PukweylWa d 8 EicoRCwt m CompMe{ 201b- 06 17 Stepn ZA Rtp BonO E nertaloVmprovamonts

121



11 1i 11 •• : G,1 ,' 1        , t1 '*
1 1

1  
i :r      

s- 1; 1     
r,,,, ,,,, n,*  r 1

r 1 , 

i 1  ' 
r Y

r,'+,,  p,,,,  
i
ri

I i  
i i            

1 i  :      

i 1 ',  , i
i    . J j I II   --

I`         .
r A     , 

j  1,      i i V '    . j         
l

1111  i1111I
1•j     !      ,,,•'   

rt// II IIAIII

11         - 

0    i .     i
11

w1   ,' ii  
ti 111 111  I IIIII

I,,;      1111  1111111  1111t1

1;`,, i,;:  

1*,,' j,'/  
1 1,  , 1;

I
1• Ij  .  j   II  Q       l r i  , l111I111111111111111

I'
w   , 

1   111111 j1i1i111 tlllll  :  
14 

lr

r rt11  rllll 111111 C  C

I     ;    r ri , Ii11111 111111    
j    7

122



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Development, LLC)

Tract 3991 Village" V"

Page 17

EXHIBI' I' I

COMMOI T USE A ĜREEMENT FOR ENSLEN AVENUE

123



RECORDING REQUESTED BY

AND PLEASE RETURN TO:       

City Clerk

City of Lathrop

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California 95330

This Instrument Benefits City Only.  
No Fee Required. '

THIS SPACE ABOVE FOR RECORDER' S USE ONLY

COMMON USE AGREEMENT

FOR THE STAGE 2A PORTION OF ENSLEN AVENUE

BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP

AND ISLAND RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 2062

This COMMON USE AGREEMENT FOR ENSLEN AVENUE, associated with
Phase 1 of River Islands at Lathrop entered into on this lOth

day of December, 2018
Agreement") and is made and entered into by ISLAND RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO.

2062, a reclamation district organized under the laws of the State of California( the " District"),

and the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation in the State of California( the " City"),
together, " the Parties".

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement relates to certain real property to be dedicated to City for public right of
way purposes known as Enslen Avenue; a local` street within the River Islands at Lathrop Master
Planned Community, ("River Islands Site"), being developed by River Islands Development,
LLC, (" River Islands").

B.       On May 31, 2018, the District recorded easements across properties owned by Califia,
LLC and River Islands for the right to control and maintain the levees constructed by District for.
flood protection purposes to protect development of both the Stage 2A and Stage 2B sub-
planning areas of the River Islands Site (" Levee Easements").

C.       River Islands has proposed Tract 3991, a final map that will create a single family
subdivision within the Stage 2A sub- planning of the River Islands Site, specifically located
within Village V. Tract 3991 contains a portion ofEnslen Avenue, a local street that extends into
a portion of the existing Levee Easements (" Village V Portion of Enslen Avenue"), as depicted
in Exhibit" A" to this Agreement.

D.       Since the Levee Easements have been recorded to provide appropriate legal access and
authority to District for its flood protection works (" District Works") in accordance with the

State Water Code and applicable FEMA regulations, and these levees are designed to provide

Page 1 of 6

124



200- year Urban Level of Flood Protection( ULOP) in accordance with approved State
Department of Water Resources Standards, prior to the approval of Tract 3991 and the

dedication of right of way for the Village V Portion of Enslen Avenue, the Parties acknowledge
and agree that it is necessary for the Parties to enter into an agreement to outline the duties and
responsibilities of each Party, for the betterment of the public and to avoid conflicts in each
Party' s individual obligations under applicable law to those portions of Enslen Avenue right of
way located within portions of the Levee Easements (" Common Use Area").

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants

hereinafter set forth, City and District do hereby agree_as follows:

1. City hereby agrees to the construction, reconstruction, maintenance or use by District of
the District Works located within the Common Use Area which is more particularly described on
E ibit "A" to this Agreement, incorporated herein by this reference.

2.       District hereby agrees to the construction, reconstruction, maintenance or use by City of
the Village V Portion ofEnslen Avenue within the Common Use Area which is more
particularly described on Exhibit " A" to this Agreement, incorporated herein by tliis reference.

3.       District and City acknowledge the priority of title of each other wherever applicable to
the Common Use Area.

4.       District has reviewed the Village V improvement plans for surface improvements,

underground pipelines, street lighting, landscaping and joint trench construction prepared by
O' Dell Engineering and Power Systems Design and has no objections to the design and proposed
construction of the facilities on these improvement plans that are located within the Common
Use Area.

5.       In the event that the future use of the Village V Portion of Enslen Avenue shall at any
time necessitate rearrangement, relocation or reconstruction of any of the District' s works within

the Common Use Area, City shall notify District in writing of such necessity pursuant to
applicable sections of the Water Code and City agrees to pay the cost of such rearrangement,
relocation or reconstruction of District' s works following approval of all plans and specifications
of said rearrangement, relocation, or reconstruction by the District, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

6.       In the event that the future use of the District Works shall at any time necessitate

rearrangement, relocation or reconstruction of any of the Village V Portion of Enslen Avenue
within the Common Use Area, District shall notify City in writing of such necessity and District
agrees to pay the cost of such rearrangement, relocation or reconstruction of Village V Portion of
Enslen Avenue following approval of all plans and specifications of said rearrangement,
relocation, or reconstructiori by the City, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Page 2 of 6

125



7.    "   City shall pay the cost to maintain, repair or replace City' s facilities located in the
Common Use Area at its sole expense, and for construction, rearrangement, modification,

alteration or relocation not requested or undertaken by District, except for damage resulting from
maintenance, repair or replacement by District.

8.       District or its assignees shall pay the cost to maintain, repair and replace District' s
facilities located in the Common Use Area at its sole expense, and for construction,   

rearrangement, modification, alteration or relocation not requested or undertaken by City,

excepting damage resulting from maintenance, repair or replacement by City.
9.       District, when working within the Common Use Area shall comply with the following
provisions:

a)      Except in times of emergency, including during a high water or flooding event,
District shall provide reasonable notice to City before performing any work in the Common Use
Area where such work will be performed in or on the traveled way or improved shoulders,

sidewalk or landscaping of the roadway or will otherwise obstruct vehicular and/ or pedestrian
traffic.

b) In all cases, DisYrict shall make adequate provisions for the protection of the

travelling public and provide such barricades and safety devices as are required by City
standards, and in cases of non-emergency, provide a Traffic Control Plan as required by City
standards and specifications.

c) All work shall be planned and carried out so there will be minimum inconvenience to

the traveling public.

d) All work shall be replacement in kind, conform to the existing facilities as to width
and depth of surfacing thereof, meet all applicable City standards and specifications as
determined by the City Engineer and shall be subject to inspection by City.

10.      District and City shall use said Common Use Area in such manner as to not unreasonably
interfere with the rights of either Party.

11.      District shall not be responsible for any damage occurring to the City facilities in the
Common Use Area that are not as a direct result of the District' s maintenance, construction or

reconstruction activities, or from its flood control facilities located on or near the Common Use

Area. All costs for repairing such damage to City's facilities shall be borne by City.

12.      City shall not be responsible for any damage occurring to District facilities in the
Common Use Area that are not as a direct result of the City' s maintenance, construction or
reconstruction activities of its right of way or improvements on or near the Common Use Area.
All costs for repairing such damage to District' s facilities shall be borne by District.

13.      To the extent that the City's rights to its rights of way for Enslen Avenue under the
applicable laws of the State of California do not hinder or conflict with the rights of the District

under applicable laws of the State of California, such rights of the District shall remain and be in

full force and effect. Should any conflict with the rights of the City by rights of the District be

Page 3 of 6

126



identified, the District hereby subrogates its rights to the City, subject to review and approval of
the District' s legal counsel.

14.      This Agreement shall not have a prescribed term. Termination of Agreement shall only
occur if the C.ommon Use Area ceases to be in existence and the need for this Agreement and its

rights and obligations contained herein cease to be necessary. Either Party may provide written
notice of such termination, subject to review and verification of the other Party.

15.      Notices. Any and all notices required to be given hereunder will be deemed to have been
delivered upon deposit in the United States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to either of the

parties at the address hereinafter specified or as later amended by either party in writing:

City of Lathrop
Attention: City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop,' CA 95330

Reclamation District No. 2062

73 West Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attention: President

17.      This Agreement, and all terms, covenants, and conditions hereof, will apply to and bind
the successors and assigns of the respective parties hereto. Neither Party will assign nor sublet
this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party.  

18.      This Agreement is governed by California law.

19.      This Agreement may not be modified or amended except in writing signed by both
parties.

20.      Each party must, in all activities uridertaken pursuant to this Agreement, comply and
cause its contractors, agents and employees to comply with all Federal, State and local laws,
statutes, orders, ordinances, rules, and regulations.    

21.      It is expressly understood that this Agreement does not in any way whatsoever grant or
convey any permanent easement, fee or other interest in a party' s real property to the other Party.

22.      This Agreement, together with all exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire

agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings.

Page 4 of 6

127



TN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and District have signed this Agreement
effective as of the Effective Date.       

ISLAND RECLAMATION

CITY OF LATHROP DISTRICT

A California municipal corporation NO. 2062 a California Reclamation

District

By: By:
Stephen Salvatore Date Susan Dell' Osso Date

City Manager President

ATTEST:

By:
Teresa Vargas Date

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:    J L--S-/ 
Salvador V. Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Notary Acknowledgements on following

Page 5 of 6

128



EXHIBIT " A"

COMMOle1 USE AREA DEPICTIOI 1

Page 6 of 6

129



s,. o,,, s. E R>    
EXH I B I T "A"

pP'     '  COMMON USE AREA- ENSLEN AVENUE
P    ,    VILLAGE V- RIVER ISLANDS

c oo°`   
L22      

s

F    /
QP      

A PORTION OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEING

0  QV'     ' U       
6

o' J   /'     A 5l1B IV101IXJ OF PARCEL 7 OF iRACi 3908( 43 A/ kP 52),
5    y

j       ..yj'\; N 9' 3758" E( R)  '/  FFT9     /    Gtt OF LA7HROP, SAN JOAOUW COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

iA          
OCTOBER 2018

ti  
4eo s. F.      

s    
6    .,,     

ARGEI 8 0 o       v
5ti.     

i

7RAG7 3908 ( R221      
S 6h ry     

E N G 7 N£ E fC 1 N G

P

J9 JO
y1.

O 4,Li"     i
N

9
14'    \ QJ•    1Y`     A 0'   2a'  40'       d0'02      15 P'  a PARG L 1

6" 6. 856 SF. O r.

O
SCALE' I'=/ 0'

g y '
L,  b'.

i/      
y'    ,. , c

i y.*•      ' Oo
s.     i cF i/    y  °';

4      4.i

h

o ae; icA o      6
i 6       /       .'  ;  ' syoy  b° Oq,. Fm LEGEND

a 0`y JA.  
7. 049 S. F. i 65 i j  O f'   cb"    Ff' P

o
o

y.   
q}

L l`   _ '     , ryh`

l  /

7c      \       /     ' yncG Q MONUMENT TO BE SET PER( R22)

a oyp b . p i       i o0
0°

f9
p yi 0 SET STANDARD Cltt OF LATHROP IAONUMENT 11 LL STAMPED" PLS 7788'

o-       a`' ti`'
p

OPv/  
ti5       ,      

19     rJ a¢

i  .._PARCELB    ^ rL° c^
3 1) L Q }    '  0'

L   /     
r 0 6, 983 S. F. a SET 3/ 4' IRON PIPE 1NiM PLASTIC PI. UG' PL5 7788'

o- O     p0   9        p/   
6, 500 5..

ry

9
F. 7. 156 S. F.   

GF /     

QPC ,
ti b

p}

L   
65' cj.

k WC.__       

P. U. E.( ACROSS PARCEL B)   
SET 2- 1/ 2" IRON PIPE N1iH PLASPC PLUG' PLS 7788'

y f 4, op 4' IRON PIPE W11H PLASi1C PWG' PLS 7788' PER( R22),

w.
o\'.         

i   . yy`'

a
@'
ir y°° 

9a NtFss on ERwtsE no o

n

W.   8 s      i po 0 i

p
l 6 :    

SET 3. 00' 1N7NESS CORNER( W. C.), UNLESS O7HERWISE NOIED, MEASURED
9, 258 S. F.    e`'     20 F,° 1

1`' Q       .  6, 500 S. F.    y 1` AIONG LOi LINE, RADIAL IJNE OR PERPEN ICULAR i0 SIREET CENiERUNE

B6
1'

sb ti 6h   .
G  0.

0ry5
4Y AS NOiED. 3/ 4" x 24' IPON PIPE N1iH PUS71C PLUG' PLS 7788'

S    

ByBp
LP

200. 00'( R7) AIEASURED AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R7)

p q,       o0

f/"
q               

y,       
J y5  y/ k

9°
j       ( R1)    DENOIES REFERENCE( R7)- SEE RffERENCE LISi ON SHEEi 2

a RS-  /  "  '  
2    

22 6`'    F.
Pl\

1       (
y- B)   AIONUMENT TO BWNDARY

PARCEL F    c0 y 5        
s. wo sr. 

or°e   
ryl` 

yy.

3, 523 S. F.     •    i

h tti  
e\

PP CL INT) NONUNENi TO CENiERLME IN7ERSECiION

N62' 04' 31' E( R)    p              
J' O,         AI- M)   MONUMENT TO MONUMENT

a
y      

e
a  2      

22
i 6`'      

J            

PARCEL A     ( T)     Toru

r 6, 500 S. F.       PARCEL A 23      "
Z B)     BOUN ARY

i o ^            bhi
eh            

l,     SEE SHEET 7
00

y
P. LLE.   PUBl1C U11LIiv EASEMENT

Do  
pp,     ry">

y"' ryl 9`

C   4, l f.    S. D. E STORM DRAIN EASEAIENT

r dop``       yy`

lhS ,
ry

h°'
t'

La1

Z4 j LOT LINE

N5971' OB" E( R R= 980';'  j
QJ 65       

e L'  \
r

RIGNT- Oi- WAY LINE
N88' S6' 02' E( R) R= 73'     p          23 0    __ E TAIL G__ _

e..      
8, 449 S. F. SEE THIS SHEET

DETAILG
BWNDARY

Z 9 \
n        `  `

G. '{.      2,

tJ
NOT TO SCALE

EASEAIENT LME

4'. ` rm.  p1 0'   AIONUAIENT LWE

srncEzn; 4 f 1      , ',`      :     
LEVEE EASEMENT j q

qh 1.
1 4-     CENiERl1NEr

NJ6' OB' 02' E( R) \    p0  -  a-  L      24 i// ii/'///.   RESIRICTEDACCESS

i     \     7. 299 S. F.
11 0

i    \ L  , o   . 
DETAIL C.. __      23 L O3 EASEMENi REFERENCE NUMBER- SEE SHEET 3

YJ
B.\ 

3p 1  $ Ef Tf{$$ HEET

y`       

y

0.    
1  `

pS

4 e. \     JF"  7 p0.
w      . O     ' J 0' J`..,      Q    ' L

3°°' ?     g2
g`

e`   3 i`'  
6` ` P       NOTES

p

S$$;  '

j( f 

cjiq9    
o, 9} g'

hy\

y/       1. 1. 17 BRASS ISN STAMPED PLS 7798" 0 BE SET IXJ CONCREIE

PAflCEL G
p'` ''  

25 yp i P 2  ya_    SIDEWALK 1. 00' INTO hiE RIGHT-0E- WAY, ALONG PROLONGAiION OF

T AC7 3808 IR22)   oo f o,
F .    SIDE LOT LINES, OR AS NOiED.

h\{y, 9        C '         2 5/ 8' REBAR 1NiH CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SEi AT RLL REAR LOT

G-'  \   CORNERS, UNLESS O7HERNISE NOTED.

q Kc, \   24 3. SEE SHEET 2 FOR AD I110NAL NOiES AND REFERENCES.

f s
G r   

o      
J',   4. SEE SHEET 3 FOR EXIS7ING EASEMENTS AN BA515 OF BEARINCS.

i`     ?'

l    ,        
yG.

o',;\     5. SEE SHEET 15 FOR LINE AND CURVf TABLES.

2        G  
i

p
7n,       d

DETAILC   '              
PAGE NOT TO SCALE       /  

130



a 9" W EXHIBIT "A„
o   , 

o

p5

t      

yp
a c L a

6`'
b5     `','   35z,

z3w COMMON USE AREA- ENSLEN AVENUE

s    ti0

1
j

SEE SHEET 7
9,

1`       9
VILLAGE V- RIVER ISLANDS

CG      ys9 o   
a5,`  \ 3' z3'    

3.%3.    y 9S     \ N`'   .  W    
W.,    

s
Z

y.,     
A PIX2TION OF RANCHO EL PESCADERO, BEING

p'      4,    30 s '• A SUBDIVIDION OF PARCEL 7 OF iRACi J908( 4} ygp 52),

Y,      25
N

Oti       

ry, 11, 315 SF. Gtt OF IAiHROP, SAN, qAOUIN COUNiV, CALIFORNIA

o\     6, 879 S. F.       ,       6g9g10'
K.      

s
yhe

yp. 2
N

y

OCTOBER 2018

Jy'       
s

y. y      

ry      31      .
X.   

BJ ` f.
Pl

8 76J S. F.     
W. C.   ,

w

J qJ__- s- f

90     ,"    pg
cta       

I NG1NEEf{ 1NG

Pi
a°      

26       \ 7\

1l

65 

6. 659 S. F.    
C73 o

R= 50. 00' d,

ls S p525 t1
o a\      8. 104 SF.    

A   ro       
E10.  N

o..     4,L i.    $      m. \  
0'   20'  40'       80'

n:       y' a°     0
a

ti N 1

scue ,•= ao'

o.<  
28

i I
o.    .,      

5   
7, Oa3 S. F.  

v       

3' X3',
s°'    < 90.   o.    

h
o             w. c.

o,,   ',
a,.,     `    

k,

i      -$ LEGEND
o\.    s   

5Q       Br•     i5o

o ` a  ;       . M, o.   32

l 27 0•       / 6',' ti

9qh  , 
t

11, 762S. F.
o

8, 871 iF.    : L       
5  

y"> h     ' t C g    
7 Sy/ Qi MONl1A1ENT i0 BE SET PER( R22)

a z

6,

yo4',
jh

OJQ
o

O     »      

g9   '
q

3•.      Q SET STANDARD QTY OF lA1HROP MONUA/ EN7 NELL STAMPED" PLS 7788'
t6'

9       ^^ `. sf
O

Q      - 3. 19''-'       y         
W. C.      

o SEi 3/ 4' IRON PIPE N77H P1A571C PLUG' PLS 7788'

r, J       / 6 O,`{ 1   .(     pOk 0 SEi 2- 1 2" IRON PIPE N17H PLAS7IC PLUG PLS 7168'
l

P
rye `'   :

G   *      po,      y^    
3/ 4' IRON PIPE' MiH PLASiIC PLUG' PI. S 7788' PER( R22),

1.    
F 

Q. fJPo,      33      J      ^ 0 UNLE55 O7HERN15E NOiED

y0    

Z
i y'`

O   / 
7, 588 S. F.    SET 3. 00' N17NE55 CORNER( W. C.), UNLESS O7HERNiSE NOiED, MEASURED

34
ALONG LOi LINE, RADIAL L1NE OR PERPENDICULAR TO STREET CENiERIJNE

y>/  6, 531 S. F. rJ
AS NOTED. 3/ 4" x 24" IRON PIPE YAiH PLAS7IC PLUG' PLS 7788'

l       , 

Jp    ha    r yoQ pAAG I_ A 200. 00'( R1) MEASURED AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)
STACE 2AL Q' r      ":   ' b.   / 9 . bti

O LEVEE EASEMENT

P   sJ,.     
5b,

y'      {{  /  y,   
A'' ti 

p       s SEE SHEET 7 R1)    DENOhS REFERENCE( R7)- SEE REFERENCE ST ON SHEET 2

s',
l   \ F

9̀  / V      23J     ;  °           IA- 8)   MOfJUAIENT i0 BWNDARY

p     J
3S AI- CL INT) AIONUMENT TO CENTERUNE IN7ERSECTION

c r 7. 929 S. F.

s cpB       ij
1 M- M)   MONUMENT TO MONUMENT

i 9•       yo

Fic    ,       a   r)     roru99(

O6Q•
S

C    QJ   10
4,`,   

N
BJ BOUNOARV

pti 36 SJ'       
P. U. E.   7UBUC UiILITY EASEMENi

t      (     
8,707 S. F.    

g`
1

65Po. T1k S. D. E STIX7M DRAIN EASEAIENT

v   \     ''`
4   o' LOT LINE

SOOoo.    FA°

IO"
e: 3.  oy`\   

Nss.    PARCEL E
RicHr- oF- wnr uNE

PA7C 1 C O\ ' Ys BS,?'      
ry'      6y,' Sl     4, 785 S. F. BOUNDARY

7RAG7 3808 ( nZZ)       01, OB,((`  J9•` 6y    .,'       
37 QJ•        P. U. E( ACROSS PAftCEL E)

56.;,. S7J/, 9  <.. , q.  
2 6. 841 S. F.     8 EASEMENT LWE

9•  / 71j
6 O. \  3W. C._      N

MONUTAENi LINE2B9 \ 
F

J 4G  l

ZA9     h°
j 0 R

SS'
3i?      CEN7ERLINE

T.   
2"'/ . a'     38       1 /   " JT lpi i/ i: i/=  RES7RICTE ACGESS

J ; 2 6, 565 S. F.     po I

9    \       ' 
x g o' $ , 2„'       

J O3 EASEMENT REFERENCE NUTABER- SEE SHEET 3

S
o y'      /.,`

r o   , 7'% 3'

0      2„ po W. C.

8      \       h  / u os

ss l r' y o`' ,     NOTES
O.       z

ai a    s°  39
g'   y•  1 n,

e 1. 1. 17' BRASS OISK STAMPED' PLS 7788' i0 BE SE? ON CONCREIE
o H,,

J
59. 

2.
p       SIDEWALN 1. 00' INTO 7HE RIGHT- OF- WAY, ALONG PROLONGAiION OF

r      
SIDE LOi IJNES, OR AS NOTE.

2. 5/ 8' REBAR N1TH CAP' PLS 7788' TO BE SET AT AlL REAR LOT

N       
J

19\    CORNERS, UNLESS O7HERINSE NOIED.SS;
7

Z. J    

1(
f 3. SEE SHEET 2 FCR AD IPONAL NOTES AND REFERENCES.

ok, 2yz,      4. SEE SHEET 3 FCR E% ISPNG EASEMENTS AND BA515 OF BEARINGS.

Jd'3 5. SEE SHEET 75 FOR IJNE AND CURVE TABIES.

NSSJ       (. l\

7p. BC

J   ((/    \ \

PAGE 2

131



NOTES

1. 1. 17' BRA55 DISK STANPED' PLS 7788' TO BE SET ON CONCREIE
E X H I B I T A

i smewux i. 00' iNra me Ricer- ov- wnr, n arrc Peaa+cnna+ o     COMMON USE AREA- ENSLEN AVENUE
i vo or uNes. oR s No n. 

VILLAGE V- RIVER ISLANDS
aaG l      /  

F S Ef
2

CIXtBNERSAUNtf 5 O7HERNi5E7N0 D.

0 BE SET Ai I.LL REM LOiEy
N    l

T 14 3. SEE SMEET 2 FOR ADDIPONAL NOlES M'D REFERENCES,      A PORPON OF RANCHO EL PESCA ERO, BEING
3

pg• 4. $ EE SHEET 3 fOR E% ISiING EASEMENTS AND BA515 Oi BEAFINGS.     A SUHDINDICN C PARCEL 7 OV 1RACi 3908( 4. 7 AI$ P 52),
w

Cbpp,       5. SEE SHEET 15 FOR IJNE AND WR E TABLES I' Y pF Ah1ROP, SAN. qAW. N COUNTY, CALIFOaNIA
N zS)'     OCTOBER 2018

ryh.qUNf W/ Po. po•
S

E 8`  /
m

PARCEL D  ,    
We. o4s S. F.      

N G 1 N E E+ Z 1 N G

P. U. E.

N
5i.    i TRACT 38098R221

N
a   

scuF:'.

ARGEL A N Zs a. W
i

SEE SHEET 7
N   

P EpR c.'   ; 
LEGEND

fUNE f'
ME      NI6V3' 18' E( R 

O uoNUMENT TO BE SET PFR( R22)

i o' N7zJ,     SET SiAN AR CIiY Oi UIHROP MCNUYENT MELL SiAMPEJ' PLS 77fl8"

Lb'•
W 6'  \       R'

ze59 0 $[ T 3 4' IRON PIPE M1TH PIASPC PLUG' PLS 7788'
J a

o

T_\. 00' d J,     0.   /      '`'          0j3'(=
15( 01'       

Q SEf 2- 1/ 2'" IRON PIPE N1TH PUSiIC PLUC' PLS 7788"

l a 3/ 1' WON PIPE NIiH PUSTC PWG' PLS 7798' PER( R. 2i.
UNLE55 O711ERNISE NOiEDm

N13 1' 41' E R SET 3. 00' MTNESS CORNER( W. C.), UNLESS OiHERW15E N07E, AIEASURED

ALONG LOi LINE, RADIAL LINE OR PQ2PEN ICULAR TO SiREET CENIERLME

ti   / AS NOIED. 3 1" a 24' IRON% PE M17H PUS71C PLUG P15 7788"

p g 3' ly      `..   ...___
l h

i•

FUE
b 5' 

60. 00'    200. 00'( R1) MEASURED AND RECORD DATA PER REFERENCE( R1)

R1)    FllOTES REFERENCE( R1)- SEE REFERENCE IJST ON SHEET 2

q
ry

4,   4- B)   MONUYENT TO BWNDARY
rv m o.,       

N ^    /  Y- CL INn NONUMENi TO CQJIERLME IN7ERSEC170N
O

P'
E
y       j i    M- AI)   MONUYENT TO A/ ONUAIENT

E rv

N-
r955

N  / O    /
N8508' OB' E'.} C. O'( t)    -      

55 fi
i)     TOTAL

B)     BWNDARY

PARCEL 3       /    
2

i Q    /     P. LLE.   PUBLIC i1711JTY EASEAIENT
2. fi6 AC

j S. O. E SiIX2N RAM EASEMENf

PARCEL 4 ar ur+e

J Po'     1. 78 AC
RIGH7-0E- WAY LME

BOUN MY

i EASEAIENT IJNE

Ia' P J., 

J
b,, jQpQ. l   o I MONUMENi LINE

1___-_--____      5        4,      Iy  ,.    
N      

PA C'_ b CEN7ERl1NE

261. 83( T)      YaA Y 38 9 R 2
NBS' OB. OB• E

r'   Ll!!

I
m U IN6912' 10' R

RES7RIC7ED ACCESS

C    ZB_ 32 O ' Z    ¢    O EASEMENT REFERENCE NUMBER- SEE SHEET 7

m
ryg5p8' OB' E 290. 16'( M- W)     ENSLEN AVENUE

206. 875'   C80  
N0425' 18' R Ilo     .

40'  

PqhArye
N pg.

0.f,
µ..

3r

PARCELG C79( T)L91 1 -   S rqi

c
D' N35' V2' 01' E(

R),      PARCEL

4 C 3 0       _    N78D3'

S1•    

N Nes oe' oe' c zo6. 5( p csa v PARCELG w rog..     Nsar STACE 2A O 10. 103 S. F.       
Wa  LEYFE EASEAIENi     '.N1873' 29 E( R) L18 pg,      

g 1

l N21' 09' S5' R R= 79'      N)       
X4`

j N09' 3557' E( R) R=

609'       
S3 aW

II.
Og'   N5028' I7' E( R1       J Q     ,

qRGeL $ 1 OSTAGE 2A IEYEE/% C55      \

5j    TRAC? 3BO8 fr

Z2JlJl-.EASENENT N78' I8' S3" R R=
50'N18Y3' 43' E( R) R= 500'   C5,

7-`---

7 _PP RGEi. 
G DEi41_ L \ 

css   • '_      PARGcL

G THncr aecB
iH2zi sEE rHis sHEEr        __ J     DETAILE r acr aeog i

2zi Ncr ro

scue PAGE

132



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS
0

RECORDATION' OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

December 10, 2018

Via Email and First Class Mail

Old Republic Title Company
3558 Deer Park Drive, Suite 103
Stockton, CA 95219

Attn:  Karen Sayles

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 3991; Escrow No. 1614020160

Dear Karen:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Instructions") of River

Islands Development, LLC, a California limited liability company (" R/D"), and the City of

Lathrop (" Cit') in connection with the above- referenced escrow (" Escrovd'). The

Escrow was opened in connection with recordation of.the above-referenced final map
Final Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.

The transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the
Transaction."  Old Republic Title Company is referred to as " you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for Closinqs

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designated by RID as set forth below. The
Final Map can only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The
closing date for the Transaction is intended to occur by December 31, 2018, at the time
designated in writing by RID, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below
each a " Closing"). If the Final Map has not been recorded by June 30, 2019, ORTC will

return the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Documents

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the

following documents from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin
County, California (" Official Records").

B1. One original Final Map for Tract 3991, executed and acknowledged by the City.

B2. One original Common Use Agreement for the Stage 2A Portion of Enslen

Avenue by and between the City of Lathrop and Island Reclamation District No.
2062, executed and acknowledged by the City. ,

The document( s) listed above are referred to as the " Recordafion Documents." The

Recordation Documents shall be recorded in the order referred to above. The date on
which the Recordation Documents are recorded in the Official Records is the
Recordation Date.

1

133



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received, or will receive from RID, prior to the recordation of the
Recordation Documents, in immediately available funds, the following amounts, in
accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both RID and City (" Seftlement Statemenf'):  recordation costs, escrow fees and other

amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees and other amounts
are the sole responsibility of RID.,

Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity set forth below, immediately upon
recordation of the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer instructions for each
entity are set forth below:

The amount of$ 84,959. 12, payable to the City pursuant to that certain
Agreement to Settle Litigation Regarding River Islands at Lathrop, as amended

Sierra Club Agreement"), constituting the amount of$ 3, 076. 00 multiplied by
27. 62 acres ( or portion thereof) included in the Final Map, is to be transferred to
the City upon recordation of the Final Map.  The City's wire instructions are set
forth below.  ( Note: Parcels 1- 4 reserved for future use.)

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the " Closing Funds."

D.       Closinq Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time( s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1. You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to:' Susan Dell' Osso ( sdellosso( a) riverislands. com), Debbie Belmar

dbelmar( a riverislands. com), Stephen Salvatore ( ssalvatoreCa ci. lathrop.ca. us), Salvador

Navarrete ( snavarreteC ci. lathrop. ca. us), Cari James ( ciamesCu ci. lathrop. ca. us) and Glenn
Gebhardt( aaebhardtCa ci. lathrop. ca. us), and have confirmation ( by telephone or email) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement is
accurate and acceptable.

D. 2. You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions.

D. 3. The Recordation Documents and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you and have
been fully executed and, where applicable, acknowledged, and you have attached all
legal descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached.

D. 4. You are prepared to record the Recordation Documents, as

designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete
the Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions.

D. 5. You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by

2

134



JOINT ESCR011V INSTRUCTION

RECOI D TION OF FIId 4L MAP

FZIVEf ISLANDS i4T L THROP)

email transmission (with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and
Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set forth above.

D. 6. You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation
Documents and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinco Process and Priorities

VVhen you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.  Date the Recordation Documents to be recorded.

E. 2.  Record the Recordation Documents in the Official Records.

E. 3.  Pay the costs associated with the Transaction.

E. 4.  Refund any funds delivered to you by RID that are not disbursed
at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the following
entity and address:

River Islands Development, LLC

73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn:  Susan Dell' Osso

E. 5. Notify Susan Dell' Osso, Debbie Belmar, Stephen Salvatore, Glenn
Gebhardt and Jose Molina ( JMolina@sjgov. org) of the completion of the Transaction.     

E. 6.  Within five ( 5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver
by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier to:  ( 1) Susan

Dell' Osso, River Islands Development, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA 95330;
and ( 2) Mr. Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
Lathrop, CA 95330:

A)   A certified copy of the Recordation Documents, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Documents; and

B)   A certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Addi#ionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.
Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow
agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,

3

135



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Stephen J. Salvatore Susan Dell' Osso

City Manager President

City of Lathrop River Islands Development, LLC

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RID and the City is hereby
acknowledged. The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed
in strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions.  The undersigned represents and
warrants to RID and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:
its:

Date:

4

136



ITEM 4,'

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 10, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: REQUEST TO TERMINATE THE INTERIM LEVEE

IMPACT FEE AND REPLACE IT WITH A

REGIONAL LEVEE IMPACT FEE IN THE

MOSSDALE TRACT BASIN AREA

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt Resolution, Approving a Regional Levee
Impact Fee Collection Agreement with S7AFCA

and Cities of Lathrop, Manteca, Stockton and

San 7oaquin County in the Mossdale Tract

Basin Area and Terminate the Lathrop Interim
Levee Impact Fee

SUMMARY•

In January 2017,  Lathrop City Council approved an Interim Development Levee
Impact Fee.. Larsen Wurzel  & Associates  ( co nsultant),  on behalf of the Cities of

Lathrop and Manteca, prepared an Interim Urban Level of Flood Protection ( ULOP)

Development Impact Fee Nexus Study ( Nexus Study), related to the Reclamation

District 17 ( RD 17) Area ( hereinafter referred to as the Mossdale Tract Basin Area).

This Nexus Study provided the basis for a levee improvement development impact
fee ( Interim Levee Fee) to ensure that new development pays its proportionate share

of the levee improvement costs needed to provide 200- year Urban Level of Flood
Protection ( ULOP) to the Mossdale Tract Basin Area.

On January 8, 2018, Council approved the Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of
Powers Agreement ( JEPA) for the 5an Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency ( SJAFCA)

to include the City of Lathrop and the City of Manteca as Members of the JEPA. Prior
to the reorganization of SJAFCA to include the Cities of Lathrop and Manteca, funding
for the Mossdale Tract ULOP Program advanced with a combination of funding from
those Cities and development interests.

On November 8, 2018, the SJAFCA' s Board of Directors ( Board) voted unanimously
to approve the Mossdale Tract Regional Levee Impact Fee Program. This fee would

replace the Interim Fees in the Cities of Lathrop and Manteca once the proposed
SJAFCA Fee program is fully in place. As such, the fee needs to be collected by the
member agencies.  

Therefore, staff recommends the Council approve the following actions;  1.) A fee
collection agreement with the 5] AFCA, and 2.) Terminate the L-athrop Interim Levee
Impact Fee once the SJAFCA fee becomes effective ( January 8, 2019).

137



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVING A REGIONAL LEVEE IMPACT FEE COLLECTION AGREEMENT

WITH S) AFCA AND CITIES OF LATHROP, MANTECA, STOCKTON AND S) C IN

THE MOSSDALE TRACT BASIN AREA AND TERMINATE THE LATHROP

INTERIM LEVEE IMPACT FEE

BACKGROUND•

In 2007,  the Legislature passed California Senate Bill 5  ( SB5),  which was later

amended by various other bills.  SB5 requires the State to develop and adopt a
comprehensive Central Valley Flood Protection Plan ( CVFPP), which was approved by
the Central Valley Flood Protection Board in June 2012. SB5 restricts development

beyond July 2, 2016, unless a permitting agency can make a finding of " Adequate
Progress" toward providing an Urban Level of Flood Protection ( ULOP), which includes

protection from a 200- year flood.

The existing Reclamation District 17  ( RD 17)  levees currently do not meet the
updated DWR 200- year urban levee design criteria ( ULDC) standards adopted in May
2012,  and the existing levees are not currently certified to provide 200-year
protection. Accordingly, the land use agencies, in coordination with RD 17, are jointly
pursuing efforts to achieve ULOP by 2025.

Prior to the reorganization of SJAFCA to include the Cities of Lathrop and Manteca in
January 2018, funding for the Mossdale Tract ULOP Program was advanced w.ith a
combination of funding from those Cities and development interests.  As part of that

funding process, it was understood by those development interests that any funding
provided would ultimately be creditable toward any future funding obligations
associated with their development projects,   including and in particular,   any
development impact fee program established to fund levee improvements.

The exact details of how those fee credits would be applied have not been previously
formalized.   With SJAFCA' s assumption of the management of the program  ( the

Mossdale Tract Program as a whole as well as the Regional Development Fee Program
itself), SJAFCA would be responsible for controlling how any Fee credits are calculated
advance funding, developer construction and dedication of fee- funded facilities) and

applied.  SJAFCA has developed a set of Fee Crediting policies and principles to ensure
that through the collection proce' ss,  the crediting processes are administered

equitably and consistently throughout the basin.

In coordination with the Land Use Agencies,  staff and SJAFCA consultants have

developed and included within the Collection Agreement a set .of Fee Crediting and
Reimbursement Principles ( Exhibit B to the Agreement) which are summarized as

follows:

Creditable Funding will consist of all " Prior Advance Funding" collected and

documented within a Credit & Reimbursement Analysis ( Credit Study) to be

prepared by SJAFCA.
That creditable funding will be applicable to all of those development projects
identified within the Credit Study.

138



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVING A REGIONAL LEVEE IMPACT FEE COLLECTION AGREEMENT

WITH S7AFCA AND CITIES OF LATHROP, MANTECA, STOCKTON AND S7C IN

THE MOSSDALE TRACT BASIN AREA AND TERMINATE THE LATHROP

INTERIM LEVEE IMPACT FEE

The obligation to fund Levee Improvements will be based on all undeveloped

acreage within the identified projects in the Credit Study as of April 2017 ( when
Lathrop and Manteca adopted their Interim Development Fee Programs).
All development with issued building permits as of January 8,  2019  ( when

SJAFCA' s development fee program is effective) is considered to be absorbed

and will have a fee obligation based upon the fee rate effective on that date.

All funding provided will first be used to satisfy this fee obligation and will then
be applied proportionately to all remaining acreage on a pro- rata basis.
Going forward, from January 8, 2019, each development permit pulled will be
required to fund the remaining proportional amount of DIF due on an acreage
basis.      

Any developer constructed facilities will be afforded credit for the construction
of those facilities based upon the terms of an agreement between the Land
Use Agency and SJAFCA.  Any credits for developer construction facilities will
be utilized in the same manner as Prior Advance Funding.
In the event that a Developer is due a reimbursement as a result of providing
more funding than a project' s Fee obligation,  reimbursements will only be
provided from the collection of future Fees from other development projects in
the future.

Reimbursements will only be provided- in the future once levee improvement
program has been completed and certified unless otherwise determined by
S] AFCA that payment of such reimbursements is financially feasible and legally
defensible by SJAFCA.

For Land Use Agencies that are due a reimbursement for providing funding to
advance the program in advance of January 1, 2018 ( not including funding
provided by Interim Seed Money Funding Agreement dated June 12, 2018), no

reimbursements should be paid from development fees until all levee

improvement project costs are paid, and the levee improvement program has
been completed and certified,  unless otherwise determined by SJAFCA that
payment of such reimbursements is financially feasible and legally defensible
by SJAFCA.      
For Land Use Agencies due to repayment pursuant to the Interim Seed Money
Funding Agreement dated June 12, 2018, repayment will be made consistent
with Section 6 of that Agreement.

S7AFCA APPROVED FEE

On November 8, 2018, the SJAFCA Board of Districts approved the Mossdale Tract
Area Regional Urban Level of Flood Protection Development Impact Fee,  and

delegated authority to the Executive Director to execute a collection agreement with
the Cities of Lathrop, Manteca and Stockton and San Joaquin County substantially in
the form attached and subject to the review and approval by Agency Counsel.

139



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 4

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVING A REGIONAL LEVEE IMPACT FEE COLLECTION AGREEMENT

WITH SJAFCA AND CITIES OF LATHROP, MANTECA, STOCKTON AND SJC IN

THE MOSSDALE TRACT BASIN AREA AND TERMINATE THE LATHROP

INTERIM LEVEE IMPACT FEE

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the City Council approve the Agreement for Collection of
SJAFCA Mossdale Tract Area Regional Urban Level of Flood Protection Development

Impact Fee once the DIF becomes effective  ( currently scheduled for January 8,
2019). The Collection Agreement commits the city to collect the 5] AFCA Mossdale
Tract Area Regional Urban Level of Flood Protection Development Impact Fee ( DIF)

as a condition of issuance of a building permit within the Program Area ( Attachment
C). Lathrop also commits to transmit to SJAFCA all amounts of DIF collected, minus
the hold- back processing fee to be retained by Lathrop.

FISCAL IMPACT

Proposed and Current Development Impact Fee ( DIF) are as follows:

Proposed City Interim Fee
Regional Efifective

Fee Rates 4/ 7/2017, per Difference

Land Use Per GDA)       GDA)

Single Family Residential 18, 692 17, 054 1, 638

Multi- Family Residential 17, 021 18, 667 1, 646

Commercial 17, 702 19, 236 1, 534

Industrial 14, 729 15, 080 351

The SJAFCA DIF was calculated based upon refinement of the development projects

from the land use agencies. Except for the single- family residential development, the
SJAFCA Fee represents a reduction in cost when compared to the Lathrop Interim
Levee Fee. However, since the SJAFCA fee assurpes a greater density of homes per
acre, based upon projections, the cost per home has reduced as well.

The Development Fee will be collected by the Land Use Agencies in accordance with
an Agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency Mossdale Tract
Area Regional Urban Level of Flood Protection Development Impact Fee.

ATTAC H M E NTS•

A.       Resolution Approving a Regional Levee Impact Fee Collection Agreement with
SJAFCA and Cities of Lathrop, Manteca, Stockton and San ] oaquin County in
the Mossdale Tract Basin Area and Terminate the Lathrop Interim Levee
Impact Fee.       .       

B.       Collection Agreement with 5] ACA for the Mossdale Tract Area

C.       Map of Mossdale Tract Program Area

140



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 5

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVING A REGIONAL LEVEE IMPACT FEE COLLECTION AGREEMENT

WITH S7AFCA AND CITIES OF LATHROP, MANTECA, STOCKTON AND S7C IN

THE MOSSDALE TRACT BASIN AREA AND TERMINATE THE LATHROP

INTERIM LEVEE IMPACT FEE

APPROVALS:

Z   / 8
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engirieer

VG,( S      Q.   IQYw   -  Iz' o- 1$.

Cari James  . Date

Finance Director

L— _/1
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z'' 8
Step n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

141



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A REGIONAL LEVEE IMPACT FEE COLLECTION AGREEMENT     

WITH SJAFCA AND CITIES OF LATHROP, MANTECA,, STOCKTON AND SAN

OAQUIN COUNTY IN THE MOSSDALE TRACT BASIN AREA AND TERMINATE

THE LATHROP INTERIM LEVEE IMPACT FEE

WHEREAS,  in January 2017,  Lathrop City Council approved an Interim
Development Levee Impact Fee prepared by Larsen Wurzel  & Associates for the

Urban Level of Flood Protection ( ULOP) Interim Development Impact Fee Nexus Study
Nexus Study), related to the Reclamation District 17 Area ( hereinafter referred to

as the Mossdale Tract Basin. Area); and

WHEREAS, on January 8, 2018, Lathrop City Council approved the Amended
and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement ( JEPA) for the an Joaquin Area

Flood Control Agency ( S] AFCA) to include the City of Lathrop and the City of Manteca
as Members of the JEPA; and

WHEREAS, on November 8, 2018, the SJAFCA' s Board of Directors ( Board)

voted unanimously to approve the Mossdale Tract Regional Levee Impact Fee
Program; and

WHEREAS, SJAFCA has requested that the Land Use Agencies, as a condition

of issuance of a building permit for new development in the Program Area that is
within each of the Land Use Agency' s land use authority, collect and transmit to

SJAFCA the applicable Development Impact Fee for the development project for

which such building permit is to be issued; and

WHEREAS, this development impact fee would replace the Interim Fees in the

Cities of Lathrop and Manteca once the proposed SJAFCA Fee program is fully in      .
place; and

WHEREAS, Collection Agreement includes Fee Crediting and Reimbursement
Principals.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Gity Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control
Agency Mossdale Tract Area Regional Urban Level of Flood Protection Development
Impact Fee; and

NOW, THEREFORE FURTHER, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of
the City of Lathrop terminates the Lathrop Interim Levee Impact Fee once SJAFCA
Levee Fee is effective ( currently scheduled for January 8, 2019).

142



PASSED AND 4DOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this 10tn
day of December, 2018, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIIV:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:       APPRO!/ ED A TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

143



c s

AGREEMENT FOR COLLECTION OF

SAN JOAQUIN AREA FLOOD CONTROL AGENCY

MOSSDALE TRACT AREA REGIONAL URBAN LEVEL OF

FLOOD PROTECTION DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE

This Agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency Mossdale Tract

Area Regional Urban Level of Flood Protection Development Impact Fee(" Agreement") is made

and entered into on the date it is effective pursuant to Section 12 by and among the following

parties:

a. City of Stockton, hereinafter referred to as " Stockton";

b. County of San Joaquin, hereinafter referred to as " County";

c. City of Lathrop, hereinafter referred to as " Lathrop;" and

d. City of Manteca, hereinafter referred to as " Manteca."

A signatory to this Agreement is referred to herein as a Party, and collectively each Party is referred

to as the Parties.

RECITALS
r

WHEREAS, in January of 2018, Stockton, County, the San Joaquin County Flood Control

and Water Conservation District (" SJCFCWCD"), Lathrop, and Manteca executed an Amended

and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement(" JEPA") to reform the San Joaquin Area Flood

Control Agency(" Agency") with a common goal of expanding the Agency to allow a coordinated

effort to reduce flood risk in the Mossdale Tract Area( the " Program").

WHEREAS, SJAFCA, through certain state legislation and through the execution of the

Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, has legal authority to prescribe,

revise and collect fees as a condition of development of land ( JEPA Section 7.m) for the purpose

of assisting in the financing of flood control facilities, including the authority to make such fees

Page 1 of 12

Agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency
Development Impact Fee

1532600. 5

144



applicable to development of land within the County,  Stockton,  Lathrop,  and Manteca

collectively, " the Land Use Agencies").

WHEREAS,  SJAFCA has exercised this authority by approving lZesolution 18- 21

Establishing the San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency Mossdale Tract Area Regional Urban

Level of Flood Protection Development Impact Fee (" DIF Resolution"), which is attached hereto

as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference, for the purpose of assisting in the financing

of levee improvements and related flood risk reduction measures necessary to provide at least a

200- year level of flood protection to lands within the 200- year floodplain along the San Joaquin

River in the Mossdale Tract Area (" Program Area")  and to thereby offset the increase in

damageable property that is placed in the levee protected floodplain as new development occurs

in this area.

WHEREAS, SJAFCA has called for the preparation of the Mossdale Tract Area Regional

Urban Level of Flood Protection Development Impact Fee Nexus Study (" Nexus Study") which

is attached as Exhibit 1 to the DIF Resolution, that describes and determines the applicable

Mossdale Tract Area Regional Urban Level of Flood Protection Development Impact Fee(" DIF")

and sets forth the required findings required by Government Code Section 66000 et. seq.

WHEREAS, SJAFCA has requested that the Land Use Agencies, as a condition of issuance

of a building permit for new development in the Program Area, as shown on Exhibit 1 to the DIF

Resolution ( Figure 1 in the Nexus Study), that is within each of the Land Use Agency' s land use

authority, collect and transmit to SJAFCA the applicable DIF for the development project for

which such building permit is to be issued.

WHEREAS, the Land Use Agencies are willing and desire to collect the DIF and to

transmit the DIF to SJAFCA, and the Land Use Agencies and SJAFCA desire to set forth the

standards applicable to the collection of the DIF.

COVENANTS

In consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto

agree as follows:

Page 2 of 12

Agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency
Development Impact Fee

1532600. 5

145



1.       Incorporation of Recitals. The above recitals are incorporated in this Agreement by

reference.

2. Collection and Transmission of DIF. Commencing January 8, 2019, the Land Use

Agencies shall collect the DIF as a condition of issuance of a building permit for any building, for

which a building permit is required, located in the Program Area( as shown in Exhibit 1 to the DIF

Resolution).  The Land Use Agencies shall transmit to SJAFCA all amounts of the DIF that have

been collected, minus the hold- back processing fee for the Land Use Agencies adopted pursuant

to the Nexus Study. The methodology for computing the DIF, together with other procedural

criteria, are specified in the Nexus Study.

3.       Deposit of DIF.  SJAFCA shall establish a separate capital facilities account into

which the Land Use Agencies shall, at least quarterly, deposit the DIF funds collected by the Land

Use Agencies.  Any interest earned on the DIF while held by the Land Use Agency shall also be

deposited by the Land Use Agency.    

4.       Periodic Update of the DIF. SJAFCA shall promptly notify the Land Use Agencies

following any adjustments made by SJAFCA to the DIF. The Land Use Agencies shall commence

collection of the adjusted DIF sixty( 60) calendar days following such notification.

5.       Application of Fee Crediting and Reimbursement Policies.  The Parties agree that

in order to have a fair application of this Agreement, the DIF and the funds it will generate within

each Land Use Agency, it is necessary to agree to principles which will be applied by any Land

Use Agency when certain conditions occur. In such cases, the Land Use Agencies agree to apply

the principles contained in E ibit B to this Agreement. The relevant conditions are as follows:

a.   The Land Use Agenc has previously collected funds pursuant to a funding

agreement with a developer in advance of when the fee would otherwise be

due pursuant to the DIF Resolution and the funds are to be used to plan,

design, and/ or construct a portion of the Program; or,

b.  The Land Use A ency has entered into an agreement with a developer to

plan, design and/ or construct a portion of the Program; or,

Page 3 of 12

Agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency
Development Impact Fee

153260D. 5

146



r

c.   The Land Use Aegncy itself has funded the planning,  design and/ or.

construction of a portion of the Program. 

6.       Refunds. In the event that a Land Use Agency collects the DIF or a portion of the

DIF in error, the Land Use Agency will recalculate the correct DIF amount, process a refund to

the customer, if.necessary, and notify SJAFCA of this action. SJAFCA shall promptly refund any

amount due to the Land Use Agency as a result of such error, or upon request of the Land iJse

Agency shall work with the Land Use Agency to true- up amounts owing in conjunction with the

Land Use Agency forwarding future DIFs.  In the event that a Land Use Agency requests that

SJAFCA process a refund due to a building permit expiring without construction taking place,

SJAFCA shall promptly process such refund to the Land Use Agency minus any costs incurred by

SJAFCA in processing such refund. 

7.       Pavment of DIF under Protest.  Pursuant to Title 7, Division 1, Chapter 9 of the

California Governmenf' Code, commencing with § 66020, any aggrieved landowner shall be

entitled to pay the applicable DIF to a Land Use Agency under protest. The protest procedures set

forth therein shall apply to the DIF paid under protest.

8.       Appeal. SJAFCA' s.Board of Directors shall hear all appeals for waiver or reduction

in SJAFCA' s DIF. The Board of Directors may adopt such policies as it wishes for the processing

of the appeal and shall have the sole authority to grant or deny the appeal. Within 5 business days

following the final action of its Board of Directors regarding an appeal, SJAFCA shall notify the

affected Land Use Agency in writing of its determination.

9. Compensation of Land Use Aegncies; In consideration for collecting the DIF and

consistent with the hold-back provided for in Section 2, SJAFCA shall reimburse the Land Use

Agencies for their cost of time and materials for calculating, reporting, collecting, and processing

functions. Such costs shall include the time and materials expended by, but not limited to,

employees of the relevant Community Services Department, the Auditor-Controller's department,

the Land Use Agencies' administrative office, and the information technology department.  The

Parties agree that a charge of 3% of the DIF is a reasonable estimate of the Land Use Agencies'

cost of time and materials for calculating, reporting, collecting, and processing of the DIF. Each

Land Use Agency and SJAFCA may agree to a different amount that reflects the Land Use

Page 4 of 12

Agreement for Collection ofSan Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency
Development Impact Fee

1532600. 5

147



Agency' s actual cost of collection by executing a letter agreement without the need to amend this

Agreement.

10.      Indemnification.

a.   Except as provided in Section 10.b., SJAFCA agrees to" indemnify, hold

harmless and defend the Land Use Agencies, their Board of Supervisors or City Council, officers,

directors, agents and employees from and against any and all demands, liabilities, claims, actions,

costs, damages, losses, litigation or expenses ( including attorney' s fees) arising out of or in any

way related to, directly or indirectly, any action taleen by the Land Use Agencies to collect the DIF

and/ or their performance of the obligations of this Agreement. This indemnification shall extend

and apply to any claim, demand, or litigation pertaining to the lawfulness or validity of the

SJAFCA DIF.

b.  Each Land Use Agency agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend

SJAFCA, its Board of Director, officers, agents and employees from and against any and all

demands, liabilities, claims, actions, costs, damages, losses, litigation or expenses ( including

attorney's fees) arising out of or in any way related to, directly or indirectly, any criminal, reckless,

or wrongful action taken by the Land Use Agency or its employees in the collection or processing
of the DIF.     .

11.      Notices. Notice to be provided to any Party to this Agreement arising out ofmatters

pertaining to this Agreement shall be addressed as follows:

For County and SJCFCWCD:

San Joaquin County Department of Public Works

ATTN: Public Works Director

P. O. Box 1810

Stockton, California 95201

For City of Lathrop:

City of Lathrop

Page 5 of 12

Agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency
Development Impact Fee

15326005
r

148



ATTN: Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

For City of Manteca:

City of Manteca

ATTN: Lisa Blackmon, City Clerk

1001 W. Center Street

Manteca, CA 95337

For City of Stockton:

City of Stockton Community Development Department

ATTN: Community Development Director

424 N. El Dorado Street

Stockton, CA 95202

Any party may change the address to which subsequent notice and/ or other communications can

be sent by' giving written notice designating- a change of address to the other Parties, which shall

be effective upon receipt.

12.      Term. This Agreement shall be effective once executed by SJAFCA and one of the

Land Use Agencies, as to SJAFCA and that Land Use Agency, and then shall be effective as to

each additional Land Use Agency once executed by that Land Use Agency, and shall end when

either( i) SJAFCA terminates the Agreement in accordance with Section 13, or ( ii) all four Land

Use Agencies have terminated the Agreement in accordance with Section i 3.

13.      Withdrawal from Agreement.  Any Land Use Agency that has executed this

Agreement, or SJAFCA, may withdraw from this Agreement by giving the other Parties at least

six ( 6) months written notice of withdrawal. In the event of withdrawal by a Land Use Agency,

that Land Use Agency shall, within 10 days of effective withdrawal, cause to be deposited into

SJAFCA' s separate capital facilities account all DIF funds collected prior to withdrawal.

Page 6 of 12

Agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency
Development Impact Fee

1532600. 5

149



14.      Modifications. This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the Parties and

no alteration, amendment, variation, or waiver of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless

made in writing and signed by all Parties. Waiver by any Party of any default, breach or condition

precedent shall not be construed as a waiver of any other default, breach or condition precedent,

or any other right hereunder.

15.      Governin Laws and Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be. deemed to have been

executed and to be performed within the State of California and shall be construed and governed

by the internal laws of the State of California. Any legal proceedings arising out of or relating to

this Agreement shall be brought in the Superior Court of San 7oaquin County, California.

16.      Assignment; Binding on Successors.  The rights and duties of the Parties may not

be assigned or delegated without the written consent of all other Parties. Any attempt to assign or

delegate such rights or duties in contravention of this Agreement shall be null and void. This

Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors of the Parties

hereto, respectively. Any approved assignment or delegation shall be consistent with the terms of

any contracts, resolutions, indemnities and other obligations of the Agency then in effect.      

17.      Interpretation. This Agreement shall be deemed to have been prepared equally by

all of the Parties, and the Agreement and its individual provisions. shall not be construed or

interpreted more favorably for one Party on the basis that another Party prepared it.

1
18.      Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire contract between the

Parties regarding the collection, deposit, and reporting of the DIF. Any prior agreements, regarding

the subject matter of this Agreement are hereby terminated effective immediately upon full

execution of this Agreement.      

19.      Severabilitv.  Should any part, term or provision of this Agreement be decided by

any court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law of the State of

California, or otherwise be rendered unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining

portions or provisions shall not be affected thereby.

Page 7 of 12

Agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency
Development Impact Fee

1532600. 5

150



20.      Duplicate Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in duplicate

counterparts. The Agreement shall be deemed executed when it has been signed by SJAFCA and

at least one of the Land Use Agencies.

21.      Interpretation.  For purposes of this Agreement, references to " he" shall mean and

include" she," references to" him" shall mean and include" her," and references to" his" shall mean

and include" hers."

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed

on the day and year first above- written.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed

on the day and year first above-written.

COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN CITY OF STOCKTON,

a political subdivision of the State of California a municipal Corporation

By:  ROBERT V. ELLIOTT By:
Title:  Chairman, Board of Supervisors Title:

ATTEST:    ATTEST:

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Clerk of the City of Stockton
of the County of San Joaquin,
State of California

By: MIMI DUZENSKI By:
Title:  Clerk Title:

Page 8 of 12

Agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency
Development Impact Fee

1532600. 5

151



RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:    CITY OF LATHROP,

a municipal Corporation

By:  KRIS BALAJI By: STEPHEN J. SALVATORE
Title:  Director of Public Works Title: City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM ATTEST:

Clerk of the City of Lathrop

By:  LAWRENCE P. MEYERS By: TERESA VARGAS
Title:  Deputy County Counsel Title: City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney

By: SALVADORIVAVARRETE
Title: City Attorney

CITY OF MANTECA,

a municipal Corporation

By:
Title:

ATTEST:

Clerk of the City of Manteca

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney

By:
Title:

Page 9 of 12

Agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency
Development Impact Fee

1532600. 5

152



SAN JOAQUIN AREA FLOOD CONTROL APPROVED AS TO FORM:

AGENCY Agency Counsel

By:  CHRIS ELIAS
Title:  Executive Director

By: Scott L. Shapiro

Page 10 of 12

Agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency
Development Impact Fee

1532600. 5

153



EXHIBIT A

DIF Resolution

7'o be inse ted once approved)

Page 11 of 12

Agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency
Development Impact Fee

1532600. 5

154



RESOLUTION NO. SJAFCA 18-21

SAN JOAQUIN AREA
FLOOD CONTROL AGENCY

3

ADOPTING THE

M SSDALE TRACT AREA REGIONAL URBAN LEVEL

4F FLOOD PROTECTI N DEVELOPMENT 1MPACT FEE
AND

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO

EXECUTE A COLLECTION AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, in January of 2018 the City of Stock on ( Stockton), the County of San
Joaquin ( County), the San Joaquin County Flood Cantrol and Water Conservation           
Disfiricfi (" SJCFCWCD"), the City of Lathrop ( Lathrop}, and the City of Manteca
Manteca) executed an Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
JEPA") to reform the San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency(" Agency") with a

common goal of expanding the Agency to a[ low a coordinated effort to reduce flood risk
in the Mossdale Tract Area ( the " Program").

WHEREAS, SJAFCA, thraugh certain state legislation and through the executian of the

Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, has legal authority to
prescribe, revise and co[ lect fees as a condition of development of land ( JEPA Section

7. m) for the purpose of assisting in the financing of flood control facilities, including the
authority to make such fees applicable to development of land within the County,
Stockton, Lathrap, and Manteca ( collectively, " the Land Use Agencies").

WHEREAS, after giving notice pursuanf to California Government Code Section 6062a,
a public hearing was held pursuant to Califomia Government Code Section 66018 on
November 8, 2018 at the regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors of the
Agency( the " Board"); 

WHEREAS, at such hearing, Agency staff presented the Mossdale Tract Area Regional
Urban Leve! of Fload Protection Development Impact Fee Nexus Study(" Nexus Study")
regarding the imposifiion of a Development Impact Fee pursuant to the Mitigation Fee
Act on new development' within certain boundaries.  The Nexus Study ( attached hereto
as Exhibit 1) was prepared and the Development lmpact Fee is proposed to be imposed
for the purpose of assisting in the financing of levee improvements and related flood rislc
reduction measures necessary to provide at least a 200-year level of flood protection to
lands within the 200- year floadplain along the San Joaquin River in the Mossdale Tract
Area (" Program Area") and to thereby offset the increase in damageable property that is
placed in the levee protected floodplain as new development occurs in this area; and

WHEREAS, at such public hearing, written and oral presentations from interested
members of the public regarding such Nexus Study and adoption of such a
Development Impact Fee were accep#ed and considered by the Board of Directors.  

SJAFCA Resolution 18- 21

Page 1 of 3

1535353. 1

155



WHEREAS, SJAFCA has requested that the Land Use Agencies, as a condition of
issuance of a building permit for new development in the Program Area that is within
each of the Land Use Agency' s land use authority, collect and transmit to SJAFCA the
applicable Development Impact Fee for fihe development project for which such building
permit is to be issued, and the L.and Use Agencies have expressed a willingness to do
so,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE Il' RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

1.       The Baard adopts the Nexus Study and the Development Impact Fee as
described therein.  Such Nexus Study is hereby made a part of this Resolution.

2.       The Board hereby finds th at there is a reasonable relationship between
use of,the Development Impact Fee, as described in the Nexus Study, and the types of
clevelopment projects described therein. 

3.       The Board finds that there is a reasonable relationship between the need
for the public facilities and the type of developmenfi projects on which the fee is imposed
as' described in the Nexus Study.

f

4.       The Board finds that there is a reasonable relationship between the
amount of the Development Fee and the cost of the public facilities or portions thereof
attributable to the development on which such fee is exposed, all as described in the
Nexus Study.       i

5.       The Development Fee wil! be collected by the Land Use Agencies in
accordance with an Agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control
Agency Mossdale Tract Area Regional Urban Level of Flood Protection Development
Impact Fee. The Board authorizes the Executive Director, after consultafiion wifh
Agency Counsel, to execute a collection agreemenfi substantially in the form presented
to the Board at the November 8, 2018 meeting.      

6.       Agency will create a special interest bearing fund entifiled " Development
Impact Fee Fund" into which all Develqpment Impact Fees { DIF) will be deposited and
held until disbursed in accordance with the provisions of the Mitigation Fee Act.

7.       Revenues within the Development Impact Fee Fund established by
Section 6 hereof may be used, at the discretion of the.Board of Trustees and to the i
exfient permitted by law to:     

i

Fund construcfiion of the DIF Projects identified in the Nexus Study;
Repay any loans or advances of funds for construetion of the DIF
Projects;

Fund principal and interest payments of any capital improvement
bonds or the retirement of any such bonds issued in connection
with the DIF Projects;

Fund costs re[ ated to the establishment and administration of the
DIF; and

SJAFCA Resofution 18- 21
Page 2 of 3

1535355. 1

156



Such other purposes as may be permitted by law.

8.       The Board shall periodically review actual DIF Project costs and DIF
collections to determine if any modifications to the development fee program are
warranted based on the following conditions:

o Changes to the DIF Projects;
o Changes in the cost of administering the DIF;
s Changes in annual financing costs;
o Changes in assumed land uses; and
o Changes in other funding sources.

These periodic reviews shall occur no less than every five years.  Any
modifications to the fee program shall be approved by the Board.

9.       Adoption of the DIF is not a " project" under the California Environmental

Quality Act because it is a funding mechanism having no physical effect on the
environment.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 8t" 

day of November, 2018.

K theri M, Miller, Chair
of he an Joaquin Area

Flo Control Agency

ATTEST:

HRIS ELIAS, Secretary
of the San Joaquin Area

Flood Control Agency

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

SC•      L. SHAP      , Legal Counsel

for e San Jo in Area

Flood Control Agency

SJAFCA Resolution 18- 21

Page 3 of 3

153 33. 1

157



EXHIBIT B

Crediting & Reimbursement Principles

Page 12 of 12
Agreement for Collection of San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency
Development Impact Fee

1532600. 5

158



y October 22, 2018

EXHIBITB

SAN .10AQUIN AREA FLOOD CONTROL AGEIVCY

MOSSDALE TRACTAREA REGIONAL URBAN LEVEL OF FLOOD PROTECTION

LEVEE IMPACT FEE CREDIT c REIMBURSEMENT POLICIES

UNDERLYING ASSUMPTIONS

The following are the underlying assumptions that predicate the establishment of credits and
reimbursements:

e All funding, in- kind services, or construction of facilities in furtherance of providing an Urban Level of
Flood Protection to Mossdale Tract Area, " Prior Advance Funding," was provided in advance of the

Reclamation District 17 Interim Levee Impact Fee ( Interim Levee Fee) and San Joaquin Area Flood

Control Agency ( SJAFCA) Regional Levee Fee ( Regional DIF) ( collectively, the Levee Fee) on behalf of
development projects will be identified by the tables in a " Credit & Reimbursement Analysis," to be

prepared by SJAFCA.

All Prior Advance Funding of the Levee Fee will be proportionately allocable to the individual tract
maps/ phases/ units/ villages in projects based upon a project' s gross developable acreage.

Development within a project is assumed to have an obligation to fund levee improvements for all

undeveloped gross developable acreage as of April 7, 2017 in Lathrop and April 22, 2017 in Manteca, the
effective dates ofthe Interim Fees adopted by Lathrop and Manteca.

Units within a project are assumed to have been previously absorbed if a permit for the unit has been
applied for before January 8, 2019, the effective date of SJAFCA' s Regional DIF.

The Levee Fee obligation for all remaining developable acreage in a project absorbed before January 8,
2019 are the Initial Fee Rates as identified in the November 8, 2018, Mossdale Tract Area Regional

Urban Level of Flood Protection Levee Impact Fee Nexus Study as adopted by SJAFCA Resolution= 18

on November 8, 2018 ( reference Table 1 of that Nexus Study).

The credit for Prior Advance Funding will be expressed in terms of GDAs and will be determined by
taking the amount of prior advance funding and dividing it by the Initial Fee Rates per GDA. The amount

of GDA credit will be set by this methodology and will not be recalculated in the future by the escalating
fee rate.

All permits that have previously been applied for before January 8, 2019, ( i. e.; absorbed) are assumed to
have been fully funded with credit from prior advance funding and no additional Levee Fees will be
required to be paid for these units.

For multiple projects that are being developed by a common landowner, if one project is determined to
have advance funded Levee Fees in excess of its obligation and is due a reimbursement, the

reimbursement will be applied and added to the credit of the next project currently underway with the
consent of the landowner.

PreporedbyLWA 1 Agendaltem4. 1_ EXHIBITB_ Part2 X62- 1801000CreditReimbursementPrinciples20181022. docx

159



October 22, 2018

CREDITING POLICY FOR PRIOR ADVANCE FUNDING

The Crediting Policy will allow for the use of the accumulated credit on a proportionate basis as the

remainder of a project is developed. The basis for the proportionality will be the ratio of Remaining Credit
Acreage to Total Remaining Acres to be developed.

Remaining Credit Acrea e" will be defined as the credit accumulated by the prior advance funding less
the amount of credit utilized by units that have been absorbed prior to January 8, 2019.

Total Remainin Acres" to be developed will be defined as the difference between the total

developable GDAs in a project and the amount of acres absorbed before January 9, 2019, or as
subsequently revised by the Land Use Agency and the Landowner.

Use of Prior Advance Funding Credit

As homes and/ or projects are constructed by permits applied for after January 9, 2019, the landowner will
fund a portion of the Levee Fee based on the relative proportionality between the remainder of a project
not able to be funded from the Remaining Credit Acreage and the Total Remaining Acres left in the project
after all previously absorbed units.

To implement this policy, the Land Use Agency will calculate this remaining amount of the Levee Fee due as
the individual building permits are issued for units to be constructed in the project. Collection of the Levee

Fee can be deferred consistent with any adopted fee deferral program by the Land Use agency.

CREDITING POLICY FOR CONSTRUCTION OF FACILITIES

Any Developer constructed facilities will be constructed pursuant to an agreement entered into between the

Land Use Agency and SJAFCA. The agreement will specify the maximum amount of credit that will be

afforded for the construction of the facility which will be the lesser of the estimated cost of the facility which
was the basis for the development fee program or the Developer' s actual construction cost(" Constructed

Facilities Funding Credit"). Constructed Facilities Funding Credit will be documented and provided when a

completed facility is accepted by the appropriate entity.

Use of Constructed Facilities Funding Credit

Use of Constructed Facilities Funding Credit will be consistent with the " Use of Advance Funding Credit"
described above.

REIMBIJRSEMENT POLICY FOR PRIOR ADVANCE FUNDING

For Development Projects due a reimbursement as a result of funding in excess of a Project' s Levee
Impact Fee Obligation

The reimbursement policy will be consistent with the following underlying principles.

Reimbursements will be only be paid from levee impact fees collected from other development
projects.

No reimbursements should be paid to a party advancing funds into the levee improvement program
until all levee improvement project costs are paid and the levee improvement program has been

completed and certified, unless otherwise determined by SJAFCA that payment of such

reimbursements is financially feasible and legally defensible by SJAFCA.

PreporedbyLWA 2 Agendaltem4. 1_ EXHIBITB Part2 X62- 1801000CreditReimbursementPrinciples20181022. docx

160



October22, 2018

The Board should make decisions that consider the impact to the Project and the services provided

to SJAFCA beneficiaries at large.

The Board should make decisions that consider the proportionality of the investment made into the
levee improvement program.

The Board should consider the timing of repayment of capital to those investing in the levee
improvement program.

For Land Use Agencies due a reimbursement as a result of funding provided to advance the Levee

Improvement Program in advance of January 1, 2018

The reimbursement policy will be consistent with the following underlying principles.

No reimbursements should be paid from development fees to a land use agency that advanced
funds into the levee improvement program until all levee improvement project costs are paid and

the levee improvement program has been completed and certified, unless otherwise determined by
SJAFCA that payment of such reimbursements is financially feasible and legally defensible by
SJAFCA.

The Board should make decisions that consider the impact to the Project and the services provided

to SJAFCA beneficiaries at large.

The Board should make decisions that consider the proportionality of the investment made into the
levee improvement program.

The Board should consider the timing of repayment of capital to those investing in the levee
improvement program.

For Land Use Agencies due repayment pursuant to the Interim Seed Money Funding Agreement dated
June 12, 2018

Repayment will be made consistent with Section 6 of that Agreement.

Prepared by LWA 3 Agenda l[em 4. 1_ EXNIBIT B Part 2_Xb2- 1803000 Credit Reimbursement Principles 2018 3022. dacx

161



ATTACHMENT >

ISLAND
r,. 

L, "'    `       `` 
404      

asE '

1        " 
G ,

y

kq

t     .      BOGGS TRAGT
s, 1M""'     '

1
c

q'
o        a.'

c

Yk
n 

Y 4

k 4     
s     ..       

F 1      O -' 
r+ F.   

11 , 1        `   1     , 
GK I

o

rt,

4 

t . t 1,  '   . t   ' 
Y GH. TY 

cE F
4.> ai

I 1 i I R
t i        - 1 os

r

2  _
O. l y

q   [     • 
4.       r

n:..  Y    .
F

l      y'..     .

f
r

T

126e
Y

X1 NS, C'Fri6
fa.     

s

524 r o N,.       
9,     .      ,       --•

r,     

z,

MIDDLE ROBERTS ISLAND
q

r , x b  c
s4 a +"       

i        

4 o'
i y..   p   ..       1.             . n R'. H      

1       .       ..,.        1

Stockton City Limits       4 W  ••'"    ;,- a  R Y,,

i   yT:

a

M+       
s.    u. wvvs

r
z

31
L r,   "      

N4a m

iNI. ND

1 YiyCEt.
F_'. Q

u

I

4 San Joaquin County i
Fr c1i'.  ,     ,       ,    

i

RIVf'
p

Yv..            J

Ca i   .,           ,._--    ,       
i REE     i .

p  .-       MAfHEWu
l .

n.         
iiwaan

E,

oNNy
IIh. •      "'.,!   O

OFN
5

lI1Ti.    ',   

I/

J - '   SNEFO h'      
C%

c

S 
f

OR,}

5

Hu. S. GP..... _   %..
j

Y

I      r I E! j
w

O'

j
8 O N M     .         

f.. i`'
Y

F,   '     tYN N.

z I N.
F I

8 R i C C i

i 5

J

t

UftlCl' 
R

E
r IL 9 4 L i N

1  R E E M,
v 1            

jjjj
F ; 

I  A  
e

r    
I 1 R E N   'v    r

i i
1•J

ti : ,
ti

ee c, 4._      N;

r.  C

s

J' y. f     .       

i,       1
w

Ir

17 s.  ,

UPPER ROBERTS ISLAND      --• MOSSDA E--'x.    

z 4    _..  
i

r: .   

athrop City Limlts
d NORTH PNO       '   

O!       Rp•\
v

mi i

4    
1 I

x

J
2

7

e I

1
Y

rs: f CN      i 1 No4tH NT 
v.

K o

i
t       ,-  ,

f

T
a

Lathro".
sEo, 

r,   

d p r  ,    
w

r-    2os2
s,              

STEWARTTRACT  `      .;    `        ,   IVI I C̀1teCa   "`,
p

E       8FM1 f.    

M t   .,  

e    ?     __          
1     {

ti 
y    "+ q" F

r
t           _    

fy..' Mnoa  .    
1qw° N4 1,

5$     - s

NPESCADERO

DISTRICT 2107,- '

V

096
MOSSDALE  

HERBEE te° ;      Mossdale T t B d A
E City Limits'       '    ,  

rac oun ary rea
aa

r

iY    ..

I

PO_     , P    .?,      /

j ,

0     .   ,

S'       `\(`.

f  '   
T=`       

J
I \     f O

A`  

v I

162



ITEM 4.9

CITY MANAGER' S FtEPORT

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: CREATE CIP PS 19- 05 WARREN AVENUE

SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, APPROVE

RELATED BUDGET AMENDMiENT,      AND

AUTHORIZE MEASURE K COOPERATIVE

AGREEMENT FOR THE PR07ECT

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt a Resolution Approving the Creation of
CIP PS 19- 05 Warren Avenue Sidewalk

Improvement Project,      Related Budget

Amendment,   and Measure K Cooperative

Agreement

SUMMARY:

Creation of a new Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) PS 19- 05 for the Warren Avenue

Sidewalk Improvements is needed to provide pedestrian connectivity to Joseph
Widmer Jr. Elementary School.  The project will complete a sidewalk gap on Warren
Avenue between Reverend Maurice Cotton Drive and Jasper Street.  The upgrade will

include a 7- foot parking lane adjacent to the travel lanes, 2- foot curb and gutter,

5. 5- foot sidewalks, and ADA compliance on both sides of the road.

The City of Lathrop submitted an application for Measure K funding and was awarded
449, 100 to design and construct this project.  The execution of a Measure K

Cooperative Agreement with San  ] oaquin Council of Governments  ( SJCOG)  is

required prior to the City requesting reimbursement of these funds.

Staff is requesting that City Council approve the creation of CIP PS 19- 05 with a total
initial budget of $ 549, 100,  allocate  $ 100, 000  ( 10%  local match of $ 49, 900 and

50, 100 for cash flow) from the Fund 2030 Gas Tax 2105, and approve the proposed

Measure K Cooperative Agreement.  The creation of this CIP, allocation of funds and

approval of the agreement will allow staff to move forward with engineering design
and construction.

BACKGROUND:

Warren Avenue currently lacks continuous pedestrian access.  The proposed project

would provide a newly constructed sidewalk to close the approximately 1000- foot
sidewalk gap on Warren Avenue between Reverend Maurice Cotton Drive and ] asper

Street.  This will allow the community, students and parents a direct route through
the residential community from Warren Avenue to Jasper Street and Boulder Avenue
to Stonebridge Lane, which is directly adjacent to the Joseph Widmer Jr. Elementary
School.

163



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP PS 19- 05 WARREN AVENUE SIDEWALK IMPROVENIENT

PRO7ECT, BUDGET AMENDMENT, AND APPROVE MEASURE K COOPERATIVE
AGREEMENT

Existing conditions require those living south of Warren Avenue and west of Avon
Avenue to utilize Harlan Road, an arterial roadway per the City' s General Plan, with
a posted speed limit of 45 mph.   Harlan Road has significantly more vehicular and
truck traffic than the local residential neighborhood and collector road of Warren
Avenue.    Connectivity to the Elementary School and adjacent Stonebridge Park
through the residential neighborhood reduces the potential for incidents among
pedestrians and vehicles on Harlan Road,  along with providing a safe route that
pedestrians feel comfortable utilizing. Additionally, the project will provide access to
several key destinations via walking and biking and support the use of a nearby
transit stop.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Creation of a new Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) PS 19- 05 for the Warren Avenue

Sidewalk Improvements is needed to provide pedestrian connectivity to Joseph
Widmer Jr.  Elementary School.   The creation of this CIP,  allocation of funds and

approval of the Cooperative Agreement will allow staff to move forward with
engineering design and construction.

COUNCIL GOALS ADVANCED BY THIS AGENDA ITEM:

This agenda item promotes Economic Growth and Public Safetv by providing the
community, students, and parents a continuous sidewalk route with access to Joseph

Widmer Jr. Elementary School and public transit.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff is requesting that City Council authorize a budget transfer of$ 100, 000 from the

Fund 2030 Gas Tax 2105 to create CIP PS 19- 05. The City is only required to provide
a 10% match of $49, 900; therefore, the remaining $ 50, 100 will be used to cash flow

the project. Upon execution of the Cooperative Agreement, the City will be eligible to
receive reimbursement for money spent up to $ 449, 100 of Measure K funding on the
design and construction of the project.   Staff requests the following budget
amendment:

Revenue

2110- 8000- 332- 0100 449, 100. 00

Transfer Out

2030- 9900- 990- 9010 100, 000. 00

2110- 9900- 990- 9010 449, 100. 00

Transfer In

3310- 9900- 393- 000 PS 19- 05 549, 100. 00

164



CITY MAtVAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 0, 2018 CITY COUMCIL REGULAI NIEETING

CREATE CIP PS 19- 05 WARREN i4\/ ENUE SYDE1iVALK IMPROi/ EMEiVT

PROJECT, BIJDGET AMENDI IENT, AND e4PPROVE MEASURE K COOPEI 4TIVE
e4GREEMENT

Appropriation

3310- 8000- 420- 1200 PS 19- 05 481, 000. 00

3310- 8000- 420- 8400 PS 19- 05 68, 100. 00

ATTAC H M E NTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP PS 19- 05 Warren Avenue Sidewalk
Improvement Project,    Related Budget Amendment,   and Measure K

Cooperative Agreement

B.  Measure K Renewal Cooperative Agreement ( C- 19- 012) for Warren Avenue
Safe Routes to School

C.  Vicinity Map

165



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP PS 19- 05 WARREN AVENUE SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT

PRO7ECT, BUDGET AMENDMENT, AND APPROVE MEASURE K COOPERATIVE

AGREEMENT

APPROVALS:

Z S
Brad Tay r Date

Associate Engineer

12 - S - tg

Michael King Date

Assistant Public Works Director

q    dQ.   - b'( l v •       la• DS • IS

Cari James.       Date

Director of Finance

Z - l8"

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

a r

Ste J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

166



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE CREATION OF CIP PS 19- 05 WARREN AVENUE SIDEWALK

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT, AND MEASURE K
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, sidewalk improvements along Warren Avenue between Reverend
Maurice Cotton Drive and Jasper Street are needed to provide pedestrian

connectivity to Joseph Widmer Jr. Elementary School; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting that City Council approve the creation of CIP
PS 19- 05 Warren Avenue Sidewalk Improvement Project;

WHEREAS,   the Warren Avenue Sidewalk Improvement Project would

complete a sidewalk gap by adding new street parking,  curb/ gutter,  and ADA
compliant sidewalks; and

WHEREAS, staff submitted a Measure K Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Safe Routes
to School and Smart Growth Incentive Program Application to the San Joaquin
Council of Governments   ( SJCOG)   for funding the Warren Avenue Sidewalk

Improvement Project; and

WHEREAS,  SJCOG has approved programming of $ 449, 100 of Measure K
funds for the Warren Avenue Sidewalk Improvement Project; and

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop must enter into a Measure K Cooperative
Agreement with SJCOG in order for the City to receive Measure K funding
reimbursements for money already spent; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting that City Council authorize a budget transfer
of $ 100, 000 from the Fund 2030 Gas Tax 2105 to create CIP PS 19- 05, $ 49, 900 to
fund the required 10% match and $ 50, 100 to cash flow the project;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the creation of CIP PS 19- 05; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of
the City of Lathrop approves a measure K Cooperative Agreement with SJCOG and
programming of $449, 100 of Measure K funding; and

167



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of
the City of Lathrop does hereby authorize the following amendment to the following
accounts:

Revenue

2110- 8000- 332- 0100 449, 100. 00

Transfer Out

2030- 9900- 990- 9010 100, 000. 00

2110- 9900- 990- 9010 449, 100. 00

Transfer In

3310- 9900- 393- 000 PS 19- 05 549, 100. 00

Appropriation

3310- 8000- 420- 1200 PS 19- 05 481, 000. 00

3310- 8000- 420- 8400  PS 19- 05 68, 100. 00

168



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10th day of December
2018, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:    

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED / S TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

169



C- 19- 012

City of Lathrop
MKR COOP for Warren Avenue

y^ y p_ g      Q         Safe Routes to School( SRTS)
a 

p  E Page 1 of 13

MEASURE K RENEWAL

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT ( C- 19- 012)     

FOR

WARREN AVENUE SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL

This Cooperative Agreement(" Agreement") is made and entered into this l Oth day of
December, 2018 by and between the CITY OF LATHROP (" Sponsor") and the SAN JOAQUIN

COLJNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS acting as the Local Transportation Authority(" Authority").
Sponsor and Authority may each be referred to herein as " Party" or collectively as " Parties."

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Authority and Sponsor desire to enter into a Cooperative Agreement for
funding of transportation improvements in San Joaquin County pursuant to the authority
provided by San Joaquin County Local Transportation Improvement Plan and Ordinance

LTIP"), which was approved by the voters of San Joaquin County on November 7, 2006; and

WHEREAS, Sponsor desires to receive funding from the Authority for the particular
transportation improvement project specified herein (" Project"); and

WHEREAS, the Project is eligible for funds ( as specified in the Measure K Renewal

Strategic Plan) within the SMART GROWTH INCENTIVE PROGRAM funding category of
the LTIP; and

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized under the LTIP to issue Measure K Renewal
funds to Sponsor in an amount up to $ 449, 100; and

WHEREAS, Authority shall issue reimbursement payments as provided in Section 2. 1 to
Sponsor pursuant to a request for reimbursement submitted by the Sponsor; however, the
Sponsor understands that in no event shall reimbursement payments, when aggregated with

previously approved reimbursement requests, exceed the Measure K Renewal commitment set
forth in the Project Cooperative Agreement of$ 449, 100 or 90. 00%, whichever is less of the total

project costs as listed in Exhibit" A"; and

WHEREAS, any difference in cost which results in less than $ 449, 100 of Measure K
Renewal funds being spent on the Project shall be retained by the Authority for reallocation to
any other eligible project; and

WHEREAS, Sponsor agrees to abide by the terms and conditions of the Authority as set
forth herein for the receipt of Measure K Renewal funds; and

WHEREAS, Authority agrees to provide funding for the transportation improvements of
the Sponsor' s Project according to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

170



C- 19- 012

City of Lathrop
MKR COOP for Warren Avenue

Safe Routes to School( SRTS)

Page 2 of 13

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and undertakings herein

made and the mutual benefits to be derived therefrom, the parties hereto represent, covenant and
agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

SECTION I

Covenants of Sponsor

1. 1. Project Application. The Project description, scope of work, delivery schedule,
corridor- specific cost by activity, anticipated amount' and type of funds that will supplement
Measure K Renewal funds, and the anticipated timing for release of Measure K Renewal funds
and the Measure K Renewal " not to exceed" amount are specified in Exhibit" A," and

incorporated herein by this reference.

1. 2. Chan e In Project Scope. A change in the Project scope as described in Exhibit" A"

may not be implemented until it has been approved by the Authority. In no event will a change
of scope result in the Authority reimbursing more than $ 449, 100.

1. 3. Eli ible Reimbursement Costs. Eligible reimbursement costs shall be as specified in

Exhibit" A" or as may be approved from time to time by the Authority pursuant to Section 1. 2.
In no event shall expenses incurred prior to the execution of this Agreement be considered

eligilile reimbursement costs.

1. 4. Utility Relocation. It is understood that utility relocation are not part of the eligible
reimbursement costs of the Agreement.

1. 5. Measure K Renewal Percenta e Share Defined. For this Project, the estimated

Measure K Renewal share of eligible reimbursements shall not exceed the lesser of$ 449, 100 or

90. 00% of the total project costs listed in Exhibit" A".

1. 6. Invoices and Proregss Reports. Starting one month after the execution of this
contract, Sponsor shall provide quarterly progress reports and may provide invoices as often as
monthly for activities conducted over the prior unbilled month( s). These documents shall include

the following specified information:

1. 6. a. Copies of Consultant Invoices. Sponsor shall provide the Authority with   
one ( 1) copy of all invoices submitted to Sponsor by every consultant, subconsultant,
contractor, or subcontractor performing work related to the Project.

1. 6. b. Pro ress Reports. The quarterly progress reports shall include a brief
description of the status of the Project, the work completed to date, including any issues
that may impact Project schedule. This summary may be included on the invoices
submitted to the Authority or be attached to those invoices.

1. 7. Use of Funds. Sponsor shall use Measure K Renewal funds consistent with the

Project scope of work, as described in Exhibit" A" or approved by the Authority pursuant to
Section 1. 2.

171



C- 19- 012

City of Lathrop
MKR COOP for Warren Avenue

Safe Routes to School( SRTS)

Page 3 of 13

1. 8. Submittal of Bid Documents. All consultant contracts entered into pursuant to this capital

funding agreement shall follow a competitive bidding process or give justification for using a
sole source in a manner substantially similar to that described in the San Joaquin Council of
Governments Financial Management& Accounting Processing Manual. When the contract is
awarded, Sponsor shall provide to the Authority one ( 1) copy of the bid tabulation, and the bid
schedule of the successful bidder, complete with unit prices and total award amount. All
awarded contracts shall include performance bonds, labor and material bonds, a provision for

liquidated damages, and may include any other penalty clauses for nonperformance of the
contract. Sponsor shall provide copies to the Authority of all other executed contracts which
relate to the Project scope, as described in Exhibit" A" or approved by the Authority pursuant to
Section 1. 2.  Sponsor shall retain records pertaining to the Project for a four( 4) year period
following completion of the Project.

1. 8. a Communication to Authority. Upon inquiry, Sponsor shall communicate,
verbal or written, to Authority or its representatives with Project documents, invoices and
progress reports, at any time of Project activities consistent to the provisions specified in
Section I ( 1. 6), ( 1. 7), ( 1. 8), and Section II (2.2).

1. 9. Completion of Project.  Sponsor shall be responsible for the timely completion of the
constructiori of the Project and provide management of consultant and contractor activities,

including responsibility for schedule, budget and oversight of the services, consistent with the
scope of work.  Since Sponsor is responsible for project management and oversight, any and all
costs which exceed$ 449, 100 of the total eligible costs set forth in Exhibit" A" shall be the sole

responsibility of Sponsor. This provision shall apply in all instances including situations where a
change in scope has been approved by the Authority pursuant to Section 1. 2.

1. 9. a. Letter of Project Completion.  Sponsor shall provide a letter of project

completion which includes final cost, revenues, schedule of activities, etc. This letter

shall accompany the final invoice for payment from the sponsor to provide notice of
project account closing by Authority.

1. 10. Public Outreach. Sponsor shall be responsible for the development and

administration of a public outreach effort to ensure public awareness and involvement in the

project development and project delivery in construction.  Sponsor shall include the Authority
staff in the distribution list of all draft and final copy of the public outreach plan and materials of
the public outreach activities.  Sponsor shall provide the Authority timely email and postal
distribution of all public outreach materials including but not limited to public meeting notices,
postcards, and other meeting information. The public outreach plan shall identify the Authority
in the list of interested stakeholders or project partners. The public outreach plan shall

accompany in the first invoice for payment from the Sponsor. All other public outreach
materials, meeting summary, and attendance list shall accompany in the invoice for the billing
period which the public oufreach was performed.

1. 11. Project Development Costs Savin s and Excess Costs In the event the actual Project

cost exceeds the estimate shown in Exhibit" A," this amount will be considered an excess cost.

Sponsor is solely responsible for all costs over the amount identified in Section 1. 5.

172



C- 19- 012

City of Lathrop
MKR COOP for Warren Avenue

Safe Routes to School( SRTS)

Page 4 of 13

1. 12. Errors and Omissions. Sponsor shall diligently monitor and manage all aspects of
the Project and shall aggressively pursue any and all remedies, including full restitution and
damages from any consultant, contractor, or sub- contractor and their insured and sureties
suspected of any acts errors, or omissions committed during business activities that economically
damage the project.

1. 13. Provision of Si Sponsor shall install signs approved by the Authority consistent
with the specifications set forth in Exhibit" B" of this Agreement, attached hereto and

incorporated herein by this reference. Signs shall be posted at both ends of the project boundaries
so as to be visible to motorists traveling in either direction.

SECTION II

Covenants of Authoritv

2. 1. Reimbursement Pavments. The Authority shall make reimbursement payments to
Sponsor for all eligible Project costs. To receive monthly reimbursement payments for work
completed on the Project, Sponsor shall comply with the following reimbursement procedures:

2. l. a. Deadline to Submit Reimbursement Requests. All invoices and progress

reports shall be submitted to Authority on or before 5: 00 p.m. on the tenth ( lOth) calendar
day of the month in which the Sponsor requests reimbursement payments. Authority shall
issue reimbursement payments to Sponsor on or before the last day of the month for all
timely submittals.

2. l. b. Late Submittals. If Sponsor fails to submit documents to Authority as set forth
in Section 2. 1. a, above, then Authority shall provide reimbursement payments for late
submittals in the following calendar month.

2. 1. c. Ineli ible Costs. The Authority reserves the right to adjust current or future
reimbursement payments to Sponsor if an invoice includes ineligible costs.

2. l.d. Reimbursement Amount. The amount of reimbursement payments to Sponsor

shall be equivalent to the Measure K Renewal percentage share for each invoice submitted to

the Authority. The total reimbursement percentage share for this Project shall not exceed the
lesser of$ 449, 100 and the available Measure K Renewal funds per fiscal year as specified in

Exhibit" A".

2. 1. e. Suspension of Reimbursement. Reimbursement payments for the item( s) in

question shall be suspended when a dispute arises as to whether or not the cost item( s) is
eligible for reimbursement.

2. 1. e.( 1) Meetin. Once a dispute has occurred, the Authority shall
arrange a meeting between the Authority and the Sponsor' s staff to discuss and
attempt to resolve the dispute. If the invoice was received on or before 5: 00 p.m. on
the l Oth day of the month, the meeting shall be held no later than the 20th day of the
same month. If the invoice was received after this date and time, then the meeting
shall be held no later than the 20th day of the following month.

2. l. e.( 2) Technical Advisorv Committee. If an agreement cannot be reached

at the meeting, then the Sponsor or the Authority shall have the option to take the
dispute to the Authority' s Technical Advisory Committee, with the understanding
that by doing so the reimbursement for the disputed cost item( s) will be delayed until
a resolution of the matter is reached.

173



C- 19- 012

City of Lathrop
MKR COOP for Warren Avenue

Safe Routes to School( SRTS)

Page 5 of 13

2. 1. e.( 3) Board Decision. If the Sponsor or the Authority disagrees with
the resolution by the Technical Advisory Committee then the dispute shall be
submitted to the San Joaquin Council of Governments Board for resolution.  If the

Board determines that the disputed cost item( s) is ineligible, the Authority shall
not provide reimbursement payment to the Sponsor for the disputed item( s).  If

the Board determines that the disputed cost item( s) is eligible, then the Authority
shall provide reimbursement payment to the Sponsor for the disputed cost.

2. 1. e.( 4) Reservation of Ri hts. By utilizing the above procedures, the
Sponsor does not surrender any rights to pursue available legal remedies if the
Sponsor disagrees with the Board decision.

2. 1.£ Acceptance of Work Does Not Result In Waiver. Reimbursement

payments do not result in a waiver of the right of the Authority to require
fulfillment of all terms of this Agreement.

2. 2. Right to Conduct Audit. The Authority shall have the right to conduct an audit of all
Sponsor' s records pertaining to the Project at any time during the four( 4) year period after
completion of the Project.

SECTION III

Mutual Covenants

3. 1. Term. This Agreement shall remain in effect until discharged or terminated as

provided in Section 3. 2 or Section 3. 14.

3. 2. Dischar e. This Agreement shall be subject to discharge as follows:

3. 2. a. Breach of Obli a. If a Party believes that the other is in breach of this
agreement, that Party shall provide written notice to the breaching Party and the written
notice shall identify the nature of the breach. The breaching Party shall have thirty( 30)
days from the date of notice to initiate steps to cure any breach that is reasonably capable
of being cured. If the breaching Party diligently pursues cure, such Party shall be
allowed a reasonable time to cure, not to exceed sixty( 60) days from the date of the
initial notice, unless a further extension is granted by the non- breaching Party. If the non-
breaching Party is not satisfied that there has been a cure by the end of the time for cure,
the non- breaching Pai-ty may seek available legal remedies.

3. 2. b. Termination byMutual Consent. This Agreement may be terminated at any
time by mutual consent of the Parties.

3. 2. c. Dischar e Upon Completion of Project. Except as to any rights or
obligations which survive discharge as specified in Section 3. 13, this Agreement shall be

discharged, and the Parties shall have no further obligation to each other, upon

completion of the Project as certified by the Authority.

3. 3. Indemnitv. It is mutually understood and agreed, relative to the reciprocal
indemnification of Authority and Sponsor:

3. 3. a. That neither Authority, nor any officer or employee thereof, shall be
responsible for, and Sponsor shall fiilly defend, indemnify and hold harmless Authority
against any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be
done by Sponsor under the Agreement. It is also fully understood and agreed that,

174



C- 19- 012

City of Lathrop
MKR COOP for Warren Avenue

Safe Routes to School( SRTS)

Page 6 of 13

pursuant to Government Code Section 895. 4, Sponsor shall fully defend, indemnify and
hold the Authority harmless from any liability imposed for injury as defined by
Government Code Section 810. 8 occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be
done by Sponsor under this Agreement or in connection with any work, authority, or
jurisdiction delegated to Sponsor under this Agreement.

3. 3. b. That neither Sponsor nor any officer or employee thereof, shall be
responsible for, and Authority shall fully defend, indemnify and hold. harmless Sponsor
against, any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be
done by Authority under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction
delegated to Authority under the Agreement. It is also understood and agreed that,
pursuant to Government Code Section 895. 4, Authority shall fully defend, indemnify and
hold the Sponsor harmless from any liability imposed for injury as defined by
Government Code Section 810. 8 occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be
done by Authority under this Agreement or in connection with any work, authority, or
jurisdiction delegated to Authority under this Agreement.

3. 4. Notices. Any notice which may be required under this Agreement shall be in writing
and shall be given by personal service, or by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested,
to the addresses set forth below:

TO AUTHORITY:    TO SPONSOR:

Andrew T. Chesley Stephen J. Salvatore

Executive Director City Manager
San Joaquin County Transportation Authority City of Lathrop
555 E. Weber Avenue 390 Towne Centre Drive

Stockton, CA 95202 Lathrop, CA 95330

Either Party may change its address by giving notice of such change to the other Party in the
manner provided in this Section 3. 4. All notices and other communications shall be deemed

communicated as of actual receipt or after the second business day after deposit in the United
States mail.

3. 5. Additional Acts and Documents. Each Party agrees to do all such things and take all
such actions, and to make, execute and deliver such other documents and instruments, as shall be

reasonably requested to carry out the provisions, intent and purpose of the Agreement.

3. 6. Inte ration. This Agreement represents the entire Agreement of the Parties with

respect to the subject matter hereo£ No representations, warranties, inducements or oral

agreements have been made by any of the Parties except as expressly set forth herein, or in other
contemporaneous written agreements.

3. 7. Amendment. This Agreement may not be changed, modified or rescinded except in
writing, signed by all Parties hereto, and any attempt at oral modification of this Agreement sliall
be void and of no effect.

175



ais- o z

City of Lathrop
MKR COOP for Warren Avenue

Safe Routes to School( SRTS)

Page 7 of 13

3. 8. Independent Agency. Sponsor renders its services under this Agreement as an
independent agency and the Authority is also an independent agency under the Agreement. None
of the Sponsor' s agents or employees shall be agents or employees of the Authority and none of
the Authorities' agents or employees shall be agents or employees of Sponsor.

3. 9. Assi_n The Agreement may not be assigned, transferred, hypothecated, or
pledged by any Party without the express written consent of the other Party.

3. 10. Binding on Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successor( s),
assignee( s) or transferee( s) of the Authority or as the case may be. This provision shall not be
construed as an authorization to assign, transfer, hypothecate or pledge this Agreement other

than as provided above.

3. 11. Severabilitv. Should any part of this Agreement be determined to be unenforceable,
invalid, or beyond the authority of either Party to enter into or carry out, such determination shall
not affect the validity of the remainder of this Agreement which shall continue in full force and
effect; provided that, the remainder of this Agreement can, absent the excised portion, be

reasonably interpreted to give effect to the intentions of the Parties.

3. 12. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts and
shall become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by all of the Parties;
each counterpart shall be deemed an original but all counterparts shall constitute a single

document.

3. 13. Survival. The following provisions in this Agreement shall survive discharge:

3. 13. a. Sponsor. As to Sponsor, the following sections shall survive discharge:
Section 1. 6 ( obligation to apply funds to Project), Section 1. 7 ( obligation to

provide copies and retain records), Section 1. 8 ( obligation to continue to manage

Project).

3. 13. b. Authoritv. As to Authority, the following section shall survive discharge:
Section 2. 2 ( right to conduct audit).

3. 13. c. Both Parties. As to both Parties, the following sections shall survive
discharge: Section 3. 2. a. ( obligation which survives termination), and Section 3. 3

mutual indemnities).

3. 14. Limitation. All obligations of Authority under the terms of this Agreement are expressly
contingent upon the Authority' s continued authorization to collect and expend the sales tax
proceeds provided by Measure K Renewal. If for any reason the Authority' s right or ability to
collect or expend such sales tax proceeds is terminated or suspended in whole or part so that it

materially affects the Authority' s ability to fund the project, the Authority shall promptly notify
Sponsor, and the Parties shall consult on a course of action. If, after twenty- five ( 25) working
days, a course of action is not agreed upon by the Parties, this Agreement shall be deemed
terminated by mutual or joint consent. Any future obligation to fund tliis project or any other
project or projects of Sponsor, not already specifically covered by separate Agreement, shall
arise only upon execution of a new Agreement.

176



C- 19- 012

City of Lathrop
MKR COOP for Warren Avenue

Safe Routes to School( SRTS)

Page 8 of 13

3. 15. Attorneys' Fees. Should any litigation commence between the Parties concerning
the rights and duties of any Party pursuant to, related to, or arising from, this Agreement, the
prevailing Party in such litigation shall be entitled, in addition to such other relief as may be
granted, to a reasonable sum. as and for its attorneys' fees and costs of such litigation, or in a

separate action brought for that purpose.

3. 16. Time. Time is and shall be of the essence of this Agreement and each and all of its

provisions in which performance is a factor.

3. 17. Remedies Cumulative. No remedy or election of remedies provided for in this
Agreement shall be deemed exclusive, but shall be cumulative with all other remedies at law or

in equity. Each remedy shall be construed to give the fullest effect allowed by law.

3. 18. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced
in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

3. 19. Captions. The captions in this Agreement are for convenience only and are not a
part of this Agreement. The captions do not in any way limit or amplify the provisions of this
Agreement and shall not affect the Project or interpretation of any of its provisions.

3. 20. No Continuin Waiver. The waiver by any Party of any breach of any of the
provisions of this Agreement shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of any
subsequent breach of the same, or of any other provision of this Agreement.

3. 21. No Rights in Third Parties. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is
intended to confer any rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on any third
party, nor is anything in this Agreement intended to relieve or discharge the obligation or
liability of any third party to any Party to this Agreement, nor shall any provision of this
Agreement give any third party any right of subrogation or action over or against any Party to
this Agreement.

3. 22. Si n atory' s Warrant Each Party warrants to each other that he or.she is fully
authorized and competent to enter into this Agreement in the capacity indicated by his or her
signature and agrees to be bound by this Agreement as of the day and year first mentioned above
upon the execution of this Agreement by each other Party.

177



C- 19- 012

City of Lathrop
MKR COOP for Warren Avenue

Safe Routes to School( SRTS)

Page 9 of 13

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Parties have executed this Agreement on the day and
year first written above.

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY

CITY OF LATHROP TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

By: By:

STEPHEN J. SALVATORE ROBERT RICKMAN

City Manager Chair

ATTEST: ATTEST:

By: By:

TERESA VARGAS ANDREW T. CHESLEY

City Clerk Executive Director

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:     By:

SALVADOR NAVARRETE STEVE DIAL

City Attorney Deputy Executive Director/ CFO

178



C- 19- 012

City of Lathrop

y„
MKR COOP for Warren Avenue

Safe Routes to School( SRTS)

Page 10 of 13

EXHIBIT A

City of Lathrop
Warren Avenue Safe Routes to School

1. Project Name, Location:

Warren Avenue Safe Routes to School, Lathrop, CA

See Attached Project Vicinity Map)

2. Project Sponsor, Contact Person, Phone Number:

City of Lathrop
Brad Taylor, Associate Engineer

bta, or(c ci. lathrop. ca. t s

3. Project Scope of Work:

Warren Avenue is located 0. 5 miles from Joseph Widmer Jr. Elementary School. Currently,
there is no sidewalk on Warren Avenue between Jasper Street and Reverend Maurice Cotton

RMC) Drive. This project closes the gap on Warren Avenue and provides a safer route to
Joseph Widmer Jr. Elementary School. Warren Avenue as it exists only provides sidewalk
access between Harlan Road and RMC Drive. This project will allow students and pedestrians

within the local disadvantaged neighborhood a more direct route than currently exist and will
provide up- to- date curb ramps at the three unsignalized street intersections.

The project will implement Safe Routes to School improvements including new curb and gutter
and ADA improvements on sidewalks, driveways and curb ramps along Warren Avenue in
order to provide pedestrian connectivity through to Joseph Widmer Jr. Elementary School. The
project includes a 7' parking lane adjacent to travel lanes, 2' curb and gutter, and 5. 5' sidewalks
on both sides of the road.

Eligible expenditures for this cooperative agreement include environmental,  design,

construction, and construction management. In no event shall expenses incurred prior to the

execution of this Agreement be considered eligible reimbursement costs.

4. Expected Time of Delivery of Overall Project:

Start Date Com letion Date

Prelimina Desi n/ Environmental 12/ 10/ 2018 02/ 31/ 2019

Final Desi n 12/ 10/ 2018 OS/ 31/ 2019

Ri ht of Wa Ac uisition N/ A N/A

Construction 08/ O1/ 2019 O1/ 31/ 2020

179



C- 19- 012

City of Lathrop

y ,  '       
MKR COOP for Warren Avenue

Safe Routes to School( SRTS)

Page 11 of 13

Exhibit A( cont.)

5. Estimated Project Cost( as applicable for each of the phases described above):

Measure K Amount Total Cost

Preliminar Desi n/ Environmental 18, 900 21, 000

Final Desi n 36, 900 41, 000

Ri ht of Wa Ac uisition N/A N/ A

Construction 393, 300 437, 000

6. Expected Timing for Release of Measure K Funds by Quarter:

FY 18/ 19 FY 19/ 20

July- September 0 44,700

October- December 25, 600 44, 700

January- March 44, 700 44,700

April - June 44, 700 200, 000

TOTAL 115, 000 334, 100 449, 100

7. Source( s) and Amount( s) of Funds for Project

Amount Percenta e

Measure K Bicycle, Pedestrian, and Safe
o

Routes to School Competitive Program
449, 100 90. 00%

City of Lathrop funds 49, 900 10. 00%

TOTAL 499, 000 100%

8.  Project Vicinity Map (see attached):

180



G 19- 012

City of Lathrop
MKR COOP for Warren Avenue

Safe Routes to School( SRTS)

q
age o 3

g t a        
a

g   ,=.   ,
Y

a
t

r    '' F    
3#"'  

x
i   "'    ,     

i   $    °  a     
4 . i k    %;"   

F..,

f ' N               ;
f   ,  ,

i  t  R t! Stonebrldge
e F       

Park t      
tt, ar

f  
b

r 4a S,  
q, q

r ',° Joseph
r r s    d'       

rr  3       WidmerJr. 

j Elementar      
c

w q Y

1J         ,  ,       s nooi
e    ,

j z  . ;        j5     ;_    STONEBRIDGE LN

1                   .      I
a,  , 

k 4      .  .  9q            
t'-  

y

J       .   y 3
C s

u 6

K: t.   . y       
Y  " a     

t
Ft^'! h

J 1    .   6 t          s         

fv ''        W 7.      t
r

t

N

1 Q             waRReN ave  ,    

C TY OF   

1. ATHROP   `           
Eagles q

M

j   : Nest:           ., yr..""   i"            
f

Harley    .   Lathrop       „'
1*.   

f

j  . Davidson Z    ,.    Worship;.      ' e      ,„       , ;
a     ;

1 Center
w   

r i. E  #      
s        .

JHMotorsports   /. _  -     

d 1 I—    s

rt

r  `        `  t"
S.„ f       

O
ZV a ,   a" t r    `

W O i,   t A

V       ; r`°    

d   `< x_

Q c

n
E..  

S `"   
t d f

is ,         

G         j„   J.       

C
f

a  .'    . t  

rr   ,       

ac d   
r     #   `  &'     

d P,       . x      '. r 

Comfort X     `^      "       ' k•

Inn
s  ;     .      ` st  sE

y

Days
i  ,     t

Inn

Wallqreens Greenbelt    
Woodfiefd      

TwoGuys           HighlightChurch Park

Food& FUeI  :     . 
o/ GodinChrisf

Park

J
LATHROP RDJ   

Chevron
Tower     .           .   .     

Firesideinn        .
k.;    .        . .   .

O' Reilly       : 
Mart           Laihropf   a orsr;    

AutoParfs P

r 

i       ;   -,  Comtn. Church

BurgerKing 4     ;   *°` a  ;  

y" _  ,       `  ',`   
w       

r  `

r
s i  ;     "     _ 

a s          "^ '      s`   o> a       ' zF    
r '     , r

TM`       
Retail/ Commercial       .     

y
Center .  

s
y,       v r

rj  `" L,  

L E G E N D arnrop         j
Lighthouse o(

r  ProjectBoundary
x   .-           

rnecrosschm h

PROJECT BOUNDARIES,
Disadvantaged Community Boundary t'      ;,`- ,'       G, o e ACCESS AND DESTINATIONS

k. a' rs'.a. ,   
Community

Key Community Destinations r     

cnu. n

Bus/ Transit Facilities CITYOF LATHROP

j Schools
axnrop 

WARREN AVENUE IMPROVEMENTS

Community Center
oi    ;  zso soo t>000          ,` 

Feet    .
a° a .,.,,.,      

I

f             

r,     THOMASq   

181



8 Feet

i,,.`  `'

Project Name

d

a A Project Cost

Funded By Measure K
C

Other Funding Sources: J C

KEEP

SJCOG Logo Project Name

Orange Pantone ri1595 8" Upper case black lettering
Blue Pantone it2945 White backgrou d

White background Black outline

Measure K Logo:

36" x 34"    Project Cost, Matching Funds, Partner s:
Orange and blue lettering on white background 6" Upper case and 4" lower case black lettering

White background

Black outline

All sign features to be reflectorized( engineer- grade Scotchlite)

m 

m n

C Om 

N OO Cn<(
N S _l
N O j O 

D 
c.'< °' 

cD
o 1( D 

o
c O -

W fD" N

182



J
r_''       '  .  

7       ' s       .(     t
n._.J   

1-               -        7;
T

s  ,   : 

o   

t{ j
Y . .    

x ,-.`      

R
f F 4  .,: 1 , f:. ..   4'.

i'               ,
i  r `'      i

P     '   T   c     {

r j

J       L Cr+«».    

ji  11 + n 5 R/ L i4 5. eyi  ' '' . M  Y". Yi'
y . tl

g

AV            4.       
YvJ+-+  , 3+      ..   `     '+.   

s 
f

yj
L'  .  jE-- j..  -.

y}.:

Jp j/

y.

t   

t  . . §

e.,...  

t     ' 

R.      .  .      1 q ii    . a..    4.
5

k

p R
1P  {   

f

yY 
i      .'''   e          *.,..: E_ y}:

1 C"+#,    T
5 r   

R`.  '    Ji:       =,
7    y-`     

4.,          i. a: J. i 1  .       "'" b`  s.,  '   ,,.  ..   

f

1   . k9" '..d

t
i ",     ,    

z 

M
y'" `°  

t y"     .. i l    f'      c   a      
s 

at t
r

r,  ,++ t.  "'   ,.

et i   ,'
u .< i7  . 4

cs      y. r     dr

r     ,', „,     
T     ,

i A  ,      ' .

y

z

I,    --,..  +             

r    `  
i i   

i

f''". :      +'`      ""         ,  °`     ,*       `—   

w     
r,        ,,,,_  ' 1" r_I. W  *.,!'          '

y,     ,,      
a 

f 1'
a-  

w,

y.    
r   '  .-

l

t     

a+"` L)       i''      
y.

t e x
i' ,'      

k   "

e`   

W

aj- 3 f` " j r tlr  -  
e        ..

1..        ' M ' 4'    .'.-- t             . j" l i i . ti-       "    ;      

11` i
r   .      _         t .      

L      ,        
r  ',` m t r

Y
k'          ^   .

aum,       
a

3  ,             
s            '

e  .    

m  
r+'a,. 9v¢

y b   + rt +"
a .

wr;   .,.

z.   ..

i4.',
p, -       

r   ,;,,       ,    t

i r&e
r

3w7     "    a  i`   '   

i. 7.--'`   ..  
C    }   

i, . ]  ..   
y.  ."          

d  .   »      
p       '       <{

r

I .           
w     f

ir i si.

x.     a <'   a er       

r     ,  

6.     s d p
x  

r          
r      r" i       W.•- .,.:

7-       r
r'

I ~ i     
k

4'?   5. 4,   -;  
t"' 1       af,. r.x

e  ^    c,  t  ,.         
y .     It r x m r

3

t,+ q s ,,` fi r r
i t

a i a.   w        r.   ,         °      . 
x ;;,•' `.- E    

4 ` t;''  ';.. + .:`. sQ,. f       a   .    s",.-    ti'   
F,      

a,., r j^              ..    .`,         

z      
r.  °- 

il       
f`,,

t:,,,  F      „;

r    

rx       ;    

A      r   .        r-'4   ,

j 2:,_           

J" r.' w

4

t,   -.' "', t "_

4
y  ,.'  

1' ......, i          `  -''       
J 

l r v,

3 iM      z s..

a., u4:,. t..      ..,   "   t  " 
F(..  '      ...      .,.      ,.,   

r,i    a y^     F'",

M. 5e..      -" e w t. ti  9
S

1

r        i.'     ..      . .;`  )   ;. ,.,. ,    _
t << i       

r

Sr"+;e¢„' 7` k   . .. 
Y.    - 

J

t r- 
r -.

x, t„`    

M

y4

ji_? '   '
i -  x

a ,      

1i
i F,

P 

f`      ,.,.   j 

w"•      ",

c  .          ?

F
a; .;¢'

f f    >.     ` .: r       ._  `   .   

deW ( iui i^  •

183



184



ITEIuI 5. 1

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAfz MEETING

ITEM:       COUNCIL TO DISGUSS AND CONSIDER A NEW CLE N

ENERGY FINANCING PROGRA M FOR PRIVATE

COMMERCIAL AND RESIDEMTIAL IMPROVENiEIVTS

FROM CN1FA OPEN PACE PROGR/ M

RECOMMEIVDATION:     City Council to 12eceive Information Related to a New
lean Energy Financing Program,   ancl Consider

Adoption of:

A.  Proposed Resolution to Approve the California

Municipal Finance   uthority   ( CMFA)   7oint

Exercise of Povvers Agreement and to 7oin # he

CMFA PACE Program

B.  CMFA Exercise of Powers lgreement Relating
to the California Municipal Finance Authority

C.  Participation Agreement between the CMF,

Energy Efficiency Equity LLC,  and the City of
Lathrop

D. Participation Agreement between the CNiFA,

BlueFlame PACE Services LLC,  ancl City of
Lathrop

E.  Participation Agreement between the CPsIFA,

OnPACE Energy Solutions LLC,  and City of
Lathrop

F.  Participation Agreement between the CNIFA,

PACE Equity LL. C, and the City of Lathrop

G. Participation Agreement betwreen the CI F 1,

Samas Capital LLC, and City of Lathrop

H. Participation  greement between the CMF,

Structured Finance Associates LLC, and City of
Lathrop

I.  Participation Agreerr ent between the CMFA,

Twrain Community Partners II LLC, and the City
of Lathrop

SUMMARY:

On May 2,  2016, the City Council approved the City' s first clean energy financing
program,  known as the Home Energy Renovation Opportunity  ( HERO)  Financing
Program through the Property Assessment Clean Energy  ( PACE)  Program with

Renovate America, Inc.   On December 4, 2017, the City Council approved similar
clean energy financing programs with CSCDA Open PACE, Figtree PACE, and Golden
State Finance Authority.

185



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CONSIDER CLEAN ENERGY FINANCING PROGRAM FROM CMFA OPEN PACE

At the October 8, 2018 City Council Meeting, Travis Cooper, Financial Advisor with
the California Municipal Finance Authority  ( CMFA)  spoke during citizen' s forum
requesting Council consideration of a new clean energy financing program, similar to
those previously adopted by City Council in 2016 and 2017.  Mr.  Cooper also

expressed to the Council that one of their Commercial PACE administrators has a

potential solar project for the Hampton Inn in Lathrop,  and in order to provide

financing to the Hampton Inn they would require Council approval of their program.
The Council directed staff to receive information and return to Council with additional

information.

Tonight, the City Council will receive an overview of the CMFA Open PACE Program,
and after the information is received Council can discuss and consider the following
options:

Option 1 -   Take no further action; or

Option 2 -   Adopt the attached Resolution ( Attachment A) and authorize the City' s
participation in the California Municipal Finance Authority  (" CMFA")

Open Property Assessed Clean Energy (" PACE") Program:

a.  Authorizing the CMFA to accept applications from property owners,
conduct contractual assessment proceedings and levy contractual
assessments within the City and authorizing related actions;

b.  Authorizing the Mayor to execute the Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement to join CMFA ( Attachment B); and

c.  Authorizing the Mayor to execute a Participation Agreement between
CMFA,   Energy Efficiency Equity LLC,   and the City of Lathrop
Attachment C)

d.  Authorizing the Mayor to execute a Participation Agreement between
CMFA,   BlueFlame PACE Services LLC,   and City of Lathrop
Attachment D)

e.  Authorizing the Mayor to execute a Participation Agreement between
CMFA,   OnPACE Energy Solutions LLC,   and City of Lathrop
Attachment E)

f.   Authorizing the Mayor to execute a Participation Agreement between
CMFA, PACE Equity LLC, and the City of Lathrop ( Attachment F)

g.  Authorizing the Mayor to execute a Participation Agreement between
CMFA, Samas Capital LLC, and City of Lathrop ( Attachment G)

h.  Authorizing the Mayor to execute a Participation Agreement between
CMFA,  Structured Finance Associates,  LLC and City of Lathrop
Attachment H)

i.   Authorizing the Mayor to execute a Participation Agreement
between CMFA, Twain Community Partners II, LLC and the City of
Lathrop ( Attachment I)

186



I

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CONSIDER CLEAN ENERGY FINANCING PROGRAM FROM CMFA OPEN PACE

BACKGROUND:

Assembly Bill  ( AB)  811,  signed into law on July 21,  2008,  and AB 474,  effective

January 1,  2010,  authorize a legislative body to designate an area within which
authorized public officials and property owners may enter into contractual

assessments to finance the installation of renewable energy sources,  energy

efficiency, and/ or water conservation improvements that are permanently fixed to
real property.  Since enactment of AB 811 in 2008, additional legislation has been

passed by Governor Brown to expand the authorization that allows cities, counties,
and other public agencies to enter into contractual assessments to finance the

installation of specific improvements, such as;       

AB 474 ( 2009) - Added water efficiency improvements pe manently affixed to real
property.

SB 1340 ( 2010) - Added electrical vehicle charging equipment permanently fixed to
residential, commercial, industrial or other real property.
SB 555 ( 2011) - Added energy efficiency, water conservation and renewable energy
improvements affixed to the types of facilities that a community facilities district may
finance.

58 96 ( 2013) - Includes language which directs the California Alternative Energy and
Advanced Transportation Financing Authority ( CAEATFA) to develop the PACE Loss
Revenue Program to mitigate the potential risk to mortgage lende s associated with

residential financing.  This is a  $ 10 million Loss Reserve designed to make first

mortgage lenders whole for/ oses in a fo eclosure or a forced sale that are attributable

to a lien covered under the PACE program.

On May 2, 2016, the City Council approved the City' s first Home Energy Renovation
Opportunity  ( HERO)  Financing Program through the Property Assessment Clean
Energy ( PACE) Program with Renovate America, Inc.  HERO is a financing program
for providing eligible energy efficient, water efficient, and renewable energy products.
HERO is a Property Assessed Clean Energy ( PACE) Program, which is administered

by the Western Riverside Council of Governments ( WRCOG), and has been offered to

cities and counties throughout California.  On December 4,  2017, the City Council
approved similar financing programs with CSCDA Open PACE,  Figtree PACE,  and

Golden State Finance Authority.

At the October 8, 2018 City Council Meeting, Travis Cooper, Financial Advisor with
the California Municipal Finance Authority spoke during citizen' s forum requesting
Council consideration of similar clean energy financing programs.  Mr. Cooper also

expressed to the Council that one of their Commercial PACE administrators has a

potential solar project for the Hampton Inn in Lathrop,  and in order to provide

financing to the Hampton Inn they would require Council approval of their program.

The Council directed staff to receive information and return to Council with additional

information. Below is a summary of key points for Council consideration based on the
information provided by Mr. Cooper:

187



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 4

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CONSIDER CLEAN ENERGY FINANCING PROGRAM FROM CMFA OPEN PACE

CMFA O en PACE Program

The CMFA is a ] oint Powers Authority formed to assist local governments, non- profit
organizations and businesses by promoting economic,  cultural and community

development, with the financing of economic development and charitable activities
throughout California.   To date, over 300 municipalities have become members of

the CMFA.

As part of its economic and community development, the CMFA along with its current
Program Administrators,   Energy EfFicient Equity,   Inc.   ( Residential Provider);

BlueFlame PACE Services LLC ( Commercial Provider); OnPACE Energy Solutions, LLC
Commercial Provider);   PACE Equity,  LLC  ( Commercial Provider);   Petros PACE

Administrator, LLC ( Commercial Provider);  Samas Capital LLC;  Structured Finance

Associates,  LLC  ( Commercial Provider);  and Twain Community Partners II LLC
Commercial Proyider);  are offering PACE financing for residential and commercial

property owners in its member territories.   The CMFA is expected to issue limited

obligation bonds, notes or other forms of indebtedness to fund the projects.

PACE is an innovative way to finance energy efFiciency,  water efFiciency,  and

renewable energy upgrades for residential and commercial buildings.  Property
owners who participate in the program repay the loans through a voluntary
contractual assessment collected together with their property taxes. One of the most
notable characteristics of PACE programs is that the loan is attached to the property
rather than belonging to an individual. Therefore, when the owner sells the property,
the loan may be paid ofF during the sale or stay with the property and be paid off by
the new owner, who also benefits from the upgrades that were completed.

PACE financing enables individuals and businesses to defer the upfront costs of
energy efficiency, water efficiency and renewable energy improvements. PACE loans
are paid over a long period of time while energy costs are simultaneously lower,
which typically provides the property owner with net savings.  PACE overcomes

challenges that have hindered adoption of energy efficiency and renewable energy
measures for many property owners.

The CMFA Open PACE Program does not subordinate to mortgagors, or subordinate
into second position behind an FHA, VA, or Conventional loan( s).  For a short period

of time program administrators provided the option of limited subordination, but as

the industry has evolved it has been determined that other and more efficient
mechanisms ( i. e.  prepayments or negotiations as part of the sale of a home) are

available to homeowner to address PACE loans.

188



CITY NlAiVAGER' S REPORT Page 5

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL RECULAR MEETINC;

COiVSIDER CLEe4101 ENERGY FIRIANCING PROGRAM FROM CMFA OPEN PA E

ANALYSIS OF THE 70INT EXERCISE OF POWEItS AGREEMENT

The CMFA Open PACE Program guarantees that participation in this program is a cost

efFective means of offering property owners the opportunity to make energy and
water efficiency retrofits to their property and create new local jobs. Property owners
will repay the financing as a charge on their property tax bill over a period of years.
Per the CMFA Open PACE Program, benefits to the property owner include:

Competition:    CMFA Open PACE currently provides multiple PACE

administrator options to property owners. Property owners can shop for the
best price and service through the availability of the PACE administrators.
Eligibilitx:    In today' s economic environment,  alternatives for property
owners to finance renewable energy,   energy efficiency,   and water

conservation improvements may not be available.     Therefore,  many

property owners do not have options available to them to lower their utility
bills.

Savinqs:    Renewable energy,  energy efficiency,  and water conservation

improvements help lower utility bills.
Payment obligation is tied to the propert:  The debt should not need to be

repaid when the property is sold or transferred.  The new owner assumes

the obligation to repay the remaining balance with the property taxes.
100% Voluntarv:   Property owners choose to participate in the program at
their own discretion.

Repayment obligation matched to the useful life of the financed

improvements: The length of the financing is based on the expected useful
life of the improvements.  Depending on the lender and the improvements,
the term can range from five ( 5) years to thirty- nine ( 39) years.
Prepayment options:   Property owners can pay off the assessments at any
time without penalty.
Improved quality of life:  Residents benefit from improvements,  such as

more effective cooling provided by new air conditioning units and less
outside noise when new double- paned windows are installed.

Per the CMFA Open PACE Program, benefits to the City include:

Prequalified PACE Administrators: The CMFA' s Board has pre- qualified the

PACE administrators based on their business practices,  qualifications,

experience and capital commitment to the PACE market.

Single Resolution: The City can pass a single resolution and provide access
to residential and commercial property owners to highly qualified PACE
administrators. There is no need to pass multiple resolutions to approve the
administrators.

No City Obligation: The City is not responsible nor obligated to repay the
bonds issued by CMFA or to pay the assessments levied on the participating
properties. The City will not incur any cost or involvement, and there are
no administrative responsibilities,   marketing obligations,   or financial

exposures to the City. The City is fully indemnified by each Participation
Agreement ( Section 3 of each Participation Agreement and Section 13 of
the ] PA).    

189



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 6

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CONSIDER CLEAN ENERGY FINANCING PROGRAM FROM CMFA OPEN PACE

No City staff support required: The CMFA and its Program Administrators
handle all assessment administration,    bond issuance and bond

administration functions.

Increase in local jobs: Property improvements provide local job

opportunities.

Increased City Revenue:  Property improvements result in an increase in
sales and property tax revenue to the City.   

The proposed Resolution authorizes the CMFA to accept applications from owners of

property within our territory for municipal financing of authorized improvements
through the CMFA Program.  It also authorizes the CMFA to conduct assessrnent

proceedings and levy assessments against the property of participating owners within
the incorporated territory of the City.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no negative fiscal impact to the City' s general fund incurred by consenting
to the inclusion of properties within the City limits in the PACE Programs.

The Board of Directors of the California Foundation for Stronger Communities,  a

California non- profit public benefit corporation ( the " Foundation"), acts as the Board

of Directors for the CMFA.  Through its conduit issuance activities, the CMFA shares

a portion of the issuance fees it receives with its member communities and donates

a portion of these issuance fees to the Foundation for the support of local charities.

With respect to the City,  it is expected that a portion of the issuance fee will be

granted by the CMFA to the general fund of the City.   Such grant may be used for
any lawful purpose of the City.  A similar amount will be donated by the CMFA to a
non- profit organization in the City.

190



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 7

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING     '

CONSIDER CLEAN ENERGY FINANCING PROGRAM FROM CMFA OPEN PACE

ATTACH M E NTS:     

A.  Proposed Resolution to approve the California Municipal Finance Authority
CMFA)  Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement and to join the CMFA PACE

Program

B.  CMFA Exercise of Powers Agreement Relating to the California Municipal
Finance Authority

C.  Participation Agreement between CMFA, Energy EfFiciency Equity, LLC, and the
City of Lathrop

D.  Participation Agreement between CMFA,  BlueFlame PACE Services,  LLC and

City of Lathrop

E.  Participation Agreement between CMFA, OnPACE Energy Solutions, LLC, and

City of Lathrop

F.  Participation Agreement between CMFA,  PACE Equity LLC,  and the City of
Lathrop

G.  Participation Agreement between CMFA,  Samas Capital LLC,  and City of
Lathrop

H.  Participation Agreement between CMFA, Structured Finance Associates,  LLC

and City of Lathrop

I.   Participation Agreement between CMFA, Twain Community Partners II,  LLC

and the City of Lathrop

191



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 8

DECENi R 10, 201 CITY COUNCIL REGl1LAlZ MEETIIVG

CON IDER CLEAN IVEIZGY FINANCIIVG PFtOGRA1M FROM CMFA OPEN PACE

APPItO\/ ALS:

eresa Vargas Date

ity Clerk

J z s" --/ s

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

lZ•3• lg
Step Salvatore Date

City Manager

192



a

RESOLUTION NO. 18-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING,  AUTHORIZING,  AND DIRECTING EXECUTION OF A JOINT

EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE CALIFORNIA

MUNICIPAL FINANCE AUTHORITY;  CONSEfVTING TO THE INCLUSION OF

PROPERTIES WITHIN THE TERRITORY OF THE CITY IN THE CALIFORNIA

MUNICIPAL FINANCE AUTHORITY OPEN PACE PROGRAMS; AUTHORIZING

THE CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE AUTHORITY TO ACCEPT

APPLICATIONS FROM PROPERTY OWNERS,   CONDUCT CONTRACTUAL

ASSESSMENT PROCEEDINGS AND LEVY CONTRACTUAL ASSESSMENTS

WITHIN THE TERRITORY OF THE CITY;  AND AUTHORIZING RELATED

ACTIONS

WHEREAS, the California Municipal Finance Authority ( the " Authority")  is a

joint exercise of powers authority, the members of which include numerous cities
and counties in the State of California ( the " Members"), formed pursuant to a Joint

Exercise of Powers Agreement Relating to the California Municipal Finance

Authority,  dated as of January 1,  2004  ( the  Agreement")  for the purpose of

promoting economic, cultural and community development and in order to exercise
any powers common to its Members,  including the issuance of bonds,  notes or

other evidences of indebtedness; and

WHEREAS,  City of Lathrop  ( the  City"),  has determined that it is in the

public interest and for the public benefit that the City become a Member of the
Authority in order to facilitate the promotion of economic, cultural and community
development activities in the City, including the financing of projects therefor by the
Authority; and

WHEREAS, there is now before this City Council the form of the Agreement;
and

WHEREAS, the Agreement has been filed with the City, and the members of
the City Council, with the assistance of its staff, have reviewed said document; and

WHEREAS, the Authority is implementing Property Assessed Clean Energy
PACE)  programs, which it has designated CMFA Open PACE,  consisting of CMFA

Open PACE programs each administered by a separate program administrator
collectively with any successors,   assigns,   replacements or additions,   the

Programs"),  to allow the financing or refinancing of renewable energy,  energy

efficiency,   water efficiency and seismic strengthening improvements,   electric

vehicle charging infrastructure and such other improvements,  infrastructure or

other work as may be authorized by law from time to time  ( collectively,  the

Improvements") through the levy of contractual assessments pursuant to Chapter
29 of Division 7 of the Streets & Highways Code (" Chapter 29") within counties and

cities throughout the State of California that consent to the inclusion of properties

wi,thin their respective territories in the Programs and the issuance of bonds from
time to time; and

Resolution No. 18-

193



WHEREAS,  the program administrators currently active in administering
Programs are Energy Efficient Equity, Inc.;  BlueFlame PACE Services LLC; OnPACE

Energy Solutions, LLC;  PACE Equity,  LLC;  Petros PACE Administrator,  LLC;  Samas

Capital LLC; Structured Finance Associates, LLC; and Twain Community Partners II
LLC; and the Authority will notify the City in advance of any additions or changes;
and

WHEREAS, Chapter 29 provides that assessments may be levied under its
provisions only with the free and willing consent of the owner or owners of each lot
or parcel on which an assessment is levied at the time the assessment is levied;
and

WHEREAS, the City desires to allow the owners of property (' Participating
Property Owners") within its territory to participate in the Programs and to allow
the Authority to conduct assessment proceedings under Chapter 29 within its
territory and to issue bonds to finance or refinance Improvements; and

WHEREAS,  the territory within which assessments may be levied for the
Programs shall include all of the territory within the City' s ofFicial boundaries; and

WHEREAS,  the Authority will conduct all assessment proceedings under
Chapter 29 for the Programs and issue any bonds issued in connection with the
Programs; and

WHEREAS,   the City will not be responsible for the conduct of any
assessment proceedings; the levy of assessments; any required remedial action in
the case of delinquencies in such assessment payments;  or the issuance,  sale,

administration repayment or guarantee of any bonds issued in connection with the
Programs;

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop as follows:

Section 1.     This City Council hereby finds and declares that the foregoing
recitals are true and correct.

Section 2.     The Agreement is hereby approved and the Mayor,   City
Manager, or the designee thereof is hereby authorized and directed to execute said
document,  and the City Clerk or such clerk's designee is hereby authorized and
directed to attest thereto.

Section 3.     This City Council hereby finds and declares that properties in the
territory of the City will benefit from the availability of the Programs within the
territory of the City and,  pursuant thereto,  the conduct of special assessment

proceedings by the Authority pursuant to Chapter 29 and the issuance of bonds to
finance or refinance Improvements.   

Resolution No. 18-

194



Section 4.     In connection with the_ Programs, the City hereby consents to
the conduct of special  ' assessment proceedings by the Authority pursuant to
Chapter 29 on any property within the territory of the City and the issuance of
bonds to finance or refinance Improvements; provided, that

1)    The Participating Property Owners,   who shall be the legal

owners of such property,  execute a contract pursuant to Chapter 29 and

comply with other applicable provisions of California law in order to

accomplish the valid levy of assessments; and

2)      The City will not be responsible for the conduct of any
assessment proceedings;  the levy of assessments;  any required remedial
action in the case of delinquencies in such assessment payments;  or the

issuance, sale, administration, repayment or guarantee of any bonds issued
in connection with the Programs.

Section 5.     The Authority shall be responsible for providing all applications
and related materials at its own expense to its potential customers. The following
staff persons, together with any other staff persons chosen by the Mayor or City
Manager of the City from time to time,  are hereby designated as the contact
persons for the Authority in connection with the execution of the Agreements
related to the Programs: City Clerk' s OfFice.

Section 6.    T,he appropriate ofFicials and staff of the City are hereby
authorized and directed to execute and deliver such certificates,  requisitions,

agreements and related documents as are reasonably required by the Authority to
implement the Programs.

Section 7.     The City Council hereby finds that adoption of this Resolution is
not a  project"  under the California Environmental Quality Act,   because the

Resolution does not involve any commitment to a specific project which may result
in a potentially significant physical impact on the environment, as contemplated by
Title 14, California Code of Regulations, Section 15378( b)( 4)).

Section 8.     The City may withdraw from the Programs or any Program upon
six ( 6) months written notice to the Authority. The City may withdraw its consent
and approval for the conduct of special assessment proceedings by any specific
program administrator under a Program within the jurisdictional limits of the City
upon thirty  (30)  days written notice to the Authority without  ( a)  liability to the
Authority or any affiliated entity, and ( b) withdrawing its consent and approval for
the conduct of special assessment proceedings by any other program

administrators under the other Programs. The City' s withdrawal from any Program
shall not affect the validity of any voluntary assessment contract entered into prior
to the date of such withdrawal or entered into after the date of such withdrawal so

long as the application for such voluntary assessment contract was submitted to
and approved by the Authority prior to the date of the City' s notice of withdrawal.

Resolution No. 18-

195



Section 9.     This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to transmit a certified copy
of this resolution to the Financial Advisor of the Authority at:   California Municipal

Finance Authority,  2111 Palomar Airport Road,  Suite 320,  Carlsbad,  California

92011, Attn: Travis Cooper.

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10th

day of December
2018, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO PORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salva or Navarrete, City orney

Resolution No. 18-

196



ATTACHI IERI1 

JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT

RELATING TO THE CALIFOItNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE AUTHORITY

THIS AGREEMENT, dated as of January 1, 2004, among the parties executing this
Agreement( all such parties, except those which have withdrawn as provided herein, are referred

to as the " Members" and those parties initially executing this Agreement are referred to as the
Initial Members"):

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, pursuant to Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5 of the California Government

Code ( in effect as of the date hereof and as the same may from time to time be amended or
supplemented, the " Joint Exercise of Powers Act"), two or more public agencies may by
agreement jointly exercise any power common to the contracting parties; and

WHEREAS, each of the Members is a " public agency" as that term is defined in Section
6500 of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act; and

WHEREAS, each of the Members is empowered by law to promote economic, cultural
and community development, including, without limitation, the promotion of opportunities for
the creation or retention of employment, the stimulation of economic activity, the increase of the
tax base, and the promotion of opportunities for education, cultural improvement and public

health, safety and general welfare; and

WHEREAS, each of the Members may accomplish the purposes and objectives described
in the preceding preamble by various means,  including through making grants,  loans or

providing other financial assistance to governmental and nonprofit organizations; and

WHEREAS, each Member is also empowered by law to acquire and dispose of real
property for a public purpose; and

WHEREAS, the Joint Exercise of Powers Act authorizes the Members to create a joint

exercise of powers entity with the authority to exercise any powers common to the Members, as
specified in this Agreement and to exercise the additional powers granted to it in the Joint

Exercise of Powers Act and any other applicable provisions of the laws of the State of California;
and

WHEREAS, a public entity established pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act is
empowered to issue or execute bonds, notes, commercial paper or any other evidences of
indebtedness, including leases or installment sale agreements or certificates of participation
therein ( herein  " Bonds"),  and to otherwise undertake financing programs under the Joint
Exercise of Powers Act or other applicable provisions of the laws of the State of California to
accomplish its public purposes; and

197



WHEREAS, the Members have determined to specifically authorize a public entity
authorized pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act to issue Bonds pursuant to the Joint

Exercise of Powers Act or other applicable provisions of the laws of the State of California; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Members to use a public entity established pursuant to
the Joint Exercise of Powers Act to undertake the financing and/ or refinancing of projects of any
nature, including, but not limited to, capital or working capital projects, insurance, liability or
retirement programs or facilitating Members use of existing or new financial instruments and
mechanisms; and

WHEREAS, it is further the intention of the Members that the projects undertaken will

result in significant public benefits to the inhabitants of the jurisdictions of the Members; and

WHEREAS,  by this Agreement,  each Member desires to create and establish the
California Municipal Finance Authority" for the purposes set forth herein and to exercise the

powers provided herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Members, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and
agreements herein contained, do agree as follows:

Section 1.      Purpose.

This Agreement is made pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act.

The purpose of this Agreement is to establish a public entity for the joint exercise of powers
common to the Members and for the exercise of additional powers given to a joint powers entity
under the Joint Powers Act or any other applicable law, including, but not limited to, the
issuance of Bonds for any purpose or activity pernutted under the Joint Exercise of Powers Act
or any other applicable law.  Such purpose will be accomplished and said power exercised in the
manner hereinafter set forth.

Section B.      Term.

This Agreement shall become effective in accordance with Section 17 as of the date

hereof and shall continue in full force and effect until such time as it is terminated in writing by
all the Members; provided, however, that this Agreement shall not terminate or be terminated

until all Bonds issued or caused to be issued by the Authority( defined below) shall no longer be
outstanding under the terms of the indenture, trust agreement or other inshtiunent pursuant to
which such Bonds are issued,  or unless a successor to the Authority assumes all of the
Authority' s debts, liabilities and obligastions.

Section 3o Authori   .

A.       CREATION AND POWERS OF AUTHORITY.

Pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, there is hereby created a public
entity to be known as the " California Municipal Finance Authority" ( the " Authority"),
and said Authority shall be a public entity separate and apart from the Members.   Its

198



debts, liabilities and obligations do not constitute debts, liabilities or obligations of any
Members.

B.       BOARD.

The Authority shall be administered by the Board of Directors ( the " Board," or

the  " Directors"  and each a  " Director")  of the California Foundation for Stronger

Communities, a nonprofit public benefit corporation organized under the laws of the

State of California ( the " Foundation"), with each such Director serving in his or her
individual capacity as a Director of the Board.   The Board shall be the administering
agency of this Agreement and, as such, shall be vested with the powers set forth herein,
and shall administer this Agreement in accordance with the purposes and functions

provided herein.  The number of Directors, the appointment of Directors, alternates and

successors, their respective terms of office, and all other provisions relating to the
qualification and office of the Directors shall be as provided in the Articles and Bylaws

of the Foundation, or by resolution of the Board adopted in accordance with the Bylaws
of the Foundation.

All references in this Agreement to any Director shall be deemed to refer to and
include the applicable alternate Director,, if any, when so acting in place of a regularly
appointed Director.

Directors may receive reasonable compensation for serving as such, and shall be
entitled to reimbursement for any expenses actually incurred in connection with serving
as a Director, if the Board shall determine that such expenses shall be reimbursed and

there are unencumbered funds available for such purpose.

The Foundation may be removed as administering agent hereunder and replaced
at any time by amendment of this Agreement approved as provided in Section 16;
provided that a successor administering agent of this Agreement has been appointed and
accepted its duties and responsibilities under this Agreement.

C.       OFFICERS; DUTIES; OFFICIAL BONDS.

The officers of the Authority shall be the Chair, Vice- Chair,  Secretary and
Treasurer ( defined below).   The Board, in its capacity as administering agent of this
Agreement, shall elect a Chair, a Vice- Chair, and a Secretary of the Authority from
among Directors to serve until such officer is re- elected or a successor to such office is
elected by the Board. The Board shall appoint one or more of its officers or employees to
serve as treasurer, auditor, and controller of the Authority ( the " Treasurer") pursuant to

Section 6505. 6 of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act to serve until such officer is re- elected

or a successor to such office is elected by the Board.

Subject to the applicable provisions of any resolution, indenture, trust agreement
or other instrument or proceeding authorizing or securing Bonds ( each such resolution,
indenture, trust agreement, instrument and proceeding being herein referred to as an

Indenture") providing for a trustee or other fiscal agent, and except as may otherwise be

199



specified by resolution of the Board, the Treasurer is designated as the depositary of the
Authority to have custody of all money of the Authority, from whatever source derived
and shall have the powers, duties and responsibilities specified in Sections 6505, 6505. 5

and 6509. 5 of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act.

The Treasurer of the Authority is designated as the public officer or person who
has charge of, handles, or has access to any property of the Authority, and such officer
shall file an official bond with the Secretary of the Authority in the amount specified by
resolution of the Board but in no event less than$ 1, 000.

The Board shall have the power to appoint such other officers and employees as it

may deem necessary and to retain independent counsel, consultants and accountants.

The Board shall have the power, by resolution, to the extent permitted by the Joint
Exercise of Power Act or any other applicable law, to delegate any of its functions to one
or more of the Directors or officers, employees or agents of the Authority and to cause
any of said Directors, officers, employees or agents to take any actions and execute any
documents or instruments for and in the name and on behalf of the Board or the

Authority.

D.      MEETINGS OF THE BOARD.

1)      Ralph M. Brown Act.    

All meetings of the Board, including, without limitation, regular,
adjourned regular, special, and adjourned special meetings shall be called,

noticed, held and conducted in accordance with the provisions of the

Ralph M.   Brown Act  ( commencing with Section 54950 of the

Government Code of the State of California), or any successor legislation
hereinafter enacted ( the " Brown Act").

2)      Regular Meetin s.

The Board shall provide for its regular meetings;  provided,'

however, it shall hold at least one regular meeting each year.  The date,

hour and place of the holding of the regular meetings shall be fixed by
resolution of the Board.  To the extent permitted by the Brown Act, such
meetings may be held by telephone conference.

3)      Special Meetin s.

Special meetings of the Board may be called in accordance with
the provisions of Section 54956 of the Government Code of the State of

California.  To the extent permitted by the Brown Act, such meetings may
be held by telephone conference.

200



4)      Minutes.

The Secretary of the Authority shall cause to be kept minutes of
the regular, adjourned regular, special, and adjourned special meetings of

the Board and shall, as soon as possible after each meeting, cause a copy
of the minutes to be forwarded to each Director.

5) uorum.

A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business. No action may be taken by the Board except upon
the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors constituting a quorum,
except that less than a quorum may adjourn a meeting to another time and
place.

E.       RULES AND REGLTLATIONS.

The Authority may adopt, from time to time, by resolution of the Board such rules
and regulations for the conduct of its meetings and affairs as may be required.

Section 4.      Powers.

The Authority shall have the power, in its own name, to exercise the common powers of
the Members and to exercise all additional powers given to a joint powers entity under any of the
laws of the State of California, including, but not limited to, the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, for
any purpose authorized under this Agreement.  Such powers shall include the common powers

specified in this Agreement and may be exercised in the manner and according to the method
provided in this Agreement.  The Authority is hereby authorized to do all acts necessary for the
exercise of such power, including, but not limited to, any of all of the following: to make and
enter into contracts;  to employ agents and employees;  to acquire,  construct,  provide for

maintenance and operation of, or maintain and operate, any buildings, works or improvements;
to acquire, hold or dispose of property wherever located; to incur debts, liabilities or obligations;
to receive gifts, contributions and donations of property, funds, services, and other forms of
assistance from person, firms, corporations and any governmental entity; to sue and be sued in its
own name; to make grants, loans or provide other financial assistance to governmental and

nonprofit organizations ( e.g., the Members or the Foundation) to accomplish any of its purposes;
and generally to do any and all things necessary or convenient to accomplish its purposes.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Authority may issue or cause to be
issued Bonds, and pledge any property or revenues as security to the extent pernutted under the
Joint Exercise of Powers Act, or any other applicable provision of law; provided, however, the
Authority shall not issue Bonds with respect to any project located in the jurisdiction of one or
more Members unless the governing body of any such Member,  or its duly authorized
representative, shall approve, conditionally or unconditionally, the project, including the issuance
of Bonds therefor.  Such approval may be evidenced by resolution, certificate, order, report or
such other means of written approval of such project as may be selected by the Member ( or its
authorized representative) whose approval is required.  No such approval shall be required in

201



connection with Bonds that refund Bonds previously issued by the Authority and approved by
the governing board of a Member.

The manner in which the Authority shall exercise its powers and perform its duties is and
shall be subject to the restrictions upon the manner in which a California general law city could
exercise such powers and perform such duties. The manner in which the Authority shall exercise
its powers and perform its duties shall not be subject to any restrictions applicable to the manner
in which any other public agency could exercise such powers or perform such duties, whether
such agency is a party to this Agreement or not.

Section 5.      Fiscal Year.

For the purposes of this Agreement, the term " Fiscal Year" shall mean the fiscal year as

established from time to time by resolution of the Board, being, at the date of this Agreement, the
period from July 1 to and including the following June 30, except for the first Fiscal Year which
shall be the period from the date of this Agreement to June 30, 2004.

Section 6.      Disposition of Assets.

At the end of the term hereof or upon the earlier termination of this Agreement as set

forth in Section 2, after payment of all expenses and liabilities of the Authority, all property of
the Authority both real and personal shall automatically vest in the Members in the manner and
amount determined by the Board in its sole discretion and shall thereafter remain the sole
property of the Members; provided, however, that any surplus money on hand shall be returned
in proportion to the contributions made by the Members.

Section 7.      Bonds.

From time to time the Authority shall issue Bonds, in one or more series, for the purpose
of exercising its powers and raising the funds necessary to carry out its purposes under this
Agreement.

The services of bond counsel, financing consultants and other consultants and advisors
working on the projects and/ or their fmancing shall be used by the Authority.  The expenses of
the Board shall be paid from the proceeds of the Bonds or any other unencumbered funds of the
Authority available for such purpose.

Section 8.      Bonds Onlv Limited and Snecial Obli ations of Authority.

The Bonds, together with the interest and premium, if any, thereon, shall not be deemed
to constitute a debt of any Member or pledge of the faith and credit of the Members or the
Authority.  The Bonds shall be only special obligations of the Authority, and the Authority shall
under no circumstances be obligated to pay the Bonds except. from revenues and other funds
pledged therefor.  Neither the Members nor the Authority shall be obligated to pay the principal
of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, or other costs incidental thereto, except from the
revenues and funds pledged therefor, and neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the
Members nor the faith and credit of the Authority shall be pledged to the payment of the

202



principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds nor shall the Members or the Authority in
any manner be obligated to make any appropriation for such payment.

No covenant or agreement contained in any Bond or related document shall be deemed to
be a covenant or agreement of any Director, or any officer, employee or agent of the Authority in
his or her individual capacity and neither the Board of the Authority nor any Director or officer
thereof executing the Bonds shall be liable personally on any Bond or be subject to any personal
liability or accountability by reason of the issuance of any Bonds.

Section 9.      Accounts and Reports.

All funds of the Authority shall be strictly accounted for.  The Authority shall establish
and maintain such funds and accounts as may be required by good accounting practice and by
any provision of any Indenture ( to the extent such duties are not assigned to a trustee of Bonds).
The books and records of the Authority shall be open to inspection at all reasonable times by
each Member.   

The Treasurer of the Authority shall cause an independent audit to be made of the books
of accounts and fmancial records of the Authority by a certified public accountant or public
accountant in compliance with the provisions of Section 6505 of the Joint Exercise of Powers

Act.  In each case the minimum requirements of the audit shall be those prescribed by the State
Controller for special districts under Section 26909 of the Government Code of the State of

California and shall conform to generally accepted auditing standards.  When such an audit of

accounts and records is made by a certified public accountant or public accountant, a report
thereof shall be filed as a public record with each Member and also with the county auditor of
each county in which a Member is located; provided, however, that to the extent permitted by
law, the Authority may, instead of filing such report with each Member and such county auditor,
elect to post such report as a public record electronically on a website designated by the
Authority.  Such report if made shall be filed within 12 months of the end of the Fiscal Year or
Years under examination.

The Treasurer is hereby directed to report in writing on the first day of July, October,
January, and April of each year to the Board and the Members which report shall describe the
amount of money held by the Treasurer for the Authority, the amount of receipts since the last
such report, and the amount paid out since the last such report( which may exclude amounts held
by a trustee or other fiduciary in connection with any Bonds to the extent that such trustee or
other fiduciary provided regular reports covering such amounts.)

Any costs of the audit, including contracts with, or employment of, certified public
accountants or public accountants in making an audit pursuant to this Section, shall be borne by
the Authority and shall be a charge against any unencumbered funds of the Authority available
for that purpose.

In any Fiscal Year the Board may, by resolution adopted by unanimous vote, replace the
annual special audit with an audit covering a two- year period.

203



Section 10.    Funds.

Subject to the applicable provisions of any Indenture, which may provide for a trustee or
other fiduciary to receive, have custody of and disburse Authority funds, the Treasurer of the
Authority shall receive, have the custody of and disburse Authority funds pursuant to the
accounting procedures developed under Sections 3. 0 and 9, and shall make the disbursements
required by this Agreement or otherwise necessary to carry out any of the provisions of purposes
of this Agreement.

Section 11.    Notices.

Notices and other communications hereunder to the Members shall be sufficient if

delivered to the clerk of the governing body of each Member; provided, however, that to the
extent permitted by law, the Authority may, provide notices and other communications and
postings electronically( including, without limitation, through email or by posting to a website).    

Section 12.    Additional Members/ Withdrawal of Members.

Qualifying public agencies may be added as parties to this Agreement and become
Members upon:   ( 1) the filing by such public agency with the Authority of an executed
counterpart of this Agreement, together with a copy of the resolution of the governing body of
such public agency approving this Agreement and the execution and delivery hereof; and ( 2)
adoption of a resolution of the Board approving the addition of such public agency as a Member.
Upon satisfaction of such conditions, the Board shall file such executed counterpart of this

Agreement as an amendment hereto, effective upon such filing.

A Member may withdraw from this Agreement upon written notice to the Board;

provided, however, that no such withdrawal shall result in the dissolution of the Authority so
long as any Bonds remain outstanding. Any such withdrawal shall be effective only upon receipt
of the notice of withdrawal by the Board which shall acknowledge receipt of such notice of
withdrawal in writing and shall file such notice as an amendment to this Agreement effective
upon such filing.

Section 13.    Indemnification.

To the full extent permitted by law, the Board may authorize indemnification by the
Authority of any person who is or was a Director or an officer, employee of other agent of the

Authority, and who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to a proceeding by
reason of the fact that such person is or was such a Director or an officer, employee or other

agent of the Authority, against expenses, including attorneys fees, judgments, fines, settlements
and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with such proceeding, if such
person acted in good faith in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in the best interests
of the Authority and, in the case of a criminal proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe the
conduct of such person was unlawful and, in the case of an action by or in the right of the
Authority, acted with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily prudent person in
a like position would use under similar circumstances.

204



Section 14.    Contributions and Advances.

Contributions or advances of public funds and of the use of personnel, equipment or

property may be made to the Authority by the Members for any of the purposes of this
Agreement. Payment of public funds may be made to defray the cost of any such contribution or
advance. Any such advance may be made subject to repayment, and in such case shall be repaid,
in the manner agreed upon by the Authority and the Member making such advance at the time of
such advance.  It is mutually understood and agreed to that no Member has any obligation to
make advances or contributions to the Authority to provide for the costs and expenses of
administration of the Authority, even though any Member may do so.  The Members understand

and agree that a portion of the funds of the Authority that otherwise may be allocated or
distributed to the Members may instead be used to make grants, loans or provide other fmancial
assistance to governmental units and nonprofit organizations  ( e. g.,  the Foundation)  to

accomplish any of the governmental uniYs or nonprofit organization' s purposes.

Section 15.    Immunities.

All of the privileges and 'unmunities from liabilities, exemptions from laws, ordinances

and rules, and other benefits which apply to the activity of officers, agents or employees of
Members when perfornung their respective functions within the territorial limits of their
respective public agencies, shall apply to the same degree and extent to the Directors, officers,
employees, agents or other representatives of the Authority while engaged in the performance of
any of their functions or duties under the provisions of this Agreement.

Section 16.    Amendments.

Except as provided in Section 12 above, this Agreement shall not be amended, modified,
or altered, unless the negative consent of each of the Members is obtained. To obtain the

negative consent of each of the Members, the following negative consent procedure shall be
followed:  ( a) the Authority shall provide each Member with a notice at least sixty ( 60) days
prior to the date such proposed amendment is to become effective explaining the nature of such
proposed amendment and this negative consent procedure; ( b) the Authority shall provide each
Member who did not respond a reminder notice with a notice at least thirty( 30) days prior to the
date such proposed amendment is to become effective; and ( c) if no Member objects to the
proposed amendment in writing within sixty ( 60) days after the initial notice, the proposed
amendment shall become effective with respect to all Members.

Section 17.    Effectiveness. 

This Agreement shall become effective and be in full force and effect and a legal, valid
and binding obligation of each of the Members on the date that the Board shall have received
from two of the Initial Members an executed counterpart of this Agreement, together with a

certified copy of a resolution of the governing body of each such Initial Member approving this
Agreement and the execution and delivery hereof.

205



Section 18.    Partial Invaliditv.

If any one or more of the terms, provisions, promises, covenants or conditions of this

Agreement shall to any extent be adjudged invalid, unenforceable, void or voidable for any
reason whatsoever by a court of competent jurisdiction, each and all of the remaining terms,
provisions, promises, covenants and conditions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby,
and shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

Section 19.    Successors.

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors of
the parties hereto.  Except to the extent expressly provided herein, no Member may assign any
right or obligation hereunder without the consent of the other Members.

Section 20.    Miscellaneous.

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an
original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

i

The section headings herein are for convenience only and are not to be construed as
modifying or governing the language in the section referred to.

Wherever in this Agreement any consent or approval is required, the same shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

This Agreement shall be governed under the laws of the State of California.

This Agreement is the complete and exclusive statement of the agreement among the
Members,  which supercedes and merges all prior proposals,  understandings,  and other

agreements, whether oral, written, or implied in conduct, between and among the Members
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.

1

206



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Lathrop has caused this Agreement to be
executed and attested by its duly authorized representatives as of the day of

2018.

Member:    

CITY OF LATHROP

By
Name:

Title:

ATTEST:

Clerk

207



n 
IY1 .,,

PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

This PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (" Agreement"), made and entered into as

of December 2018,  by and among the CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE
AUTHORITY,  a joint powers agency organized and existing under the laws of the
State of California  ( the AUTHORITY"),  Energy Efficiency Equity,  LLC  ( E3")  ( the

Administrator")  and the City of Lathrop,  a municipal corporation organized and

existing under the laws of the State of California ( the " PARTICIPATING MEMBER");

WITNESSETH:

a)     The AUTHORITY is a joint powers agency organized and existing
pursuant to the Joint Powers Act, comprising Articles 1, 2, 3 and 4 of

Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 ( commencing with Section 6500) of

the Government Code of the State of California; and

b)     The AUTHORITY has adopted the CMFA PACE Program    ( the

Program"), for the financing of certain renewable energy and energy
and water efficiency and other improvements   (" Improvements)

authorized by Chapter 29 of the Streets & Highways Code (" Chapter

29") within the Participating Member' s jurisdiction; and

c)     The PARTICIPATING MEMBER has authorized the AUTHORITY to form
an assessment district   ( the  " District")   for Program financing of

Improvements on certain properties owned by property owners who
voluntarily agree to participate in the Program (" Program Participant");

and

d)     The AUTHORITY intends to issue bond5,  notes or other forms of

indebtedness   ( the  Bonds")   to finance Improvements within the

District; and

e)     The PARTICIPATING MEMBER desires to authorize the AUTHORIIY to
i)  record the assessment against the participating property owner' s

parcels, ( ii) administer the District in accordance with Chapter 29 and
the Improvement Act of 1915 ( commencing with Section 8500 et seq.)
and ( iii) prepare program guidelines for the operations of the Program;
and

f)      The PARTICIPATING MEMBER will permit the ADMINISTRATORS to
perform certain management,    administrative,    operational and

implementation functions for the AUTHORITY with respect to the

Program;

NOW,   THEREFORE,   FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL

PROMISES,  COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS HEREIN CONTAINED,  THE PARTIES

HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS:       

208



Section 1.   Recitals. The Recitals contained herein are true and correct and

are hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Section 2.   Appointment of the AUTHORITY. PARTICIPATING MEMBER is not

and will not be deemed to be an agent of the AUTHORITY or any ADMINISTRATOR
as a result of this Agreement.   PARTICIPATING MEMBER consents to the

AUTHORITY' s assumption of rights, responsibilities, obligations and liabilities related
to the Agreement within its jurisdiction upon satisfaction of the conditions imposed

pursuant to this Agreement and the resolution authorizing this Agreement, to take
each and every step required for or suitable for financing the Improvements,
including the levying, collecting and enforcement of the contractual assessments.
PARTICIPATING MEMBER consents to the AUTHORITY' s delegation of duties

hereunder or with respect to the Program, to either or both ADMINISTRATORS.

Section 3.   Indemnification.  The AUTHORITY and each ADMINISTRATOR

jointly and severally agrees to defend,   indemnify,   and hold harmless the

PARTICIPATING MEMBER,  its ofFicers,  agents, employees and attorneys from and
against any and all liabilities, claims, or demands arising or alleged to arise as a
result of the AUTHORITY' s or such ADMINISTRATOR' s performance or failure to
perform under this Agreement or the Program,  except that arising from the sole
negligence or willful misconduct of PARTICIPATING MEMBER.     This Section shall

survive termination of this Agreement.

Section 4.  PARTICIPATING MEMBER has no liabilitv.  Except as expressly set
forth in this the Agreement or Resolution  [ IfVSERT NUMBER],  PARTICIPATING

MEMBER shall not have any liabilities or obligations or incur an.y costs or expenses
for the Program, including, but not limited to, the repayment of any bonds issued
for the Program.    PARTICIPATING MEMBER will not have any responsibilities or
obligations with respect to the Program, including, but not limited to, the conduct of
any assessment proceedings, the levy of assessments, any required remedial action
in the case of delinquencies, the issuance, sale or administration of the bonds or

other indebtedness issued in connection with the Program.

Section 5.  Information to be Provided.  Within thirty  ( 30)  days of each
request from PARTICIPATING MEMBER,   the AUTHORITY agrees to provide

PARTICIPATING MEMBER with a list of property owners within the jurisdiction of
PARTICIPATING MEMBER participating in the Program as well as their address,
detailed description of Improvement( s)  installed,  and date( s)  of Improvement( s)

completion.

Section 6.     Confidentialitv.

a)     " Confidential Information" means,  with respect to a Party hereto, all

information or material which either ( 1)  is marked or identified as " Confidential,"

Restricted," or Proprietary Information" or other similar marking or identification,
or ( 2) the other Party knew, as recipient, or under the circumstances, should have

2

209



known,  was considered confidential or proprietary by the Disclosing Party  ( as

defined below).  Confidential Information shall consist of all information, whether in

written, oral, electronic, or other form, furnished in connection with this Agreement

by one Party or its Representatives (" Representative" is defined as any elected and
appointed ofFicials, afFiliate, director, officer, employee, agent, advisor or consultant

of a Party or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates) to one or more of the other Parties
or to its or the.ir Representatives, and 5pecifically includes but is not limited to ( 1)

PARTICIPATING MEMBER' s individually identifiable customer information,   ( 2)

PARTICIPATING MEMBER' s customer data and financial data, ( 3) the AUTHORITY' s

property owner information disclosing to PATICIPATING MEMBER pursuant to
Section 5, and ( 4) each ADMINISTRATOR' s customer data and financial data.

b)     The AUTHORITY, each ADMINISTRATOR and PARTICIPATING MEMBER
shall each hold each other' s Confidential Information in confidence.   No Party shall
make the others' Confidential Information available in any form to any third party
or use any other' s Confidential Information for any purpose other than as specified
in this Agreement. The Party providing Confidential Information (" Disclosing Party")
to any other Party  (" Receiving Party")  shall remain the sole owner of such

information.      Except as provided elsewhere within this Agreement,   nothing

contained in this Agreement shall be construed as granting or conferring any right
or license in any Confidential Information or in any patents, copyrights, software or
other technology,  either expressly or by implication to any other Party,  or to its

Representatives or to others. The term Confidential Information shall not include

any of the following:  ( 1) information already in possession of, or already known to,
the Receiving Party as of the Effective Date without an obligation of confidentiality;

2) information in the public domain at the time of the disclosure, or which, after

such disclosure, enters into the public domain through no breach of this Agreement
by the Receiving Party or its Representative( s);  ( 3) information lawfully furnished
or disclosed to the Receiving Party by a non- party to this Agreement without any
obligation of confidentiality and through no breach of this Agreement by the
Receiving Party or its Representative( s);  ( 4)  information independently developed
by the Receiving Party without use of any Confidential Information of the Disclosing
Party;  or  ( 5)  information authorized in writing by the Disclosing Party to be
released from the co;nfidentiality obligations herein.

c)      By virtue of this Agreement,  each Party hereto may disclose to any
other Party information that is Confidential Information. This Agreement does not
diminish, revoke or supersede any existing confidentiality, non- disclosure or similar
agreement between or among any Parties that does not pertain to the subject
matter of this Agreement.   However, any Confidential Information, whether or not
previously disclosed; that pertains to the subject matter of this Agreement shall be
governed by the terms of this Section 6 which shall supersede any such previous
agreement with respect to such Confidential Information and any Confidential
Information relating to the subject matter of this Agreement that was exchanged
under such previous agreement shall be treated as though it was exchanged under
this Agreement as of the date of such exchange.

3

210



d)     Each Receiving Party will treat all Confidential Information of the
Disclosing Party,   no matter written,   electronic,   or oral,   as confidential and

proprietary, and such Receiving Party shall only use such information in furtherance
of this Agreement.  As such,  such Receiving Party shall hold in confidence the
Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party, and ensure that such Confidential
Information is not disclosed to any other person or entity,  except as expressly
permitted by this Agreement or as authorized by the Disclosing Party.  No Receiving
Party shall disclose Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party received under
this Agreement to any person other than its Rep.resentatives who require

knowledge of such Confidential Information in furtherance of this Agreement. Each

Receiving Party shall inform its Representatives of the confidential nature of the
Confidential Information of any Disclosing Party and advise such Representatives of
the limitations on the use and disclosure and prohibition on making copies or
summaries of such Confidential Information.   Each Receiving Party shall be

responsible for any breach of this Agreement by its Representatives. No Party shall
use the Confidential Information of any other Party for any commercial purpose.

e)     If a Receiving Party becomes legally compelled  ( by oral questions,
interrogatories, request for information or documents, subpoena, civil investigative

demand, or similar process) to disclose any Confidential Information of a Disclosing
Party, the Receiving Party will provide the Disclosing Party with written notice of
such an occurrence  ( if so permitted) as soon as possible.   Thereafter, at its sole

costs and expense,  the Disclosing Party may seek a protective order or other
appropriate remedy, or waive compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.  So

long as it is consistent with applicable law,  the Receiving Party will not oppose
action by, and the Receiving Party will cooperate with, the Disclosing Party, at the
Disclosing Party' s sole cost and expense, to obtain' an appropriate protective order
or other reliable assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded the

Confidential Information.    If the Disclosing Party fails to obtain such protective
order or other remedy,  or if the Disclosing Party waives compliance with the
requirements of the preceding sentence, the Receiving Party will disclose only that
Confidential Information that it is legally required to disclose,  and will exercise

commercially reasonable efforts,  at Disclosing Party' s expense, to obtain reliable

assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded the Confidential Information

so disclosed.

f)      In the event a Receiving Party discloses,   disseminates or

releases any Confidential Information,  except as expressly permitted by this
Agreement,  such disclosure,  dissemination or release will be deemed a material

breach of this Agreement and the Disclosing Party may demand prompt return of all
Confidential Information previously provided to the Receiving Party.  As soon as the

Receiving Party becomes aware that it has made an unauthorized disclosure of
Confidential Information,  the Receiving Party shall take any and all necessary
actions to recover the improperly disclosed Confidential Information and

immediately notify the Disclosing Party regarding the nature of the unauthorized
disclosure and the corrective measures being taken.   Each Party agrees that any
breach of their confidentiality obligations could cause irreparable harm to the

4

211



Disclosing Party,  the amount of which would be extremely difficult to estimate.
Accordingly,  it is understood and agreed that monetary damages would not be a
sufficient remedy for any material breach of this Agreement and that specific
performance and injunctive relief in addition to monetary damages shall be

appropriate remedies for any breach or any threat of such breach.   The provisions

of this Paragraph are in addition to any other legal rights or remedies a Disclosing
Party may have.

g)     Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,  the

provisions of this Section 6 shall not apply to the disclosure of information that
must be shared in order to record,  levy or collect contractual assessments under
the Program or to sell or securitize Bonds.

h)     Notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement,   this

Confidentiality Section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this
Agreement.

Section 7.  Integration.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of

PARTICIPATING MEMBER, each ADMINISTRATOR and the AUTHORITY with respect

to the matters covered hereby, and no agreement, statement or promise made by
PARTICIPATING MEMBER, any ADMINISTRATOR and the AUTHORITY which is not
contained herein, shall be valid or binding.   No prior agreement, understanding or
representation pertaining to any such matter shall be effective for any purpose.

Section 8.     This Agreement may be terminated by either the AUTHORITY or
PARTICIPATING MEMBER with thirty ( 30) days written notice. In the event of such

termination, the AUTHORITY and each ADMINISTRATOR shall no longer have the

rights and authorizations granted in this Agreement and Resolution  [ INSERT],

including but not limited to,  conducting of additional contractual assessment

proceedings and levying new contractual assessments.

Section 9.  Insurance.  The ADMINISTRATOR agrees that,  at no cost or

expense to the City, at all times during its administration of the CMFA Open PACE
Program,  to maintain the insurance coverage set forth in Exhibit A to this

Agreement.

Section 10.   Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective on the date on

which this Agreement is executed by the PARTICIPATING MEMBER  ( Effective

Date").

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

5

212



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Participation

Agreement by their officers duly authorized as of the day and year first written
above.

ENERGY EFFICIENCY EQUITY, LLC

By:
Title]

CALYFORNIQ MiUNICIPAL FYNANCE p UTHOIaITY

By:
Title]

CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation

By:
Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

e4TTEST

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

4PPRO iED AS TO FORlb1

By:
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

6

213



EXHIBIT A

INSURANCE

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:      

1.      The coverage provided by Insurance Services Office Commercial
General

Liability coverage ( occurrence") Form Number CG 0001; and

2.      The coverage provided by Insurance Services OfFice Form
Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability.   Coverage shall be included

for all owned, non- owned and hired automobiles; and

3.  Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the California Labor
Code and

Employers Liability insurance; and

4.  Professional Liability Errors & Omissions for all professional services.

B.      Minimum Limits of Insurance

Administrator shall maintain limits no less than:     

1.       Commercial General Liability;   $ 2, 000, 000 per occurrence for

bodily injury, personal injury and property damage; and

2.       Automobile Liability:   $ 1, 000, 000 combined single limit per

accident for bodily injury and property damage; and

3.       Workers'  Compensation and Employers Liability:    Workers'

Compensation limits as required by the California Labor Code and Employers
Liability limits of

1, 000, 000 per accident; and

4.      Professional Liability Errors & Omissions $ 1, 000, 000 per claim or

occurrence/

2, 000, 000 aggregate limit.

Limits and coverages afforded to the City shall be the greater of the above
limits,   or the limits and coverages provided under the policy( ies)   of

insurance.

7

214



C. Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions

Any deductibles or self- insured retentions must be declared to the City.

D.  Other Insurance Provisions

The policies are to contain,  or be endorsed to contain,  the following
provisions:

1.  Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages.

a.       The City, its officers, employees, agents, and contractors are
to be covered as additional insureds as respects:    liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Administrator;  products and

completed operations of the Administrator; premises owned, leased, or used

by the Administrator;  and automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by
the Administrator.   The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the

scope of protection afForded to the City, its officers, employees, agents, and
contractors.

b.       The Administrator' s insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects the City,   its officers,   employees,   agents,   and

contractors.  Any insurance or self- insurance maintained by City, its officers,
employees,  agents,  or contractors shall be excess of the Administrator' s
insurance and shall not contribute with it.  

c.       Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies
by the Administrator shall not afFect coverage provided to the City,  its

officers, employees, agents, or contractors.

d.       Coverage shall state that the Administrator' s insurance shall

apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is
brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer' s liability.

e.       Coverage shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of

the City, its officers, employees, agents, and contractors.

2.  Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability.

Coverage shall contain waiver of subrogation in favor of City,  its officers,

employees, agents, and contractors.

3.  All Coverages

The Administrator shall provide City with written notice of any suspension,
cancellation,  or reduction in limits of any insurance policy required by this
Agreement, and shall promptly procure a replacement policy.

8

215



E. Verification of Coverage.

The Administrator shall furnish the City with certificates of insurance and with
original endorsements afFecting coverage required by this Agreement.   The

certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on. its behalf.

Proof of insurance shall be either emailed in pdf format or mailed to the City
Clerk at the following address or any subsequent address as may be directed
in writing by the City:

City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

G. Subcontractors.

The Administrator shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its

policies or shall obtain separate certificates and endorsements for each

subcontractor.

9

216



A HIVIENT
PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

This PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (" Agreement"), made and entered into as of

December 2018,   by and among the CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE

AUTHORITY, a joint powers agency organized and existing under the laws of the State
of California ( the " AUTHORITY"), BlueFlame PACE Services LLC ( the Administrator")

and the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the
laws of the State of California ( the ' PARTICIPATING MEMBER");

WITNESSETH:

a)     The AUTHORITY is a joint powers agency organized and existing
pursuant to the Joint Powers Act, comprising Articles 1, 2, 3 and 4 of

Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 ( commencing with Section 6500) of the
Government Code of the State of California; and

b)     The AUTHORITY h.as adopted the CMFA PACE Program ( the Program"),

for the financing of certain renewable energy and energy and water
efficiency and other improvements  (" Improvements)  authorized by
Chapter 29 of the Streets & Highways Code (" Chapter 29") within the

Participating Member' s jurisdiction; and

c)     The PARTICIPATING MEMBER has authorized the AUTHORITY to form an
assessment district    ( the   " District")    for Program financing of

Improvements on certain properties owned by property owners who
voluntarily agree to participate in the Program (' Program Participant");
and

d)     The AUTHORITY intends to issue bonds,  notes or other forms of

indebtedness ( the Bonds") to finance Improvements within the District;

and

e)     The PARTICIPATING MEMBER desires to authorize the AUTHORITY to ( i)

record the assessment against the participating property owner' s
parcels, ( ii) administer the District in accordance with Chapter 29 and

the Improvement Act of 1915 ( commencing with Section 8500 et seq.)
and ( iii) prepare program guidelines for the operations of the Program;
and

f)      The PARTICIPATING MEMBER will permit the ADMINISTRATORS to
perform certain management,    administrative,    operational and

implementation functions for the AUTHORITY with respect to the

Program;

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES,

COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS HEREIN CONTAINED, THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE
AS FOLLOWS:

217



Section 1.  Recitals. The Recitals contained herein are true and correct and are

hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Section 2.   Appointment of the AUTHORITY.  PARTICIPATING MEMBER is not

and will not be deemed to be an agent of the AUTHORITY or any ADMINISTRATOR
as a result of this Agreement. PARTICIPATING MEMBER consents to the AUTHORITY' s
assumption of rights,  responsibilities,  obligations and liabilities related to the

Agreement within its jurisdiction upon satisfaction of the conditions imposed pursuant

to this Agreement and the resolution authorizing this Agreement, to take each and
every step required for or suitable for financing the Improvements,  including the
levying, collecting and enforcement of the contractual assessments.  PARTICIPATING

MEMBER consents to the AUTHORITY' s delegation of duties hereunder or with respect
to the Program, to either or both ADMINISTRATORS.

Section 3. Indemnification. The AUTHORITY and each ADMINISTRATOR jointly
and severally agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the PARTICIPATING
MEMBER, its ofFicers, agents, employees and attorneys from and against any and all
liabilities,  claims,  or demands arising or alleged to arise as a result of the

AUTHORITY' s or such ADMINISTRATOR' s performance or failure to perform under this
Agreement or the Program, except that arising from the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of PARTICIPATING MEMBER.    This Section shall survive termination of
this Agreement.

Section 4.  PARTICIPATING MEMBER has no liabilitv.  Except as expressly set
forth in this the Agreement, PARTICIPATING MEMBER shall not have any liabilities or
obligations or incur any costs or expenses for the Program, including, but not limited
to, the repayment of any bonds issued for the Program.   PARTICIPATING MEMBER

will not have any responsibilities or obligations with respect to the Program, including,
but not limited to,  the conduct of any assessment proceedings,  the levy of
assessments, any required remedial action in the case of delinquencies, the issuance,
sale or administration of the bonds or other indebtedness issued in connection with
the Program.

Section 5. Information to be Provided. Within thirty ( 30), days of each request

from PARTICIPATING MEMBER, the ,4UTHORITY agrees to provide PARTICIPATING
MEMBER with a list of property owners within the jurisdiction of PARTICIPATING
MEMBER participating in the Program as well as their address, detailed description of
Improvement( s) installed, and date( s) of Improvement( s) completiono

Section 6.     Confidentialitv.

a)      " Confidential Information" means,  with respect to a Party hereto,  all

information or material which either ( 1)  is marked or identified as " Confidential,"

Restricted," or " Proprietary Information" or other similar marking or identification,
or ( 2) the other Party knew, as recipient, or under the circumstances, should have

2

218



known, was considered confidential or proprietary by the Disclosing Party ( as defined
below).  Confidential Information shall consist of all information, whether in written,

oral, electronic, or other form, furnished in connection with this Agreement by one
Party or its Representatives  ( Representative"  is defined as any elected and
appointed ofFicials, affiliate, director, ofFicer, employee, agent, advisor or consultant

of a Party or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates) to one or more of the other Parties
or to its or tlieir Representatives, and specifically includes but is not limited to ( 1)

PARTICIPATING MEMBER' s individually identifiable customer information,   ( 2)

PARTICIPATING MEMBER' s customer data and financial data, ( 3) the AUTHORITY' s

property owner information disclosing to PATICIPATING MEMBER pursuant to Section
5, and ( 4) each ADMINISTRATOR' s customer data and financial data.

b)     The AUTHORITY, each ADMINISTRATOR and PARTICIPATING MEMBER
shall each hold each other' s Confidential Information in confidence.   No Party shall
make the others' Confidential Information. available in any form to any third party or
use any other' s Confidential Information for any purpose other than as specified in
this Agreement. The Party providing Confidential Information (" Disclosing Party") to

any other Party (" Receiving Party") shall remain the sole owner of such information.

Except as provided elsewhere within this Agreement,  nothing contained in this
Agreement shall be construed as granting or conferring any right or license in any
Confidential Information or in any patents, copyrights, software or other technology,
either expressly or by implication to any other Party, or to its Representatives or to
others. The term Confidential Information shall not include any of the following: ( 1)

information already in possession of, or already known to, the Receiving Party as of
the EfFective Date without an obligation of confidentiality;  ( 2)  information in the

public domain at the time of the disclosure, or which, after such disclosure, enters

into the public domain through no breach of this Agreement by the Receiving Party
or its Representative( s);  ( 3)  information lawfully furnished or disclosed to the
Receiving Party by a non- party to this Agreement without any obligation of

confidentiality and through no breach of this Agreement by the Receiving Party or its
Representative( s); ( 4) information independently developed by the Receiving Party
without use of any Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party; or ( 5) information
authorized in writing by the Disclosing Party to be released from the confidentiality
obligations herein.

c)      By virtue of this Agreement, each Party hereto may disclose to any other
Party information that is Confidential Information. This Agreement does not diminish,
revoke or supersede any existing confidentiality, non- disclosure or similar agreement
between or among any Parties that does not pertain to the subject matter of this
Agreement.    However,  any Confidential Information,  whether or not previously
disclosed, that pertains to the subject matter of this Agreement shall be governed by
the terms of this Section 6 which shall supersede any such previous agreement with
respect to such Confidential Information and any Confidential Information relating to
the subject matter of this Agreement that was exchanged under such previous

3

219



agreement shall be treated as though it was exchanged under this Agreement as of

the date of such exchange.

d)     Each Receiving Party will treat all Confidential Information of the
Disclosing Party,   no matter written,   electronic,   or oral,   as confidential and

proprietary, and such Receiving Party shall only use such information in furtherance
of this Agreement.  As such,  such Receiving Party shall hold in confidence the
Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party, and ensure that such Confidential
Information is not disclosed to any other person or entity,  except as expressly
permitted by this Agreement or as authorized by the Disclosing Party.  No Receiving
Party shall disclose Confidential Information. of a Disclosing Party received under this
Agreement to any person other than its Representatives who require knowledge of
such Confidential Information in furtherance of this Agreement. Each Receiving Party
shall inform its Representatives of the confidential nature of the Confidential

Information of any Disclosing Party and advise such Representatives of the limitations
on the use and disclosure and prohibition on making copies or summaries of such
Confidential Information. Each Receiving Party shall be responsible for any breach of
this Agreement by its Representatives.   No Party shall use the Confidential

Information of any other Party for any commercial purpose.

e)     If a Receiving Party becomes legally compelled  ( by oral questions,
interrogatories, request for information or documents, subpoena, civil investigative

demand, or similar process) to disclose any Confidential Information of a Disclosing
Party, the Receiving Party will provide the Disclosing Party with written notice of such
an occurrence ( if so permitted) as soon as possible.  Thereafter, at its sole costs and

expense,  the Disclosing Party may seek a protective order or other appropriate
remedy, or waive compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.  So long as it is
consistent with applicable law, the Receiving Party will not oppose action by, and the
Receiving Party will cooperate with, the Disclosing Party, at the Disclosing Party' s
sole cost and expense, to obtain an appropriate protective order or other reliable

assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded the Confidential Information.

If the Disclosing Party fails to obtain such protective order or other remedy, or if the
Disclosing Party waives compliance with the requirements of the preceding sentence,
the Receiving Party will disclose only that Confidential Information that it is legally
required to disclose, and will exercise commercially reasonable efforts, at Disclosing
Party' s expense,  to obtain reliable assurance that confidential treatment will be

accorded the Confidential Information so disclosed.

f)      In the event a Receiving Party discloses, disseminates or releases any
Confidential Information,  except as expressly permitted by this Agreement,  such

disclosure,  dissemination or release will be deemed a material breach of this

Agreement and the Disclosing Party may demand prompt return of all Confidential
Information previously provided to the Receiving Party.   As soon as the Receiving
Party becomes aware that it has made an unauthorized disclosure of Confidential
Information, the Receiving Party shall take any and all necessary actions to recover

4

220



the improperly disclosed Confidential Information and immediately notify the
Disclosing Party regarding the nature of the unauthorized disclosure and the
corrective measures being taken.    Each Party agrees that any breach of their
confidentiality obligations could cause irreparable harm to the Disclosing Party, the
amount of which would be extremely difFicult to estimate.    Accordingly,  it is

understood and agreed that monetary damages would not be a sufFicient remedy for
any material breach of this Agreement and that specific performance and injunctive
relief in addition to monetary damages shall be appropriate remedies for any breach
or any threat of such breach.  The provisions of this Paragraph are in addition to any
other legal rights or remedies a Disclosing Party may have.

g)     Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the provisions
of this Section 6 shall not apply to the disclosure of information that must be shared
in order to record, levy or collect contractual assessments under the Program or to
sell or securitize Bonds.

h)     Notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement, this Confidentiality
Section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.

Section 7.  Integration.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of

PARTICIPATING MEMBER, each ADMINISTRATOR and the AUTHORITY with respect

to the matters covered hereby, and no agreement, statement or promise made by
PARTICIPATING MEMBER, any ADMINISTRATOR and the AUTHORITY which is not
contained herein, shall be valid or binding.   No prior agreement, understanding or
representation pertaining to any such matter shall be effective for any purpose.

Section 8.     This Agreement ma,y be terminated by either the AUTHORITY or
PARTICIPATING MEMBER with thirty ( 30) days written notice. In the event of such

termination, the AUTHORITY and each ADMINISTRATOR shall no longer have the
rights and authorizations granted in this Agreement and Resolution  [ INSERT],

including but not limited to,  conducting of additional contractual assessment

proceedings and levying new contractual assessments.

Section 9. Insurance. The ADMINISTRATOR agrees that, at no cost or expense

to the City, at all times during its administration of the CMFA Open PACE Program, to
maintain the insurance coverage set forth in Exhibit A to this Agreement.

Section 10.   EfFective Date. This Agreement shall be efFective on the date on
which this Agreement is executed by the PARTICIPATING MEMBER ( Effective Date").

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

5

221



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Participation

Agreement by their officers duly authorized as of the day and year first written above.

BLUEFLAME P/ CE SERVICES LLC

By:
Title]

CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FIN 4NCE e4llTHORITY

By:
Title]

CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation

By:
Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATl' EST

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

APPROi/ ED AS TO FORM

By:
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

6

222



EXHIBIT A

INSURANCE

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1.      The coverage provided by Insurance Services Office Commercial
General

Liability coverage (" occurrence") Form Number CG 0001; and

2.      The coverage provided by Insurance Services Office Form
Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability.  Coverage shall be included for

all owned, non- owned and hired automobiles; and

3.  Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the California Labor
Code and

Employers Liability insurance; and

4.  Professional Liability Errors & Omissions for all professional services.

B. -   Minimum Limits of Insurance

Administrator shall maintain limits no less than:

1.       Commercial General Liability:   $ 2, 000, 000 per occurrence for

bodily injury, personal injury and property damage; and

2.       Automobile Liability:   $ 1, 000, 000 combined single limit per

accident for bodily injury and property damage; and

3.       Workers'  Compensation and Employers Liability:    Workers'

Compensation limits as required by the California Labor Code and Employers
Liability limits of

1, 000, 000 per accident; and

4.      Professional Liability Errors & Omissions $ 1, 000, 000 per claim or

occurrence/

2, 000, 000 aggregate limit.

Limits and coverages afforded to the City shall be the greater of the above
limits, or the limits and coverages provided under the policy( ies) of insurance.

7

223



C. Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions

Any deductibles or self- insured retentions must be declared to the City.

D.  Other Insurance Provisions

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
1.  Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages.

a.       The City, its officers, employees, agents, and contractors are
to be covered as additional insureds as respects:    liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Administrator;  products and

completed operations of the Administrator; premises owned, leased, or used

by the Administrator; and automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by
the Administrator.   The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the

scope of protection afForded to the City, its officers, employees, agents, and
contractors.

b.       The Administrator' s insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects the City,   its ofFicers,   employees,   agents,   and

contractors.  Any insurance or self- insurance maintained by City, its officers,
employees,  agents,  or contractors shall be excess of the Administrator' s
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

c.       Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies
by the Administrator shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its officers,
employees, agents, or contractors.

d.       Coverage shall state that the Administrator' s insurance shall

apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is
brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer' s liability.

e.       Coverage shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the

City, its officers, employees, agents, and contractors.

2.  Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability.

Coverage shall contain waiver of subrogation in favor of City,  its officers, 

employees, agents, and contractors.

3.  All Coverages

8

224



The Administrator shall provide City with written notice of any suspension,
cancellation,  or reduction in limits of any .insurance policy required by this
Agreement, and shall promptly procure a replacement policy.

E. Verification of Coverage.

The Administrator shall furnish the City with certificates of insurance and with
original endorsements affecting coverage required by this Agreement.   The

certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.

Proof of insurance shall be either emailed in pdf format or mailed to the City
Clerk at the following address or any subsequent address as may be directed
in writing by the City:

City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

G. Subcontractors

The Administrator shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies

or shall obtain separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor.

9

225



A 
PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

This PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (" Agreement"), made and entered into as of

December 2018,  by and among the CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE
AUTHORITY, a joint powers agency organized and existing under the laws of the State
of California ( the AUTHORITY"), OnPACE Energy Solutions, LLC ( the" Administrator")
and the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the
laws of the State of California ( the PARTICIPATING MEMBER");

WITNESSETH:

a)     The AUTHORITY is a joint powers agency organized and existing
pursuant to the Joint Powers Act, comprising Articles 1, 2, 3 and 4 of

Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 ( commencing with Section 6500) of the
Government Code of the State of California; and

b)     The AUTHORITY has adopted the CMFA PACE Program ( the Program"),

for the financing of certain renewable energy and energy and water
efficiency and other improvements  (" Improvements)  authorized by
Chapter 29 of the Streets & Highways Code (" Chapter 29") within the

Participating Member' s jurisdiction; and

c)     The PARTICIPATING MEMBER has authorized the AUTHORITY to form an

assessment district    ( the   " District")    for Program financing of

Improvements on certain properties owned by property owners who
voluntarily agree to participate in the Program (" Program Participant");

and

d)     The AUTHORITY intends to issue bonds,  notes or other forms of

indebtedness ( the Bonds") to finance Improvements within the District;

and

e)     The PARTICIPATING MEMBER desires to authorize the AUTHORITY to ( i)

record the assessment against the participating property owner' s
parcels, ( ii) administer the District in accordance with Chapter 29 and

the Improvement Act of 1915 ( commencing with Section 8500 et seq.)
and ( iii) prepare program guidelines for the operations of the Program;

and

f)      The PARTICIPATING MEMBER will permit the ADMINISTRATORS to

perform certain management,    administrative,    operational and

implementation functions for the AUTHORITY with respect to the

Program;

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES,

COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS HEREIN CONTAINED, THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE

AS FOLLOWS:

226



Section 1.  Recitals. The Recitals contained herein are true and correct and are

hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Section 2.   Appointment of the AUTHORITY.  PARTICIPATING MEMBER is not

and will not be deemed to be an agent of the AUTHORITY or any ADMINISTRATOR
as a result of this Agreement. PARTICIPATING MEMBER consents to the AUTHORITY' s

assumption of rights,  responsibilities,  obligations and liabilities related to the

Agreement within its jurisdiction upon satisfaction of the conditions imposed pursuant

to this Agreement and the resolution authorizing this Agreement, to take each and
every step required for or suitable for financing the Improvements,  including the
levying, collecting and enforcement of the contractual assessments.  PARTICIPATING

MEMBER consents to the AUTHORITY' s delegation of duties hereunder or with respect

to the Program, to either or both ADMINISTRATORS.

Section 3. Indemnification. The AUTHORITY and each ADMINISTRATOR jointly
and severally agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the PARTICIPATING

MEMBER, its officers, agents, employees and attorneys from and against any and all
liabilities,  claims,  or demands arising or alleged to arise as a result of the
AUTHORITY' s or such ADMINISTRATOR' s performance or failure to perform under this

Agreement or the Program, except that arising from the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of PARTICIPATING MEMBER.    This Section shall survive termination of

this Agreement.

Section 4.  PARTICIPATING MEMBER has no liabilitv.  Except as expressly set
forth in this the Agreement or Resolution  [ INSERT NUMBER],  PARTICIPATING

MEMBER shall not have any liabilities or obligations or incur any costs or expenses
for the Program, including, but not limited to, the repayment of any bonds issued for
the Program.     PARTICIPATING MEMBER will not have any responsibilities or
obligations with respect to the Program; including, but not limited to, the conduct of
any assessment proceedings, the levy of assessments, any required remedial action
in the case of delinquencies, the issuance, sale or administration of the bonds or

other indebtedness issued in connection with the Program.

Section 5. Information to be Provided. Within thirty ( 30) days of each request

from PARTICIPATING MEMBER, the AUTHORITY agrees to provide PARTICIPATING

MEMBER with a list of property owners within the jurisdiction of PARTICIPATING
MEMBER participating in the Program as well as their address, detailed description of
Improvement( s) installed, and date( s) of Improvement( s) completion.

Section 6.     Confidentialitv.

a)     " Confidential Information" means,  with respect to a Party hereto,  all

information or material which either ( 1)  is marked or identified as " Confidential,"

Restricted," or " Proprietary Information" or other similar marking or identification,
or ( 2) the other Party knew, as recipient, or under the circumstances, should have
known, was considered confidential or proprietary by the Disclosing Party ( as defined

2

227



below).  Confidential Information shall consist of all information, whether in written,

oral, electronic, or other form, furnished in connection with this Agreement by one
Party or its Representatives  (" Representative"  is defined as any elected and

appointed officials, affiliate, director, officer, employee, agent, advisor or consultant

of a Party or any of its subsidiaries or afFiliates) to one or more of the other Parties
or to its or their Representatives, and specifically includes but is not limited to ( 1)

PARTICIPATING MEMBER' s individually identifiable customer information,   ( 2)

PARTICIPATING MEMBER' s customer data and financial data, ( 3) the AUTHORITY' s

property owner information disclosing to PATICIPATING MEMBER pursuant to Section
5, and ( 4) each ADMINISTRATOR' s customer data and financial data.

b)     The AUTHORITY, each ADMINISTRATOR and PARTICIPATING MEMBER

shall each hold each other' s Confidential Information in confidence.   No Party shall
make the others' Confidential Information available in any form to any third party or
use any other's Confidential Information for any purpose other than as specified in
this Agreement. The Party providing Confidential Information (" Disclosing Party") to

any other Party (" Receiving Party") shall remain the sole owner of such information.

Except as provided elsewhere within this Agreement,  nothing contained in this
Agreement shall be construed as granting or conferring any right or license in any
Confidential Information or in any patents, copyrights, software or other technology,
either expressly or by implication to any other Party, or to its Representatives or to
others. The term Confidential Information shall not include any of the following: ( 1)

information already in possession of, or already known to, the Receiving Party as of
the EfFective Date without an obligation of confidentiality;  ( 2)  information in the

public domain at the time of the disclosure, or which, after such disclosure, enters

into the public domain through no breach of this Agreement by the Receiving Party
or its Representative( s);  ( 3)  information lawfully furnished or disclosed to the
Receiving Party by a non- party to this Agreement without any obligation of
confidentiality and through no breach of this Agreement by the Receiving Party or its
Representative( s); ( 4) information independently developed by the Receiving Party
without use of any Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party; or ( 5) information
authorized in writing by the Disclosing Party to be released from the confidentiality
obligations herein.

c)      By virtue of this Agreement, each Party hereto may disclose to any other
Party information that is Confidential Information. This Agreement does not diminish,
revoke or supersede any existing confidentiality, non- disclosure or similar agreement
between or among any Parties that does not pertain to the subject matter of this
Agreement.    However,  any Confidential Information,  whether or not previously

disclosed, that pertains to the subject matter of this Agreement shall be governed by
the terms of this Section 6 which shall supersede any such previous agreement with
respect to such Confidential Information and any Confidential Information relating to
the subject matter of this Agreement that was exchanged under such previous

agreement shall be treated as though it was exchanged under this Agreement as of

the date of such exchange.

3

228



d)     Each Receiving Party will treat all Confidential Information of the
Disclosing Party,   no matter written,   electronic,   or oral,   as confidential and

proprietary, and such Receiving Party shall only use such information in furtherance
of this Agreement.  As such,  such Receiving Party shall hold in confidence the
Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party, and ensure that such Confidential
Information is not disclosed to any other person or entity,  except as expressly
permitted by this Agreement or as authorized by the Disclosing Party.  No Receiving
Party shall disclose Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party received under this
Agreement to any person other than its Representatives who require knowledge of
such Confidential Information in furtherance of this Agreement. Each Receiving Party
shall inform its Representatives of the confidential nature of the Confidential

Information of any Disclosing Party and advise such Representatives of the limitations
on the use and disclosure and prohibition on making copies or summaries of such
Confidential Information. Each Receiving Party shall be responsible for any breach of
this Agreement by its Representatives.   No Party shall use the Confidential

Information of any other Party for any commercial purpose.

e)     If a Receiving Party becomes legally compelled  ( by oral questions,
interrogatories, request for information or documents, subpoena, civil investigative

demand, or similar process) to disclose any Confidential Information of a Disclosing
Party, the Receiving Party will provide the Disclosing Party with written notice of such
an occurrence ( if so permitted) as soon as possible.  Thereafter, at its sole costs and

expense,  the Disclosing Party may seek a protective order or other appropriate
remedy, or waive compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.  So long as it is
consistent with applicable law, the Receiving Party will not oppose action by, and the
Receiving Party will cooperate with, the Disclosing Party, at the Disclosing Party' s
sole cost and expense, to obtain an appropriate protective order or other reliable

assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded the Confidential Information.

If the Disclosing Party fails to obtain such protective order or other remedy, or if the
Disclosing Party waives compliance with the requirements of the preceding sentence,
the Receiving Party will disclose only that Confidential Information that it is legally
required to disclose, and will exercise commercially reasonable efforts, at Disclosing
Party' s expense,  to obtain reliable assurance that confidential treatment will be

accorded the Confidential Information so disclosed.

f)      In the event a Receiving Party discloses, disseminates or releases any
Confidential Information,  except as expressly permitted by this Agreement,  such

disclosure,  dissemination or release will be deemed a material breach of this

Agreement and the Disclosing Party may demand prompt return of all Confidential
Information previously provided to the Receiving Party.   As soon as the Receiving
Party becomes aware that it has made an unauthorized disclosure of Confidential

Information, the Receiving Party shall take any and all necessary actions to recover
the improperly disclosed Confidential Information and immediately notify the
Disclosing Party regarding the nature of the unauthorized disclosure and the
corrective measures being taken.    Each Party agrees that any breach of their
confidentiality obligations could cause irreparable harm to the Disclosing Party, the
amount of which would be extremely difFicult to estimate.    Accordingly,  it is

4

229



understood and agreed that monetary damages would not be a sufficient remedy for
any material breach of this Agreement and that specific performance and injunctive
relief in addition to monetary damages shall be appropriate remedies for any breach
or any threat of such breach.  The provisions of this Paragraph are in addition to any
other legal rights or remedies a Disclosing Party may have.

g)      Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the provisions
of this Section 6 shall not apply to the disclosure of information that must be shared
in order to record, levy or collect contractual assessments under the Program or to
sell or securitize Bonds.

h)     Notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement, this Confidentiality
Section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.

Section 7.  Integration.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of

PARTICIPATING MEMBER, each ADMINISTRATOR and the AUTHORITY with respect

to the matters covered hereby, and no agreement, statement or promise made by
PARTICIPATING MEMBER, any ADMINISTRATOR and the AUTHORITY wliich is not
contained herein, shall be valid or binding.   No prior agreement, understanding or
representation pertaining to any such matter shall be effective for any purpose.

Section 8.     This Agreement may be terminated by either the AUTHORITY or
PARTICIPATING MEMBER with thirty ( 30) days written notice. In the event of such

termination, the AUTHORITY and each ADMINISTRATOR shall no longer have the
rights and authorizations granted in this Agreement and Resolution  [ INSERT],

including but not limited to,  conducting of additional contractual assessment

proceedings and levying new contractual assessments.

Section 9. Insurance. The ADMINISTRATOR agrees that, at no cost or expense
to the City, at all times during its administration of the CMFA Open PACE Program, to
maintain the insurance coverage set forth. in Exhibit A to this Agreement.

Section 10.   EfFective Date. This Agreement shall be effective on the date on
which this Agreement is executed by the PARTICIPATING MEMBER ( Effective Date").

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

5

230



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Participation

Agreement by their officers duly authorized as of the day and year first written above.

OWPACE ENEItGY SOLUTIONS, LLC

By:
Title]

CALIFORNIA MUNICIP/ L FINANCE AUTHORITY

By:
Title]

CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation

By:
Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

AT1'EST

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

APPItOVED AS TO FORM

By:
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

6

231



EXHIBIT A

INSURANCE

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1.      The coverage provided by Insurance Services OfFice Commercial
General

Liability coverage ( occurrence") Form Number CG 0001; and

2.       The coverage provided by Insurance Services Office Form
Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability.  Coverage shall be included for
all owned, non- owned and hired automobiles; and

3.  Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the California Labor
Code and

Employers Liability insurance; and

4.  Professional Liability Errors & Omissions for all professional services.

B.      Minimum Limits of Insurance       

Administrator shall maintain limits no less than:

1.       Commercial General Liability:   $ 2, 000, 000 per occurrence for

bodily injury, personal injury and property damage; and

2.       Automobile Liability:   $ 1, 000, 000 combined single. limit per

accident for bodily injury and property damage; and

3.       Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability:    Workers'

Compensation limits as required by the California Labor Code and Employers
Liability limits of

1, 000, 000 per accident; and

4.      Professional Liability Errors & Omissions $ 1, 000, 000 per claim or

occurrence/

2, 000, 000 aggregate limit.

Limits and coverages afforded to the City shall be the greater of the above
limits, or the limits and coverages provided under the policy( ies) of insurance.

C. Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions

7

232



Any deductibles or self- insured retentions must be declared to the City.

D.  Other Insurance Provisions

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
1.  Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages.

a.       The City, its ofFicers, employees, agents, and contractors are
to be covered as additional insureds as respects:    liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Administrator;  products and

completed operations of the Administrator;  premises owned, leased, or used

by the Administrator;  and automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by
the Administrator.   The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the

scope of protection afforded to the City, its officers,. employees, agents, and
contractors.

b.      The Administrator' s insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects the City,   its officers,   employees,   agents,   and

contractors.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by City, its officers,
employees,  agents,  or contractors shall be excess of the Administrator' s    
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

c.       Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies
by the Administrator shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its ofFicers,
employees, agents, or contractors.

d.       Coverage shall state that the Administrator' s insurance shall

apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is
brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer' s liability.

e.       Coverage shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the

City, its officers, employees, agents, and contractors.

2.  Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability.

Coverage shall contain waiver of subrogation in favor of City,  its officers,

employees, agents, and contractors.

3.  All Co erages

The Administrator shall provide City with written notice of any suspension,
cancellation,  or reduction in limits of any insurance policy required by this
Agreement, and shall promptly procure a replacement policy.

E. Verification of Coverage.

8

233



The Administrator shall furnish the City with certificates of insurance and with
original endorsements affecting coverage required by this Agreement.   The

certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.    

Proof of insurance shall be either emailed in pdf format or mailed to the City
Clerk at the following address or any subsequent address as. may be directed
in writing by the City:

City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

G. Subcontractors

The Administrator shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies

or shall obtain separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor.

9

234



PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

This PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (" Agreement"), made and entered into as of

December 2018,   by and among the CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE

AUTHORITY, a joint powers agency organized and existing under the laws of the State
of California ( the AUTHORITY"), PACE Equity, LLC ( the" Administrator") and the CITY

OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the
State of California ( the " PARTICIPATING MEMBER");

WITNESSETH:

a)     The AUTHORITY is a joint powers agency organized and existing
pursuant to the Joint Powers Act, comprising Articles 1, 2, 3 and 4 of

Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 ( commencing with Section 6500) of the
Government Code of the State of California; and

b)     The AUTHORITY has adopted the CMFA PACE Program ( the Program"),

for the financing of certain renewable energy and energy and water
efficiency and other improvements  (" Improvements)  authorized by
Chapter 29 of the Streets & Highways Code (" Chapter 29") within the

Participating Member' s jurisdiction; and

c)     The PARTICIPATING MEMBER has authorized the AUTHORITY to form an
assessment district    ( the   District")    for Program financing of

Improvements on certain properties owned by property owners who
voluntarily agree to participate in the Program (" Program Participant");

and

d)     The AUTHORITY intends to issue bonds,  notes or other forms of

indebtedness ( the" Bonds") to finance Improvements within the District;
and

e)     The PARTICIPATING MEMBER desires to authorize the AUTHORITY to ( i)

record the assessment against the participating property owner' s
parcels, ( ii) administer the District in accordance with Chapter 29 and

the Improvement Act of 1915 ( commencing with Section 8500 et seq.)
and ( iii) prepare program guidelines for the operations of the Program;
and

f)      The PARTICIPATING MEMBER will permit the ADMINISTRATORS to

perform certain management,    administrative,    operational and

implementation functions for the AUTHORITY with respect to the

Program;

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES,

COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS HEREIIV CONTAINED, THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE
AS FOLLOWS:

235



Section 1.  Recitals. The Recitals contained herein are true and correct and are

hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Section 2.   Appointment of the AUTHORITY.  PARTICIPATING MEMBER is not

and will not be deemed to be an agent of the AUTHORITY or any ADMINISTRATOR
as a result of this Agreement. PARTICIPATING MEMBER consents to the AUTHORITY' s

assumption of rights,  responsibilities,  obligations and liabilities related to the

Agreement within its jurisdiction upon satisfaction of the conditions imposed pursuant

to this Agreement and the resolution authorizing this Agreement, to take each and
every step required for or suitable for financing the Improvements,  including the
levying, collecting and enforcement of the contractual assessments.  PARTICIPATING

MEMBER consents to the AUTHORITY' s delegation of duties hereunder or with respect

to the Program, to either or both ADMINISTRATORS.

Section 3. Indemnification. The AUTHORITY and each ADMINISTRATOR jointly
and severally agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the PARTICIPATING

MEMBER, its officers, agents, employees and attorneys from and against any and all
liabilities,  claims,  or demands arising or alleged to arise as a result of the

AUTHORITY' s or such ADMINISTRATOR' s performance or failure to perform under this

Agreement or the Program, except that arising from the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of PARTICIPATING MEMBER.    This Section shall survive termination of

this Agreement.

Section 4.  PARTICIPATING MEMBER has no liabilitv.  Except as expressly set
forth in this the Agreement or Resolution  [ INSERT NUMBER],  PARTICIPATING

MEMBER shall not have any liabilities or obligations or incur any costs or. expenses
for the Program, including, but not limited to, the repayment of any bonds issued for
the Program.     PARTICIPATING MEMBER will not have any responsibilities or

obligations with respect to the Program, including, but not limited to, the conduct of
any assessment proceedings, the levy of assessments, any required remedial action
in the case of delinquencies, the issuance, sale or administration of the bonds or

other indebtedness issued in connection with the Program.

Section 5. Information to be Provided. Within thirty ( 30) days of each request
from PARTICIPATING MEMBER, the AUTHORITY agrees to provide PARTICIPATING

MEMBER with a list of property owners within the jurisdiction of PARTICIPATING
MEMBER participating in the Program as well as their address, detailed description of
Improvement( s) installed, and date( s) of Improvement( s) completion.

Section 6.     Confidentialitv.

a)      " Confidential Information" means, with respect to a Party hereto, all

information or material which either ( 1)  is marked -or identified as Confidential,"

Restricted," or " Proprietary Information" or other similar marking or identification,
or ( 2) the other Party knew, as recipient, or under the circumstances, should have
known, was considered confidential or proprietary by the Disclosing Party ( as defined
below).  Confidential Information shall consist of all information, whether in written,

2

236



oral, electronic, or other form, furnished in connection with this Agreement by one
Party or its Representatives  (' Representative"  is defined as any elected and

appointed officials, affiliate, director, ofFicer, employee, agent, advisor or consultant

of a Party or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates) to one or more of the other Parties
or to its or their Representatives, and specifically includes but is not limited to ( 1)

PARTICIPATING MEMBER' s individually identifiable customer information,   ( 2)

PARTICIPATING MEMBER' s customer data and financial data, ( 3) the AUTHORITY' s

property owner information disclosing to PATICIPATING MEMBER pursuant to Section
5, and ( 4) each ADMINISTRATOR' s customer data and financial data.

b)     The AUTHORITY, each ADMINISTRATOR and PARTICIPATING MEMBER

shall each hold each other' s Confidential Information in confidence.   No Party shall
make the others' Confidential Information available in any form to any third party or
use any other's Confidential Information for any purpose other than as specified in
this Agreement. The Party providing Confidential Information (" Disclosing Party") to

any other Party (" Receiving Party") shall remain the sole owner of such information.

Except as provided elsewhere within this Agreement,  nothing contained in this
Agreement shall be construed as granting or conferring any right or license in any
Confidential Information or in any patents, copyrights, software or other technology,
either expressly or by implication to any other Party, or to its Representatives or to
others. The term Confidential Information shall not include any of the following: ( 1)

information already in possession of, or already known to, the Receiving Party as of
the Effective Date without an obligation of confidentiality;  ( 2)  information in the

public domain at the time of the disclosure, or which, after such disclosure, enters

into the public domain through no breach of this Agreement by the Receiving Party
or its Representative( s);  ( 3)  information lawfully furnished or disclosed to the
Receiving Party by a non- party to this Agreement without any obligation of
confidentiality and through no breach of this Agreement by the Receiving Party or its
Representative( s); ( 4) information independently developed by the Receiving Party
without use of any Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party; or (5) information
authorized in writing by the Disclosing Party to be released from the confidentiality
obligations herein.

c)      By virtue of this Agreement, each Party hereto may disclose to any other
Party information that is Confidential Information. This Agreement does not diminish,
revoke or supersede any existing confidentiality, non- disclosure or similar agreement
between or among any Parties that does not pertain to the subject matter of this
Agreement.    However,  any Confidential Information,  whether or not previously

disclosed, that pertains to the subject matter of this Agreement shall be governed by
the terms of this Section 6 which shall supersede any such previous agreement with
respect to such Confidential Information and any Confidential Information relating to
the subject matter of this Agreement that was exchanged under such previous

agreement shall be treated as though it was exchanged under this Agreement as of
the date of such exchange.

d)      Each Receiving Party will treat all Confidential Information of the
Disclosing Party,   no matter written,   electronic,   or oral,   as confidential and

3

237



proprietary, and such Receiving Party shall only use such information in furtherance
of this Agreement.  As such,  such Receiving Party shall hold in confidence the
Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party, and ensure that such Confidential
Information is not disclosed to any other person or entity,  except as expressly
permitted by this Agreement or as authorized by the Disclosing Party.  No Receiving
Party shall disclose Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party received under this
Agreement to any person other than its Representatives who require knowledge of
such Confidential Information in furtherance of this Agreement. Each Receiving Party
shall inform its Representatives of the confidential nature of the Confidential

Information of any Disclosing Party and advise such Representatives of the limitations
on the use and disclosure and prohibition on making copies or summaries of such
Confidential Information. Each Receiving Party shall be responsible for any breach of
this Agreement by its Representatives.   No Party shall use the Confidential

Information of any other Party for any commercial purpose.

e)     If a Receiving Party becomes legally compelled  ( by oral questions,
interrogatories, request for information or documents, subpoena, civil investigative

demand, or similar process) to disclose any Confidential Information of a Disclosing
Party, the Receiving Party will provide the Disclosing Party with written notice of such
an occurrence ( if so permitted) as soon as possible.  Thereafter, at its sole costs and

expense,  the Disclosing Party may seek a protective order or other appropriate
remedy, or waive compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.  So long as it is
consistent with applicable law, the Receiving Party will not oppose action by, and the
Receiving Party will cooperate with, the Disclosing Party, at the Disclosing Party' s
sole cost and expense, to obtain an appropriate protective order or other reliable

assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded the Confidential Information.

If the Disclosing Party fails to obtain such protective order or other remedy, or if the
Disclosing Party waives compliance with the requirements of the preceding sentence,
the Receiving Party will disclose only that Confidential Information that it is legally
required to disclose, and will exercise commercially reasonable efforts, at Disclosing
Party' s expense,  to obtain reliable assurance that confidential treatment will be

accorded the Confidential Information so disclosed.

f)      In the event a Receiving Party discloses, disse minates or releases any
Confidential Information,  except as expressly permitted by this Agreement,  such

disclosure,  dissemination or release will be deemed a material breach of this

Agreement and the Disclosing Party may demand prompt return of all Confidential
Information previously provided to the Receiving Party.   As soon as the Receiving
Party becomes aware that it has made an unauthorized disclosure of Confidential
Information, the Receiving Party shall take any arid all necessary actions to recover
the improperly disclosed Confidential Information and immediately notify the
Disclosing Party regarding the nature of the unauthorized disclosure and the
corrective measures being taken.    Each Party agrees that any breach of their
confidentiality obligations could cause irreparable harm to the Disclosing Party, the
amount of which would be extremely difFicult to estimate.    Accordingly,  it is

understood and agreed that monetary damages would not be a sufficient remedy for
any material breach of this Agreement and that specific performance and injunctive

4

238



relief in addition to monetary damages shall be appropriate remedies for any breach
or any threat of such breach.  The provisions of this Paragraph are in addition to any
other legal rights or remedies a Disclosing Party may have.

g)     Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the provisions
of this Section 6 shall not apply to the disclosure of inf.ormation that must be shared
in order to record, levy or collect contractual assessments under the Program or to
sell or securitize Bonds.

h)     Notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement, this Confidentiality
Section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.

Section 7.  Integration.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of

PARTICIPATING MEMBER, each ADMINISTRATOR and the AUTHORITY with respect

to the matters covered hereby, and no agreement, statement or promise made by
PARTICIPATING MEMBER, any ADMINISTRATOR and the AUTHORITY which is not
contained herein, shall be valid or binding.   No prior agreement, understanding or
representation pertaining to any such matter shall be effective for any purpose.

Section 8.     This Agreement may be terminated by either the AUTHORITY or
PARTICIPATING MEMBER with thirty ( 30) days written notice. In the event of such
termination, the AUTHORITY and each ADMINISTRATOR shall no longer have the
rights and authorizations granted in this Agreement and Resolution  [ INSERT],

including but not limited to,  conducting of additional contractual assessment

proceedings and levying new contractual assessments.

Section 9. Insurance. The ADMINISTRATOR agrees that, at no cost or expense

to the City, at all times during its administration of the CMFA Open PACE . Program, to
maintain the insurance coverage set forth in Exhibit A to this Agreement.

Section 10.   Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective on the date on

which this Agreement is executed by the PARTICIPATING MEMBER ( Effective Date").

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

5

239



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Participation

Agreement by their officers duly authorized as of the day and year first written above.

PACE EQUITI(, LLC

By:
Title]

CALIFORiVIA MUNICIPAL FIN 4NCE AUTHORITY

By:      
Title]

CITY OF LATHItOP, a rnunicipal corporation

By:
Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

4TTEST

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

APPIZOVED AS TO FOIZNd

By:       
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

6

240



EXHIBIT A

INSURANCE

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1.      The coverage provided by Insurance Services Office Commercial
General

Liability coverage (" occurrence") Form Number CG 0001; and

2.       The coverage provided by Insurance Services Office Form
Number CA 0001. covering Automobile Liability.  Coverage shall be included for

all owned, non- owned and hired automobiles; and

3.  Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the California Labor
Code and

Employers Liability insurance; and

4.  Professional Liability Errors & Omissions for all professional services.

B.      Minimum Limits of Insurance

Administrator shall maintain limits no less than:

1.       Commercial General Liability:   $ 2, 000, 000 per occurrence for

bodily injury, personal injury and property damage; and

2.       Automobile Liability:   $ 1, 000, 000 combined single limit per

accident for bodily injury and property damage; and

3.       Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability:    Workers'

Compensation limits as required by the California Labor Code and Employers
Liability limits of

1, 000, 000 per accident; and

4.      Professional Liability Errors & Omissions $ 1, 000, 000 per claim or

occurrence/

2, 000, 000 aggregate limit.       

Limits and coverages afforded to the City shall be the greater of the above
limits, or the limits and coverages provided under the policy( ies) of insurance.

C. Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions

7

241



Any deductibles or self- insured retentions must be declared to the City.

D.  Other Insurance Provisions

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
1.  Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages.

a.       The City, its ofFicers, employees, agents, and contractors are
to be covered as additional insureds as respects:    liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Administrator;  products and

completed operations of the Administrator; premises owned, leased, or used

by the Administrator; and automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by
the Administrator.   The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the

scope of protection afForded to the City, its ofFicers, employees, agents, and
contractors.

b.       The Administrator' s insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects the City,   its officers,   employees,   agents,   and

contractors.  Any insurance or self- insurance maintained by City, its officers,
employees,  agents,  or contractors shall be excess of the Administrator' s

insurance and shall not contribute with it.

c.       Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies
by the Administrator shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its officers,
employees, agents, or contractors.

d.       Coverage shall state that the Administrator' s insurance shall

apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is
brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer' s liability.

e.       Coverage shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the

City, its officers, employees, agents, and contractors.

2.  Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability.

Coverage shall contain waiver of subrogation in favor of City,  its officers,

employees, agents, and contractors.

3.  All Coverages

The Administrator shall provide City with written notice of any suspension,
cancellation,  or reduction in limits of any insurance policy required by this
Agreement, and shall promptly procure a replacement policy.

E. Verification of Coverage.       

8

242



The Administrator shall furnish the City with certificates of insurance and with
original endorsements afFecting coverage required by this Agreement.   The

certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

Proof of insurance shall be either emailed in pdf format or mailed to the City
Clerk at the following address or any subsequent address as may be directed
in writing by the City:

City Clerk
City of Lathrop  
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

G. Subcontractors

The Administrator shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies

or shall obtain separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor.

9

243



ATi' Cf MENT 

PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

This PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (" Agreement"), made and entered into as of

December 2018,   by and among the CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE

AUTHORITY, a joint powers agency organized and existing under the laws of the State
of California ( the AUTHORITY"), Samas Capital, LLC ( the " Administrator") and the

CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of
the State of California ( the PARTICIPATING MEMBER");

WITNESSETH:

a)     The AUTHORITY is a joint powers agency organized and existing
pursuant to the Joint Powers Act, comprising Articles 1, 2, 3 and 4 of

Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 ( commencing with Section 6500) of the
Government Code of the State of California; and

b)     The AUTHORITY has adopted the CMFA PACE Program ( the " Program"),

for the financing of certain renewable energy and energy and water
efficiency and other improvements  (" Improvements)  authorized by
Chapter 29 of the Streets & Highways Code (" Chapter 29") within the

Participating Member' s jurisdiction; and

c)     The PARTICIPATING MEMBER has authorized the AUTHORITY to form an
assessment district    ( the   " District")    for Program financing of

Improvements on certain properties owned by property owners who
voluntarily agree to participate in the Program (" Program Participant");

and

d)     The AUTHORITY intends to issue bonds,  notes or other forms of

indebtedness ( the' Bonds") to finance Improvements within the District;
and

e)     The PARTICIPATING MEMBER desires to authorize the AUTHORITY to ( i)

record the assessment against the participating property owner' s
parcels, ( ii) administer the District in accordance with Chapter 29 and

the Improvement Act of 1915 ( commencing with Section 8500 et seq.)
and ( iii) prepare program guidelines for the operations of the Program;

and

f)      The PARTICIPATING MEMBER will permit the ADMINISTRATORS to
perform certain management,    administrative,    operational    and

implementation functions for the AUTHORITY with respect to the

Program;  

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES,

COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS HEREIN CONTAINED, THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE
AS FOLLOWS:

244



Section 1.  Recitals. The Recitals contained herein are true and correct and are

hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Section 2.   Appointment of the AUTHORITY.  PARTICIPATING MEMBER is not

and will not be deemed to be an agent of the AUTHORITY or any ADMINISTRATOR
as a result of this Agreement. PARTICIPATING MEMBER consents to the AUTHORITY' s
assumption of rights,  responsibilities,  obligations and liabilities related to the

Agreement within its jurisdiction upon satisfaction of the conditions imposed pursuant

to this Agreement and the resolution authorizing this Agreement, to take each and
every step required for or suitable for financing the Improvements,  including the
levying, collecting and enforcement of the contractual assessments.  PARTICIPATING

MEMBER consents to the AUTHORITY' s delegation of duties hereunder or with respect
to the Program, to either or both ADMINISTRATORS.

Section 3. Indemnification. The AUTHORITY and each ADMINISTRATOR jointly
and severally agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the PARTICIPATING
MEMBER, its ofFicers, agents, employees and attorneys from and against any and all
liabilities,  claims,  or demands arising or alleged to arise as a result of the

AUTHORITY' s or such ADMINISTRATOR' s performance or failure to perform under this
Agreement or the Program, except that arising from the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of PARTICIPATING MEMBER.    This Section shall survive termination of

this Agreement.

Section 4.  PARTICIPATING MEMBER has no liabilitv.  Except as expressly set
forth in this the Agreement, PARTICIPATING MEMBER shall not have any liabilities or
obligations or incur any costs or expenses for the Program, including, but not limited
to, the repayment of any bonds issued for the Program.   PARTICIPATING MEMBER

will not have any responsibilities or obligations with respect to the Program, including,
but not limited to,  the conduct of any assessment proceedings,  the levy of
assessments, any required remedial action in the case of delinquencies, the issuance,
sale or administration of the bonds or other indebtedness issued in connection with
the Program.

Section 5. Information to be Provided. Within thirty ( 30) days of each request

from PARTICIPATING MEMBER, the AUTHORITY agrees to provide PARTICIPATING

MEMBER with a list of property owners within the jurisdiction of PARTICIPATING
MEMBER participating in the Program as well as their address, detailed description of
Improvement( s) installed, and date( s) of Improvement( s) completion.

Section 6.     Confidentialitv.

a)      " Confidential Information" means, with respect to a Party hereto, all

information or material which either ( 1)  is marked or identified as ' Confidential,"     

Restricted," or " Proprietary Information" or other similar marking or identification,
or ( 2) the other Party knew, as recipient, or under the circumstances, should have

known, was considered confidential or proprietary by the Disclosing Party ( as defined
2

245



below).  Confidential Information shall consist of all information, whether in written,

oral, electronic, or other form, furnished in connection with this Agreement by one
Party or its Representatives  (" Representative"  is defined as any elected and
appointed officials, affiliate, director, ofFicer, employee, agent, advisor or consultant

of a Party or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates) to one or more of the other Parties
or to its or their Representatives, and specifically includes but is not limited to ( 1)

PARTICIPATING MEMBER' s individually identifiable customer information,   ( 2)

PARTICIPATING MEMBER' s customer data and financial data, ( 3) the AUTHORITY' s

property owner information disclosing to PATICIPATING MEMBER pursuant to Section
5, and ( 4) each ADMINISTRATOR' s customer data and financial data.

b)     The AUTHORITY, each ADMINISTRATOR and PARTICIPATING MEMBER

shall each hold each other's Confidential Information in confidence.   No Party shall
make the others' Confidential Information available in any form to any third party or
use any other's Confidential Information for any purpose other than as specified in
this Agreement. The Party providing Confidential Information (" Disclosing Party") to

any other Party ( Receiving Party") shall remain the sole owner of such information.

Except as provided elsewhere within this Agreement,  nothing contained in this
Agreement shall be construed as granting or conferring any right or license in any
Confidential Information or in any patents, copyrights, software or other technology,
either expressly or by implication to any other Party, or to its Representatives or to
others. The term Confidential Information shall not include any of the following: ( 1)

information already in possession of, or already known to, the Receiving Party as of
the EfFective Date without an obligation of confidentiality;  ( 2)  information in the

public domain at the time of the disclosure, or which, after such disclosure, enters

into the public domain through no breach of this Agreement by the Receiving Party
or its Representative( s);  ( 3)  information lawfully furnished or disclosed to the
Receiving Party by a non- party to this Agreement without any obligation of
confidentiality and through no breach of this Agreement by the Receiving Party or its
Representative( s); ( 4) information independently developed by the Receiving Party
without use of any Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party; or ( 5) information
authorized in writing by the Disclosing Party to be released from the confidentiality
obligations herein.     

c)      By virtue of this Agreement, each Party hereto may disclose to any other
Party information that is Confidential Information. This Agreement does not diminish,
revoke or supersede any existing confidentiality, non- disclosure or similar agreement
between or among any Parties that does not pertain to the subject matter of this
Agreement.    However,  any Confidential Information,  whether or not previously

disclosed, that pertains to the subject matter of this Agreement shall be governed by
the terms of this Section 6 which shall supersede any such previous agreement with
respect to such Confidential Information and any Confidential Information relating to
the subject matter of this Agreement that was exchanged under such previous

agreement shall be treated as though it was exchanged under this Agreement as of

the date of such exchange.

3

246



d)     Each Receiving Party will treat all Confidential Information of the
Disclosing Party,   no matter written,   electronic,   or oral,   as confidential and

proprietary, and such Receiving Party shall only use such information in furtherance
of this Agreement.  As such,  such Receiving Party shall hold in confidence the
Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party, and ensure that such Confidential

Information is not disclosed to any other person or entity,  except as expressly
permitted by this Agreement or as authorized by the Disclosing Party.  No Receiving
Party shall disclose Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party received under this
Agreement to any person other than its Representatives who require knowledge of
such Confidential Information in furtherance of this Agreement. Each Receiving Party
shall inform its Representatives of the confidential nature of the Confidential

Information of any Disclosing Party and advise such Representatives of the limitations
on the use and disclosure and prohibition on making copies or summaries of such
Confidential Information. Each Receiving Party shall be responsible for any breach of
this Agreement by its Representatives.   No Party shall use the Confidential

Information of any other Party for any commercial purpose.

e)     If a Receiving Party becomes legally compelled  ( by oral questions,
interrogatories, request for information or documents, subpoena, civil investigative

demand, or similar process) to disclose any Confidential Information of a Disclosing
Party, the Receiving Party will provide the Disclosing Party with written notice of such
an occurrence ( if so permitted) as soon as possible.  Thereafter, at its sole costs and

expense,  the Disclosing Party may seek a protective order or other appropriate
remedy, or waive compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.  So long as it is
consistent with applicable law, the Receiving Party will not oppose action by, and the
Receiving Party will cooperate with; the Disclosing Party, at the Disclosing Party' s
sole cost and expense, to obtain an appropriate protective order or other reliable

assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded the Confidential Information.

If the Disclosing Party fails to obtain such protective order or other remedy, or if the
Disclosing Party waives compliance with the requirements of the preceding sentence,
the Receiving Party will disclose only that Confidential Information that it is legally
required to disclose, and will exercise commercially reasonable efforts, at Disclosing
Party' s expense,  to obtain reliable assurance that confidential treatment will be
accorded the Confidential Information so disclosed.

f)      In the event a Receiving Party discloses, disseminates or releases
any Confidential Information, except as expressly permitted by this Agreement, such
disclosure,  dissemination or release will, be deemed a material breach of this

Agreement and the Disclosing Party may demand prompt return of all Confidential
Information previously provided to the Receiving Party.   As soon as the Receiving
Party becomes aware that it has made an unauthorized disclosure of Confidential
Information, the Receiving Party shall take any and all necessary actions to recover
the improperly disclosed Confidential Information and immediately notify the
Disclosing Party regarding the nature of the unauthorized disclosure and the
corrective measures being taken.    Each Party agrees that any breach of their
confidentiality obligations could cause irreparable harm to the Disclosing Party, the
amount of which would be extremely difficult to estimate.    Accordingly,  it is•

4

247



understood and agreed that monetary damages would not be a sufficient remedy for
any material breach of this Agreement and that specific performance and injunctive
relief in addition to monetary damages shall be appropriate remedies for any breach
or any threat of such breach.  The provisions of this Paragraph are in addition to any
other legal rights or remedies a Disclosing Party may have.

g)     Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,  the

provisions of this Section 6 shall not apply to the disclosure of information that must   
be shared in order to record,  levy or collect contractual assessments under the
Program or to sell or securitize Bonds.

h)     Notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement,   this

Confidentiality Section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this
Agreement. 

Section 7.  Integration.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of

PARTICIPATING MEMBER, each ADMINISTRATOR and the AUTHORITY with respect

to the matters covered hereby, and no agreement, statement or promise made by
PARTICIPATING MEMBER, any ADMINISTRATOR and the AUTHORITY which is not
contained herein, shall be valid or binding.   No prior agreement, understanding or
representation pertaining to any such matter shall be efFective for any purpose.

Section 8.     This Agreement may be terminated by either the AUTHORITY or
PARTICIPATING MEMBER with thirty ( 30) days written notice. In the event of such
termination, the AUTHORITY and each ADMINISTRATOR shall no longer have the
rights and authorizations granted in this Agreement and Resolution  [ INSERT],

including but not limited to,  conducting of additional contractual assessment

proceedings and levying new contractual assessments.

Section 9. Insurance. The ADMINISTRATOR agrees that, at no cost or expense

to the City, at all times during its administration of the CMFA Open PACE Program, to
maintain the insurance coverage set forth in Exhibit A to this Agreement.

Section 10.   Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective on the date on

which this Agreement is executed by the PARTICIPATING MEMBER ( Effective Date").

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

5

248



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Participation

Agreement by their ofFicers duly authorized as of the day and year first written above.

SAMAS CAPITAL, LLC

By:
Title]

CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE AUTHORITY

By:
Title]   

CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation

By:
Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By:
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

6

249



EXHIBIT A

INSURANCE

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1.      The coverage provided by Insurance Services Office Commercial
General

Liability coverage ( occurrence") Form Number CG 0001; and

2.       The coverage provided by Insurance Services Office Form
Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability.  Coverage shall be included for

all owned, non- owned and hired automobiles; and

3.  Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the California Labor
Code and

Employers Liability insurance; and

4.  Professional Liability Errors & Omissions for all professional services.

B.      Minimum Limits of Insurance

Administrator shall maintain limits no less than:

1.       Commercial General Liability:  $ 2, 000, 000 per occurrence for

bodily injury, personal injury and property damage; and

2.       Automobile Liability:    $ 1, 000, 000 combined single limit per

accident for bodily injury and property damage; and

3. Workers' Compensation and Employers Liability:    Workers'

Compensation limits as required by the California Labor Code and Employers
Liability limits of

1, 000, 000 per accident; and

4.      Professional Liability Errors & Omissions $ 1, 000, 000 per claim or

occurrence/

2, 000, 000 aggregate limit.

Limits and coverages afforded to the City shall be the greater of the above
limits, or the limits and coverages provided under the policy( ies) of insurance.

C. Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions

7

250



Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to the City.

D.  Other Insurance Provisions

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
1.  Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages.

a.       The City, its officers, employees, agents, and contractors are
to be covered as additional insureds as respects:    liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Administrator;  products and

completed operations of the Administrator; premises owned, leased, or used

by the Administrator;  and automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by
the Administrator.   The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the

scope of protection afForded to the City, its officers, employees, agents, and
contractors.

b.       The Administrator' s insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects the City,   its officers,   employees,   agents,   and

contractors.  Any insurance or self- insurance maintained by City, its ofFicers,
employees,  agents,  or contractors shall be excess of the Administrator' s
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

c.       Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies
by the Administrator shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its officers,
employees, agents, or contractors.

d.       Coverage shall state that the Administrator' s insurance shall

apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is
brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer' s liability.

e.       Coverage shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the

City, its officers, employees, agents, and contractors.

2.  Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability.   

Coverage shall contain waiver of subrogation in favor of City,  its officers,

employees, agents, and contractors.

3.  All Coverages

The Administrator shall provide City with written notice of any suspension,
cancellation,  or reduction in limits of any insurance policy required by this
Agreement, and shall promptly procure a replacement policy.

E. Verification of Coverage.

8

251



The Administrator shall furnish the City with certificates of insurance and with
original endorsements affecting coverage required by this Agreement.   The

certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.

Proof of insurance shall be either emailed in pdf format or mailed to the City
Clerk at the following address or any subsequent address as may be directed
in writing by the City:

City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

G. Subcontractors

The Administrator shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies

or shall obtain separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor.

9

252



ATTACH'

PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

This PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (" Agreement"), made and entered into as of

December 2018,   by and among the CALIFORNIA MUIVICIPAL FINANCE

AUTHORITY, a joint powers agency organized and existing under the laws of the State
of California   ( the   " AUTHORITY"),   Structured Finance Associates,   LLC   ( the

Administrator") and the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation organized and

existing under the laws of the State of California ( the " PARTICIPATING MEMBER");

WITNESSETH:

a)     The AUTHORITY is a joint powers agency organized and existing
pursuant to the Joint Powers Act, comprising Articles 1, 2, 3 and 4 of

Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 ( commencing with Section 6500) of the
Government Code of the State of California; and

b)     The AUTHORITY has adopted the CMFA PACE Program ( the Program"),

for the financing of certain renewable energy and energy and water
efficiency and other improvements  (" Improvements)  authorized by
Chapter 29 of the Streets & Highways Code (" Chapter 29") within the

Participating Member' s jurisdiction; and

c)     The PARTICIPATING MEMBER has authorized the AUTHORITY to form an
assessment district    ( the   " District")    for Program financing of

Improvements on certain properties owned by property owners who
voluntarily agree to participate in the Program (" Program Participant");

and

d)     The AUTHORITY intends to issue bonds,  notes or other forms of

indebtedness ( the" Bonds") to finance Improvements within the District;
and

e)     The PARTICIPATING MEMBER desires to authorize the AUTHORITY to ( i)
record the assessment against the participating property owner' s
parcels, ( ii) administer the District in accordance with Chapter 29 and
the Improvement Act of 1915 ( commencing with Section 8500 et seq.)
and ( iii) prepare program guidelines for the operations of the Program;
and

f)      The PARTICIPATING MEMBER will permit the ADMINISTRATORS to
perform certain management,    administrative,    operational and

implementation functions for the AUTHORIIY with respect to the

Program;

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES,

COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS HEREIN CONTAINED, THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE
AS FOLLOWS:

253



Section 1.  Recitals. The Recitals contained herein are true and correct and are

hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Section 2.   Appointment of the AUTHORITY.  PARTICIPATING MEMBER is not

and will not be deemed to be an agent of the AUTHORITY or any ADMINISTRATOR
as a result of this Agreement. PARTICIPATING MEMBER consents to the AUTHORITY' s

assumption of rights,  responsibilities,  obligations and liabilities related to the

Agreement within its jurisdiction upon satisfaction of the conditions imposed pursuant

to this Agreement and the resolution authorizing this Agreement, to take each and
every step required for or suitable for financing the Improvements,  including the
levying, collecting and enforcement of the contractual assessments.  PARTICIPATING

MEMBER consents to the AUTHORITY' s delegation of duties hereunder or with respect

to the Program, to either or both ADMINISTRATORS.

Section 3. Indemnification. The AUTHORITY and each ADMINISTRATOR jointly
and severally agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the PARTICIPATING
MEMBER, its officers, agents, employees and attorneys from and against any and all
liabilities,  claims,  or demands arising or alleged to arise as a result of the

AUTHORITY' s or such ADMINISTRATOR' s performance or failure to perform under this
Agreement or the Program, except that arising from the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of PARTICIPATING MEMBER.    This Section shall survive termination of

this Agreement.

Section 4.  PARTICIPATING MEMBER has no liabilitv.  Except as expressly set
forth in this the Agreement, PARTICIPATING MEMBER shall not have any liabilities or
obligations or incur any costs or expenses for the Program, including, but not limited
to, the repayment of any bonds issued for the Program.   PARTICIPATING MEMBER

will not have any responsibilities or obligations with respect to the Program, including,
but not limited to,  the conduct of any assessment proceedings,  the levy of
assessments, any required remedial action in the case of delinquencies, the issuance,
sale or administration of the bonds or other indebtedness issued in connection with
the Program.

Section 5. Information to be Provided. Within thirty ( 30) days of each request

from PARTICIPATING MEMBER, the AUTHORITY agrees to provide PARTICIPATING

MEMBER with a list of property owners within the jurisdiction of PARTICIPATING
MEMBER participating in the Program as well as their address, detailed description of
Improvement( s) installed, and date( s) of Improvement( s) completion.

Section 6.     Confidentialitv.

a)      " Confidential Information" means, with respect to a Party hereto,  all

information or material which either ( 1)  is marked or identified as " Confidential,"

Restricted," or Proprietary Information" or other similar marking or identification,
or ( 2) the other Party knew, as recipient, or under the circumstances, should have
known, was considered confidential or proprietary by the Disclosing Party ( as defined

2

254



below).  Confidential Information shall consist of all information, whether in written,

oral, electronic, or other form, furnished in connection with this Agreement by one
Party or its Representatives  ( Representative"  is defined as any elected and

appointed officials, affiliate, director, ofFicer, employee, agent, advisor or consultant

of a Party or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates) to one or more of the other Parties
or to its or their Representatives, and specifically includes but is not limited to ( 1)

PARTICIPATING MEMBER' s individually identifiable customer information,   ( 2)

PARTICIPATING MEMBER' s customer data and financial data, ( 3) the AUTHORITY' s

property owner information disclosing to PATICIPATING MEMBER pursuant to Section
5, and ( 4) each ADMINISTRATOR' s customer data and financial data.

b)     The AUTHORITY, each ADMINISTRATOR and PARTICIPATING MEMBER

shall each hold each other' s Confidential Information in confidence.   No Party shall
make the others' Confidential Information available in any form to any third party or
use any other' s Confidential Information for any purpose other than as specified in
this Agreement. The Party providing Confidential Information (" Disclosing Party") to

any other Party (" Receiving Party") shall remain the sole owner of such information.

Except as provided elsewhere within this Agreement,  riothing contained in this
Agreement shall be construed as granting or conferring any right or license in any
Confidential Information or in any patents, copyrights, software or other technology,
either expressly or by implication to any other Party, or to its Representatives or to
others. The term Confidential Information shall not include any of the following: ( 1)

information already in possession of, or already known to, the Receiving Party as of
the Effective Date without an obligation of confidentiality;  ( 2)  information in the

public domain at the time of the disclosure, or which, after such disclosure, enters

into the public domain through no breach of this Agreement by the Receiving Party
or its Representative( s);  ( 3)  information lawfully furnished or disclosed to the
Receiving Party by a non- party to this Agreement without any obligation of

confidentiality and through no breach of this Agreement by the Receiving Party or its
Representative( s); ( 4) information independently developed by the Receiving Party
without use of any Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party; or ( 5) information
authorized in writing by the Disclosing Party to be released from the confidentiality
obligations herein.

c)      By virtue of this Agreement, each Party hereto may disclose to any other
Party information that is Confidential Information. This Agreement does not diminish,
revoke or supersede any existing confidentiality, non- disclosure or similar agreement
between or among any Parties that does not pertain to the subject matter of this
Agreement.    However,  any Confidential Information,  whether or not previously

disclosed, that pertains to the subject matter of this Agreement shall be governed by
the terms of this Section 6 which shall supersede any such previous agreement with
respect to such Confidential Information and any Confidential Information relating to
the subject matter of this Agreement that was exchanged under such previous

agreement shall be treated as though it was exchanged under this Agreement as of

the date of such exchange.

3

255



d)     Each Receiving Party will treat all Confidential Information of the
Disclosing Party,   no matter written,   electronic,   or oral,   as confidential and

proprietary, and such Receiving Party shall only use such information in furtherance
of this Agreement.  As such,  such Receiving Party shall hold in confidence the
Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party, and ensure that such Confidential
Information is not disclosed to any other person or entity,  except as expressly
permitted by this Agreement or as authorized by the Disclosing Party.  No Receiving
Party shall disclose Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party received under this
Agreement to any person other than its Representatives who require knowledge of
such Confidential Information in furtherance of this Agreement. Each Receiving Party
shall inform its Representatives of the confidential nature of the Confidential

Information of any Disclosing Party and advise such Representatives of the limitations
on the use and disclosure and prohibition on making copies or summaries of such
Confidential Information. Each Receiving Party shall be responsible for any breach of
this Agreement by its Representatives.   No Party shall use the Confidential

Information of any other Party for any commercial purpose.

e)     If a Receiving Party becomes legally compelled  ( by oral questions,
interrogatories, request for information or documents, subpoena, civil investigative

demand, or similar process) to disclose any Confidential Information of a Disclosing
Party, the Receiving Party will provide the Disclosing Party with written notice of such
an occurrence ( if so permitted) as soon as possible.  Thereafter, at its sole costs and

expense,  the Disclosing Party may seek a protective order or other appropriate
remedy, or waive compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.  So long as it is
consistent with applicable law, the Receiving Party will not oppose action by, and the.
Receiving Party will cooperate with, the Disclosing Party, at the Disclosing Party' s
sole cost and expense, to obtain an appropriate protective order or other reliable

assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded the Confidential Information.

If the Disclosing Party fails to obtain such protective order or other remedy, or if the
Disclosing Party waives compliance with the requirements of the preceding sentence,
the Receiving Party will disclose only that Confidential Information that it is legally
required to disclose, and will exercise commercially reasonable efforts, at Disclosing
Party' s expense,  to obtain reliable assurance that confidential treatment will be

accorded the Confidential Information so disclosed.

f)      In the event a Receiving Party discloses, disseminates or releases any
Confidential Information,  except as expressly permitted by this Agreement,  such

disclosure,  dissemination or release will be deemed a material breach of this

Agreement and the Disclosing Party may demand prompt return of all Confidential
Information previously provided to the Receiving Party.   As soon as the Receiving
Party becomes aware that it has made an unauthorized disclosure of Confidential
Information, the Receiving Party shall take any and all necessary actions to recover
the improperly disclosed Confidential Information and immediately notify the
Disclosing Party regarding the nature of the unauthorized disclosure and the
corrective measures being taken.    Each Party agrees that any breach of their
confidentiality obligations could cause irreparable harm to the Disclosing Party, the
amount of which would be extremely difficult to estimate.    Accordingly,  it is

4

256



understood and agreed that monetary damages would not be a sufficient remedy for
any material breach of this Agreement and that specific performance and injunctive
relief in addition. to monetary damages shall be appropriate remedies for any breach
or any threat of such br.each.  The provisions of this Paragraph are in addition to any
other legal rights or remedies a Disclosing Party may have.

g)     Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the provisions
of this Section 6 shall not apply to the disclosure of information that must be shared
in order to record, levy or collect contractual assessments under the Program or to
sell or securitize Bonds.

h)     Notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement, this Confidentiality
Section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.

Section 7.  Integration.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of

PARTICIPATING MEMBER, each ADMINISTRATOR and the AUTHORITY with respect

to the matters covered hereby, and no agreement, statement or promise made by
PARTICIPATING MEMBER, any ADMINISTRATOR and the AUTHORITY which is not
contained herein, shall be valid or binding.   No prior agreement, understanding or
representation pertaining to any such matter shall be effective for any purpose.

Section 8.    This Agreement may be terminated by either the AUTHORITY or
PARTICIPATING MEMBER with thirty ( 30) days written notice. In the event of such
termination, the AUTHORITY and each ADMINISTRATOR shall no longer have the
rights and authorizations granted in this Agreement and Resolution  [ INSERT],

including but not limited to,  conducting of additional contractual assessment

proceedings and levying new contractual assessments.

Section 9. Insurance. The ADMINISTRATOR agrees that, at no cost or expense

to the City, at all times during its administration of the CMFA Open PACE Program, to
maintain the insurance coverage set forth in Exhibit A to this Agreement.

Section 10.   Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective on the date on
which this Agreement is executed by the PARTICIPATING MEMBER ( Effective Date").

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

5

257



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Participation

Agreement by their officers duly authorized as of the day and year first written above.

STF IJCTURED FINANCE AS OCIATES, LLC

By:
Title]

C/ ALIFORNIA MUIVICIPA L FINAIVCE AUTHOFtITY

By:
Title]

CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation

By:
Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor;

ATTEST

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

APPRO\/ ED AS TO FORi'

By:
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

1

6

258



EXHIBIT A

INSURANCE

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1.      The coverage provided by Insurance Services OfFice Commercial
General

Liability coverage ( occurrence") Form Number CG 0001; and

2.      The coverage provided by Insurance Services Office Form
Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability.  Coverage shall be included for

all owned, non- owned and hired automobiles; and

3.  Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the California Labor
Code and

Employers Liability insurance; and

4.  Professional Liability Errors & Omissions for all professional services.

B.      Minimum Limits of Insurance

Administrator shall maintain limits no less than:

1.       Commercial General Liability:   $ 2, 000, 000 per occurrence for

bodily injury, personal injury and property damage; and

2.       Automobile Liability:    $ 1, 000, 000 combined single limit per

accident for bodily injury and property damage; and

3.       Workers'  Compensation and Employers Liability:    Workers'

Compensation limits as required by the California Labor Code and Employers
Liability limits of

1, 000, 000 per accident; and

4.      Professional Liability Errors & Omissions $ 1, 000, 000 per claim or
occurrence/

2, 000, 000 aggregate limit.

Limits and coverages afForded to the City shall be the greater of the above
limits, or the limits and coverages provided under the policy( ies) of insurance.

C. Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions

7

259



Any deductibles or self- insured retentions must be declared to the City.

D.  Other Insurance Provisions

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
1.  Commercial General Liab,ility and Automobile Liability Coverages.

a.       The City, its officers, employees, agents, and contractors are
to be covered as additional insureds as respects:    liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Administrator;  products and

completed operations of the Administrator; premises owned, leased, or used

by the Administrator; and automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by
the Administrator.   The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the

scope of protection afforded to the City, its officers, employees, agen ts, and
contractors.

b.      The Administrator' s insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects the City,   its officers,   employees,   agents,   and

contractors.  Any insurance or self- insurance maintained by City, its officers,
employees,  agents,  or contractors shall be excess of the Administrator' s
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

c.       Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies
by the Administrator shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its ofFicers,
employees, agents, or contractors.

d.       Coverage shall state that the Administrator' s insurance shall

apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is
brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer' s liability.

e.       Coverage shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the

City, its officers, employees, agents, and contractors.

2.  Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability.

Coverage shall contain waiver of subrogation in favor of City,  its officers,

employees, agents, and contractors.

3.  All Coverages

The Administrator shall provide City with written notice of any suspension,
cancellation,  or reduction in limits of any insurance policy required by this
Agreement, and shall promptly procure a replacement policy.

E. Verification. of Coverage.

8

260



The Administrator shall furnish the City with certificates of insurance and with
original endorsements affecting coverage required by this Agreement.   The

certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.

Proof of insurance shall be either emailed in pdf format or mailed to the City
Clerk at the following address or any subsequent address as may be directed
in writing by the City:

City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

G. Subcontractors

The Administrator shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies

or shall obtain separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor.

9

261



ATTACH11 EN1'

PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT

This PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (" Agreement"), made and entered into as of

December 2018,  by and among the CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE
AUTHORITY, a joint powers agency organized and existing under the laws of the State
of California   ( the   AUTHORITY"),   Twain Community Partners II,   LLC   ( the

Administrator") and the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation organized and

existing under the laws of the State of California ( the PARTICIPATING MEMBER");

WITNESSETH:

a)     The AUTHORITY is a joint powers agency organized and existing
pursuant to the Joint Powers Act, comprising Articles 1, 2, 3 and 4 of

Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 ( commencing with Section 6500) of the
Government Code of the State of California; and

b)     The AUTHORITY has adopted the CMFA PACE Program ( the Program"),

for the financing of certain renewable energy and energy and water
efficiency and other improvements  (" Improvements)  authorized by
Chapter 29 of the Streets & Highways Code (" Chapter 29") within the

Participating Member' s jurisdiction; and

c)     The PARTICIPATING MEMBER has authorized the AUTHORITY to form an
assessment district    ( the   " District")    for Program financing of

Improvements on certain properties owned by property owners who
voluntarily agree to participate in the Program (" Program Participant");

and

d)     The AUTHORITY intends to issue bonds,  notes or other forms of
indebtedness ( the" Bonds") to finance Improvements within the District;
and

e)     The PARTICIPATING MEMBER desires to authorize the AUTHORITY to ( i)
record the assessment against the participating property owner' s
parcels, ( ii) administer the District in accordance with Chapter 29 and
the Improvement Act of 1915 ( commencing with Section 8500 et seq.)
and ( iii) prepare program guidelines for the operations of the Program;
and

f)      The PARTICIPATING MEMBER will permit the ADMINISTRATORS to
perform certain management,    administrative,    operational and

implementation functions for the AUTHORITY with respect to the
Program;

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES,

COVENANTS AND COIVDITIONS HEREIN CONTAINED, THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE
AS FOLLOWS:

262



Section 1.  Recitals. The Recitals contained herein are true and correct and are

hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Section 2.   Appointment of the AUTHORITY. PARTICIPATING MEMBER is not

and will not be deemed to be an agent of the AUTHORITY or any ADMINISTRATOR
as a result of this Agreement. PARTICIPATING MEMBER consents to the AUTHORITY' s

assumption of rights,  responsibilities,  obligations and liabilities related to the

Agreement within its jurisdiction upon satisfaction of the conditions imposed pursuant

to this Agreement and the resolution authorizing this Agreement, to take each and
every step required for or suitable for financing the Improvements,  including the
levying, collecting and enforcement of the contractual assessments.  PARTICIPATING

MEMBER consents to the AUTHORITY' s delegation of duties hereunder or with respect
to the Program, to either or both ADMINISTRATORS.

Section 3. Indemnification. The AUTHORITY and each ADMINISTRATOR jointly
and severally agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the PARTICIPATING
MEMBER, its officers, agents, employees and attorneys from and against any and all
liabilities,  claims,  or demands arising or alleged to arise as a result of the
AUTHORITY' s or such ADMINISTRATOR' s performance or failure to perform under this
Agreement or the Program, except that arising from the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of PARTICIPATING MEMBER.    This Section shall survive termination of
this Agreement.

Section 4. PARTICIPATING MEMBER has no liabilitv.  Except as expressly set
forth in this the Agreement or Resolution  [ INSERT NUMBER],  PARTICIPATING

MEMBER shall not have any liabilities or obligations or incur any costs or expenses
for the Program, including, but not limited to, the repayment of any bonds issued for
the Program.     PARTICIPATING MEMBER will not have any responsibilities or
obligations with respect to the Program, including, but not limited to, the conduct of
any assessment proceedings, the levy of assessments, any required remedial action
in the case of delinquencies, the issuance, sale or administration of the bonds or

other indebtedness issued in connection with the Program.

Section 5. Information to be Provided. Within thirty ( 30) days of each request
from PARTICIPATING MEMBER, the AUTHORITY agrees to provide PARTICIPATING

MEMBER with a list of property owners within the jurisdiction of PARTICIPATING
MEMBER participating in the Program as well as their address, detailed description of
Improvement( s) installed, and date( s) of Improvement( s) completion.

Section 6.     Confidentialitv.

a)      " Confidential Information" means, with respect to a Party hereto,  all

information or material which either ( 1)  is marked or identified as " Confidential,"

Restricted," or Proprietary Information" or other similar marking or identification,
or ( 2) the other Party knew, as recipient, or under the circumstances, should have
known, was considered confidential or proprietary by the Disclosing Party ( as defined

2

263



below).  Confidential Information shall consist of all information, whether in written,
oral, electronic, or other form, furnished in connection with this Agreement by one
Party or its Representatives  (" Representative"  is defined as any elected and

appointed officials, afFiliate, director, officer, employee, agent, advisor or consultant

of a Party or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates) to one or more of the other Parties
or to its or their Representatives, and specifically includes but is not limited to ( 1)

PARTICIPATING MEMBER' s individually identifiable customer information,   ( 2).

PARTICIPATING MEMBER' s customer data and financial data, ( 3) the AUTHORITY' s

property owner information disclosing to PATICIPATING MEMBER pursuant to Section
5, and ( 4) each ADMINISTRATOR' s customer data and financial data.

b)     The AUTHORITY, each ADMINISTRATOR and PARTICIPATING MEMBER
shall each hold each other' s Confidential Information in confidence.   No Party shall
make the others' Confidential Information available in any form to any third party or
use any other's Confidential Information for any purpose other than as specified in
this Agreement. The Party providing Confidential Information (" Disclosing Party") to

any other Party (" Receiving Party") shall remain the sole owner of such information.

Except as provided elsewhere within this Agreement,  nothing contained in this
Agreement shall be construed as granting or conferring any right or license in any
Confidential Information or in any patents, copyrights, software or other technology,
either expressly or by implication to any other Party, or to its Representatives or to
others. The term Confidential Information shall not include any of the following: ( 1)

information already in possession of, or already known to, the Receiving Party as of
the Effective Date without an obligation of confidentiality;  ( 2)  information in the

public domain at the time of the disclosure, or which, after such disclosure, enters

into the public domain through no breach of this Agreement by the Receiving Party
or its Representative( s);  ( 3)  information lawfully furnished or disclosed to the
Receiving Party by a non- party to this Agreement without any obligation of
confidentiality and through no breach of this Agreement by the Receiving Party or its
Representative( s); ( 4) information independently developed by the Receiving Party
without use of any Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party; or ( 5) information
authorized in writing by the Disclosing Party to be released from the confidentiality
obligations herein.

c)      By virtue of this Agreement, each Party hereto may disclose to any other
Party information that is Confidential Information. This Agreement does not diminish,
revoke or supersede any existing confidentiality, non- disclosure or similar agreement
between or among any Parties that does not pertain to the subject matter of this
Agreement.    However,  any Confidential Information,  whether or not previously
disclosed, that pertains to the subject matter of this Agreement shall be governed by
the terms of this Section 6 which shall supersede any such previous agreement with
respect to such Confidential Information and any Confidential Information relating to
the subject matter of this. Agreement that was exchanged under such previous

agreement shall be treated as though it was exchanged under this Agreement as of
the date of such exchange.

3

264



d)     Each Receiving Party will treat all Confidential Information of the
Disclosing Party,   no matter written,   electronic,   or oral,   as confidential and

proprietary, and such Receiving Party shall only use such information in furtherance
of this Agreement.  As such,  such Receiving Party shall hold in confidence the
Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party, and ensure that such Confidential
Information is not disclosed to any other person or entity,  except as expressly
permitted by this Agreement or as authorized by the Disclosing Party.  No Receiving
Party shall disclose Confidential Information of a Disclosing Party received under this
Agreement to any person other than its Representatives who require knowledge of

such Confidential Information in furtherance of this Agreement. Each Receiving Party
shall inform its Representatives of the confidential nature of the Confidential

Information of any Disclosing Party and advise such Representatives of the limitations
on the use and disclosure and prohibition on making copies or summaries of such
Confidential Information. Each Receiving Party shall be responsible for any breach of
this Agreement by its Representatives.   No Party shall use the Confidential

Information of any other Party for any commercial purpose.

e)     If a Receiving Party becomes legally compelled  ( by oral questions,
interrogatories, request for information or documents, subpoena, civil investigative

demand, or similar process) to disclose any Confidential Information of a Disclosing
Party, the Receiving Party will provide the Disclosing Party with written notice of such
an occurrence ( if so permitted) as soon as possible.  Thereafter; at its sole costs and
expense,  the Disclosing Party may seek a protective order or other appropriate
remedy, or waive compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.  So long as it is
consistent with applicable law, the Receiving Party will not oppose action by, and the
Receiving Party will cooperate with, the Disclosing Party, at the Disclosing Party' s
sole cost and expense, to obtain an appropriate protective order or other reliable

assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded the Confidential Information.

If the Disclosing Party fails to obtain such protective order or other remedy, or if the
Disclosing Party waives compliance with the requirements of the preceding sentence,
the Receiving Party will disclose only that Confidential Information that it is legally
required to disclose, and will exercise commercially reasonable efForts, at Disclosing
Party' s expense,  to obtain reliable assurance that confidential treatment will be
accorded the Confidential Information so disclosed.

f)      In the. event a Receiving Party discloses, disseminates or releases any
Confidential Information,  except as expressly permitted by this Agreement,  such

disclosure,  dissemination or release will be deemed a material breach of this

Agreement and the Disclosing Party may demand prompt return of all Confidential
Information previously provided to the Receiving Party.   As soon as the Receiving
Party becomes aware that it has made an unauthorized disclosure of Confidential

Information, the Receiving Party shall take any and all necessary actions to recover
the improperly disclosed Confidential Information and immediately notify the
Disclosing Party regarding the nature of the unauthorized disclosure and the
corrective measures being taken.    Each Party agrees that any breach of their
confidentiality obligations could cause irreparable harm to the Disclosing Party, the
amount of which would be extremely difficult to estimate.    Accordingly,  it is

4

265



understood and agreed that monetary damages would not be a sufFicient remedy for
any material breach of this Agreement and that specific performance and injunctive
relief in addition to monetary damages shall be appropriate remedies for any breach
or any threat of such breach.  The provisions of this Paragraph are in addition to any
other legal rights or remedies a Disclosing Party may have.

g)     Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the provisions
of this Section 6 shall not apply to the disclosure of information that must be shared
in order to record, levy or collect contractual assessments under the Program or to
sell or securitize Bonds.

h)     Notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement, this Confidentiality
Section shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.

Section 7.  Integration.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of

PARTICIPATING MEMBER, each ADMINISTRATOR and the AUTHORITY with respect

to the matters covered hereby, and no agreement, statement or promise made by
PARTICIPATING MEMBER, any ADMINISTRATOR and the AUTHORITY which is not
contained herein, shall be valid or binding.   No prior agreement, understanding or
representation pertaining to any such matter shall be effective for any purpose.

Section 8. This Agreement may be terminated by either the AUTHORITY or
PARTICIPATING MEMBER with thirty ( 30) days written notice. In the event of such

termination, the AUTHORITY and each ADMINISTRATOR shall no Ionger have the

rights and authorizations granted in this Agreement and Resolution  [ INSERT],

including but not limited to,  conducting of additional contractual assessment

proceedings and levying new contractual assessments.

Section 9. Insurance. The ADMINISTRATOR agrees that, at no cost or expense

to the City, at all times during its administration of the CMFA Open PACE Program, to
maintain the insurance coverage set forth in Exhibit A to this Agreement.

Section 10.   Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective on the date on

which this Agreement is executed by the PARTICIPATING MEMBER (" EfFective Date").

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

5

266



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Participation

Agreement by their officers duly authorized as of the day and year first written above.

TWAIN COMMUNITY PARTNERS II, LLC

By:
Title]

CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE AUTHORITY

By:      
Title]

CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation

By:
Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST

By:
Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By:
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

6

267



EXFIIBIT A

INSU NCE

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1.      The coverage provided by Insurance Services Office Commercial
General

Liability coverage ( occurrence") Form Number CG 0001; and

2.       The coverage provided by Insurance Services Office Form
Number CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability.  Coverage shall be included for
all owned, non- owned and hired automobiles; and

3.  Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the California Labor
Code and

Employers Liability insurance; and

4.  Professional Liability Errors & Omissions for all professional services.

B.      Minimum Limits of Insurance

Administrator shall maintain limits no less than:

1.       Commercial General Liability:   $ 2, 000, 000 per occurrence for

bodily injury, personal injury and property damage; and

2.       Automobile Liability:    $ 1, 000, 000 combined single limit per
accident for bodily injury and property damage; and

3.       Workers'  Compensation and Employers Liability:    Workers'

Compensation limits as required by the California Labor Code and Employers
Liability limits of

1, 000, 000 per accident; and

4.      Professional Liability Errors & Omissions $ 1, 000, 000 per claim or
occurrence/

2, 000, 000 aggregate limit.

Limits and coverages afforded to the City shall be the greater of the above
limits, or the limits and coverages provided under the policy( ies) of insurance.

C. Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions

7

268



Any deductibles or self- insured retentions must be declared to the City.

D.  Other Insurance Provisions

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
1.  Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages.

a.       The City, its officers, employees, agents, and contractors are
to be covered as additional insureds as respects:    liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Administrator;  products and

completed operations of the Administrator; premises owned, leased, or used

by the Administrator; and automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by
the Administrator.   The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the

scope of protection afforded to the City, its officers, employees, agents, and
contractors.

b.       The Administrator' s insurance coverage shall be primary     ,
insurance as respects the City,   its officers,   employees,   agents,   and     

contractors.  Any insurance or self- insurance maintained by City, its ofFicers,
employees,  agents,  or. contractors shall be excess of the Administrator' s
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

c.       Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies
by the Administrator shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its officers,
employees, agents, or contractors.

d.       Coverage shall state that the Administrator' s insurance shall

apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is
brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer' s liability.

e.       Coverage shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the

City, its officers, employees, agents, and contractors.

2.  Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability.

Coverage shall contain waiver of subrogation in favor of City,  its officers,

employees, agents, and contractors.

3.  All Coverages

The Administrator shall provide City with written notice of any suspension,
cancellation,  or reduction in limits of any insurance policy required by this
Agreement, and shall promptly procure a replacement policy.

E. Verification of Coverage.

8

269



The Administrator shall furnish the City with certificates of insurance and with
original endorsements afFecting coverage required by this Agreement.   The

certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.

Proof of insurance shall be either emailed in pdf format or mailed to the City
Clerk at the following address or any subsequent address as may be directed
in writing by the City:

City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

G. Subcontractors

The Administrator shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies

or shall obtain separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor.

9

270



ITEM 5. 2

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

DECEMBER 10, 2018, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLIC NOTICE) TO CONSIDER A

RESOLUTION TO VACATE A PORTION OF GLACIER
STREET  ( FORMALLY MADRUGA ROAD)  TO SOUTH

LATHROP LAND,  L. L. C.  AND AUTHORIZE THE CITY

CLERK TO RECORD THE APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS
WITH THE COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN

RECOMMENDATION:     City Council to Consider the Following:

1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.  Adopt a Resolution to Vacate 9, 789 Square Feet of

Glacier Street ( Formally Madruga Road) to South

Lathrop Land, L. L. C.

SUMMARY:

On. September 10, 2018, City Council approved Parcel Map 17- 01 and a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement for South Lathrop Commerce Center with South Lathrop
Land,  L. L. C.  As part of the final map' s approval,  the developer was required to
construct offsite improvements.   Offsite improvements included the widening,
extension and renaming of Madruga Road to Glacier Street. Due to the extension of
Madruga Road, a portion of the former cul- de- sac is no longer needed by the City.
This portion consists of 9, 789 square feet and is of no use to anyone unless merged
with the adjoining property owned by South Lathrop Land, L. L. C.

Although the majority of City roadways are located on City owned easements,
Madruga Road is owned in fee title, which requires that the City go through a right-
of-way vacation process pursuant to Section 8835( a) of the California Streets and

Highways Code. Council may vacate a street pursuant to the authority provided in
this chapter by first adopting a resolution of intention to vacate. On November 19,
2018,  Council approved an initial resolution of intention to vacate a portion of

Madruga Road that set the public hearing to tonight' s meeting to allow Council to
consider the abandonment of the street.    On November 28,  2018,  the Planning
Commission confirmed the conformity of the right- of-way vacation of Glacier Street
formally Madruga Road) with the City' s General Plan.

Tonight, staff is requesting City Council adopt a resolution to vacate 9, 789 square
feet of Glacier Street ( formally Madruga Road), transfer fee title ownership of the
land to South Lathrop Land, L. L. C., authorize the City Clerk to record the appropriate
documents with the San Joaquin County and direct staff to process a lot line
adjustment to merge the vacated area with the adjacent parcel.

271



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
RESOLUTION TO VACATE 9, 789 SQUARE FEET OF GLACIER STREET

FORMALLY MADRUGA ROAD) TO SOUTH LATHROP LAND, L. L. C.

BACKGROUND:

On September 10, 2018, City Council approved Parcel Map 17- 01 and a Subdivision
Agreement for South Lathrop Commerce Center with South Lathrop Land, L. L. C. As
part of the final map' s approval,  the developer was required to construct offsite

improvements. Offsite improvements include the widening, extension and renaming
of Madruga Road to Glacier Street. Due to the extension of Madruga Road, a portion

of the former cul- de- sac is no Ionger needed by the City. This portion consists of
9, 789 square feet and is of no use to anyone unless merged with the adjoining
property owned by South Lathrop Land, L. L. C.

On November 19, 2018, Council approved an initial resolution of intention to vacate
a portion of Glacier Street ( formally Madruga Road) that set the public hearing to
tonight' s meeting to allow Council to consider the abandonment of the street. With
the approved initial resolution of intention,  staff took the item to the Planning
Commission for confirmation that the right- of- way vacation conforms to the City' s
General Plan.

On November 28, 2018, the Planning Commission confirmed that the right- of-way
vacation conforms to the City' s General Plan. The finding of consistency with the
General Plan is not subject to the California Environmental Quality Act  ( CEQA)

pursuant to Article 5 § 15061 ( b) ( 3) by the General Rule" that CEQA applies only to
projects that have a potential for causing a direct physical change in the environment,
or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment.  The

proposed action does not authorize any specific construction;  it is only a finding of
consistency to the General Plan. However, the environmental impacts of the South

Lathrop Specific Plan project were addressed in a certified Environmental Impact

Report ( SCH No. 2013012064) adopted by the Lathrop City Council on July 20, 2015
by passage of Resolution No. 15- 3963.

Staff requests City Council adopt a resolution to vacate approximately 9, 789 square
feet of Glacier Street ( formally Madruga Road), authorize the City Clerk to record the
appropriate documents with the San Joaquin County Recorder' s office and direct staff
to process a lot line adjustment to merge the vacated area with the adjacent parcel.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Due to the extension of Glacier Street ( formally Madruga Road)  in South Lathrop
Specific Plan, approximately 9, 789 square feet of the former cul- de- sac is no longer

needed and is of no significant use unless merged with the adjoining property owned
by South Lathrop Land,  L. L. C.  The value of offsite improvements constructed by
South Lathrop Land,  L. L. C.  are for the general benefit of the Community and far
exceed the value of the portion of cul- de- sac to be vacated.

272



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RESOLUTION TO VACATE 9, 789 SQUARE FEET OF GLACIER STREET

FORMALLY MADRUGA ROAD) TO SOUTH LATHROP LAND, L. L. C.

FISCAL IMPACT:

City staff recommends the transfer of this excess property to South Lathrop Land,
L. L. C.  at no cost,  because the land is of no significant value to any party unless
merged with the adjoining property owned by South Lathrop Land, L. L. C. The value

of offsite improvements constructed by South Lathrop Land, L. L. C. are for the general
benefit of the Community and far exceed the value of the portion of cul- de- sac to be
vacated.

ATTACH M E NTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the City of Lathrop to Vacate A Portion of Glacier Street
formally Madruga Road) Approximately 9, 789 Square Feet to South Lathrop

Land, L. L. C.

B.  South Lathrop Commerce Center Civil Site Plan

C.  Plat of Roadway Vacation & Legal Description of Roadway Vacation

D.  Resolution of the Planning Commission Approving the General Plan for the
Right of Way Vacation and Disposition of 9, 789 Square Feet of Glacier Street
formally Madruga Road) Resolution No. 18- 30

273



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

DECEMBER 10, 2018 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
RESOLUTION TO VACATE 9, 789 SQUARE FEET OF GLACIER STREET
FORMALLY MADRUGA ROAD) TO SOUTH LATHROP LAND, L. L. C.

APPROVALS:

2- S- lo

Michael King Date

Assistant Public Works Director

Q•    f` L,       I  OS•! 8
Cari James Date

Director of Finance

Z.- S'-

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

s r
St n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

274



RESOLUTION NO. 18-

RESOLUTION TO VACATE A PORTION OF GLACIER STREET ( FORMALLY
MADRUGA ROAD) TO SOUTH LATHROP LAND, L. L. C. AND AUTHORIZE THE

CITY CLERK TO RECORD THE APPROPRIATE DOCUMENTS WITH THE
COUNTY OF SAN 70AQUIN

WHEREAS, on September 10, 2018, City Council approved Parcel Map 17- 01
and a Subdivision Improvement Agreement for South Lathrop Commerce Center with
South Lathrop Land, L. L. C.; and

WHEREAS, as part of the final map' s approval, the developer was required to
construct offsite improvements,   which included the widening,   extension and

renaming of Madruga Road to Glacier Street; and

WHEREAS, due to the extension of Glacier Street ( formally Madruga Road), a

portion of the former cul- de- sac is no longer needed by the City, this portion consists
of approximately 9, 789 square feet and is of no significant use to anyone unless
merged with the adjoining property owned by South Lathrop Land, L. L. C.; and

WHEREAS, on October 3, 2018, South Lathrop Land, L. L. C. submitted a letter
to the City requesting the initiation of the process to vacate a portion of Madruga
Road approximately 9, 789 square feet; and

WHEREAS, Glacier Street ( formally Madruga Road) is owned by the City in
fee title, which requires that the City go through a right- of-way vacation process
pursuant to Section 8835( a) of the California Streets and Highways Code and Council
may vacate a street pursuant to the authority provided in this chapter by first
adopting a resolution of intention to vacate; and

WHEREAS, on November 19, 2018, Council approved an initial resolution of
intention to vacate approximately 9, 789 square feet of Madruga Road that set the
public hearing to December 10, 2018 to allow Council to consider the abandonment
of the street; and

WHEREAS, on November 28, 2018, the Planning Commission confirmed the
proposed vacation of a portion of Glacier Street ( formally Madruga Road) conforms

with the City' s General Plan; and

WHEREAS,  Glacier Street  ( formally Madruga Road)  is exempt from CEQA
pursuant to Section 15061( b)  ( 3)  of the State CEQA Guidelines since there is no
possibility that the activity in question may have significant effect on the
environment;

THEREFORE, Staff requests City Council adopt a resolution to vacate a portion

of Madruga Road, approximately 9, 789 square feet, transfer fee ownership to Lathrop
Land, L. L. C., authorize the City Clerk file the appropriate documents with the San
Joaquin County Clerk and direct staff to process a lot line adjustment to merge the
vacated area with the adjacent parcel.

275



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this
10t" 

day of December
2018, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

276



ac  ; r , '

t' C' w+n +,-=^ .  .
s:er„,

s f,:'     , f r,,` A , .` a.
i        --$`°`-`,.  ,...

l

f S6`      ``°       *€

x    
y ' f' 

Y    _ 
Ne4    ,  ''       ,

a., s'   .  

ec    

fd       .
r.     

R     '
a:.  a s..:

T r

9          y

7 s Yx9R      '
rA`

a  

a i  a`
a         t  : c

7,'       I = ,    '    

s k

a, ,

4               f+  
r'"''_:     _       

y
1 e y,,.      - s-     q w r+-t.   >'   . 

t   `"      t  `  .:       s `      c-,''  
v ,  ' ,  .

r  r^ e'    !` w' v 
fi

p,              
c a

f       ,, ''' y,- s tt,,' q      

s           , y  ,
3=       

w«
4    w  .  ..    ;  " .     r,`  a,::r'       ,

Y

6    . 

g ,
c"  

x      

F

ay     

f,' l     
Y

i.. 

r R    q   +

w-
As

M` 

wH a...,.:

3.... `   "`   ..

4    . r ; . ss`.. r-  ..      
a w

w......+^,•-,,..-

1     
t

S  .,, i.a"„.      ,.   
t           . g.a,.^";.       

r

rt       ,'•

r-r

r
l

S T A T E R 0 U 7 E 120
4          

ti    w.  
rn

5  %.    
m_    

Gt, pCIEP ST
m

Q., 

p     
FORMEPI.

Y
MADRUCiFI

s    

D
jt,       Madrupa Aoatl witlening

9

90

c    .`    WanroQs eosa
a'       .   A

y„,  Oultclaim C      .

t-`      ?.    Ct
9   ` "-       .     --  -

t'"

v.    .     

a.. 

x r:;  .     a,. R'...   

c4 m
a_   

v

4ti   
z     :    

a

Z
r .     '    ..     V'      A;  

t-?<     

3
0`    

N t` y     
7

W
W

n

O r  :

k`` s.,

g
A,    ` 

1

x           ' fE

sS
y,+"  

tl +%'       °+

t, tt y', -

of  :
q•.    l      ..„,   _         s     

a+..  
en..

dar
t, i

1
f.' ^' '

R^' y '      w. 4'
4     +

e.`.

g           

Ttt N  ` pww  ¢':
N

Z '

4  '"  '   '$  

g   _     ._^.+      

a..°". .   

y

1ZE

pV   

a*

h -  `     

r         . y V`'     

i..  4

t       w:. c.

4 t  
i

t     .   .   

k,`    

5.   ;-       ,g          
x

Mad uga AoaG fluitclai r: p_ 22 aeres
Q_ a ,

a

r"`     ',;       a.      .     
1          ,  `     

t,-_;
i Glacier St r ydruga R4 wiG? ning: 0 ' 0 asres

ry

a          ?   :     Glaaee S', s iadru a R t wes^ erly exte^ sior): 2- 05 acres F

y  '       904FTM LATNROP     
Gl cier 5* ( east of adruga inte^ se^: ion,: i. d0 aere       

x •    . COMtdERCF GEN, ER      .
Z  , 

a  ,'  
h# CIV6. 91L? L+ N       '

t   ,, a. `,'

a  
YOSB" 1? e Av2: 7. 5 i 2CPBS     . 

j.s m rs sna s
v      ^', Jefferson W8y 7n95 aCres

rt
i_  

kr

L

IN,
n x     _

x         

277



N  C     25223. 01

12/ 5/ 18

Paje 1 of 2

EXHIBIT" A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

ROADWAY ABANDONMEN'

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY,

STATE OF CALIFORNIA, BEING A PORTION OF PUBLIC ROAD KNOWN AS MADRUGA ROAD.

AS DESCRIBED IN THE DOCUMENT RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NUMBER 85008988, ON

FEBRUARY 7, 1985, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY RECORDS, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY

DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF SAID MADRUGA ROAD, THENCE

ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID MADRUGA ROAD NORTH 0° 42' 48" EAST, 65. 74 FEET;

THENCE LEAVING SAID WESTERLY LINE, ALONG A NON- TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT,

FROM WHICH THE RADIUS POINT BEARS SOUTH 24° OS' 15" EAST, HAVING A RADIUS OF

1977. 50 FEET, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 5° 35' S7", AND AN ARC LENGTH OF 193. 25

FEET, TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID MADRUGA ROAD;

THENCE ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE THE FOLLOWING TWO ( 2) COURSES:

1.   SOUTH 39° 40' 23" WEST, 137. 22 FEET;

2.   THENCE SOUTH 72 01' 17" WEST, 97. 99 FEET, TO THE POIIVT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 9, 789 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS.

END OF DESCRIPTION

PREPARED BY:

LAND

SG
G MA c 

G o
Q No. 8817   

A

5
IAN UCE CDONALD

J

DATE

LICE S AND SURVEYORNO. 8817

EXP. 12/ 31/ 19)
s

qTF
OF CAL F\

P

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

mAc Y som' s
CIVIL E,VGINEERING LAND PLl NNING LAND SURVEYING
5142 Franklin Drive Suite 0, Pleasanton, CA. 945883355
925) 225-0690

P: 252231SRV Mapping I, egals N1ADRUGA ROAD ABANDONMENT. doc

278



i'  . s+'.   '

EXH/B/T B"
PAGf 1 Li' 1

LAND i

E MA     
L W I

2 nu+oAu
L o o

o

ST

Q N 0. S 7       ATF Rp B
C IBED

r

AREA

ST9
F

OF CA1-
F¢`

P

v9
G

pGSF
c

5

ti yUNioN e VICINITY MAP

NOTE:       
9',

SCALE:  1" =  3000'

THE BASIS OF BEARING SHOWN HEREON IS

THE SAME AS SHOWN ON PARCEL MAP

17- 01, WHICH IS BASED ON THE CALIFORNIA

COORDINATE SYSTEM ZONE 3, NAD 83.    

v  
1 0REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID MAP

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION. 

S 

4Lo      `       

TgS ii

v
l        PARCEL 2

j PM 17'—D 1

p 26P 111 4

5
35 25   N18° 29' 18° W( R

D  , 1g3'  .   
C,  

IQ...__      O  l.

1"`       

1'     
P 1 RCEL 3

2%'/ PM 17- 01

26PM 14

o     1'„
E

NO 4

65.

7

4'     N 29o, g9'       ROADWAY ABANDONMENT

9, 789± SF
P. O. B.    

0 50 100 200

PLAT TO ACCOMPANY LEGAL DESCRIPTION

LEGEND SCALE: 1"= 100'

ROADWAY ABANDONMENT
BOUNDARY OF DESCRIPTION

EXISTING PARCEL/ RIGHT OF WAY LINE LpTHROP CA, IFORNW

PM PARCEL MAP
P. 0.6.     POINT OF BEGINNING m c Y  sompAREA OF DESCRIPTION

ENGINEERS PU,NNERS SURVEYORS

51428 FRANKLIN DR, PLEASANTON, CA 94588    ( 925) 225- 0690

DRAWN DATE SCALE JOB N0.

IBM FEB. 2018 1"= 100' 25223. 01

12- 05- 2018 2: 30pm lan MacDonald P:\ 25223\ SRV MAPPING\ PIATS\ MADRUGA ROAD ABAN ONMENT. DWG

279



Y

p 9 RYVi    

CITY OF LATI ROP

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 18- 30

A RESOLUTION OF TIiE PLANI IING COIVIMISSION OF THE CIT OF LATHROP

1VIAKING A FINDING OF CONSISTENCY WITH T IE GENERAL PI,AN FOR THE

RIGHT OF WAI' VACATION AND DISPOSITION OF 9, 789 SQUAItE FEET OF

GLACIEg2 STREET

WHEiZEAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed public meeting to
consider the proposed right of way vacation of a portion of Glacier Street; and

W IEREAS, the City of Lathrop originally adopted a Comprehensive General Plan on
December 17, 1991, which has been updated from time to time and includes specific policies and

objectives for infrastructure, construction and maintenance of public facilities; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop adopted the South Lathrop Specific Plan on July 20, 2015;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Streets, Highways, and Service Easements Vacation Law at

California Streets and Highways Code Section 8355, the City Council has the authority to abandon or
vacate a street within its City limits; and

WI EREAS,  pursuant to California Government Code section 65402,  the Planning
Commission shall review all proposed right of way vacations to ensure consistency with the City' s
General Plan; and

WFIEREAS, as part of the South Lathrop Commerce Center project, Glacier Street ( formerly
Madruga Road) has been improved, widened, and extended; and

WHEREAS, the Glacier Street improvements resulted in a surplus land of 9, 789 square feet

and is intended to be vacated to the adjoining property owner, South Lathrop, LLC; and

VVHEI EAS, the finding of consistency with the General Plan is exempt from the California
Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) pursuant to Article 5 § 15061 ( b) ( 3) by the " General Rule" that
CEQA applies only to projects that have a potential for causing a direct physical change in the
environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment. The proposed

action does not authorize any specific construction; it is only a finding of consistency to the General
Plan. The environmental impacts of the South Lathrop Specific Plan project were addressed in a
certified Environmental Impact Report ( SCH No. 2013012064) adopted by the Lathrop City Council
on July 20, 2015 by passage of Resolution No. 15- 3963; and

Plannin Commission Resolution No. 18- 30 Pa; e 1 of 3

280



NOW, THEREFORE, E IT I ESOLVED that pursuant to California Government Code

Section 65402, the Planning Commission hereby finds and reports to the City Council that as part of
the South Lathrop Commerce Center project, Glacier Street ( formerly Madruga Road) has been
improved, widened, and extended which resulted in surplus land of 9, 789 square feet which is no

longer needed, and is of no significant use to the City except to the adjoining property owner which is
South Lathrop, LLC, and that the vacation of the 9, 789 square feet of right of way is in conformity
with the Lathrop General Plan based on the following:

1.  The extent of the vacation is the 9, 789 square foot portion of Glacier Street and this minor

portion of land is no longer needed by the City, nor is it required to complete the full
improvement of the Glacier Street.

2.  The Land Use Diagram of the General Plan indicates that, because of the location of the

9,789 square foot portion of Glacier Street, it should be combined with the adjacent parcel
with a land use of Limited Industrial.

3.  The vacation of the 9, 789 square foot portion of Glacier Street is consistent with the

General Plan and South Lathrop Specific Plan in that the area is not needed for the Glacier
Street right of way, and as such, the purpose of the vacation is to enable the land to be

utilized by the adjacent property owner and to relieve the City of unnecessary ownership
of land.

BE IT F JRTHER I2ESOLVED that the Planning Commission hereby determines that the
City Council should take the necessary procedures to effect the vacation of the 9, 789 square foot
portion of Glacier Street right of way as required by law.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop based
on substantial evidence in the administrative proceedings, its findings above, and pursuant to its

independent review and consideration, does hereby find that the proposed right of way vacation, as
attached and incorporated as Attachment 3 of the Staff Report is consistent with the adopted City of
Lathrop' s General Plan.

I

Planning Commission Resolution No. 18- 30 Pa e 2 of 3

281



4'    
i  ..

PASSED ANI) ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop at a
special meeting on the

28th

day of November, 2018 by the following vote:

AYES:  Lazard, Ishihara, Torres- O' Callaghan, Gatto

NOES:  None

ABSTAIN:     None

ABSENT:      None

Dia e Lazar ,

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

M rk Me ssner, Sec tary Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Planning Commission Resolution No. 18- 30 Page 3 of 3

282


	2018-12-10 City Council Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	2018-12-10 Item 2.1.1 Declaration and Certification of the November 6, 2018 Election Results
	2018-12-10 Item 2.1.5 Appointment of Vice Mayor
	2018-12-10 Item 4.2 Approval of Minutes for the Special Council Meeting of November 19, 2018
	2018-12-10 Item 4.3 Second Reading & Adoption of Ordinance 18-398 of the City Council COL Levying Sp. Taxes within COL CFD 2018-1 (CLSP Facilities)
	2018-12-10 Item 4.4 Second Reading & Adoption of Ordinance 18-399 of the City Council COL Levying Sp. Taxes within COL CFD 2018-2 (CLSP Facilities)
	2018-12-10 Item 4.5 Proposed FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 Biennial Budget Calendar
	2018-12-10 Item 4.6 Acceptance of Irrevocable Offer of Dedication for Mulholland Drive
	2018-12-10 Item 4.7 Approval of FM & SIA for 44 Lots in Tract 3991 Village V withing Lakeside East District of River Islands
	2018-12-10 Item 4.8 Request to Terminate the Interim Levee Inpact Fee & Replace it with a Regional Levee Impact Fee in the Mossdale Tract Basin Area
	2018-12-10 Item 4.9 Create CIP PS 19-05 Warren Avenue Sidewalk Improvement Project, Approve Related Budget Amendment,  Authorize Measure K Cooperative Agreement
	2018-12-10 Item 5.1 Council to Discuss & Consider New Energy Financing Program for Private & Residential Improvements from CMFA Open Pace Program
	2018-12-10 Item 5.2 P.H. (Public Notice) to Consider Resolution to Vacate Portion of Glacier St. (Formally Madruga Rd) to South Lathrop Land, LLC



